
default in the payment of Series 2017 A Bonds, that special record date to be fixed by the hereinafter 
named Registrar by notice given to the Registered Owners not less than 10 days prior to said special 
record date at the address of such Registered Owner as it appears on the registration books of the Issuer 
maintained by , West Virginia, as registrar (in 
such capacity, the "Registrar"), or, at the option of any Registered Owner of at least $1,000,000 in 
aggregate principal amount of Series 2017 A Bonds, by wire transfer in immediately available funds to a 
domestic bank account specified in writing by the Registered Owner to the Paying Agent at least 5 days 
prior to such Record Date. Principal and premium, if any, shall be paid when due upon presentation and 
surrender of this Series 2017 A Bond for payment at the office of the Paying Agent, in Charleston, 
West Virginia. 

This Bond is one of an issue of a series of bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of 
$ designated "The City of Morgantown Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017 A" (the "Series 2017 A Bonds"), of like tenor and effect, except as to number, denomination, 
date of maturity and interest rate, dated , 2017, upon original issuance, the proceeds of 
which are to be used, together with other funds of the Issuer: (i) to pay a portion of the Costs of design, 
acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project; (ii) [to pay the premium for a Municipal Bond 
Insurance Policy to secure the payment of the principal of, and interest on, the Series 2017 A Bonds;] 
(iii) [to fund a reserve account for the Series 2017 A Bonds/to pay the premium for a Municipal Bond 
Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy for the Series 2017 A Bonds] in an amount equal to the Series 
2017 A Bonds Reserve Requirement; and (iv) to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2017 A Bonds 
and related costs. The Series 2017 A Bonds are issued under the authority of and in full compliance with 
the Constitution and statutes of the State of West Virginia, including particularly, Chapter 8, Article 20 of 
the West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended (the "Act"), and an ordinance duly enacted by the City 
Council of the Issuer on January _,2017, and supplemented by a supplemental resolution adopted by 
said City Council on , 2017 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Ordinance"), and is 
subject to all the terms and conditions of said Ordinance. The Ordinance provides for the issuance of 
additional bonds under certain conditions, and such bonds would be entitled to be paid and secured 
equally and ratably from and by the funds and revenues and other security provided for the Series 2017 A 
Bonds under the Ordinance. Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, as the same may be amended 
and supplemented from time to time, for a description of the rights, limitations of rights, obligations, 
duties and immunities of the Issuer, the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Registered Owners of the Series 
2017 A Bonds and the Registered Owners of any subsequently issued additional bonds. Executed 
counterparts or certified copies of the Ordinance are on file at the office of the City Clerk in The City of 
Morgantown, West Virginia. 

[The Series 2017 A Bonds are additionally secured, but only to the extent described in 
the Statement ofInsurance printed on the Bonds, by a policy of municipal bond insurance issued by 
[Bond Insurer] .] 

THIS BOND IS ISSUED ON A PARITY WITH RESPECT TO LIENS, PLEDGE AND 
SOURCE OF AND SECURITY FOR PAYMENT, AND IN ALL RESPECTS, WITH THE 
FOLLOWING COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF THE ISSUER 
(COLLECTIVEL Y, THE "PRIOR BONDS"): 

(\) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1995 (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED APRIL 27, 1995, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,601,477 (THE "SERIES 1995 BONDS"); 

(2) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2000 A (WEST 

50 

7342097 

Page 231 of 461



VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED FEBRUARY 29, 2000, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $7,842,000 (THE "SERIES 2000 A BONDS"); 

(3) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2000 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED FEBRUARY 29, 2000, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGA TE PRINCI PAL AMOUNT OF $2,488,000 (THE "SERIES 2000 B BONDS"); 

(4) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2001 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED FEBRUARY 8, 2001, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGA TE PRINCI PA L AMOUNT OF $3,812,4 70 (TH E "SERIES 200 I A BONDS"); 

(5) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2006 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JUNE 30, 2006, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $6,410,191 (THE "SERIES 2006 A BONDS"); 

(6) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2007 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED AUGUST 14, 2007, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,500,000 (THE "SERIES 2007 A BONDS"); 

(7) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 A (DIRECT 
PAYMENT BUILD AMERICA BONDS), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGA TE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $37,950,000 (THE "SERIES 20 lOA BONDS"); 

(8) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM/ARRA), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATEPRINCIPALAMOUNTOF$81,600(THE"SERIES2010B BONDS"); 

(9) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 C (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGA TE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $15,380,227 (THE "SERIES 20 I 0 C BONDS"); 

(10) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 0 (WEST 
VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $9,317,286 (THE "SERIES 2010 0 BONDS"); 

(II) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 E (WEST 
VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM/ARRA), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $100,000 (THE "SERIES 2010 E BONDS"); 

(12) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 F (BANK 
QUALIFIED), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE 
AMOUNT OF $7,250,000 (THE "SERIES 2010 F BONDS"); 

(13) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM), DATED AUGUST 24, 2012, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $570,000 (THE "SERIES 2012 A BONDS"); 

(14) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 C (BANK 
QUALIFIED), DATED OCTOBER 5, 2012, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,330,000 (THE "SERIES 2012 C BONDS"); 

51 
7342097 

Page 232 of 461



(15) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED AUGUST 22, 2013, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,605,260 (THE "SERIES 20 13 A BONDS"); 

(16) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2014 BOATED 
JULY 23, 2014, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $505,421 
(THE "SERIES 2014 B BONDS"); 

(17) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $137,568 (THE "SERIES 2015 A BONDS"); 

(18) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITy), DATED MARCH 31,2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,586 (THE "SERIES 2015 B BONDS"); 

(19) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 C (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8, 111,813 (THE "SERIES 2015 C BONDS"); 

(20) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 0 (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGA TE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,688,394 (THE "SERIES 2015 0 BONDS"); 

(21) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 E (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JUNE 11,2015, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $662,300 (THE "SERIES 2015 E BONDS"); 

(22) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 A, DATED 
DECEMBER I, 2016, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
$69,755,000 (THE "SERIES 2016 A BONDS"); 

(23) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 B-1 (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED DECEMBER I, 2016, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $25,000,000 (THE "SERIES 2016 B-1 BONDS"); AND 

(24) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2017 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED 2017, ISSUED 
COTEMPORANEOUSLY HERWITH IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
$ (THE "SERIES 2017 B BONDS") 

The Series 2017 A Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates, as 
provided in the Ordinance and as set forth in the following lettered paragraphs: 

(A) Optional Redemption. The Bonds maturing on and after , 20 __ , are 
subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer on or after . 20 __ , 
in whole at any time and in part on any Interest Payment Date, as directed by the Issuer, in reverse order 
of maturity and by lot within a maturity, at the following Redemption Prices (expressed as percentages of 

52 

7342097 

Page 233 of 461



the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed), plus interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption: 

Period During Which Redeemed 
(Dates Inclusive) 

Redemption 
Price 

(B) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 2017 A Bonds maturing on 
_ ______ , 20 and 20 are subject to annual mandatory sinking fund redemption 
prior to maturity by random selection as may be determined by the Registrar, on I of 
the years and in the principal amounts set forth below, at the Redemption Price of 100% of the principal 
amount of each Bond so called for redemption plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption: 

Bonds Maturi ng 1, 20 

Year ( I ) Principal Amount 

* Final Maturity 

In the event of any redemption of less than all outstanding Series 2017 A Bonds, the 
maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent at the direction of the Issuer and Series 
2017 A Bonds to be redeemed shall be determined by lot within a maturity, or in such other manner 
deemed appropriate by the Paying Agent. If less than all the Series 2017 A Bonds are to be redeemed, the 
Series 2017 A Bonds to be redeemed shall be identified by reference to the Series designation, date of 
issue, CUSIP numbers and Maturity Dates. 

Notice of any redemption of this Series 2017 A Bond, unless waived, shall be given by the 
Paying Agent on behalf of the Issuer by mailing an official redemption notice by registered or certified 
mail at least thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to 
the Registered Owner of the Series 2017 A Bond or Series 2017 A Bonds to be redeemed at the address 
shown on the Bond Register or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such Registered Owner 
to the Paying Agent. Such notice shall also be given by the Paying Agent to the Registrar. Notice of 
redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Series 2017 A Bonds or portions of Series 2017 A Bonds 
so to be redeemed shall, on the Redemption Date, become due and payable at the Redemption Price 
therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the Issuer shall default in the payment of the 
Redemption Price) such Series 2017 A Bonds or portions of Series 2017 A Bonds shall cease to bear 
interest. 

Failure to receive such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect 
the validity of proceedings for the redemption of this Series 2017 A Bond. 

The Series 2017 A Bonds and the interest thereon are payable only from and are secured by 
the Gross Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) to be derived from the operation of the Combined 

53 
7342097 

Page 234 of 461



Utility System, on a parity in all respects with the pledge of the Gross Revenues created in favor of the 
holders of the Prior Bonds, all monies in the Series 2017 A Bonds Sinking Fund, and the Series 2017 A 
Bonds Reserve Account therein, established under the Ordinance, and the unexpended proceeds of the 
Series 2017 A Bonds, including monies in the Series 2017 A Bonds Construction Fund, and the Issuer 
hereby and in the Ordinance pledges such revenues and monies to such payment. Said Gross Revenues 
shall be sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on all bonds which may be issued pursuant to the 
Act and shall be set aside as a special fund hereby pledged for such purpose and to make the other 
payments required by the Ordinance. This Series 2017 A Bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the 
Issuer within any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation, nor shall the Issuer be obligated to 
pay the same or the interest hereon except from said special fund provided from the Gross Revenues, the 
monies in the Series 2017 A Bonds Sinking Fund and the Series 2017 A Bonds Reserve Account and the 
unexpended proceeds of the Series 2017 A Bonds, incl uding monies in the Series 2017 A Bonds 
Construction Fund. Pursuant to the Ordinance, the Issuer has covenanted and agreed to establish and 
maintain just and equitable rates and charges for the use of the Combined Utility System and the services 
rendered thereby, which shall be sufficient, together with other revenues of the Combined Utility System, 
to provide for the reasonable expenses of operation, repair and maintenance of the Combined Utility 
System, and to leave a balance each year equal to at least 115% of the maximum amount payable in any 
year for principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 2017 A Bonds and all other obligations secured by 
a lien on or payable from such revenues on a parity with the Series 2017 A Bonds, including the Prior 
Bonds and any hereinafter issued Additional Parity Bonds. The Issuer has entered into certain further 
covenants with the registered owners of the Series 2017 A Bonds, for the terms of which reference is 
made to the Ordinance. Remedies provided the registered owners of the Series 2017 A Bonds are 
exclusively as provided in the Ordinance, to which reference is here made for a detailed description 
thereof. 

All monies received from the sale of the Series 2017 A Bonds except for accrued interest 
thereon shall be applied solely to pay a portion of the Costs of Project, [pay the premium for a Municipal 
Bond Insurance Policy to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2017 A Bonds], 
[fund a reserve account for the Series 2017 A Bonds/pay the premium for a Municipal Bond Debt Service 
Reserve Insurance Policy] in amount equal to the Series 2017 A Bonds Reserve Requirement, and pay 
Costs of Issuance of the Series 2017 A Bonds, and there shall be, and hereby is, created and granted a lien 
upon such monies, until so applied, in favor of the registered owners of said Series 2017 A Bonds. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts, conditions and 
things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Series 2017 A 
Bond have existed, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by 
law, and that the amount of this Series 2017 A Bond, together with all other obligations of said Issuer, 
does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution or statutes of the State of West Virginia, and that 
a sufficient amount of the revenues of the Combined Utility System has been pledged to and will be set 
aside into said special fund by said Issuer for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Series 2017 A Bonds of which this Series 2017 A Bond is one. 

This Series 2017 A Bond, under the provisions of the Act is and has all the qualities and 
incidents of, a negotiable instrument under the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of West Virginia, 
but may be transferred only upon the surrender hereof at the office of the Registrar and otherwise as 
provided by the within-described Ordinance. 

This Series 2017 A Bond and the income there from are, under the Act, exempt from all 
taxation by the State of West Virginia, or any county, municipality, political subdivision or agency 
thereof. 

54 

7342097 

Page 235 of 461



This Series 2017 A Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Ordinance, or become 
valid or obligatory for any purpose, until the certificate of authentication and registration hereon shall 
have been signed by the Registrar. 

All provisions of the Ordinance, as defined on the reverse hereof, and the statutes under 
which this Series 2017 A Bond is issued shall be deemed to be a part of the contract evidenced by this 
Series 2017 A Bond to the same extent as if written fully herein. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

ss 
7342097 

Page 236 of 461



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN has caused this Bond to be 
signed by its Mayor, and its corporate seal to be imprinted hereon and attested by its City Clerk, and has 
caused this Series 2017 A Bond to be dated as of the Series 2017 A Bond Date specified above. 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

[Manual or facsimile signature] 
City Clerk 

7342097 
56 

[Manual or facsimile signature] 
Mayor 

Page 237 of 461



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
AND REGISTRATION 

This Series 2017 A Bond is one ofthe fully registered Series 2017 A Bonds described in the 
within-mentioned Ordinance and has been duly registered in the name of the Registered Owner on the 
date set forth below. Attached hereto is the complete text of the opinion of Steptoe & Johnson PLLC, 
bond counsel, signed originals of which are on file with the Registrar, delivered and dated on the date of 
the original delivery of and payment for the Series 2017 A Bonds. 

Dated: , 2017. -------

7342097 

As Registrar 

By __________ ~------------___ 
Its Authorized Officer 

57 

Page 238 of 461



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE 

[Bond Insurance Legend] 

58 
7342097 

Page 239 of 461



(FORM OF) 
ASSIGNMENT 

Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
_____________ the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 
_____________ to transfer the said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof 
with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: _______ , 20 . 

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: 

(Bank, Trust Company or Firm) 

(Authorized Officer) 

NOTICE: The Assignor's signature to this Assignment must correspond with the name as it 
appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or any change whatever. 

59 
7342097 

Page 240 of 461



THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 

COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2017 A (TAX EXEMPT) 

Section 1.01 
Section 1.02 
Section 1.03 
Section 1.04 

BOND ORDINANCE 

Table of Contents 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS; STATUTORY AUTHORITY; FINDINGS 

Definitions 
Authority for this Ordinance 
Findings 
Ordinance Constitutes Contract 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION OF ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF PROJECT 

Section 2.01 

Section 3.01 
Section 3.02 
Section 3.03 
Section 3.04 
Section 3.05 
Section 3.06 
Section 3.07 
Section 3.08 
Section 3.09 
Section 3.10 
Section 3.11 
Section 3.12 
Section 3.13 
Section 3.14 
Section 3.15 

7342097 

Authorization of Acquisition and Construction of the Project 

ARTICLE III 
THE SERIES 2017 A BONDS 

Form and Payment of Bonds 
Execution of Bonds 
Authentication and Registration 
Negotiability and Registration 
Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost 
Term Bonds 
Notice of Redemption 
Persons Treated as Owners 
Temporary Bonds 
Series 2017 A Bonds 
Book Entry System for Series 2017 A Bonds 
Delivery of Series 2017 A Bonds 
Form of Series 2017 A Bonds 
Disposition of Proceeds of Series 2017 A Bonds 
Disbursements from the Series 2017 A Bonds Construction Fund 

ARTICLE IV 

Page 241 of 461



Section 4.01 
Section 4.02 
Section 4.03 

Section 5.01 
Section 5.02 
Section 5.03 
Section 5.04 

Section 6.01 
Section 6.02 
Section 6.03 

Section 6.04 
Section 6.05 
Section 6.06 
Section 6.07 

Section 6.08 
Section 6.09 
Section 6.10 
Section 6.11 
Section 6.12 
Section 6.13 
Section 6.14 
Section 6.15 
Section 6.16 
Section 6.17 
Section 6.18 
Section 6.19 
Section 6.20 
Section 6.21 

7342097 

SYSTEM REVENUES; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Depository Bank 
Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Bond Commission 
System Revenues and Application Thereof 

ARTICLE V 

INVESTMENTS; NON-ARBITRAGE; 
REBATES OF EXCESS INVESTMENT EARNINGS 

Investments 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
Arbitrage 
Tax Certificate, Rebate and Rebate Fund 

ARTICLE VI 

ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER 

Covenants Binding and Irrevocable 
Bonds not to be Indebtedness of the Issuer 
Bonds Secured by Pledge of Gross Revenues and Monies in Sinking 
Fund 
Rates 
Completion of Project; Operation and Maintenance 
Sale of the Combined Utility System 
Issuance of Other Obligations Payable Out of Revenues and General 
Covenant Against Encumbrances 
Additional Parity Bonds 
Insurance and Bonds 
Services Rendered to the Board or Issuer 
Enforcement of Collections 
No Competing Franchise 
Books and Records 
Operating Budget 
Mandatory Connections 
Statutory Mortgage Lien 
Tax Covenants 
Covenants Regarding the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
Preliminary Official Statement 
Bond Purchase Agreement 

ARTICLE VII 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

ii 

Page 242 of 461



Section 7.01 
Section 7.02 
Section 7.03 
Section 7.04 

Section 8.01 
Section 8.02 
Section 8.03 
Section 8.04 
Section 8.05 
Section 8.06 
Section 8.07 
Section 8.08 
Section 8.09 
Section 8.10 
Section 8.11 
Section 8.12 

Events of Default 
Enforcement 
Appointment of Receiver 
Restoration of Issuer and Bondholder 

ARTICLE VIII 
REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT 

Appointment of Registrar 
Responsibilities of Registrar 
Evidence on Which Registrar May Act 
Compensation and Expenses 
Certain Permitted Acts 
Resignation of Registrar 
Removal 
Appointment of Successor 
Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor 
Merger or Consolidation 
Adoption of Authentication 
Paying Agent 

ARTICLE IX 
DEFEASANCE; DISCHARGE OF PLEDGE OF ORDINANCE 

Section 9.01 

Section 10.01 
Section 10.02 
Section 10.03 
Section 10.04 
Section 10.05 
Section 10.06 
Section 10.07 
Section 10.08 
Section 10.09 
Section 10.10 
Section 10.11 
Section 10.12 
Section 10.13 
Section 10.14 

SIGNATURES 
CERTIFICATION 

Defeasance; Discharge of Pledge of Ordinance 

ARTICLE X 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Amendment of Ordinance 
Evidence of Signatures of Bondholders and Ownership of Bonds 
Preservation and Inspection of Documents 
Cancellation of Bonds 
Failure to Present Bonds 
Notices, Demands and Requests 
No Personal Liability 
Law Applicable 
Parties Interested Herein 
Severability of Invalid Provisions 
Table of Contents and Headings 
Conflicting Provisions Repealed 
Procedure on Enactment of Ordinance; Public Hearing 
Effective Date 

EXHIBIT A - FORM OF SERIES 2017 A BONDS 

iii 
7342097 

Page 243 of 461



Water Reservoir Project - State Issue 

BOND ORDINANCE 
THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION 
AND CONSTRUCTION OF CERTAIN ADDITIONS, 
BETTERMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
POTABLE WATER PORTION OF THE EXISTING 
COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN AND THE FINANCING OF THE 
COST, NOT OTHERWISE PROVIDED, THEREOF 
THROUGH THE ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF NOT 
MORE THAN $10,000,000 IN AGGREGA TE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF COMBINED UTILITY 
SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2017 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND); PROVIDING 
FOR THE RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF AND 
SECURITY FOR THE REGISTERED OWNERS OF 
SUCH BONDS; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF ALL DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE 
ISSUANCE OF SUCH BONDS; APPROVING, 
RA TIFYING AND CONFIRMING LOAN 
AGREEMENT RELA TING TO SUCH BONDS; 
AUTHORIZING THE SALE AND PROVIDING FOR 
THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF SUCH BONDS 
AND ADOPTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING 
THERETO. 

WHEREAS, The City of Morgantown (the "Issuer" or the "City") presently 
owns and operates, through The City of Morgantown Utility Board (the "Board"), a public 
combined waterworks, sanitary sewerage and stormwater system (collectively, the 
"Combined Utility System") and has heretofore financed the acquisition and construction 
of the Combined Utility System and certain additions, betterments and improvements 
thereto through the issuance of several series of bonds or refunding bonds, of which there 
are presently outstanding the Prior Bonds, as hereinafter defined. 

WHEREAS, all of the Prior Bonds were issued pursuant to ordinances of 
the Issuer previously enacted (such ordinances, as so amended and supplemented, 
collectively herein called the "Prior Ordinances"); 

1 
7342248 Page 244 of 461



WHEREAS, under the provisions of Chapter 8, Article 20 of the West 
Virginia Code of 1931, as amended (the "Act"), the Issuer is authorized and empowered to 
acquire, construct and operate extensions, additions, betterments and improvements for the 
Combined Utility System; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined, and does hereby affirm, that the 
design, acquisition, construction and equipping of certain extensions, additions, 
betterments and improvements to the potable water treatment, storage and distribution 
portion of the Combined Utility System, is necessary, appropriate, useful and desirable for 
the health, safety, and welfare of the inhabitants of the Issuer and surrounding areas; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined the design, acquisition, construction 
and equipping of certain extensions, betterments and improvements to the raw water 
supply and storage, water treatment, treated water storage and distribution system for 
potable water (collectively, the "Potable Water System"), specifically including, but not 
limited to, the design, acquisition, construction and equipping of a new water reservoir, 
and any, all or none of the following depending on the availability of funds: (i) the 
acquisition and installation of emergency generators to serve certain facilities in the 
Potable Water System; (ii) the design, acquisition, construction and equipping of a raw 
water transmission line from the new raw water reservoir to the water treatment plant; 
and/or (iii) the design, acquisition, construction and equipping of extensions, betterments 
and improvements of certain water treatment plant assets, distribution lines, pump stations 
and storage tanks, and all necessary appurtenances, as determined by the Board 
(collectively, the "Project"), is necessary, appropriate, useful and desirable for the health, 
safety, and welfare of the inhabitants of the Issuer and surrounding areas; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to finance the Cost of the Project 
through the simultaneous issuance of two series of combined utility system revenue bonds 
designated, and in the not to exceed amounts, as follows: 

(1) The City of Morgantown, Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017 A, in the aggregate principal amount of not more than $50,000,000 (the 
"Series 2017 A Bonds"); and 

(2) The City of Morgantown, Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017 B (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), in the aggregate principal amount of 
not more than $10,000,000 (the "Series 2017 B Bonds and, collectively with the Series 
2017 A Bonds, the "Series 2017 Bonds"); 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to enact this Ordinance and issue the 
Series 2017 B Bonds to have such security and such other terms and provisions as are 
hereinafter provided, all in the manner set forth herein; and 

2 
7342248 Page 245 of 461



WHEREAS, the Series 2017 Bonds will be issued on a parity with one 
another, and the Prior Bonds, with respect to their lien on and security interest in the Gross 
Revenues of the Combined Utility System, and the Series 2017 B Bonds shall contain such 
other terms and provisions as are hereinafter provided, all in the manner set forth herein. 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MORGANTOWN: 

ARTICLE I 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY, FINDINGS AND DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01. Authority for this Ordinance. This Ordinance (together with 
any ordinance, order or resolution supplemental hereto or amendatory hereof, the "Bond 
Legislation") is enacted pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 8, Article 20 and Chapter 31, 
Article 15A of the West Virgin ia Code of 1931, as amended (collectively, the "Act"), and 
other applicable provisions oflaw. 

Section 1.02. Findings. It is hereby found, determined and declared that: 

A. The City of Morgantown (the "Issuer") is a municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the State of West Virginia in Monongalia County of said State. 
The Issuer presently owns and operates the Combined Utility System through the 
Morgantown Utility Board (the "Board"). It is deemed necessary and desirable for the 
health and welfare of the inhabitants of the Issuer, that there be acquired and constructed 
certain extensions, additions, betterments and improvements to the existing Potable Water 
system of the Combined Utility System, specifically including, the Project, in accordance 
with the plans and specifications prepared by the Consulting Engineers as herein defined. 

B. The Issuer intends to permanently finance a portion of the costs 
of design, acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project through the issuance of 
the Series 2017 B Bonds to the West Virginia Water Development Authority (the 
"Authority"), which administers the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development 
Fund (the "Infrastructure Fund"), all pursuant to the Act. 

C. It is deemed necessary for the Issuer to issue its Combined Utility 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 B (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), in the 
aggregate principal amount of not more than $10,000,000 (the "Series 2017 B Bonds") to 
permanently finance a portion ofthe costs of design, acquisition, construction and equipping 
of the Project. Said costs shall be deemed to include the cost of all property rights, 
easements and franchises deemed necessary or convenient therefor and eligible under the 
Infrastructure Fund; interest, if any, upon the Series 2017 B Bonds for a period not 
exceeding 6 months after completion of construction of the Project; amounts which may be 
deposited in the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account (as hereinafter defined) or amounts 
which may be used to purchase a surety bond or to pay the premium for a Municipal Bond 
Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy to fund the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account; 

3 
7342248 Page 246 of 461



engineering and legal expenses; expenses for estimates of costs and revenues, expenses for 
plans, specifications and surveys; other expenses necessary or incident to determining the 
feasibility or practicability of the enterprise, administrative expense, commitment fees, 
fees and expenses of the Authority; discount, initial fees for the services of registrars, 
paying agents, depositories or trustees or other costs in connection with the sale of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds and such other expenses as may be necessary or incidental to the 
financing herein authorized, the acquisition or construction of the Project and the placing 
of same in operation, and the performance of the things herein required or permitted, in 
connection with any thereof, provided, that reimbursement to the Issuer or the Board for 
any amounts expended by them for allowable costs prior to the issuance of the Series 
2017 B Bonds or the repayment of indebtedness incurred by the Issuer for such purposes 
shall be deemed Costs of the Project, as hereinafter defined. 

D. The period of usefulness of the Combined Utility System after 
completion ofthe Project is not less than 40 years. 

E. It is in the best interests of the Issuer that its Series 2017 B Bonds be 
sold to the Authority pursuant to the terms and provisions of a Loan Agreement by and 
among the Issuer and the Authority, on behalf of the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs 
Development Council (the "Council"), in form satisfactory to the respective parties (the 
"Loan Agreement"), approved hereby if not previously approved by resolution of the 
Issuer. 

F. There are outstanding obligations of the Issuer which will rank on a 
parity with the Series 2017 B Bonds as to liens, pledge, source of and security for payment, 
being the Issuer's: 

7342248 

1. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 
A (West Virginia SRF Program), dated February 29, 2000, issued 
in the original aggregate principal amount of $7,842,000 (the 
"Series 2000 A Bonds"); 

2. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 
B (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), dated February 29, 2000, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $2,488,000 
(the "Series 2000 B Bonds"); 

3. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 
A (West Virginia SRF Program), dated June 30, 2006, issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of $6,41 0, 191 (the "Series 2006 
A Bonds"); 

4. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 
A (West Virginia SRF Program), dated August 14, 2007, issued 

4 
Page 247 of 461



7342248 

in the original aggregate principal amount of $8,500,000 (the 
"Series 2007 A Bonds"); 

5. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 A 
(Direct Payment Build America Bonds), dated January 28, 2010, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $37,950,000 
(the "Series 2010 A Bonds"); 

6. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
B (West Virginia SRF Program/ARRA), dated January 28, 2010, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $81 ,600 (the 
"Series 2010 B Bonds"); 

7. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
C (West Virginia SRF Program), dated January 28, 2010, issued 
in the original aggregate principal amount of $15,380,227 (the 
"Series 2010 C Bonds"); 

8. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
D (West Virginia DWTRF Program), dated January 28, 2010, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$9,317,286 (the 
"Series 2010 D Bonds"); 

9. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
E (West Virginia DWTRF Program/ARRA), dated January 28, 
20 I 0, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $100,000 
(the "Series 2010 E Bonds"); 

10. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
F (Bank Qualified), dated January 28, 2010, issued in the original 
aggregate amount of$7,250,000 (the "Series 2010 F Bonds"); 

11. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 
A (West Virginia DWTRF Program), dated August 24, 2012, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $570,000 (the 
"Series 2012 A Bonds"); 

12. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 
C (Bank Qualified), dated October 5, 2012, issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of $2,330,000 (the "Series 
2012 C Bonds"); 

13. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 
A (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), dated August 22, 2013, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $4,605,260 (the 
"Series 2013 A Bonds"); 

5 
Page 248 of 461



7342248 

14. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 B 
dated July 23, 2014, issued in the original aggregate principal 
amount of $505,421 (the "Series 2014 B Bonds"); 

15. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 
A (West Virginia Water Development Authority), dated March 31, 
2015, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $137,568 
(the "Series 2015 A Bonds"); 

16. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 
B (West Virginia Water Development Authority), dated March 31, 
2015, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $4,586 
(the "Series 2015 B Bonds"); 

17. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 
C (West Virginia SRF Program), dated March 31, 2015, issued 
in the original aggregate principal amount of $8, III ,813 (the 
"Series 2015 C Bonds"); 

18. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 
D (West Virginia SRF Program), dated March 31,2015, issued 
in the original aggregate principal amount of $1,688,394 (the 
"Series 2015 D Bonds"); 

19. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 E 
(West Virginia SRF Program), dated June 11,2015, issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of $662,300 (the "Series 2015 
E Bonds"); 

20. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 A, 
dated December 1, 2016, issued in the original aggregate principal 
amount of $69,755,000 (the "Series 2017 A Bonds"); and 

21. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 B-1 
(West Virginia SRF Program), dated 
Decem ber 1, 2016, issued in the original aggregate principal 
amount of $25,000,000 (the "Series 2017 B-1 Bonds") 
(collectively, the "Prior Bonds"). 

Simultaneously with the issuance of the Series 2017 B 
Bonds, the Issuer intends to finance the remaining costs of the 
Project through the issuance of the following bonds: 

22. Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 A, 
to be issued simultaneously herewith, in the original aggregate 

6 
Page 249 of 461



principal amount not to exceed $50,000,000 (the "Series 2017 A 
Bonds"). 

G. Prior to the issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds, the Issuer will (i) a 
certificate of an Independent Certified Public Accountant stating that the coverage and 
parity tests of the Prior Bonds are met, and (ii) the written consent of the Holders of the 
Series 2000 A Bonds, Series 2000 B Bonds, Series 2006 A Bonds, Series 2007 A Bonds, 
Series 2010 B Bonds, Series 2010 C Bonds, Series 2010 D Bonds, Series 2010 E Bonds, 
Series 2012 A Bonds, Series 2013 A Bonds, Series 2015 A Bonds, Series 2015 B Bonds, 
Series 2015 C Bonds, Series 2015 D Bonds, Series 2015 E Bonds and Series 2017 B-1 
Bonds to the issuance of the Series 2017 B Bonds on a parity with the Series 2000 A Bonds, 
Series 2000 B Bonds, Series 2006 A Bonds, Series 2007 A Bonds, Series 2010 B Bonds, 
Series 20 10 C Bonds, Series 2010 D Bonds, Series 2010 E Bonds, Series 2012 A Bonds, 
Series 2013 A Bonds, Series 2015 A Bonds, Series 2015 B Bonds, Series 2015 C Bonds, 
Series 2015 D Bonds, Series 2015 E Bonds and Series 2017 B-1 Bonds. The Series 20 10 
A Bonds, Series 2010 F Bonds, Series 2012 C Bonds, Series 2014 B Bonds and Series 
2017 A Bonds do not require consent. Other than the Prior Bonds and the Series 2017 A 
Bonds, there are no other outstanding bonds or obi igations ofthe Issuer which are secured by 
revenues or assets of the Combined Utility System. The Issuer is in compliance with all the 
covenants of the Prior Bonds and the Prior Ordinances and the Series 2017 A Bonds and 
the Series 2017 A Ordinance. 

H. The estimated revenues to be derived in each year after completion of 
the Project from the operation of the Com bined Utility System will be sufficient to pay all 
costs of operation and maintenance ofthe Combined Utility System and the principal of and 
interest, if any, on the Series 2017 Bonds and the Prior Bonds and to make payments into 
all funds and accounts and other payments provided for herein. 

1. The Issuer has complied with all requirements of West Virginia law and 
the Loan Agreement relating to authorization of the acquisition, construction and 
operation ofthe Project and the Combined Utility System and issuance of the Series 2017 B 
Bonds, or will have so complied prior to issuance of any thereof, including, among other 
things, the approval of the Project and the financing thereof by the West Virginia 
Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council. 

J. The Project has been reviewed and determined to be technically 
and financially feasible by the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs 
Development Council as required under Chapter 31, Article 15A of the West Virginia 
Code of 1931, as amended. 

K. Prior to commencing construction of the Project the Issuer either 
has, or will, enact a Project Ordinance in compliance with Chapter 24, Article 2, Paragraph 
11 of the West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended. 

Section 1.03. Bond Legislation Constitutes Contract. In consideration of 
the acceptance of the Series 2017 B Bonds by the Registered Owners of the same from time to 

7 
734224S Page 250 of 461



time, this Bond Legislation shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the 
Issuer and such Bondholders, and the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be 
performed by the Issuer shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the 
Bondholders of any and all of such Series 2017 B Bonds, all of which shall be of equal 
rank and without preference, priority or distinction between anyone Bond and any other 
Bonds and by reason of priority of issuance or otherwise, except as expressly provided 
therein and herein. 

Section 1.04. Definitions. The following terms shall have the following 
meanings herein unless the context expressly requires otherwise: 

"Act" means, collectively, Chapter 8, Article 20 and Chapter 31, Article 15A of 
the West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended and in effect on the date of enactment hereof. 

"Authority" means the West Virginia Water Development Authority, which 
is expected to 'be the original purchaser and Registered Owner of the Series 2017 B Bonds, or 
any other agency, board or department of the State that succeeds to the functions of the 
Authority, acting in its administrative capacity and upon authorization from the Council 
under the Act. 

"Authorized Officer" means the Mayor or the City Manager of the Issuer, and, 
in the instance of the Board, the Chairman, the General Manager or the Assistant 
General Manager, or any other officer of the Issuer or Board specifically designated by 
resolution ofthe Governing Body or the Board, as appropriate. 

"Board" means the Morgantown Utility Board of the Issuer. 

"Bondholder," "Holder of the Bonds," "Holder," "Registered Owner" or 
any similar term whenever used herein with respect to an outstanding Bond or Bonds, 
means the person in whose name such Bond is registered. 

"Bond Commission" means the West Virginia Municipal Bond 
Commission or any other agency of the State of West Virginia that succeeds to the 
functions of the Commission. 

"Bond Legislation," "Ordinance," "Bond Ordinance" or "Local Act" means 
this Bond Ordinance and all ordinances, orders and resolutions supplemental hereto or 
amendatory hereof. 

"Bond Registrar" means the bank or other entity to be designated as such in 
the Supplemental Resolution and its successors and assigns. 

"Bonds" means, collectively, the Series 2017 Bonds, the Prior Bonds and, 
where appropriate, any bonds on a parity therewith subsequently authorized to be 
issued hereunder or by another ordinance of the Issuer. 

8 
7342248 Page 251 of 461



"Bond Year" means the 12-month period beginning on the anniversary of 
the Closing Date in each year and ending on the day prior to the anniversary date of the 
Closing Date in the following year, except that the first Bond Year shall begin on the 
Closing Date. 

"City Clerk" or "Clerk" means the City Clerk ofthe Issuer. 

"City Manager" means the City Manager of the Issuer. 

"Closing Date" means the date upon which there is an exchange of the 
Series 20 17 B Bonds for all or a portion of the proceeds of the Series 20 17 B Bonds 
from the Authority, on behalf of the Council. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the 
Regulations. 

"Combined Utility System" means, collectively, the complete existing public 
combined waterworks, sewerage, and storm water system of the Issuer, as presently 
existing in its entirety or any integral part thereof, and shall include the Project and 
any additions, betterments and improvements thereto hereafter acquired or constructed 
for the Combined Utility System from any sources whatsoever, both within and without 
the Issuer. 

"Completion Date" means the completion date of the Project. 

"Consulting Engineers" means any qualified Ii cen sed p rofe s s i 0 na I 
engineer or firm of I icensed professional engineers, licensed by the State, that 
shall at any time hereafter be procured by the Issuer as Consulting Engineers for the 
Combined Utility System, or portion thereof, in accordance with Chapter 5G, Article 1 of 
the West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended; provided however, that the Consulting 
Engineers shall not be a regular, full-time employee of the State or any of its agencies, 
commissions, or political subdivisions. "Consulting Engineer" shall also include a 
licensed professional engineer employed by the Board, who is responsible for design 
and/or supervision of improvements, additions or modifications to the Combined Utility 
System. 

"Costs" or "Costs of the Project" means those costs described in Section 
1.02C hereof to be a part of the cost of design, acquisition, construction and equipping of 
the Project. 

"Council" means the West Virginia Infiastructure and Jobs Development Council, or 
any other agency, board or department of the State that succeeds to the function of the 
Council. 

"Depository Bank" means the bank designated as such in the 
Supplemental Resolution, and its successors and assigns, which shall be a member of FDIC. 

9 
7342248 Page 252 of 461



"Depreciation Fund" means the Depreciation Fund created by the Prior 
Ordinances and continued hereby. 

"FDIC" means the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and any successor 
to the functions ofthe FDIC. 

"Fiscal Year" means each 12-month period beginning on July 1 and ending on 
the succeeding June 30. 

"Governing Body" means the council ofthe Issuer, as it may now or hereafter 
be constituted. 

"Government Obligations" means direct obligations of, or obligations the 
timely payment of the principal of and interest on which is guaranteed by, the United 
States of America. 

"Grants" means any grants committed to the Project. 

"Gross Revenues" means the aggregate gross operating and non
operating revenues of the Combined Utility System, as hereinafter defined, determined 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, after deduction of prompt 
payment discounts, if any, and reasonable provision for uncollectible accounts; provided, 
that "Gross Revenues" include any gains from the sale or other disposition of capital assets, 
but does not include any increase in the value of capital assets (including Qualified 
Investments, as hereinafter defined) or any Tap Fees (as hereinafter defined). 

"Herein," "hereto" and similar words shall refer to this entire Bond 
Legislation. 

"Independent Certified Public Accountant" means any certified public 
accountant or firm of certified public accountants that shall at any time hereafter be retained 
by the Issuer to prepare an independent annual or special audit of the accounts of the 
Combined Utility System or for any other purpose except keeping the accounts of the 
Combined Utility System in the normal operation of its business and affairs. 

"Issuer" means The City of Morgantown, a municipal corporation and 
pol itical subdivision ofthe State of West Virginia, in Monongalia County, West Virginia, and, 
unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, includes the Governing Body ofthe Issuer. 

"Loan Agreement" means, the Loan Agreement heretofore entered, or to be 
entered, into by and among the Issuer and the Authority, on behalf of the Council, 
providing for the purchase ofthe Series 2017 B Bonds from the Issuer by the Authority, on 
behalf of the Council, the form of which shall be approved, and the execution and delivery by 
the Issuer authorized and directed or ratified, by the Supplemental Resolution. 

10 
7342248 Page 253 of 461



"Mayor" means the Mayor of the Issuer. 

"Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy" means a municipal bond 
debt service reserve policy and may subsequently mean, a letter of credit, surety bond or other 
financial instrument which is pledged to the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve 
Account in the amount of the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Requirement. 

"Net Proceeds" means the face amount of the Series 2017 B Bonds, plus 
accrued interest and premium, if any, less original issue discount, if any, and less 
proceeds, if any, deposited in any Reserve Accounts. 

"Net Revenues" means the balance of the Gross Revenues, remaining 
after deduction of Operating Expenses, as hereinafter defined. 

"Operating Expenses" shall mean the reasonable, proper and necessary costs 
of repair, maintenance and operation of the Combined Utility System and includes, without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, administrative, engineering, legal, auditing and 
insurance expenses, other than those capitalized as part of the Costs, fees and expenses of 
the Authority, fiscal agents, the Depository Bank, the Registrar and Paying Agent (all as 
hereinafter defined), other than those capitalized as part ofthe Costs of the Project, payments 
to pension or retirement funds, taxes and such other reasonable operating costs and 
expenses as should normally and regularly be included under generally accepted accounting 
principles; provided, that "Operating Expenses" does not include payments on account of the 
principal of or redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, charges for 
depreciation, losses from the sale or other disposition of, or from any decrease in the value 
of, capital assets, amortization of debt discount or such miscellaneous deductions as are 
applicable to prior accounting periods. 

"Operation and Maintenance Fund" means the Operation and Maintenance 
Fund established by the Prior Ordinances and continued hereby. 

"Outstanding" when used with reference to Series 2017 Bonds or Prior Bonds 
and as of any particular date, describes all Series 2017 Bonds or Prior Bonds theretofore 
and thereupon being authenticated and delivered, except (i) any Series 2017 Bond or Prior 
Bond cancelled by the Bond Registrar or Registrar for Prior Bonds, at or prior to said date; 
(ii) any Series 20 I 7 Bond or Prior Bonds, for the payment of which moneys, equal to 
its principal amount and redemption premium, if applicable, with interest to the date of 
maturity or redemption shall be in trust hereunder, and set aside for such payment (whether 
upon or prior to maturity); (iii) any Series 2017 Bond deemed to have been paid as provided 
in Article X hereof; (iv) any Prior Bond deemed to have been paid; and for purposes of 
consents or other action by a specified percentage of Bondholders, or holders of Prior 
Bonds, any Series 2017 Bonds or Prior Bonds registered to the Issuer. 

"Parity Bonds" means additional Bonds issued under the provisions and 
within the limitations prescribed by Section 7.07 hereof. 

11 
7342248 Page 254 of 461



"Paying Agent" means the Commission or other entity designated as such for 
the Series 2017 B Bonds in the Supplemental Resolution. 

"Prior Bonds" means, collectively, the Series 2000 A Bonds, Series 2000 B 
Bonds, Series 2006 A Bonds, Series 2007 A Bonds, Series 20 lOA Bonds, Series 20 lOB 
Bonds, Series 2010 C Bonds, Series 20 I 0 D Bonds, Series 20 I 0 E Bonds, Series 2010 F 
Bonds, Series 2012 A Bonds, Series 2012 C Bonds, Series 2013 A Bonds, Series 2014 B 
Bonds, Series 2015 A Bonds, Series 2015 B Bonds, Series 2015 C Bonds, Series 2015 D 
Bonds, Series 2015 E Bonds, Series 2017 A Bonds and Series 2017 B-1 Bonds. 

"Prior Ordinances" means, collectively, the ordinances authorizing the 
Prior Bonds. 

"Project" or "Project" means the Project as described in Section 1.02A 
hereof. 

"Qualified Investments" means and includes all investments permitted to be 
made by a municipality and political subdivision under the laws of the State, as enacted as 
of the date of enactment of this Bond Ordinance in West Virginia Code § 8-13-22a and 8-
22-22a, as may be amended or modified from time to time. In the event that the laws of 
the State would cease to provide guidance on permissible investments, the last applicable 
law of the State shall control such investments. 

"Registered Owner," "Bondholder," "Holder" or any similar term means 
whenever used herein with respect to an outstanding Bond or Bonds, the person in whose 
name such Bond is registered. 

"Registrar" means the Bond Registrar. 

"Regulations" means temporary and permanent regulations promulgated under 
the Code, or any predecessor thereto. 

"Reserve Accounts" means, collectively, the respective Reserve Accounts 
established for the Series 2017 Bonds and the Prior Bonds. 

"Reserve Requirement" means, collectively, the respective amounts required to 
be on deposit in any Reserve Account for the Prior Bonds and the Series 2017 Bonds. 

"Revenue Fund" means the Revenue Fund created by the Prior Ordinances 
and continued hereby. 

"Series 2000 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2000 A (West Virginia SRF Program), ofthe Issuer, dated February 29, 2000, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$7,842,000. 

12 
7342248 Page 255 of 461



"Series 2000 B Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2000 B (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), of the Issuer, dated February 
29, 2000, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$2,488,000. 

"Series 2006 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2006 A (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated June 30, 2006, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $6,410,191. 

"Series 2007 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2007 A (West Virgin ia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated August 14, 2007, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$8,500,000. 

"Series 2010 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 A (Direct Payment Build America Bonds), of the Issuer, dated January 
28,2010, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$37,950,000. 

"Series 2010 B Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 B (West Virginia SRF Program/ARRA), of the Issuer, dated January 
28, 2010, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $81,600. 

"Series 2010 C Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 C (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated January 28,2010, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$15,380,227. 

"Series 2010 D Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 D (West Virginia DWTRF Program), of the Issuer, dated January 28, 
20 I 0, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$9,317 ,286. 

"Series 2010 E Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 E (West Virginia DWTRF Program/ARRA), of the Issuer, dated January 
28,20 I 0, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $1 00,000. 

"Series 20 10 F Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 F (Bank Qualified), of the Issuer, dated January 28, 2010, issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of$7,250,000. 

"Series 2012 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2012 A (West Virginia DWTRF Program), dated August 24, 2012, issued in 
the original aggregate principal amount of$570,000. 

"Series 2012 C Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2012 C (Bank Qualified), dated October 5, 2012, issued in the original 
aggregate principal amount of$2,330,000. 

13 
7342248 Page 256 of 461



"Series 2013 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2013 A (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), dated August 22, 2013, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$4,605,260. 

"Series 2014 B Bonds" means the Issuer's Combined Utility System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 B dated July 23, 2014, issued in the original aggregate principal 
amount of$505,421. 

"Series 2015 A Bonds" means the Issuer's Combined Utility System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 A (West Virginia Water Development Authority), dated 
March 31, 2015, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$137,568. 

"Series 2015 B Bonds" means the Issuer's Combined Utility System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 B (West Virginia Water Development Authority), dated 
March 31,2015, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$4,586. 

"Series 2015 C Bonds" means the Issuer's Combined Utility System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 C (West Virginia SRF Program), dated March 31, 2015, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$8, 111,813. 

"Series 2015 D Bonds" means Issuer's Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2015 D (West Virginia SRF Program), dated March 31, 2015, issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of$I,688,394. 

"Series 2015 E Bonds" means Issuer's Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2015 E (West Virginia SRF Program), dated June 11,2015, issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of $662,300. 

"Series 2016 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2016 A, of the Issuer, dated December 1, 2016, issued in the aggregate principal 
amount of $69,755,000. 

"Series 2016 B-1 Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2016 B-1 (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated December 1, 
2016, issued in the aggregate principal amount of $25,000,000. 

'·Series 2016 B-2 Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2016 B-2 (West Virginia SRF Program/Green), of the Issuer, dated 
December 1, 2016, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $500,000. 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds, the outstanding 
principal of the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds is forgiven by the holder thereof on the last day of 
the Fiscal Year in which such principal is advanced. No repayment of any principal of the 
Series 2016 B-2 Bonds will occur and the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds do not bear any interest. 
The Series 2016 B-2 Bonds are not secured by any lien on the Gross Revenues of the 
Combined Utility System. 

14 
7342248 Page 257 of 461



"Series 2017 Bonds" or "Project Bonds" means collectively, the Series 
2017 A Bonds and Series 2017 B Bonds. 

"Series 2017 A Bonds" means Issuer's Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2017 A, to be issued simultaneously herewith, in the original aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $100,000,000. 

"Series 2017 A Ordinance" means the ordinance of the Issuer, as amended 
and modified, enacted currently herewith, authorizing the issuance of the Series 2017 A 
Bonds. 

"Series 2017 B Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2017 B (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), of the Issuer, authorized by this 
Bond Legislation. 

"Series 2017 B Bonds Construction Trust Fund" means the Series 2017 B 
Bonds Construction Trust Fund established by Section 5.01 hereof. 

"Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account" means the Series 2017 B Bonds 
Reserve Account established by Section 5.02 hereof. 

"Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Requirement" means, as of any date of 
calculation, the maximum amount of principal and interest, if any, which will become 
due on the Series 2017 B Bonds in the then current or any succeeding year. 

"Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund" means the Series 2017 B Bonds 
Sinking Fund established by Section 5.02 hereof. 

"Sinking Funds" means, collectively, the respective Sinking Funds established 
for the Series 2017 Bonds and the Prior Bonds. 

"State" means the State of West Virginia. 

"Supplemental Resolution" means any resolution, ordinance or order of the 
Issuer supplementing or amending this Ordinance and, when preceded by the article 
"the," refers specifically to the supplemental resolution authorizing the sale of the Series 
2017 B Bonds; provided, that any matter intended by this Ordinance to be included in 
the Supplemental Resolution with respect to the Series 2017 B Bonds, and not so included 
may be included in another Supplemental Resolution. 

"Surplus Revenues" means the Net Revenues not required by the Bond 
Legislation to be set aside and held for the payment of or security for the Series 2017 Bonds, 
the Prior Bonds or any other obligations of the Issuer, including, without limitation, 
the Depreciation Fund, the Sinking Funds and the Reserve Accounts and any hereinafter 
issued Additional Parity Bonds. 

15 
7342248 Page 258 of 461



"Tap Fees" means the fees, if any, paid by prospective customers of the 
Combined Utility System in order to connect thereto. 

"West Virginia Infrastructure Fund" means the West Virginia 
Infrastructure Fund established in accordance with Chapter 31, Article 15A, Section 9 of 
the West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended and in effect on the date of adoption hereof. 

Additional terms and phrases are defined in this Ordinance as they are 
used. Words importing singular number shall include the plural number in each case and vice 
versa; words importing persons shall include firms and corporations; and words 
importing the masculine, feminine or neutral gender shall include any other gender. 

ARTICLE II 

A UTHORIZATION OF ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION 
OF THE PROJECT 

Section 2.0 I. Authorization of Acquisition and Construction of the Project. 
There is hereby authorized and ordered the acquisition and construction of the Project, at an 
estimated cost of not to exceed $52,000,000, in accordance with the plans and specifications 
which have been prepared by the Consulting Engineers, heretofore filed in the office of 
the Governing Body. The proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds hereby authorized shall be 
applied as provided in Article VI hereof. The Issuer will receive bids and will enter into 
contracts for the acquisition and construction of the Project, compatible with the financing 
plan submitted to the Council and the Authority. 

The cost of the Project is estimated not to exceed $52,000,000, of which 
not to exceed $10,000,000 will be obtained from proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds, 
not to exceed $50,000,000 will be obtained from the proceeds of the Series 2017 A 
Bonds and $2,000,000 will be obtained from available funds of the Issuer permitted 
to be used for such purpose. 

ARTICLE III 

AUTHORIZATION, TERMS,EXECUTION,REGISTRATION 
AND SALE OF BONDS; AUTHORIZATION AND EXECUTION 

OF LOAN AGREEMENT 

Section 3.0 I. Authorization of Bonds. For the purposes of capitalizing interest 
on the Series 2017 B Bonds, if any, funding a reserve account or purchasing a Municipal 
Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy to fund a reserve account for the Series 2017 
B Bonds, paying Costs of the Project not otherwise provided for and paying certain costs 
of issuance of the Series 2017 B Bonds and related costs, or any or all of such purposes, as 
determined by the Supplemental Resolution, there shall be issued the negotiable Series 
2017 B Bonds of the Issuer. The Series 2017 B Bonds shall be issued in one or more series, 

16 
7342248 Page 259 of 461



initially designated as "Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 B (West 
Virginia Infrastructure Fund)," in the principal amount of not more than $10,000,000, and 
shall have such terms as set forth hereinafter and in the Supplemental Resolution. The 
proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds remaining after purchasing a Municipal Bond 
Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy to fund the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve 
Account or cash funding the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account (iffunded from Bond 
proceeds) and capital ization of interest, if any, shall be deposited in or cred ited to the Series 
2017 B Bonds Construction Trust Fund established by Section 5.01 hereof, and applied as 
set forth in Article VI hereof. 

Section 3.02. Terms of Series 2017 B Bonds. The Series 2017 B Bonds shall 
be issued in such principal amount (not to exceed $40,000,000); shall bear interest at 
such rate or rates, not exceeding the then legal maximum, payable quarterly on such 
dates; shall mature on such dates and in such amounts; and shall be redeemable, in whole or 
in part, all as the Issuer shall prescribe in a Supplemental Resolution or as specifically 
provided in the Loan Agreement. The Series 2017 B Bonds shall be payable as to principal 
at the office ofthe Paying Agent, in any coin or currency which, on the dates of payment of 
principal is legal tender for the payment of public or private debts under the laws of the 
United States of America. Interest, if any, on the Series 2017 B Bonds shall be paid by 
check or draft of the Paying Agent or its agent, mailed to the Registered Owner thereof at the 
address as it appears on the books ofthe Bond Registrar, or by such other method as shall be 
mutually agreeable so long as the Authority is the Registered Owner thereof. 

As provided by the Supplemental Resolution, the Series 2017 B Bonds 
shall initially be issued in one or more series, fully registered to the Authority, with a 
record of advances and a debt service schedule attached, representing the aggregate principal 
amount of the respective Series 2017 B Bonds. The Series 2017 B Bonds shall be 
exchangeable at the option and expense of the Registered Owner for another fully registered 
Bond or Bonds ofthe same series in aggregate principal amount equal to the amount of said 
Bonds then Outstanding and being exchanged, with principal installments or maturities, as 
applicable, corresponding to the dates of payment of principal installments of said Bonds; 
provided, that the Authority shall not be obligated to pay any expenses of such exchange. 

Subsequent series of Series 2017 B Bonds, if any, shall be issued in fully 
registered form and in denominations as determined by a Supplemental Resolution. Such 
subsequent series of Series 2017 B Bonds shall be in such principal amount, shall bear 
interest, if any, and shall be dated as set forth in a Supplemental Resolution. 

Section 3.03. Execution of Bonds. The Series 2017 B Bonds shall be 
executed in the name of the Issuer by the Mayor, and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed 
thereto or imprinted thereon and attested by the City Clerk. In case anyone or more of the 
officers who shall have signed or sealed the Series 2017 B Bonds shall cease to be such 
officer of the Issuer before the Series 2017 B Bonds so signed and sealed have been 
actually sold and del ivered, such Series 2017 B Bonds may nevertheless be sold and delivered 
as herein provided and may be issued as if the person who signed or sealed such Bonds had 
not ceased to hold such office. Any Series 2017 B Bonds may be signed and sealed on 

17 
7342248 Page 260 of 461



behalf of the Issuer by such person as at the actual time of the execution of such Series 
2017 B Bonds shall hold the proper office in the Issuer, although at the date of such Series 
2017 B Bonds such person may not have held such office or may not have been so 
authorized. 

Section 3.04. Authentication and Registration. No Series 2017 B Bonds shall 
be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to any security or benefit under this 
Bond Legislation unless and until the Certificate of Authentication and Registration on such 
Bond, substantially in the form set forth in Section 3.10 hereof shall have been manually 
executed by the Bond Registrar. Any such executed Certificate of Authentication and 
Registration upon any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been 
authenticated, registered and delivered under this Bond Legislation. The Certificate of 
Authentication and Registration on any Series 2017 B Bonds shall be deemed to have 
been executed by the Bond Registrar if manually signed by an authorized officer of the 
Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer sign the Certificate of 
Authentication and Registration on all of the Series 2017 B Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 3.05. Negotiability. Transfer and Registration. Subject to the 
provisions for transfer of registration set forth below, the Series 2017 B Bonds shall be and 
have all of the qualities and incidents of negotiable instruments under the Uniform 
Commercial Code of the State of West Virginia, and each successive Holder, in accepting the 
Series 2017 B Bonds shall be conclusively deemed to have agreed that such Bonds shall be 
and have all of the qualities and incidents of negotiable instruments under the Uniform 
Commercial Code of the State of West Virginia, and each successive Holder shall further be 
conclusively deemed to have agreed that said Bonds shall be incontestable in the hands of a 
bona fide holder for value. 

So long as the Series 2017 B Bonds remain outstanding, the Issuer, through 
the Bond Registrar or its agent, shall keep and maintain books for the registration and 
transfer of such Series 2017 B Bonds. 

The registered Series 2017 B Bonds shall be transferable only upon the books 
of the Bond Registrar, by the registered owner thereof in person or by his attorney duly 
authorized in writing, upon surrender thereto together with a written instrument of transfer 
satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or his duly 
authorized attorney. 

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging Series 2017 B Bonds 
or transferring the registered Series 2017 B Bonds are exercised, all Series 2017 B Bonds 
shall be delivered in accordance with the provisions of this Bond Legislation. All Series 
2017 B Bonds surrendered in any such exchanges or transfers shall forthwith be 
canceled by the Bond Registrar. For every sllch exchange or transfer of Series 2017 B 
Bonds, the Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or 
other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer and 
the cost of preparing each new Bond upon each exchange or transfer, and any other 
expenses of the Bond Registrar incurred in connection therewith, which sum or sums shall 

18 
7342248 Page 261 of 461



be paid by the Issuer. The Bond Registrar shall not be obliged to make any such exchange or 
transfer of Series 2017 B Bonds during the period commencing on the 15th day of the 
month next preceding an interest payment date on the Series 2017 B Bonds or, in the case 
of any proposed redemption of Series 2017 B Bonds, next preceding the date of the 
selection of Series 2017 B Bonds to be redeemed, and ending on such interest 
payment date or redemption date. 

Section 3.06. Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost. In case any 
Series 2017 B Bonds shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer 
may, in its discretion, issue, and the Bond Registrar shall, if so advised by the Issuer, 
authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of the same series and of like tenor as the Bonds so 
mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated 
Bond, upon surrender and cancellation of such mutilated Bond, or in lieu of and 
substitution for the Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, and upon the Holder's ' furnishing 
satisfactory indemnity and complying with such other reasonable regulations and 
conditions as the Issuer may prescribe and paying such expenses as the Issuer and the 
Bond Registrar may incur. All Bonds so surrendered shall be canceled by the Bond 
Registrar and held for the account of the Issuer. If any such Bond shall have matured or be 
about to mature, instead of issuing a substitute Bond, the Issuer may pay the same, upon 
being indemnified as aforesaid, and if such Bond be lost, stolen or destroyed, without 
surrender thereof. 

Section 3.07. Bonds not to be Indebtedness of the Issuer. The Series 2017 
B Bonds shall not, in any event, be or constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer within the 
meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation, but shall be payable 
solely from the Gross Revenues derived from the Combined Utility System as herein 
provided. No Holder or Holders of the Series 2017 B Bonds shall ever have the right to 
compel the exercise of the taxing power ofthe Issuer to pay the Series 2017 B Bonds or the 
interest, if any, thereon. 

Section 3.08. Bonds Secured by Pledge of Gross Revenues; Lien Position 
with respect to Prior Bonds. The payment of debt service of the Series 2017 A Bonds and 
the Series 2017 B Bonds shall be secured by a first lien on the Gross Revenues derived from 
the Combined Utility System, on a parity with one another and with the lien on the Gross 
Revenues in favor of the Holders of the Prior Bonds. Such Gross Revenues in an 
amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 2017 A Bonds, the 
Series 20 I 7 B Bonds and the Prior Bonds and to make all other payments provided 
for in the Bond Legislation are hereby irrevocably pledged to such payments as they 
become due. The Series 2017 B-2 Bonds are not secured by the lien on the Gross 
Revenues of the Combined Utility System. 

Section 3.09. Delivery of Bonds. The Issuer shall execute and deliver the 
Series 2017 B Bonds to the Registrar, and the Registrar shall authenticate, register and 
deliver the Series 2017 B Bonds to the original purchasers upon receipt of the documents set 
forth below: 

19 
7342248 Page 262 of 461



A. If other than the Authority, a list of the names in which the 
Series 2017 B Bonds are to be registered upon original issuance, 
together with such taxpayer identification and other information as the 
Bond Registrar may reasonably require; 

B. A request and authorization to the Bond Registrar on behalf 
of the Issuer, signed by an Authorized Officer, to authenticate and 
deliver the Series 2017 B Bonds to the original purchasers; 

C. An executed and certified copy ofthe Bond Legislation; 

D. An executed copies ofthe Loan Agreement; and 

E. The unqualified approving opinion of bond counsel on the 
Series 2017 B Bonds. 

Section 3.10. Form of Bonds. The text of the Series 2017 B Bonds shall be 
in substantially the following forms, with such omissions, insertions and variations as 
may be necessary and desirable and authorized or permitted hereby, or by any Supplemental 
Resolution adopted prior to the issuance thereof: 

20 
7342248 Page 263 of 461



No. BR-I 

(FORM OF SERIES 2017 B BOND) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STA TE OF WEST VIRGINIA 

THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2017 B 

(WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND) 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That on this the day of 

$ 

___ , 2017, THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN, a municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of West Virginia in Monongalia County of said State (the "Issuer"), 
for value received, hereby promises to pay, solely from the special funds provided 
therefor, as hereinafter set forth, to the WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY (the "Authority") or registered assigns the sum of ________ _ 
DOLLARS or such lesser amount as shall have been advanced to the Issuer hereunder and 
not previously repaid, as set forth in the "Record of Advances" attached as EXHIBIT A 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, in quarterly installments on March I, June 1, 
September I and December I of each year, commencing _ 1,20_, to and including __ 
___ 1,20_, as set forth on the "Debt Service Schedule" attached as EXHIBIT B hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

This bond shall bear interest at a rate of _%. Installments of principal of and 
interest on this Bond are payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective dates of 
payment of such installments, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts under 
the laws of the United States of America, at the office of the West Virginia Municipal 
Bond Commission, Charleston, West Virginia (the "Paying Agent"). 

This Bond may be redeemed prior to its stated date of maturity in whole or in part, 
but only with the express written consent of the Authority on behalf of the West 
Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council (the "Council"), and upon the 
terms and conditions prescribed by, and otherwise in compliance with, the Bond 
Purchase (the "Loan Agreement") by and among the Issuer and the Authority, on behalf of 
the Council, dated ,2017. 

This Bond is issued (i) to pay a portion of the costs of acquisition and 
construction of certain extensions, additions, betterments and improvements to the sanitary 
potable water portion ofthe existing combined waterworks, sewerage and storm water system 
of the Issuer (collectively, the "Project"); [(ii) to fund the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve 
Account through the purchase of a Municipal Bond Insurance Debt Service Reserve Policy]; 

21 
7342248 Page 264 of 461



and (iii) to pay certain costs of issuance and related costs. The Project, and any further 
extensions, additions, betterments or improvements for the existing combined waterworks, 
sewerage and stormwater system are, collectively, herein called the "Combined Utility 
System." This Bond is issued under the authority of and in full compliance with the 
Constitution and statutes of the State of West Virginia, including particularly Chapter 8, 
Article 20 and Chapter 31, Article 15A of the West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended 
(collectively, the "Act"), a Bond Ordinance duly enacted by the Issuer on January -----.y 2017 and 
a Supplemental Resolution duly adopted by the Issuer on • 2017 
(collectively, the "Bond Legislation"), and is subject to all the terms and conditions 
thereof. The Bond Legislation provides for the issuance of additional bonds under certain 
conditions, and such bonds would be entitled to be paid and secured equally and ratably 
from and by the funds and revenues and other security provided for the Bonds under the 
Bond Legislation. 

THIS BOND IS ISSUED ON A PARITY WITH RESPECT TO LIENS, PLEDGE 
AND SOURCE OF AND SECURITY FOR PAYMENT, AND IN ALL RESPECTS, 
WITH THE ISSUER'S: 

I. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2000 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED FEBRUARY 29,2000, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $7,842,000 (THE 
"SERIES 2000 A BONDS"); 

2. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2000 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED FEBRUARY 29, 2000, ISSUED 
IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,488,000 (THE 
"SERIES 2000 B BONDS"); 

3. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2006 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JUNE 30, 2006, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $6,410,191 (THE 
"SERIES 2006 A BONDS"); 

4. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2007 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED AUGUST 14, 2007, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,500,000 (THE 
"SERIES 2007 A BONDS"); 

5. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 A (DIRECT 
PAYMENT BUILD AMERICA BONDS), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, 
ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
$37,950,000 (THE "SERIES 2010 A BONDS"); 

6. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM/ARRA), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN 

22 
7342248 Page 265 of 461



THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $81,600 (THE 
"SERIES 2010 B BONDS"); 

7. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 C (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $15,380,227 (THE 
"SERIES 2010 C BONDS"); 

8. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 D (WEST 
VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM), DATED JANUARY 28,2010, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $9,317,286 (THE 
"SERIES 2010 D BONDS"); 

9. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 E (WEST 
VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM/ARRA), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED 
IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $100,000 (THE 
"SERIES 2010 E BONDS"); 

10. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 F (BANK 
QUALIFIED), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF $7,250,000 (THE "SERIES 20 I 0 F BONDS"); 

II. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM), DATED AUGUST 24,2012, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $570,000 (THE "SERIES 
2012 A BONDS "); 

12. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 C (BANK 
QUALIFIED), DATED OCTOBER 5, 2012, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,330,000 (THE "SERIES 2012 C 
BONDS"); 

13. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED AUGUST 22,2013, ISSUED IN 
THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,605,260 (THE 
"SERIES2013 A BONDS"); 

14. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2014 B DATED 
JULY 23, 2014, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF $505,421 (THE "SERIES 2014 B BONDS"); 

15. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 A (WEST 
VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, 
ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
$137,568 (THE "SERIES 2015 A BONDS"); 

23 
7342248 Page 266 of 461



16. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 B (WEST 
VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, 
ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
$4,586 (THE "SERIES 20150 BONDS"); 

17. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 C (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,111,813 (THE 
"SERIES 2015 C BONDS"); 

18. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 0 (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,688,394 (THE 
"SERIES 20150 BONDS"); 

19. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 E (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JUNE 11, 2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $662,300 (THE "SERIES 
2015 E BONDS"); 

20. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 A, DATED 
DECEMBER 1,2016, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF $69,755,000 (THE "SERIES 2017 A BONDS); AND 

21. COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 B-1 (WEST 
VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED DECEMBER 1,2016, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $25,000,000 (THE 
"SERIES 2016 B-2 BONDS," AND, COLLECTIVELY WITH THE BONDS 
LISTED ABOVE, THE "PRIOR BONDS"). 

THE SERIES 2017 B BONDS ARE BEING ISSUED SIMULTANEOUSLY WITH THE 
ISSUER'S COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2017 A, 
DATED 2017, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
$ (THE "SERIES 2017 B BONDS"). 

This Bond is payable only from and secured by a pledge of the Gross Revenues (as defined 
in the Bond Legislation) to be derived from the operation ofthe Combined Utility System, on 
a parity with the pledge of Gross Revenues in favor of the Holders ofthe Prior Bonds and the 
Series 2017 A Bonds and from monies in the Reserve Account created under the Bond 
Legislation for the Series 2017 B Bonds (the "Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account"), 
and unexpended proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds. Such Gross Revenues shall be 
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest, if any, on all bonds which may be issued 
pursuant to the Act and which shall be set aside as a special fund hereby pledged for such 
purpose. This Bond does not constitute an indebtedness ofthe Issuer within the meaning of 
any constitutional or statutory provisions or limitations, nor shall the Issuer be obligated 
to pay the same, except from said special fund provided from the Gross Revenues, the 

24 
7342248 Page 267 of 461



monies in the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account and unexpended proceeds of the Series 
2017 B Bonds. Pursuant to the Bond Legislation, the Issuer has covenanted and agreed to 
establish and maintain just and equitable rates and charges for the use of the Combined 
Utility System and the services rendered thereby, which shall be sufficient, together with 
other revenues of the Combined Utility System, to provide for the reasonable expenses of 
operation, repair and maintenance of the Combined Utility System, and to leave a balance 
each year equal to at least I 15% of the maximum amount payable in any year for 
principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 2017 B Bonds and all other obligations 
secured by a lien on or payable from such revenues on a parity with or junior or subordinate 
to the Series 2017 B Bonds, including the Prior Bonds and the Series 2017 A Bonds; 
provided however, that, so long as there exists in the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account 
an amount at least equal to the maximum amount of principal and interest, if any, which 
will become due on the Series 2017 B Bonds in the then current or any succeeding year, and 
in the respective reserve accounts established for any other obligations Outstanding on a 
parity with or junior and subordinate to the Series 2017 B Bonds, including the Prior Bonds and 
the Series 2017 A Bonds, an amount at least equal to the requirement therefor, such 
percentage may be reduced to 110%. The Issuer has entered into certain further covenants 
with the Registered Owners of the Series 2017 B Bonds for the terms of which reference 
is made to the Bond Legislation. Remedies provided the Registered Owners of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds are exclusively as provided in the Bond Legislation, to which 
reference is here made for a detailed description thereof. 

Subject to the registration requirements set forth herein, this Bond is 
transferable, as provided in the Bond Legislation, only upon the books of the Registrar 
(as defined in the Bond Legislation) by the Registered Owner, or by its attorney duly 
authorized in writing, upon the surrender of this Bond, together with a written 
instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar, duly executed by the Registered 
Owner or its attorney duly authorized in writing. 

Subject to the registration requirements set forth herein, this Bond, under the 
provision of the Act is, and has all the qualities and incidents of, a negotiable instrument 
under the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of West Virginia. 

All money received from the sale of this Bond, after reimbursement and 
repayment of all amounts advanced for preliminary expenses as provided by law and the 
Bond Legislation, shall be applied solely to payment ofthe Costs ofthe Project and costs of 
issuance described in the Bond Legislation, and there shall be and hereby is created and 
granted a lien upon such monies, until so applied, in favor of the Registered Owner of this 
Bond. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts, 
conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in 
the issuance of this Bond do exist, have happened, and have been performed in due time, 
form and manner as required by law, and that the amount of this Bond, together with all other 
obligations ofthe Issuer, does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution or statutes 
of the State of West Virginia and that a sutlicient amount of the Gross Revenues of the 

25 
7342248 Page 268 of 461



Combined Utility System has been pledged to and will be set aside into said special fund 
by the Issuer for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest, if any, on this Bond. 

All provisions of the Bond Legislation, resolutions and statutes under which 
this Bond is issued shall be deemed to be a part of the contract evidenced by this Bond to 
the same extent as if written fully herein. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank] 

26 
7342248 Page 269 of 461



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN has caused 
this Bond to be signed by its Mayor, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and attested 
by its City Clerk, and has caused this Bond to be dated the day and year first written 
above. 

[SEAL] 

By: 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: 
City Clerk 

27 
7342248 Page 270 of 461



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION 

This Bond is one of the Series 2017 B Bonds described in the within
mentioned Bond Legislation and has been duly registered in the name of the registered 
owner set forth above, as ofthe date set forth below. 

Date: ,2017. 

7342248 

UNITED BANK, INC., 
as Registrar 

By: ____________________ _ 

Its: Authorized Officer 

28 
Page 271 of 461



EXHIBIT A 

RECORD OF ADVANCES 

AMOUNT DATE AMOUNT DATE 

(1) $ (19) 
(2) (20) 
(3) (21) 
(4) (22) 
(5) (23) 
(6) (24) 
(7) (25) 
(8) (26) 
(9) (27) 
(10) (28) 
(11 ) (29) 
(12) (30) 
(13) (31) 
(14) (32) 
(15) (33) 
(16) (34) 
(17) (35) 
(18) (36) 

TOTAL ____________________ _ 

29 
7342248 Page 272 of 461



EXHIBITB 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

30 
7342248 Page 273 of 461



(Form of) 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned sells, assigns, and transfers unto 
the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 
____ ~-~---~---' Attorney to transfer the said Bond on the books 
kept for registration of the within Bond of the said Issuer with full power of substitution in 
the premises. 

Dated: ___ , 20_. 

In the presence of: 

31 
7342248 Page 274 of 461



Section 3.11. Sale of Bonds: Approval and Ratification of Execution of 
Loan Agreement. The Series 2017 B Bonds shall be sold to the Authority, on behalf of the 
Council, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement. If not so authorized 
by previous ordinance or resolution, the Mayor is specifically authorized and directed to 
execute the Loan Agreement in the form approved by Supplemental Resolution, and the 
City Clerk is directed to affix the seal of the Issuer, attest the same and deliver the Loan 
Agreement to the Authority, and any such prior execution and delivery is hereby 
authorized, approved, ratified and confirmed. 

Section 3.12. Filing of Amended Schedule. Upon completion of the 
acquisition and construction of the Project, the Board will file with the Authority and the 
Council, a schedule setting forth the actual Costs of the Project and sources of funds 
therefor. 

ARTICLE IV 

[RESERVED] 

ARTICLE V 

FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; SYSTEM REVENUES 
AND APPLICATION THEREOF 

Section 5.0 I. Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Depository Bank. 
The following special funds or accounts are hereby created with (or continued if 
previously established by the Prior Ordinances) and shall be held by the Depository Bank, 
separate and apart from all other funds or accounts of the Depository Bank or the Issuer and 
from each other: 

(1) Revenue Fund (established by the Prior Ordinances); 

(2) Depreciation Fund (established by the Prior Ordinances); 

(3) Operation and Maintenance Fund (established by the Prior 
Ordinances); and 

(4) Series 2017 B Bonds Construction Trust Fund. 

Section 5.02. Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Commission. 
The following special funds or accounts are hereby created (or continued if previously 
established by the Prior Ordinances) with and shall be held by the Commission, 
separate and apart from all other funds or accounts of the Commission or the Issuer and 
from each other: 

32 
7342248 Page 275 of 461



7342248 

(I) Series 2000 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(2) Series 2000 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(3) Series 2000 B Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(4) Series 2000 B Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(5) Series 2006 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(6) Series 2006 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(7) Series 2007 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(8) Series 2007 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(9) Series 20 lOA Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(10) Series 20 lOA Bonds Reserve Account (establ ished by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(11) Series 2010 C Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(12) Series 2010 C Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(13) Series 2010 D Bonqs Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(14) Series 2010 D Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(15) Series2010 E Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(16) Series 2010 E Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(17) Series 2010 F Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(18) Series 2010 F Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(19) Series 2012 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

33 
Page 276 of 461



7342248 

(20) Series 2012 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(21) Series 2012 C Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(22) Series 2012 C Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(23) Series 2013 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(24) Series 2013 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(25) Series 2014 B Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(26) Series 2014 B Bonds Reserve Account (establ ished by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(27) Series2015 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(28) Series 2015 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ord inances); 

(29) Series 2015 B Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(30) Series 2015 B Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(31) Series 2015 C Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior Ordinances); 

(32) Series 2015 C Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ord inances); 

(33) Series 2015 D Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(34) Series 2015 D Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(35) Series 2015 E Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(36) Series 2015 E Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

34 
Page 277 of 461



(37) Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(38) Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(39) Series 2016 B-1 Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(40) Series 2016 B-1 Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(41) Series 2017 A Bonds Sinking Fund (establ ished by the Series 2017 
A Ordinance); 

(42) Series 2017 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by the Series 
2017 A Ordinance); 

(43) Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund (established in this Series 2017 
B Ordinance) and 

(44) Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account (established in this Series 
2017 B Ordinance). 

No accounts were created for the Series 2017 B-2 Bonds as the principal 
thereof wi II be forgiven. 

Section 5.03. Combined Utility System Revenues; Flow of Funds. A. 
The entire Gross Revenues derived from the operation of the System and all parts 

thereof shall be deposited upon receipt by the Issuer in the Revenue Fund. The Revenue 
Fund shall constitute a trust fund for the purposes provided in the Prior Ordinances and this 
Bond Legislation and shall be kept separate and distinct from all other funds of the Issuer 
and the Depository Bank and used only for the purposes and in the manner provided in the 
Prior Ordinances and this Bond Legislation. All moneys at any time on deposit in the 
Revenue Fund shall be disposed of only in the following manner and order of priority: 

(1) The Issuer shall first, on the first day of each month, transfer from the 

7342248 

Revenue Fund and simultaneously remit to the Commission (i) the amounts 
required by the Prior Ordinances to pay interest on the Series 2006 A Bonds, 
Series 2007 A Bonds, Series 2010 A Bonds, Series 20 I 0 C Bonds, Series 20 I 0 0 
Bonds, Series 2010 E Bonds, Series 2010 F Bonds, Series 2012 A Bonds, Series 
2012 C Bonds, Series 2014 B Bonds, Series 2016 A Bonds and Series 2016 B-1 
Bonds; (ii) the amounts required by the Series 2017 A Ordinance to pay interest 
in the Series 2017 A Bonds; and (iii) commencing 4 months prior to the first 
date of payment of interest, if any, on the Series 2017 B Bonds, for deposit in 
the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund, an amount equal to 113rd of the amount 

35 
Page 278 of 461



of interest which will become due on the Series 2017 B Bonds on the next 
ensuing quarterly interest payment date; provided that, in the event the period to 
elapse between the date of such initial deposit in the Series 2017 B Bonds 
Sinking Fund and the next quarterly interest payment date is less than 3 months, 
then such monthly payments shall be increased proportionately to provide, I 
month prior to the next quarterly interest payment date, the required amount of 
interest coming due on such date. 

(2) The Issuer shall next, on the first day of each month, transfer from the 
Revenue Fund and simultaneously remit to the Commission (i) the 
amounts required by the Prior Ordinances to pay the principal of the Prior 
Bonds; (ii) the amount required by the Series 2017 A Ordinance to pay the principal 
of the Series 2017 A Bonds; and (iii) to the Commission commencing 4 months 
prior to the first date of payment of principal of the Series 2017 B Bonds, for 
deposit in the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund, an amount equal to 1/3rd of 
the amount of principal which will mature and become due on the Series 2017 
B Bonds on the next ensuing quarterly principal payment date; provided that, 
in the event the period to elapse between the date of such initial deposit in the 
Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund and the next quarterly principal payment 
date is less than 3 months, then such monthly payments shall be increased 
proportionately to provide, 1 month prior to the next quarterly principal 
payment date, the required amount of principal coming due on such date. 

(3) The Issuer shall next, on the first day of each month, transfer from the 
Revenue Fund and simultaneously remit to the Commission (i) for deposit in 
the respective Reserve Accounts for the Prior Bonds, the amounts required 
by the Prior Ordinances; (ii) for deposit in the Series 2017 A Bonds Reserve 
Account, the amount required by the Series 2017 A Ordinance; and (iii) 
commencing 4 months prior to the first date of payment of principal of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds, if not fully funded upon issuance of the Series 2017 B 
Bonds or otherwise provided for pursuant to a surety bond, for deposit in the 
Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account, an amount equal to 1I120th of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Requirement; provided, that no further 
payments shall be made into the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account when 
there shall have been deposited therein, and as long as there shall remain on 
deposit therein, an amount equal to the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve 
Requirement. 

(4) The Issuer shall next, each month, transfer from the Revenue Fund and 
deposit in the Operation and Maintenance Fund, an amount sufficient to pay 
the current Operating Expenses ofthe Combined Utility System. 

(5) The Issuer shall next, from the moneys remaining in the Revenue Fund, on 
the first day of each month transfer to the Depreciation Fund, an amount equal 
to 2.5% of the Gross Revenues each month (as previously set forth in the 
Prior Ordinances and the Series 2017 A Ordinance and not in addition thereto), 

36 
7342248 Page 279 of 461



exclusive of any payments for account of any Reserve Account. All funds in 
the Depreciation Fund shall be kept apart from all other funds of the Issuer or 
of the Depository Bank and shall be invested and reinvested in accordance 
with Article VIII hereof. Withdrawals and disbursements may be made from 
the Depreciation Fund for replacements, emergency repairs, improvements 
or extensions to the Combined Utility System; provided, that any deficiencies in 
the Reserve Accounts (except to the extent such deficiency exists because the 
required payments into such accounts have not, as of the date of 
determination of a deficiency, funded such accounts to the maximum extent 
required hereof) shall be promptly eliminated with moneys from the 
Depreciation Fund. 

Moneys in the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund shall be used only for 
the purposes of paying principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 2017 B Bonds, as the 
same shall become due. Moneys in the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account shall be used 
only for the purpose of paying principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 2017 B Bonds, 
as the same shall come due, when other moneys in the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund 
are insufficient therefor, and for no other purpose. 

All investment earnings on moneys in the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund 
and the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account shall be returned, not less than once each year, 
by the Commission to the Issuer, and such amounts shall, during construction of the 
Project, be deposited in the Series 2017 B Bonds Construction Trust Fund, and following 
completion of construction of the Project, shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and 
applied in full, first to the next ensuing interest payment, if any, due on the Series 2017 B 
Bonds, and then to the next ensuing principal payment due thereon. 

Any withdrawals from the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account which 
results in a reduction in the balance therein to below the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve 
Requirement shall be subsequently restored from the first Gross Revenues available after all 
required payments have been made in full in the order set forth above. 

As and when additional Bonds ranking on a parity with the Series 2017 B 
Bonds are issued, provision shall be made for additional payments into the respective 
sinking fund sufficient to pay the interest, if any, on such additional parity Bonds and 
accomplish retirement thereof at maturity and to accumulate a balance in the respective 
reserve account in an amount equal to the requirement thereof. 

The Issuer shall not be required to make any further payments into the Series 
2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund or the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account, when the 
aggregate amount of funds therein are at least equal to the aggregate principal amount of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds issued pursuant to this Bond Legislation then Outstanding and all 
interest to accrue until the maturity thereof. 

Interest, principal or reserve payments, whether made for a deficiency 
or otherwise, shall be made on a parity and pro rata, with respect to the Prior Bonds, the 

37 
7342248 Page 280 of 461



Series 2017 A Bonds and the Series 2017 B Bonds, in accordance with the respective 
principal amounts then Outstanding. 

The Comm ission is hereby designated as the fiscal agent for the administration 
of the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund and Series 20) 7 B Bonds Reserve Account 
created hereunder, and all amounts required for said accounts shall be remitted to the 
Commission from the Revenue Fund by the Issuer at the times provided herein. The 
Issuer shall make the necessary arrangements whereby required payments into said 
accounts shall be automatically debited from the Revenue Fund and electronically 
transferred to the Commission on the dates required hereunder. 

Moneys in the Series 20) 7 B Bonds Sinking Fund and the Series 2017 B 
Bonds Reserve Account shall be invested and reinvested by the Commission in 
accordance with Section 8.01 hereof. 

The Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund and the Series 2017 B Bonds 
Reserve Account shall be used solely and only for, and are hereby pledged for, the purpose of 
servicing the Series 2017 B Bonds under the conditions and restrictions set forth herein. 

B. The Issuer shall on the first day of each month (if such day is not a 
business day, then the next succeeding business day), deposit with the Commission the 
required interest, if any, principal and reserve payments with respect to the Series 2017 B 
Bonds and all such payments shall be remitted to the Commission with appropriate 
instructions as to the custody, use and application thereof consistent with the provisions of 
this Bond Legislation. 

C. Whenever all ofthe required and provided transfers and payments from 
the Revenue Fund into the several special funds, as hereinabove provided, are current and 
there remains in the Revenue Fund a balance in excess of the estimated amounts required 
to be so transferred and paid into such funds during the following month or such other 
period as required by the Act, such excess shall be considered as surplus revenues. 
Surplus Revenues may be used for any lawful purpose ofthe Combined Utility System. 

D. The Issuer shall remit from the Revenue Fund to the Commission, 
the Registrar, the Paying Agent or the Depository Bank, on such dates as the 
Commission, the Registrar, the Paying Agent or the Depository Bank, as the case may be, 
shall require such additional sums as shall be necessary to pay their respective charges and 
fees then due. In the case of payments to the Commission under this paragraph, the Issuer 
shall, make the necessary arrangements whereby such required payments shall be 
automatically debited from the Revenue Fund and electronically transferred to the 
Commission on the dates required. 

E. The moneys in excess of the maximum amounts insured by FDIC in 
any of the funds and accounts shall at all times be secured, to the full extent thereof in excess 
of such insured sum, by Qualified Investments as shall be eligible as security for deposits of 
state and municipal funds under the laws of the State. 

38 
7342248 Page 281 of 461



F. If on any monthly payment date the revenues are insufficient to place 
the required amount in any of the funds and accounts as hereinabove provided, the deficiency 
shall be made up in the subsequent payments in addition to the payments which would 
otherwise be required to be made into the funds and accounts on the subsequent payment 
dates; provided, however, that the priority of curing deficiencies in the funds and accounts 
herein shall be in the same order as payments are to be made pursuant to this Section 5.03, 
and the revenues shall be applied to such deficiencies before being applied to any other 
payments hereunder. 

G. All remittances made by the Issuer to the Commission shall clearly 
identify the fund or account into which each amount is to be deposited. 

H. The Gross Revenues of the Combined Utility System shall only be 
used for purposes of the Combined Utility System. 

I. All Tap Fees, as received, shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund and 
may be used for any lawful purpose of the Combined Utility System. 

Section 5.04. Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy. etc. 
With the advance written consent of the Authority, the Issuer may, in lieu of funding the 
Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account with cash or Qualified Investments, satisfy the 
Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Requirement by obtaining a Municipal Bond Debt Service 
Reserve Insurance Policy, a reserve account letter of credit, a surety bond, or other credit 
facility satisfactory to the Authority in an amount equal to the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve 
Requirement. The Issuer hereby authorizes the purchase of, or payment of the premium for, a 
municipal bond debt service reserve insurance policy, a reserve account letter of credit, a surety 
bond, or other credit facility satisfactory to the Authority, all as set forth in a Supplemental 
Resolution, and the execution and delivery of any applicable reimbursement agreement or 
note in such forms as shall be described in a Supplemental Resolution. 

ARTICLE VI 

BOND PROCEEDS; CONSTRUCTION DISBURSEMENTS 

Section 6.01. Application of Bond Proceeds; Pledge of Unexpended Bond 
Proceeds. From the moneys received from the sale of the Series 2017 B Bonds, the 
following amounts shall be first deducted and deposited in the order set forth below: 

A. From the proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds, there shall first 
be deposited with the Commission in the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund, the amount, if 
any, set forth in the Supplemental Resolution as capitalized interest. 

B. Next, from the proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds, the Issuer 
may purchase a Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy, surety bond, 

39 
7342248 Page 282 of 461



letter of credit or other financial instrument to fund the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve 
Account as set forth in the Supplemental Resolution, or there shall be deposited with the 
Commission in the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account, the amount, if any, set forth in 
the Supplemental Resolution for funding of the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account. 

C. As the Issuer receives advances of the remaining moneys derived from 
the sale of the Series 2017 B Bonds such moneys shall be deposited with the Depository 
Bank in the Series 2017 B Bonds Construction Trust Fund and appl ied solely to payment of 
the Costs of the Project in the manner set forth in Section 6.02 hereof and until so 
expended, are hereby pledged as additional security for the Series 2017 B Bonds. 

D. After completion of construction of the Project, as certified by 
the Consulting Engineers, and all costs have been paid, any remaining proceeds of the Series 
2017 B Bonds shall be expended as approved by the Council. 

Section 6.02. Disbursements From the Series 2017 B Bond Construction 
Trust Fund. On or before the closing date, the Board shall have delivered to the Authority 
and the Council a report listing the specific purposes for which the proceeds of the Series 
2017 B Bonds will be expended and the disbursement procedures of such proceeds, 
including an estimated monthly draw schedule. Payments for Costs of the Project shall be 
made monthly. 

The Issuer hereby appoints and designates the Board, and the Authorized 
Officers thereof, as its agent (i) for the review and approval of all invoices for the Project 
to be paid from the proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds; (ii) to take any and all actions 
necessary to apply for and obtain a commitment from the IJDC, or any other agency of the 
State, specifically including, but not limited to, any administrative loan documents 
required by the Councilor any other agency of the State; and (iii) to act on and execute 
documents on behalf ofthe Issuer for any and all federal and state actions as they relate to the 
planning, design, acquisition, construction and/or equipping of the Project. 

Except as provided in Section 6.01 hereof, disbursements from the Series 
2017 B Bonds Construction Trust Fund shall be made only after submission to, and approval 
from, the Authority and the Council of a completed and signed "Payment Requisition 
Form," a' form of which is attached to the Loan Agreement, in compliance with the 
construction schedule. 

Pending such application, moneys in the Series 2017 B Bonds Construction 
Trust Fund shall be invested and reinvested in Qualified Investments at the written direction 
of the Issuer. 

40 
7342248 Page 283 of 461



ARTICLE VII 

ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER 

Section 7.01. General Covenants of the Issuer. All the covenants, agreements 
and provisions of this Bond Legislation shall be and constitute valid and legally binding 
covenants of the Issuer and shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction by 
any Holder or Holders of the Series 2017 B Bonds. In addition to the other covenants, 
agreements and provisions of this Bond Legislation, the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees 
with the Holders of the Series 2017 B Bonds as hereinafter provided in this Article VII. 
All such covenants, agreements and provisions shall be irrevocable, except as provided 
herein, as long as any of the Series 2017 B Bonds or the interest, if any, thereon is 
Outstanding and unpaid. 

Section 7.02. Bonds not to be Indebtedness of the Issuer. The Series 2017 
B Bonds shall not be nor constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer within the meaning of 
any constitutional, statutory or charter limitation, but shall be payable solely from the funds 
pledged for such payment by this Bond Legislation. No Holder or Holders of the Series 
2017 B Bonds shall ever have the right to compel the exercise of the taxing power of the 
Issuer to pay the Series 2017 B Bonds or the interest, if any, thereon. 

Section 7.03. Series 2017 Bonds Secured by Pledge of Gross Revenues; Lien 
Position with respect to Prior Bonds. The payment of debt service of the Series 2017 A 
Bonds and the Series 2017 B Bonds shall be secured by a first lien on the Gross Revenues 
derived from the Combined Utility System, on a parity with one another and with the lien on the 
Gross Revenues in favor of the Holders of the Prior Bonds. Such Gross Revenues in an 
amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 2017 A Bonds, 
the Series 2017 B Bonds and the Prior Bonds and to make all other payments provided for in 
the Bond Legislation are hereby irrevocably pledged to such payments as they become due. 

Section 7.04. Rates and Charges. The Issuer has obtained any and all approvals 
of rates and charges required by State law and has taken any other action required to establish 
and impose such rates and charges, with all requisite appeal periods having expired 
without successful appeal and the Issuer shall supply an opinion of counsel to such effect. 
Such rates and charges shall be sufficient to comply with the requirements of the 
Loan Agreement and the Issuer shall supply a certificate of certified public accountant to such 
effect. 

So long as the Series 2017 B Bonds are outstanding, the Issuer covenants 
and agrees to fix and collect rates, fees and other charges for the use of the Combined 
Utility System and to take all such actions necessary to provide funds sufficient to produce 
the required sums set forth in the Bond Legislation and in compliance with the Loan 
Agreement. In the event the schedule of rates, fees and charges initially established for the 
Com bined Util ity System in connection with the Series 2017 B Bonds shall prove to be 
insufficient to produce the required sums set forth in this Bond Legislation and the Loan 
Agreement, the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that it will, to the extent or in the 

41 
7342248 Page 284 of 461



manner authorized by law, immediately adjust and increase such schedule of rates, fees and 
charges and take all such actions necessary to provide funds sufficient to produce the 
required sums set forth in this Bond Legislation and the Loan Agreement. 

Section 7.05. Sale of the Combined Utility System. So long as the Prior Bonds 
and/or the Series 2017 A Bonds are outstanding, the Issuer shall not sell, mortgage, lease or 
otherwise dispose of or encumber the Combined Utility System, or any part thereof, except 
as provided in the Prior Ordinances and the Series 2017 A Ordinance, respectively. 
Additionally, so long as the Series 2017 B Bonds are outstanding and except as otherwise 
required by law or with the written consent of the Authority, the Combined Utility 
System may not be sold, mortgaged, leased or otherwise disposed of, except as a whole, 
or substantially as a whole, and only if the net proceeds to be real ized shall be sufficient to 
fully pay all the Bonds Outstanding, in accordance with Article X hereof. The proceeds from 
any such sale, mortgage, lease or other disposition of the Combined Utility System shall, 
with respect to the Series 2017 B Bonds, immediately be remitted to the Commission for 
deposit in the Series 2017 B Bonds Sinking Fund, and, with the written permission of 
the Authority, or in the event the Authority is no longer a Bondholder, the Issuer shall 
direct the Commission to apply such proceeds to the payment of principal of and interest, if 
any, on the Series 2017 B Bonds. Any balance remaining after the payment of the Series 
2017 B Bonds and interest, ifany, thereon shall be remitted to the Issuer by the Commission 
unless necessary for the payment of other obligations of the Issuer payable out of the 
revenues of the Combined Utility System. 

The foregoing provision notwithstanding, the Board shall have and 
hereby reserves the right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any of the property comprising 
a part of the Combined Utility System hereinafter detennined in the manner provided 
herein to be no longer necessary, useful or profitable in the operation thereof. Prior to any 
such sale, lease or other disposition of such property, if the amount to be received therefor, 
together with all other amounts received during the same Fiscal Year for such sales, leases or 
other dispositions of such properties, is not in excess of $1,000,000, the Board shall, by 
resolution, determine that such property comprising a part of the Combined Utility System is 
no longer necessary, useful or profitable in the operation thereof and may then provide for 
the sale of such property. The proceeds of any such sale shall be deposited in the Revenue 
Fund. If the amount to be received from such sale, lease or other disposition of said 
property, together with all other amounts received during the same Fiscal Year for such 
sales, leases or other dispositions of such properties, shall be in excess of $1,000,000 but 
not in excess of$5,000,000, the Board shall first, determine, that such property comprising a 
part of the Combined Utility System is no longer necessary, useful or profitable in the 
operation thereof and may then, if it be so advised, by resolution duly adopted, authorize such 
sale, lease or other disposition of such property upon public bidding. The proceeds of any 
such sale shall be deposited in the Depreciation Fund. The payment of such proceeds into 
the Depreciation Fund shall not reduce the amount required to be paid into such account by 
other provisions of this Bond Legislation. 

No sale, lease or other disposition of the properties of the Combined Utility 
System shall be made by the Hoard if the proceeds to be derived therefrom, together with all 

42 
7342248 Page 285 of 461



other amounts received during the same Fiscal Year for such sales, leases or other 
dispositions of such properties, shall be in excess of $5,000,000 and insufficient to pay all 
Bonds then Outstanding, without the prior approval and consent in writing of the Holders, or 
their duly authorized representatives, of the Bonds then Outstanding. The Issuer shall 
prepare the form of such approval and consent for execution by the then Holders of the 
Bonds for the disposition of the proceeds of the sale, lease or other disposition of such 
properties of the Combined Utility System. 

Section 7.06. Issuance of Other Obligations Payable Out of Revenues 
and General Covenant Against Encumbrances. Except as provided for in Section 
7.06 and Section 7.07 hereof, the Issuer shall not issue any other obligations whatsoever 
payable from the revenues of the Combined Utility System which rank prior to, or 
equally, as to lien on and source of and security for payment from such revenues with the 
Series 2017 A Bonds, the Series 2017 B Bonds and the Prior Bonds. All obligations issued 
by the Issuer after the issuance ofthe Series 2017 B Bonds and payable from the revenues of 
the Combined Utility System, except such Additional Parity Bonds, shall contain an express 
statement that such obligations are junior and subordinate, as to lien on and source of 
and security for payment from such revenues and in all other respects, to the Series 2017 B 
Bonds; provided, that no such subordinate obligations shall be issued unless all payments 
required to be made into all funds and accounts established by this Bond Legislation have 
been made and are current at the time of the issuance of such subordinate obligations. 

Except as provided above, the Issuer shall not create, or cause or permit to 
be created, any debt, lien, pledge, assignment, encumbrance or any other charge having 
priority over or being on a parity with the lien of the Series 2017 B Bonds, and the 
interest, if any, thereon, upon any of the income and revenues of the Combined Utility 
System pledged for payment of the Series 2017 B Bonds and the interest, if any, thereon in 
this Bond Legislation, or upon the Combined Utility System or any part thereof. 

The Issuer shall give the Authority prior written notice of its issuance of 
any other obligations to be used for the Combined Utility System, payable from the 
revenues of the Combined Utility System or from any grants for the Project, or any other 
obligations related to the Project or the Combined Utility System. 

Section 7.07. Parity Bonds. So long as the Prior Bonds and/or the Series 
2017 A Bonds are outstanding, the limitations on the issuance of parity obligations set 
forth in the Prior Ordinances and the Series 2017 A Ordinance, respectively, shall be 
applicable. In addition, no Parity Bonds, payable out of the Gross Revenues of the 
Combined Utility System, shall be issued after the issuance of the Series 2017 B Bonds 
pursuant to this Bond Legislation, without the prior written consent of the Authority and 
without complying with the conditions and requirements herein provided (unless less 
restrictive than the provisions ofthe Prior Ordinances or the Series 2017 A Ordinance. 

All Parity Bonds issued hereunder shall be on a parity in all respects with 
the Series 2017 B Bonds. 

43 
7342248 Page 286 of 461



No such Parity Bonds shall be issued except for the purpose of financing 
the costs of design, acquisition or construction of extensions, additions, improvements or 
betterments to the Combined Utility System or refunding any outstanding Bonds, or both 
such purposes. 

No Parity Bonds shall be issued at any time, however, unless and until there 
has been procured a written statement by the Independent Certified Public Accountants, 
reciting the conclusion that the Net Revenues actually derived, subject to the adjustments 
hereinafter provided for, from the Combined Utility System during any 12 consecutive 
months, within the 18 months immediately preceding the date of the actual issuance of 
such Parity Bonds, plus the estimated average increased annual Net Revenues expected to 
be received in each ofthe 3 succeeding years after the completion of the improvements to be 
financed by such Parity Bonds, if any, shall not be less than 115% of the largest aggregate 
amount that will mature and become due in any succeeding Fiscal Year for principal of 
and interest on the following: 

I. The Bonds then Outstanding; 

2. Any Parity Bonds theretofore issued pursuant to the provisions 
contained in this Bond Legislation then Outstanding; and 

3. The Parity Bonds then proposed to be issued. 

The "estimated average increased annual Net Revenues expected to be 
received in each ofthe 3 succeeding years," as that term is used in the computation provided in 
the above paragraph, shall refer only to the increased Net Revenues estimated to be 
derived from the improvements to be financed by such Parity Bonds and any increase in 
rates enacted by the Issuer, the time for appeal of which shall have expired (without 
successful appeal) prior to the issuance of such Parity Bonds, and shall not exceed the 
amount to be stated in a certificate of the Independent Certified Public Accountants. 

The Net Revenues actually derived from the Combined Utility System 
during the 12 consecutive month period hereinabove referred to may be adjusted by adding 
to such Net Revenues such additional Net Revenues which would have been received, in 
the opinion of the Independent Certified Public Accountants, on account of increased rates, 
rentals, fees and charges for the Combined Utility System enacted by the Issuer, the time 
for appeal of which shall have expired (without successful appeal), prior to issuance of 
such Parity Bonds. For purposes of this test, the terms "Gross Revenues" and "Net 
Revenues" shall not include proceeds from the sale of capital assets. 

All covenants and other provisions of this Bond Legislation (except as to 
details of such Parity Bonds inconsistent herewith) shall be for the equal benefit, 
protection and security of the Holders of the Bonds and the Holders of any Parity 
Bonds theretofore or subsequently issued from time to time within the limitations of and 
in compliance with this section. All Bonds (with the exception of the Series 2016 B-2 
Honds), regardless of the time or times of their issuance, shall rank equally with respect to 

44 
7342248 Page 287 of 461



their lien on the Gross Revenues of the Combined Utility System, and their source of and 
security for payment from the Gross Revenues, without preference of any Bond over any 
other. The Issuer shall comply fully with all the increased payments into the various funds 
and accounts created in this Bond Legislation required for and on account of such Parity 
Bonds, in addition to the payments required for Bonds theretofore issued pursuant to this 
Bond Legislation. 

Parity Bonds shall not be deemed to include bonds, notes, certificates or 
other obligations subsequently issued, the lien of which on the revenues of the Combined 
Utility System is subject to the prior and superior lien of the Series 20) 7 B Bonds on such 
revenues. The Issuer shall not issue any obligations whatsoever payable from revenues of 
the Combined Utility System, or any part thereof, which rank prior to or, except in the 
manner and under the conditions provided in this section, equally, as to lien on and source 
of and security for payment from such revenues, with the Series 20) 7 B Bonds. 

No Parity Bonds shall be issued at any time, however, unless all of the 
payments into the respective funds and accounts provided for in this Bond Legislation with 
respect to the Bonds then Outstanding, and any other payments provided for in this Bond 
Legislation and the Prior Ordinances, shall have been made in full as required to the date of 
delivery of the Parity Bonds, and the Issuer then be in full compliance with all the 
covenants, agreements and terms of this Bond Legislation and the Prior Ordinances. 

Section 7.08. Books; Records and Audit. The Board shall keep complete 
and accurate records of the cost of acquiring the Project site and the costs of acquiring, 
constructing and installing the Project. The Board shall permit the Authority and the 
Council, or their agents and representatives, to inspect all books, documents, papers and 
records relating to the Project and the Combined Utility System at all reasonable times for 
the purpose of audit and examination. The Board shall submit to the Authority and the 
Council such documents and information as they may reasonably require in connection 
with the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project, the operation and 
maintenance of the Combined Utility System and the administration of the loan or any grants 
or other sources of financing for the Project. 

The Board shall permit the Authority and the Council, or their agents 
and representatives, to inspect all records pertaining to the operation and maintenance ofthe 
Combined Utility System at all reasonable times following completion of construction ofthe 
Project and commencement of operation thereof, or, if the Project is an improvement to 
an existing system, at any reasonable time following commencement of construction. 

The Board will keep books and records of the Combined Utility System, 
which shall be separate and apart from all other books, records and accounts of the Issuer, 
in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the 
Combined Utility System, and any Holder of a Bond or Bonds issued pursuant to this Bond 
Legislation shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the Combined Utility 
System and all parts thereof and all records, accounts and data of the Issuer relating thereto. 

45 
7342248 Page 288 of 461



The accounting system for the Combined Utility System shall follow current 
generally accepted accounting principles and safeguards to the extent allowed and as 
prescribed by the Public Service Commission of West Virginia. Separate control accounting 
records shall be maintained by the Board. Subsidiary records as may be required shall be 
kept in the manner and on the forms, books and other bookkeeping records as prescribed 
by the Board. The Board shall prescribe and institute the manner by which subsidiary 
records of the accounting system which may be installed remote from the direct supervision 
ofthe Board shall be reported to such agent of the Issuer as the Board shall direct. 

The Board shall file with the Authority and the Council, or any other 
original purchaser of the Series 2017 B Bonds, and shall mail in each year to any Holder or 
Holders of the Series 2017 B Bonds, requesting the same, an annual report containing the 
following: 

(A.) A statement of Gross Revenues, Operating Expenses, Net Revenues 
and Surplus Revenues derived from and relating to the Combined Utility System. 

(B.) A balance sheet statement showing all deposits in all the funds 
and accounts provided for in this Bond Legislation and the status of all said funds and 
accounts. 

(C.) The amount of any Bonds, notes or other obligations payable from 
the revenues of the Combined Utility System outstanding. 

The Board shall also, at least once a year, cause the books, records and 
accounts of the Combined Utility System to be audited by Independent Certified Public 
Accountant (and to the extent legally required, in compliance with the applicable OMB 
Circular, or any successor thereof, and the Single Audit Act, or any successor thereof), and 
shall mail upon request, and make available generally, the report of the Independent Certified 
Public Accountant, or a summary thereof, to any Holder or Holders of the Series 2017 B 
Bonds and shall subm it said report to the Authority and the Council, or any other original 
purchaser of the Series 2017 B Bonds. Such audit report submitted to the Authority and the 
Council shall include a statement that notes whether the results of tests disclosed instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under government auditing standards and, if 
there are, describes the instances of noncompliance and the audited financial statements 
shall include a statement that notes whether the revenues ofthe Combined Utility System are 
adequate to meet the Issuer's Operating Expenses and debt service and reserve 
requirements. 

Subject to the terms, conditions and provisions of the Loan Agreement and 
the Act, the Issuer has acquired, or shall do all things necessary to acquire, the proposed 
site of the Project and shall do, is doing or has done all things necessary to construct the 
Project in accordance with the plans, specifications and designs prepared by the Consulting 
Engineers. All real estate and interests in real estate and all personal property constituting 
the Project and the Project site heretofore or hereafter acquired shall at all times be and 
remain the property of the Issuer. 

46 
7342248 Page 289 of 461



The Issuer shall provide the Council with all appropriate documentation to 
comply with any special conditions established by federal and/or state regulations as set forth 
in Exhibit E of the Loan Agreement or as promulgated from time to time. 

The Board shall permit the Authority and the Council, or their agents and 
representatives, to enter and inspect the Project site and Project facilities at all reasonable 
times. Prior to, during and after completion of construction and commencement of 
operation of the Project, the Board shall also provide the Authority and the 
Co u n c ii, or their agents and representatives, with access to the Combined Utility 
System site and Combined Utility System facilities as may be reasonably necessary to 
accomplish all of the powers and rights ofthe Authority and the Council with respect to the 
Combined Utility System pursuant to the Act. 

Section 7.09. Rates. Prior to the issuance of the Series 2017 B Bonds, 
equitable rates or charges for the use of and service rendered by the Combined Utility 
System shall be established all in the manner and form required by law, and copies of such 
rates and charges so established will be continuously on file with the City Clerk, which 
copies will be open to inspection by all interested parties. The schedule of rates and 
charges shall at all times be adequate to produce Gross Revenues from the Combined 
Utility System sufficient to pay Operating Expenses and to make the prescribed 
payments into the funds created hereunder. Such schedule of rates and charges shall be 
changed and readjusted whenever necessary so that the aggregate of the rates and charges 
will be sufficient for such purposes. In order to assure full and continuous performance of 
this covenant, with a margin for contingencies and temporary unanticipated reduction in 
income and revenues, the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that the schedule of rates or 
charges from time to time in effect shall be sufficient, together with other revenues of the 
Combined Utility System (i) to provide for all Operating Expenses of the Combined Utility 
System, and (ii) to leave a balance each year equal to at least 115% of the maximum 
amount required in any year for payment of principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 
2017 B Bonds and all other obligations secured by a lien on or payable from such revenues 
on a parity with the Series 2017 B Bonds, including the Series 2017 A Bonds and the Prior 
Bonds; provided, that in the event that amounts equal to or in excess of the reserve 
requirements are on deposit in the Series 2017 B Bonds Reserve Account, and any reserve 
accounts for obligations on a parity with the Series 2017 B Bonds are funded at least at the 
requirement therefor, such balance each year need only equal at least 110% of the maximum 
amount required in any year for payment of principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 2017 
B Bonds and all other obligations secured by a lien on or payable from such revenues on a 
parity with the Series 2017 B Bonds, including the Series 2017 A Bonds and the Prior Bonds. 
In any event, the Issuer shall not reduce the rates or charges for services set forth in the rate 
ordinances described in Section 7.04. 

Section 7.10. Operating Budget and Monthly Financial Report. The Board 
shall annually, at least 45 days preceding the beginning of each Fiscal Year, prepare and 
adopt by resolution a detailed, balanced budget of the estimated revenues and expenditures 
for operation and maintenance of the Combined Utility System during the succeeding Fiscal 

47 
7342248 Page 290 of 461



Year and shall submit a copy of such budget to the Authority and the Council within 30 
days of adoption thereof. 

Commencing on the date contracts are executed for the acquisition and 
construction of the Project and for 2 years following the completion of the Project, the 
Board shall each month complete a "Monthly Financial Report," a form of which is 
attached to the Loan Agreement, and forward a copy of such report to the Authority and the 
Council by the 20th day of each month. 

Section 7.11. Engineering Services and Operating Personnel. The Board 
shall obtain a certificate of the Consulting Engineers in the form attached to the Loan 
Agreement, stating, among other things, that the Project has been or will be constructed 
in accordance with the approved plans, specifications and designs as submitted to the 
Council, the Project is adequate for the purposes for which it was designed, the funding 
plan as submitted to the Authority and the Council is sufficient to pay the costs of design, 
acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, and all permits required by federal and 
state laws for construction ofthe Project have been obtained. 

The Board shall provide and maintain competent and adequate 
engineering services satisfactory to the Authority and the Council covering the supervision 
and inspection of the development and construction of the Project and bearing the 
responsibility of assuring that construction conforms to the plans, specifications and 
designs prepared by the Consulting Engineers, which have been approved by all necessary 
governmental bodies. Such engineer shall certify to the Authority and the Council and the 
Issuer at the completion of construction that construction of the Project is in accordance with 
the approved plans, specifications and designs, or amendments thereto, approved by all 
necessary governmental bodies. 

The Issuer shall employ qualified operating personnel property certified by 
the State during the entire term of the Loan Agreement. 

The Issuer shall serve the additional customers, if any, at the location(s) as 
set forth in Certificate of Engineer. The Issuer shall not reduce the amount of additional 
customers, if any, served by the Project without the prior written approval of the Board 
of the Authority. Following completion of the Project the Issuer shall certify to the 
Authority the number of customers, if any, added to the Combined Utility System. 

Section 7.12. No Competing Franchise. To the extent legally allowable, the 
Issuer will not grant or cause, consent to or allow the granting of, any franchise or permit 
to any person, firm, corporation, body, agency or instrumentality whatsoever for the 
providing of any services which would compete with services provided by the Combined 
Utility System. 

Section 7.13. Enforcement of Collections. The Board will diligently enforce 
and collect all fees, rentals or other charges for the services and facilities of the Combined 
Utility System, and take all steps, actions and proceedings for the enforcement and collection 

48 
7342248 Page 291 of 461



of such fees, rentals or other charges which shall become delinquent to the full extent 
permitted or authorized by the Act, the rules and regulations of the Public Service 
Commission of West Virginia and other laws of the State of West Virginia. 

Whenever any fees, rates, rentals or other charges for the services and facilities 
of the Combined Utility System shall remain unpaid for a period of 20 days after the same 
shall become due and payable, the user of the services and facilities shall be delinquent 
until such time as all such rates and charges are fully paid. To the extent authorized by the 
laws of the State and the rules and regulations of the Public Service Commission of West 
Virginia, rates, rentals and other charges, ifnot paid, when due, shall become a lien on the 
premises served by the Combined Utility System. The Issuer further covenants and agrees 
that, it will, to the full extent permitted by law and the rules and regulations promulgated by 
the Public Service Commission of West Virginia, discontinue and shut off the services of the 
storm water portion of the Combined Utility System and any services and facilities of the 
waterworks portion of the Combined Utility System, to all users of the services of the 
storm water system delinquent in payment of charges for the services of the storm water 
system and will not restore such services of either the waterworks system or the storm water 
system until all delinquent charges for the services of the stormwater system, plus 
reasonable interest and penalty charges for the restoration of service, have been fully paid 
and shall take all further actions to enforce collections to the maximum extent permitted by 
law. If the waterworks facilities are not owned by the Issuer, the Issuer shall use diligent 
efforts to enter into a termination agreement with the provider of such water services, 
subject to any required approval of such agreements by the Public Service Commission of 
West Virginia. 

Section 7.14. No Free Services. The Board will not render or cause to be 
rendered any free services of any nature by the Combined Utility System, nor will any 
preferential rates be established for users of the same class; and in the event the Issuer or 
the Board, or any department, agency, instrumentality, officer or employee of either shall 
avail itself or themselves of the facilities or services provided by the Combined Utility 
System, or any part thereof, the same rates, fees or charges applicable to other customers 
receiving like services under similar circumstances shall be charged the Issuer, the Board 
and any such department, agency, instrumentality, officer or employee. The revenues so 
received shall be deemed to be revenues derived from the operation of the Combined Utility 
System, and shall be deposited and accounted for in the same manner as other revenues 
derived from such operation of the Combined Utility System. 

Section 7.15. Insurance and Construction Bonds. A. The Board hereby 
covenants and agrees that so long as the Series 2017 B Bonds remain Outstanding, the 
Board will, as an Operating Expense, procure, carry and maintain insurance with a reputable 
insurance carrier or carriers as is customarily covered with respect to works and properties 
similar to the Combined Utility System. Such insurance shall initially cover the following 
risks and be in the following amounts: 

7342248 

(l) FIRE, LIGHTNING, VANDALISM, MALICIOUS 
MISCHIEF AND EXTENDED COVERAGE INSURANCE, on all 

49 
Page 292 of 461



7342248 

above-ground insurable portions of the Combined Utility System in 
an amount equal to the actual cost thereof. In time of war the Board 
will also carry and maintain insurance to the extent available 
against the risks and hazards of war. The proceeds of all such 
insurance policies shall be placed in the Depreciation Fund and 
used only for the repairs and restoration of the damaged or 
destroyed properties or for the other purposes provided herein for 
the Depreciation Fund. The Board will itself, or will require each 
contractor and subcontractor to, obtain and maintain builder's risk 
insurance (fire and extended coverage) to protect the interests of 
the Issuer, the Board, the Authority, the prime contractor and all 
subcontractors as their respective interests may appear, in 
accordance with the Loan Agreement, during construction of the 
Project on a 100% basis (completed value form) on the insurable 
portion of the Project, such insurance to be made payable to the 
order of the Authority, the Issuer, the Board, the contractors and 
subcontractors, as their interests may appear. 

(2) PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE, with limits of not 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence to protect the Board from 
claims for bodily injury and/or death and not less than $500,000 per 
occurrence from claims for damage to property of others which 
may arise from the operation of the Combined Utility System, and 
insurance with the same limits to protect the Issuer and the Board 
from claims arising out of operation or ownership of motor vehicles 
of or for the Combined Utility System. 

(3) WORKERS' COMPENSA TJON COVERAGE FOR ALL 
EMPLOYEES OF OR FOR THE COMBINED UTILITY 
SYSTEM ELIGIBLE THEREFOR; AND PERFORMANCE 
AND PA YMENT OR COMPLETION BONDS, such bonds to be in 
the amounts of not less than 100% of the amount of any 
construction contract and to be required of each contractor dealing 
directly with the Board and such payment bonds will be filed with 
the Clerk of the County Commission of the County in which 
such work is to be performed prior to commencement of 
construction of any additions, extensions or improvements for the 
Combined Utility System in compliance with West Virginia Code, 
Section 38-2-39. 

(4) FIDELITY BONDS will be provided as to every officer 
and employee of the Board or the Issuer having custody of the 
revenues or of any other funds of the Combined Utility System, in 
an amount at least equal to the total funds in the custody of any such 
person at anyone time. 

50 
Page 293 of 461



(5) FLOOD INSURANCE, if the Combined Utility System 
facilities are or will be located in designated special flood or 
mudslide-prone areas and to the extent available at reasonable cost 
to the Issuer. 

(6) BUSINESS INTERRUPTION INSURANCE, to the extent 
available at reasonable cost to the Issuer. 

B. The Board shall require all contractors engaged in the construction of the 
Project to furnish a performance bond and a payment bond, each in an amount equal to 100% 
of the contract price of the portion of the Project covered by the particular contract as security 
for the faithful performance of such contract. The Board shall verify such bonds prior 
to commencement of construction. 

The Board shall also require all contractors engaged in the construction of 
the Project to carry such workers' compensation coverage for all employees working on the 
Project and public liability insurance, vehicular liability insurance and property damage 
insurance in amounts adequate for such purposes and as is customarily carried with respect 
to works and properties similar to the Project; provided, that the amounts and terms of 
such coverage are satisfactory to the Authority and the Council. The Board shall verify 
such insurance prior to commencement of construction. In the event the Loan Agreement 
so require, such insurance shall be made payable to the order ofthe Authority, the Issuer, the 
Board, the prime contractor and all subcontractors, as their interests may appear. 

Section 7.16. Mandatory Use. The mandatory use of the sanitary sewer 
facilities of the Combined Utility System is essential and necessary for the protection and 
preservation of the public health, comfort, safety, convenience and welfare of the inhabitants 
and residents of, and the economy of, the Issuer. Accordingly, to the extent permitted by the 
laws ofthe State and the rules and regulations of the Public Service Commission of West 
Virginia, every owner, tenant or occupant of any real property located near the sanitary 
sewer portion of the Combined Utility System, and where sanitary sewer from real property 
affects or drains into the sanitary sewer portion of the Combined Utility System, shall be 
deemed to be a user served by the sanitary sewer portion of the Combined Utility System 
and it is declared that the mandatory use of the san itary sewer portion of the Combined 
Utility System by such real property owner is necessary and essential for the health and 
welfare of the inhabitants and residents of the Issuer and the State. To the extent permitted 
by the laws of the State and the rules and regulations of the Public Service Commission of 
West Virginia, every such owner, tenant or occupant shall, after a 30-day notice of the 
availability ofthe sanitary sewer portion of the Combined Utility System, pay the rates and 
charges established therefor. 

Section 7.17. Completion of Project; Permits and Orders. The 
Board shall complete the Project as promptly as possible and operate and maintain the 
Combined Utility System as a revenue-producing utility in good condition and in 
compliance with all federal and state requirements and standards. 

51 
7342248 Page 294 of 461



The Board has obtained all permits required by state and federal laws for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project, all orders and approvals from regulatory 
agencies necessary for the design, acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project 
and the operation of the Combined Utility System and all approvals for issuance of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds required by state law, with all requisite appeal periods having expired 
without successful appeal and the Issuer shall supply an opinion of counsel to such effect. 

Section 7.18. Compliance with Loan Agreement and Law. The Issuer and the 
Board shall perform, satisfy and comply with all the terms and conditions of the Loan 
Agreement and the Act. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Issuer and the 
Board shall provide the Council with copies of all documents submitted to the Authority. 

The Issuer and the Board shall also comply with all applicable laws, rules 
and regulations issued by the Authority and the Councilor other state, federal or local bodies 
in regard to the design, acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project and the 
operation, maintenance and use of the Combined Utility System. 

The Board shall perform an annual maintenance audit which maintenance 
audit shall be submitted to the Authority and the Public Service Commission of West 
Virginia in the manner prescribed by and the guidelines established by the Authority and 
the Public Service Commission of West Virginia. 

Section 7.19. RESERVED. 

Section 7.20. Securities Laws Compliance. The Issuer shall provide the 
Authority and the Council, in a timely manner, with any and all information that may 
be requested of it (including its annual audit report, financial statements, related 
information and notices of changes in usage and customer base) so that the Authority and 
the Council may comply with the provisions of SEC Rule 15c2-12 (17 CFR Part 240). 

Section 7.21. Contracts; Change Orders; Public Releases. A. The Issuer 
shall, simultaneously with the delivery of the Series 2017 B Bonds or immediately 
thereafter, enter into written contracts for the immediate acquisition or construction of the 
Project. 

B. The Issuer shall submit all proposed change orders to the Council 
for written approval. The Issuer shall obtain the written approval of the Council before 
expending any proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds held in "contingency" as set forth in the 
schedule attached to the Certificate of the Consulting Engineer. The Issuer shall also obtain 
the written approval of the Council before expending any proceeds of the Series 2017 B 
Bonds made available due to bid or construction or project underruns. 

C. The Issuer shall list the funding as being provided by the Authority and 
the Council in any press release, publication, program bulletin, sign or other public 
communication that references the Project, including but not limited to any program 
document distributed in conjunction with any ground breaking or dedication ofthe Project. 

52 
7342248 Page 295 of 461



Section 7.22. Statutory Mortgage Lien. For the further protection of the 
Holders of the Series 2017 A Bonds and the Series 2017 B Bonds, a statutory mortgage lien 
upon the Combined Utility System is granted and created by the Act, which statutory 
mortgage lien is hereby recognized and declared to be valid and binding, shall take effect 
immediately upon delivery of the Series 2017 A Bonds and the Series 2017 B Bonds, and 
shall be on a parity with the statutory mortgage lien in favor of the Holders of the Prior 
Bonds and among the Holders of the Series 2017 A Bonds and the Holders of the Series 
2017 B Bonds. 

ARTICLE VIII 

INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

Section 8.01. Investments. Any monies held as a part of the funds and 
accounts created by th is Bond Legislation, other than the Revenue Fund, shall be invested and 
reinvested by the Commission, the Depository Bank, or such other bank or national banking 
association holding such fund or account, as the case may be, at the written direction of the 
Issuer in any Qualified Investments to the fullest extent possible under applicable laws, 
this Bond Legislation, the need for such monies for the purposes set forth herein and 
the specific restrictions and provisions set forth in this Section 8.01. 

Any investment shall be held in and at all times deemed a part of the fund 
or account in which such monies were originally held, and the interest accruing thereon and 
any profit or loss realized from such investment shall be credited or charged to the appropriate 
fund or account. The investments held for any fund or account shall be valued at the lower of 
cost or then current market value, or at the redemption price thereof if then redeemable at the 
option of the holder, including the value of accrued interest and giving effect to the 
amortization of discount, or at par if such investment is held in the "Consolidated Fund." The 
Commission, the Depository Bank, or such other bank or national banking association, as the 
case may be, shall sell and reduce to cash a sufficient amount of such investments whenever 
the cash balance in any fund or account is insufficient to make the payments required from 
such fund or account, regardless of the loss on such liquidation. The Depository Bank or 
such other bank or national banking association, as the case may be, may make any and all 
investments permitted by this section through its own investment or trust department and 
shall not be responsible for any losses from such investments, other than for its own 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

The Depository Bank shall keep complete and accurate records of all 
funds, accounts and investments, and shall distribute to the Issuer, at least once each year, 
or more often as reasonably requested by the Issuer, a summary of such funds, accounts and 
investment earnings. The Issuer shall retain all such records and any additional records with 
respect to such funds, accounts and investment earnings so long as any of the Series 
2017 B Bonds are Outstanding and as long thereafter as necessary to assure the exclusion of 

53 
7342248 Page 296 of 461



interest, if any, on the Series 2017 B Bonds from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. 

Section 8.02. Covenants as to Use of Proceeds. The Issuer covenants (i) 
to comply with the Code and all Regulations from time to time in effect and applicable to 
the Series 2017 B Bonds as may be necessary in order to maintain the status of the Series 
2017 B Bonds as governmental bonds; Oi) that it shall not take, or permit or suffer to be 
taken, any action with respect to the Issuer's use of the proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds 
which would cause any bonds, the interest on which is exempt from federal income taxation 
under Section 1 03(a) ofthe Code, issued by the Authority or the Council, as the case may be, 
from which the proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds are derived, to lose their status as tax
exempt bonds; and to take such action, or refrain from taking such action, as shall be deemed 
necessary by the Issuer, or requested by the Authority or the Council, to ensure compliance 
with the covenants and agreements set forth in this Section, regardless of whether such 
actions may be contrary to any of the provisions of this Ordinance. 

The Issuer shall annually furnish to the Authority, information with respect to 
the Issuer's use of the proceeds of the Series 2017 B Bonds and any additional 
information requested by the Authority. 

ARTICLE IX 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 9.01. Events of Default. Each ofthe following events shall constitute 
an "Event of Default" with respect to the Series 2017 B Bonds: 

7342248 

(1) If default occurs in the due and punctual payment of the 
principal of or interest, if any, on any Series 2017 B Bonds; or 

(2) If default occurs in the Issuer's observance of any of the 
covenants, agreements or conditions on its part relating to the 
Series 2017 B Bonds set forth in this Bond Legislation, any 
supplemental resolution or in the Series 2017 B Bonds, and such 
default shall have continued for a period of 30 days after the Issuer 
shall have been given written notice of such default by the 
Commission, the Depository Bank, the Registrar, the Paying Agent 
or any other Paying Agent or a Holder of a Bond; or 

(3) If the Issuer or Board files a petition seeking reorganization 
or arrangement under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other 
applicable law of the United States of America; or 

(4) If default occurs with respect to the Prior Bonds or the 
Prior Ordinances; or 

54 
Page 297 of 461



(5) If default occurs with respect to the Series 2017 A Bonds 
or the Series 2017 A Ordinance. 

Section 9.02. Remedies. Upon the happening and continuance of any Event 
of Default, any Registered Owner of a Bond may exercise any available remedy and bring 
any appropriate action, suit or proceeding to enforce his or her rights and, in particular, (i) 
bring suit for any unpaid principal or interest then due, (ii) by mandamus or other appropriate 
proceeding enforce all rights of such Registered Owners including the right to require the 
Issuer to perform its duties under the Act and the Bond Legislation relating thereto, 
including but not limited to the making and collection of sufficient rates or charges for 
services rendered by the Combined Utility System, (iii) bring suit upon the Bonds; (iv) by 
action at law or bill in equity require the Issuer to account as if it were the trustee of an 
express trust for the Registered Owners of the Bonds, and (v) by action or bill in equity 
enjoin any acts in violation ofthe Bond Legislation with respect to the Bonds, or the rights 
of such Registered Owners; provided, however, that all rights and remedies of the Holders 
of the Series 2017 A Bonds and the Series 2017 B Bonds shall be on a parity with on 
another and with those of the Holders ofthe Prior Bonds. 

Section 9.03. Appointment of Receiver. Any Registered Owner of a Bond 
may, by proper legal action, compel the performance of the duties of the Issuer under the 
Bond Legislation and the Act, including, the completion of the Project and after 
commencement of operation of the Combined Utility System, the making and collection of 
sufficient rates and charges for services rendered by the Combined Utility System and 
segregation of the revenues therefrom and the application thereof. If there be any Event of 
Default with respect to such Bonds, any Registered Owner of a Bond shall, in addition to all 
other remedies or rights, have the right by appropriate legal proceedings to obtain the 
appointment of a receiver to administer the Combined Utility System or to complete the 
acquisition and construction ofthe Project on behalf of the Issuer, with power to charge rates, 
rentals, fees and other charges sufficient to provide for the payment of Operating Expenses 
of the Combined Utility System, the payment of the Bonds and interest and the deposits 
into the funds and accounts hereby established, and to apply such rates, rentals, fees, 
charges or other revenues in conformity with the provisions of this Bond Legislation and the 
Act. 

The receiver so appointed shall forthwith, directly or by his or her or its 
agents and attorneys, enter into and upon and take possession of all facilities of said 
Combined Utility System and shall hold, operate and maintain, manage and control such 
facilities, and each and every part thereof, and in the name ofthe Issuer exercise all the rights 
and powers of the Issuer with respect to said facilities as the Issuer itself might do. 

Whenever all that is due upon the Bonds and interest thereon and under 
any covenants of this Bond Legislation for reserve, sinking or other funds and upon any 
other obligations and interest thereon having a charge, lien or encumbrance upon the 
revenues of the Combined Utility System shall have been paid and made good, and all 
defaults under the provisions of this Bond Legislation shall have been cured and made 

55 
7342248 Page 298 of 461



good, possession of the Combined Utility System shall be surrendered to the Issuer 
upon the entry of an order of the court to that effect. Upon any subsequent default, any 
Registered Owner of any Bonds shall have the same right to secure the further appointment 
of a receiver upon any such subsequent default. 

Such receiver, in the performance ofthe powers hereinabove conferred upon 
him or her or it, shall be under the direction and supervision of the court making such 
appointment, shall at all times be subject to the orders and decrees of such court and 
may be removed thereby, and a successor receiver may be appointed in the discretion of 
such court. Nothing herein contained shall limit or restrict the jurisdiction of such court to 
enter such other and further orders and decrees as such court may deem necessary or 
appropriate for the exercise by the receiver of any function not specifically set forth herein. 

Any receiver appointed as provided herein shall hold and operate the 
Combined Utility System in the name of the Issuer and for the joint protection and benefit 
of the Issuer and Registered Owners of the Bonds. Such receiver shall have no power to sell, 
assign, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any assets of any kind or character belonging or 
pertaining to the Combined Utility System, but the authority of such receiver shall be 
I imited to the completion of the Project and the possession, operation and maintenance of 
the Combined Utility System for the sole purpose of the protection of both the Issuer and 
Registered Owners of such Bonds and the curing and making good of any Event ofDefault 
with respect thereto under the provisions of this Bond Legislation, and the title to and 
ownership of said Combined Utility System shall remain in the Issuer, and no court shall 
have any jurisdiction to enter any order or decree permitting or requiring such receiver to 
sell, assign, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any assets ofthe Combined Utility System. 

ARTICLE X 

PA YMENT OF BONDS 

Section 10.01. Payment of Bonds. If the Issuer shall payor there shall 
otherwise be paid to the Holders of the Series 2017 B Bonds, the principal of and interest, 
if any, due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner stipulated therein and in 
this Bond Legislation, then the pledge of Gross Revenues and other moneys and securities 
pledged under this Bond Legislation and all covenants, agreements and other obligations of 
the Issuer to the Registered Owners of the Series 2017 BBonds shall thereupon cease, 
terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied, except as may otherwise be 
necessary to assure the exclusion of interest, ifany, on the Series 2017 B Bonds from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes, if applicable. 

56 
7342248 Page 299 of 461



ARTICLE XI 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.01. Amendment or Modification of Bond Legislation. Prior to 
the issuance of the Series 2017 B Bonds, this Ordinance may be amended or supplemented 
in any way by the Supplemental Resolution . Following issuance of the Series 2017 B 
Bonds, no material modification or amendment of this Ordinance, or of any ordinance, 
resolution or order amendatory or supplemental hereto, that would materially and adversely 
affect the rights of Registered Owners of the Series 2017 B Bonds shall be made without 
the consent in writing of the Registered Owners of the Series 2017 B Bonds so affected and 
then Outstanding; provided, that no change shall be made in the maturity of any Bond or 
Bonds or the rate of interest thereon, or in the principal amount thereof, or affecting the 
unconditional promise ofthe Issuer to pay such principal and interest out of the funds herein 
pledged therefor without the consent of the Registered Owner thereof. No amendment or 
modification shall be made that would reduce the percentage of the principal amount of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds required for consent to the above-permitted amendments or 
modifications. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Bond Legislation may be amended 
without the consent of any Bondholder as may be necessary to assure compliance with 
Section 148(f) of the Code relating to rebate requirements or otherwise as may be 
necessary to assure the excludability of interest on the Series 2017 B Bonds from gross 
income of the holders thereof, if applicable. 

Section 11.02. Bond Legislation Constitutes Contract. The provisions of the 
Bond Legislation shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Registered Owners 
of the Bonds, and no change, variation or alteration of any kind of the provisions of the 
Bond Legislation shall be made in any manner, except as in this Bond Legislation provided. 

Section 11.03. Severability of Invalid Provisions. If any section, paragraph, 
clause or provision of this Ordinance should be held invalid by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any 
of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the Supplemental Resolution or the Series 
2017 B Bonds. 

Section 11.04. Headings, Etc. The headings and catchlines of the articles, 
sections and subsections hereof are for convenience of reference only, and shall not affect 
in any way the meaning or interpretation of any provision hereof. 

Section 11.05. Conflicting Provisions Repealed; Prior Ordinances. All 
ordinances, orders or resolutions and or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed; provided, that in the event 
of any conflict between this Ordinance and the Prior Ordinances and Series 2017 A 
Ordinance, the Prior Ordinances and/or Series 2017 A Ordinance shall control (unless less 
restrictive), so long as the Prior Bonds and/or Series 2017 A Bonds are outstanding. 

57 
7342248 Page 300 of 461



Section 11.06. Covenant of Due Procedure, Etc. The Issuer covenants that all 
acts, conditions, things and procedures required to exist, to happen, to be performed or to be 
taken precedent to and in the adoption of this Ordinance do exist, have happened, have 
been performed and have been taken in regular and due time, form and manner as required by 
and in full compliance with the laws and Constitution of the State of West Virginia applicable 
thereto; and that the Mayor, the City Manager, the City Clerk and members ofthe Governing 
Body and the Board were at all times when any actions in connection with this Ordinance 
occurred and are duly in office and duly qualified for such office. 

Section 11.07. Appointment. The Issuer does hereby appoint, designate and 
approve the hiring of Steptoe & Johnson PLLC, Morgantown, West Virginia, as bond 
counsel and disclosure counsel to the Issuer and the Board in connection with the issuance 
by the Issuer ofthe Series 2017 B Bonds. 

Section 11.08. Statutory Notice and Public Hearing. Upon adoption hereof, an 
abstract of this Ordinance determined by the Governing Body to contain sufficient 
information as to give notice of the contents hereof shall be published once a week for 
2 successive weeks within a period of fourteen consecutive days, with at least 6 full 
days intervening between each publication, in the Dominion Post, a newspaper published 
and of general circulation in The City of Morgantown, together with a notice stating 
that this Ordinance has been adopted and that the Issuer contemplates the issuance of the 
Series 2017 B Bonds, and that any person interested may appear before the Governing 
Body upon a date certain, not less than ten days subsequent to the date of the first 
publication of such abstract of this Ordinance and notice, and present protests, and that a 
certified copy of this Ordinance is on file with the Governing Body for review by 
interested persons during office hours of the Governing Body. At such hearing, all 
objections and suggestions shall be heard and the Governing Body shall take such action 
as it shall deem proper in the premises. 

58 
7342248 Page 301 of 461



Section 11.09. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately 
following public hearing and final reading hereof. 

Passed on First Reading: 

Passed on Second Reading: 

Passed on Final Reading 
Following Public Hearing: 

627490.00049 

7342248 

___ ,2016 

_ __ ,2017 

____ , 2017 

THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: 
Mayor 

59 
Page 302 of 461



CERTIFICA TION 

Certified a true copy of an Ordinance duly enacted by the Council of THE 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN on the day of . 20_ . 

[SEAL] 

City Clerk 

60 
7342248 Page 303 of 461



THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2017 B 

(WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND) 

BOND ORDINANCE 

ARTICLE I 
STATUTORY AUTHORITY, FINDINGS AND DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01. Authority for this Ordinance. 
Section 1.02. Findings. 
Section I .03. Bond Legislation Constitutes Contract. 
Section 1.04. Definitions. 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION OF ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION 

OF THE PROJECT 

Section 2.01. Authorization of Acquisition and Construction of the Project. 

ARTICLE III 
AUTHORIZATION, TERMS, EXECUTION , REGISTRATION 

AND SALE OF BONDS; AUTHORIZATION AND EXECUTION 
OF LOAN AGREEMENT 

Section 3.01. Authorization of Bonds. 
Section 3.02. Terms of Bonds. 
Section 3.03. Execution of Bonds. 
Section 3.04. Authentication and Registration. 
Section 3.05. Negotiability, Transfer and Registration 
Section 3.06. Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost. 
Section 3.07. Bonds not to be Indebtedness of the Issuer. 
Section 3.08. Bonds Secured by Pledge of Gross Revenues; Lien Position with respect to 

Prior Bonds. 
Section 3.09. Delivery of Bonds. 
Section 3.10. Form of Bonds. 
Section 3.11 . Sale of Bonds; Approval and Ratification of Execution of Bond 

Purchase Agreement. 
Section 3.12 . Filing of Amended Schedule. 

61 
7342248 Page 304 of 461



ARTICLE IV 
[RESERVED] 

ARTICLE V 
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUES 

AND APPLICATION THEREOF 

Section 5.01. Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Depository Bank. 
Section 5.02. Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Commission. 
Section 5.03. Combined Utility System Revenues; Flow of Funds. 
Section 5.04. Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy, etc. 

ARTICLE VI 
BOND PROCEEDS; CONSTRUCTION DISBURSEMENTS 

Section 6.01. Application of Bond Proceeds; Pledge of Unexpended Bond Proceeds 
Section 6.02. Disbursements from the Series 2017 B Bond Construction Trust Fund. 

ARTICLE VII 
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER 

Section 7.01. General Covenants ofthe Issuer. 
Section 7.02. Bonds not to be Indebtedness of the Issuer. 
Section 7.03. Bonds Secured by Pledge of Gross Revenues; Lien Position with respect to 

Prior Bonds. 
Section 7.04. Rates and Charges. 
Section 7.05. Sale ofthe Combined Utility System. 
Section 7.06. Issuance of Other Obligations Payable Out of Revenues and General 

Covenant Against Encumbrances. 
Section 7.07. Parity Bonds. 
Section 7.08. Books; Records and Audit. 
Section 7.09. Rates. 
Section 7.10. Operating Budget and Monthly Financial Report. 
Section 7.11. Engineering Services and Operating Personnel. 
Section 7.12. No Competing Franchise. 
Section 7.13. Enforcement of Collections. 
Section 7.14. No Free Services. 
Section 7.15. Insurance and Construction Bonds. 
Section 7.16. Mandatory Use. 
Section 7.17. Completion of Project; Permits and Orders. 
Section 7.18. Compliance with Loan Agreement and Law. 
Section 7.19. RESERVED. 
Section 7.20. Securities Laws Compliance. 
Section 7.21. Contracts; Change Orders; Public Releases. 
Sed ion 7.22. Statutory Mortgage Lien. 

62 
7342248 Page 305 of 461



Section 8.01 . Investments. 

ARTICLE VIII 
INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

Section 8.02. Covenants as to Use of Proceeds 

ARTICLE IX 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 9.01. Events of Default. 
Section 9.02. Remedies 
Section 9.03. Appointment of Receiver. 

ARTICLE X 
PAYMENT OF BONDS 

Section 10.01. Payment of Bonds. 

ARTICLE XI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 11.01. Amendment or Modification of Bond Legislation. 
Section 11.02. Bond Legislation Constitutes Contract. 
Section 11.03. Severability ofInvalid Provisions. 
Section 11.04. Headings, Etc. 
Section 11.05. Conflicting Provisions Repealed; Prior Ordinances. 
Section 11.06. Covenant of Due Procedure, Etc. 
Section 11.07. Appointment. 
Section 11.08. Statutory Notice and Public Hearing. 
Section 11.09. Effective Date. 

7342248 

SIGNATURES 
CERTIFICATION 

63 

Page 306 of 461



THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 
CONFORMED ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION 
AND CONSTRUCTION OF CERTAIN ADDITIONS, 
BETTERMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
SANITARY SEWER PORTION OF THE EXISTING 
COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN AND THE FINANCING OF THE 
COST THEREOF, NOT OTHERWISE PROVIDED, 
THROUGH THE ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF NOT 
MORE THAN $100,000,000 IN AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF COMBINED UTILITY 
SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 A; 
PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF, 
AND THE SECURITY FOR, THE REGISTERED 
OWNERS OF SUCH BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT, A CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT AND OTHER 
DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE BONDS; AND 
ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS WITH RESPECT TO 
SUCH BONDS. 

WHEREAS, The City of Morgantown (the "Issuer" or the "City") presently 
owns and operates, through The City of Morgantown Utility Board (the "Board"), a public 
combined waterworks, sewerage and stormwater system (collectively, the "System") and 
has heretofore financed the acquisition and construction of the System and certain additions, 
betterments and improvements thereto through the issuance of several series of bonds or 
refunding bonds, of which there are presently outstanding the Prior Bonds, as hereinafter 
defined. 

WHEREAS, all of the Prior Bonds were issued pursuant to ordinances of 
the Issuer previously enacted (such ordinances, as so amended and supplemented, 
collectively herein called the "Prior Ordinances"); 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Chapter 8, Article 20 of the 
West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended (the "Act"), the Issuer is authorized and 
empowered to acquire, construct and operate extensions, additions, betterments and 
improvements for the System; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined, and does hereby affirm, that the 
acquisition and construction of certain extensions, additions, betterments and improvements 

9 

Page 307 of 461



to the sanitary sewerage collection and treatment portion of the System (collectively, the 
"Sanitary Sewerage System"), is necessary, appropriate, useful and desirable for the health, 
safety, and welfare of the inhabitants of the Issuer and surrounding areas; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined that the aforementioned acquisition 
and construction of extensions, additions, betterments and improvements to the Sanitary 
Sewerage System (further defined herein as the "Sewer Treatment Plant Project") should be 
financed, as provided under the Act, in whole or in part, from the proceeds of multiple series 
of combined utility system revenue bonds to be issued by the Issuer, to pay all or any 
portion of the costs thereof, as well as the costs of issuance of such bonds; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to initially finance the costs of the 
Sewer Treatment Plant Project through the simultaneous issuance of three series of 
combined utility system revenue bonds designated, and in the not to exceed amounts, as 
follows: 

The City of Morgantown, Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2016 A, in the aggregate principal amount of not more than $100,000,000 (the "Series 2016 
A Bonds"); 

The City of Morgantown, Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2016 B-1 (West Virginia SRF Program), in the aggregate principal amount of not more than 
$30,000,000 (the "Series 2016 B-1 Bonds"); and 

The City of Morgantown, Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2016 B-2 (West Virginia SRF Program/Green), in the aggregate principal amount of not 
more than $500,000 (the "Series 2016 B-2 Bonds" and collectively with the Series 2016 B-2 
Bonds, the "Series 2016 B Bonds"). 

The Series 2016 A Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds and the Series 2016 
B-2 Bonds are referred to herein as the "Sewer Treatment Plant Project Bonds". 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to enact this Ordinance to authorize 
the issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds (the "Series 2016 A Ordinance"), such Series 2016 
A Bonds to have such security and such other terms and provisions as are hereinafter 
provided, all in the manner set forth herein; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has enacted a separate Ordinance to approve the 
issuance of the Series 2016 B Bonds (the "Series 2016 B Ordinance" and, collectively with 
the Series 2016 A Ordinance, the "Sewer Treatment Plant Project Bond Ordinances"); 

The Series 2016 A Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, and the Series 2016 
B-2 Bonds will be issued on a parity with one another, the Prior Bonds, and any Additional . 
Parity Bonds (as hereinafter defined) with respect to their lien on and security interest in the 

2 

Page 308 of 461



Gross Revenues of the System, and the Series 2016 A Bonds shall contain such other terms 
and provisions as are hereinafter provided, all in the manner set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined and hereby determines that it is in 
the best interest of the residents of the City that its Series 2016 A Bonds be sold to the 
Original Purchaser (as hereinafter defined) thereof pursuant to the terms and provisions of a 
bond purchase agreement, (the "Bond Purchase Agreement") between the Issuer and the 
Original Purchaser, hereinafter defined; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN HEREBY ORDAINS: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS, STATUTORY AUTHORITY, FINDINGS 

Section 1.01. Definitions All capitalized terms used in this Ordinance 
and not otherwise defined in the recitals hereto shall have the meanings specified below, 
unless the context expressly requires otherwise: 

"Act" means Chapter 8, Article 20 of the West Virginia Code of 1931, as 
amended and in effect on the Closing Date for the Series 2016 A Bonds. 

"Authorized Newspaper" means a financial journal or newspaper of general 
circulation in the City of New York, New York, printed in the English language and 
customarily published on each business day of the Registrar, whether or not published on 
Saturdays, Sundays or legal holidays, and so long as so published, shall include The Bond 
Buyer. 

"Authorized Officer" means the Mayor of the Issuer or any other officer of the 
Issuer specifically designated by resolution ofthe Council of the Issuer. 

"Board" shall mean The City of Morgantown Utility Board, created by an 
ordinance of the Issuer, or any successor thereto, the authorized officer for which will be the 
Board's General Manager. 

"Bond Commission" means the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission or 
any other agency of the State of West Virginia which succeeds to the functions of the Bond 
Commission. 

"Bond Counsel" means any law firm having a national reputation in the field 
of municipal law whose opinions are generally accepted by purchasers of municipal bonds, 
appointed by the Issuer or the Board, and shall initially mean Steptoe & Johnson PLLC, 
Charleston, West Virginia. 

3 

Page 309 of 461



"Bondholder," "Holder," "Holder of the Bonds," "Owner of the Bonds," 
"Registered Owner," or any similar term means any person who shall be the registered 
owner of any outstanding Bond. 

"Bond Insurer" means any entity which shall insure all or any portion of the 
payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, and with respect to the Series 2016 A 
Bonds, shall initially mean the bond insurer or bond insurers, if any, named in the 
Supplemental Resolution. 

"Bond Register" means the books of the Issuer maintained by the Registrar for 
the registration and transfer of Series 2016 A Bonds. 

"Bond Year" means with respect to each series of Series 2016 A Bonds the 
12 month period beginning on the anniversary of the Closing Date in each year and ending 
on the day prior to the anniversary date of the Closing Date in the following year, except 
that the first Bond Year shall begin on the Closing Date. 

"Bonds" means, collectively, the Series 2016 A Bonds, the Series 2016 B 
Bonds, the Prior Bonds and any Additional Parity Bonds hereafter issued within the terms, 
restrictions and conditions contained herein. 

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on 
which national banking associations, West Virginia banking corporations or the New York 
Stock Exchange are authorized by law to remain closed. 

"Certificate of Authentication and Registration" means the Certificate of 
Authentication and Registration on the Series 2016 A Bonds in substantially the form set 
forth in "EXHIBIT A - FORM OF SERlES 2016 A BONDS," attached hereto. 

"City" or "Issuer" means The City of Morgantown, a municipal corporation 
lmci political sllhciivision of the State of West Virginia, in Monongalia County thereof, and, 
where appropriate, the Council, the Board and any successor thereto. 

"City Clerk" or "Clerk" means the City Clerk of the Issuer. 

"City Manager" means the City Manager of the Issuer. 

"Closing Date" means the date upon which there is an exchange of the Bonds 
for the proceeds representing the original purchase price thereof. 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and 
supplemented from time to time, and Regulations thereunder. 

"Connection Fees" means the fees, if any, paid by customers of the System in 
order to connect thereto. 

4 

' . 

Page 310 of 461



"Consulting Engineers" means any independent qualified engineer or 
engineers or firm or firms of engineers that shall at any time now or hereafter be retained by 
the Board as Consulting Engineers for the System, or portion thereof. 

"Costs" or similar terms means all those costs now or hereafter permitted by 
the Act to be financed with bonds issued pursuant hereto, including, without limitation those 
costs set forth in Section 1.02C. 

"Council" means the City Council of the Issuer or any other governing body of 
the Issuer that succeeds to the functions of the Council as presently constituted. 

"Debt Service" with reference to a specified period, means the amount of 
principal, including any sinking fund payments, and interest payable with respect to the 
Bonds during such period. 

"Depository Bank" means the bank or banks to be designated as such in the 
Supplemental Resolution, and any other bank or national banking association located in the 
State of West Virginia, eligible under the laws of the State of West Virginia to receive 
deposits of state and municipal funds and insured by the FDIC that may hereafter be 
appointed by the Issuer as Depository Bank. 

"DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or its 
successor thereof. 

"DTC-eligible" means, with respect to the Series 2016 A Bonds, meeting the 
qualifications prescribed by DTC. 

"Event of Default" means any occurrence or event specified in Section 7.01. 

"FDIC" means the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any successor to 
the functions of the FDIC. 

"Fiscal Year" means each 12-month period beginning on July 1 and ending on 
the succeeding June 30. 

"Government Obligations" shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Supplemental Resolution. 

"Gross Revenues" means the aggregate gross operating and non-operating 
revenues of the System, as hereinafter defined, determined in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, after deduction of prompt payment discounts, if any, and 
reasonable provision for uncollectible accounts; provided, that "Gross Revenues" include 
any gains from the sale or other disposition of capital assets, but does not include any 
increase in the value of capital assets (including Qualified Investments, as hereinafter 
defined) or any Tap Fees (as hereinafter defined). 

5 

Page 311 of 461



"Independent Accountant" means the West Virginia State Tax Department or 
any certified public accountant or firm of certified public accountants that shall at any time 
hereafter be retained by the Issuer to prepare an independent annual or special audit of the 
accounts of the System or for any purpose except keeping the accounts of said System in the 
normal operations of its business and affairs, and specifically shall not include any certified 
public accountant who is an employee of either the City or the Board. 

"Investment Property" means any security (as said term is defined in 
Section 165(g)(2)(A) or (B) of the Code), obligation, annuity contract, investment-type 
property or residential rental property for family units which is not located within the 
jurisdiction of the Issuer and which is not acquired to implement a court ordered or 
approved housing desegregation plan, excluding, however, obligations the interest on which 
is excluded from gross income, under Section 103 of the Code, for federal income tax 
purposes other than specified private activity bonds as defined in Section 57(a)(5)(C) of the 
Code. 

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" means, at the time of computation, the 
greatest amount of Debt Service required to be paid on Bonds for the then current or any 
succeeding Fiscal Year. 

"Mayor" means the Mayor of the Issuer. 

"Municipal Bond Insurance Policy" means the municipal bond insurance 
policy, if any, issued by the Bond Insurer simultaneously with the delivery of the Series 
2016 A Bonds, insuring the timely payment of the principal of and interest on all or any of 
the Series 2016 A Bonds, in accordance with the terms thereof. 

"Net Proceeds" means the face amount of the Series 2016 A Bonds, plus 
accrued interest and premium, if any, less original issue discount, if any, on such issue, and 
less proeeeds deposited in the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account. For purposes of the 
Private Business Use limitations set forth herein, the term Net Proceeds shall include any 
amounts resulting from the investment of proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds, without 
regard to whether or not such investment is made in tax-exempt obligations. 

"Net Revenues" means Gross Revenues less Operating Expenses. 

"Nonpurpose Investment" means any Investment Property which is acquired 
with the gross proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds and is not acquired in order to carry out 
the governmental purpose of the Series 2016 A Bonds. 

"Operating Expenses" means the reasonable, proper and necessary eosts of 
repair, operation and maintenance of the System, and includes, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, administrative, engineering, legal, aUditing and insurance 
expenses (other than those capitalized as part of the Costs, fees and expenses of the 

6 

Page 312 of 461



Authority, fiscal agents, the Depository Bank, Registrar and Paying Agent or Paying 
Agents, payments to pension or retirement funds, taxes and such other reasonable operating 
costs and expenses as should normally and regularly be included under generally accepted 
accounting principles; provided, that "Operating Expenses" does not include payments on 
account of the principal of or redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, charges 
for depreciation, losses from the sale or other disposition of or any decrease in the value of 
capital assets, amortization of debt discount or such miscellaneous deductions as are 
applicable to prior accounting periods. 

"Ordinance" or "Bond Ordinance" regardless of whether preceded by the 
article "the" or "this," means this Ordinance, as it may hereafter from time to time be 
amended or supplemented, by ordinance or by resolution. 

"Original Purchaser" means the investment banking firm or firms, bank or 
banks or such other entity or entities as shall purchase the Series 2016 A Bonds directly 
from the Issuer, as determined by a resolution supplemental hereto. 

"Outstanding" when used with reference to the Bonds and as of any particular 
date, describes all Bonds theretofore and thereupon being issued and delivered except 
(a) any Bond canceled by the registrar for such Bond at or prior to said date; (b) any Bond 
for the payment of which monies, equal to its principal amount, with interest to the date of 
maturity, shall be held in trust under this Ordinance and set aside for such payment (whether 
upon or prior to maturity); (c) any Bond deemed to have been paid as provided by 
Section 9.01; and (d) with respect to determining the number or percentage of Bondholders 
for the purpose of consents, notices and the like, any Bond registered to the Issuer. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a Bond Insurer has paid principal of and/or 
interest on any Bond, such Bond shall be deemed to be Outstanding until such time as such 
Bond Insurer has been reimbursed in full. 

"Paying Agent" means, initially, the West Virginia Municipal Bond 
Commission and any other paying agent for the Series 2016 A Bonds which may be 
appointed by a resolution supplemental hereto, all in accordance with Section 8.12 hereof. 

"Prior Bonds" means, collectively, the Series 1995 Bonds, Series 2000 A 
Bonds, Series 2000 B Bonds, Series 2001 A Bonds, Series 2006 A Bonds, Series 2007 A 
Bonds, Series 2010 A Bonds, Series 20 lOB Bonds, Series 2010 C Bonds, Series 20 I 0 D 
Bonds, Series 2010 E Bonds, Series 2010 F Bonds, Series 2012 A Bonds, Series 2012 C 
Bonds, Series 2013 A Bonds, Series 2014 B Bonds, Series 2015 A Bonds, Series 2015 B 
Bonds, Series 2015 C Bonds, Series 2015 D Bonds, and Series 2015 E Bonds. 

"Prior Ordinances" means, collectively, the ordinances of the Issuer 
authorizing the issuance of the Prior Bonds. 

"Private Business Use" means use directly or indirectly in a trade or business 
carried on by a natural person or in any activity carried on by a person other than a natural 

7 

Page 313 of 461



person, excluding, however, use by a state or local governmental unit and use as a member 
of the general public. 

"Purchase Price" for the purpose of computation of the Yield of the Series 
2016 A Bonds, has the same meaning as the term "issue price" in Sections 1273(b) and 1274 
of the. Code, and, in general, means the initial offering price of the Series 2016 A Bonds to 
the public (not including bond houses and brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting 
in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at which price a substantial amount of the 
Bonds of each maturity is sold or, if the Series 2016 A Bonds are privately placed, the price 
paid by the first buyer of the Series 2016 A Bonds or the acquisition cost of the first buyer. 
"Purchase Price," for purposes of computing Yield of Nonpurpose Investments, means the 
fair market value of the Nonpurpose Investments on the date of use of Gross Proceeds of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds for acquisition thereof, or if later, on the date that Investment Property 
constituting a Nonpurpose Investment becomes a Nonpurpose Investment of the Series 2016 
A Bonds. 

"Qualified Investments" means and includes the investments set forth in the 
Supplemental Resolution and designated as such. 

"Record Date" means the date or dates which shall be so stated in the Series 
2016 A Bonds, regardless of whether such day is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 

"Redemption Date" means the date fixed for redemption of Bonds subject to 
redemption in any notice of redemption published or mailed in accordance herewith. 

"Redemption Price" means the price at which any of the Bonds may be called 
for redemption and includes the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus the 
interest and the premium, if any, required to be paid to effect such redemption. 

"Registrar" means the bank to be designated in the Supplemental Resolution as 
the Registrar for the Series 2016 A Bonds, and any successor thereto appoi nted in 
accordance with Section 8.08 hereof. 

"Regulations" means temporary and permanent regulations promulgated under 
the Code, and includes applicable regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1954. 

"Revenue Fund" means the Revenue Fund created by the Prior Ordinances and 
continued hereby. 

"Sanitary Sewerage System" means, collectively, the sanitary sewerage 
collection and treatment portion of the System. 

8 

'. 

Page 314 of 461



"Series 1995 Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1995 (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated April 27, 1995, issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of$I,601,477. 

"Series 2000 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2000 A (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated February 29, 2000, issued 
in the original aggregate principal amount of $7,842,000. 

"Series 2000 B Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2000 B (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), of the Issuer, dated February 29, 2000, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $2,488,000. 

"Series 2001 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2001 A (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), of the Issuer, dated February 8, 2001, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$3,812,470. 

"Series 2006 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2006 A (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated June 30, 2006, issued in 
the original aggregate principal amount of $6,41 0, 191. 

"Series 2007 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2007 A (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated August 14,2007, issued in 
the original aggregate principal amount of$8,500,000. 

"Series 2010 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010 A (Direct Payment Build America Bonds), of the Issuer, dated January 28, 
2010, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$37,950,000. 

"Series 2010 B Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010 B (West Virginia SRF Program/ARRA), of the Issuer, dated January 28, 2010, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $81 ,600. 

"Series 2010 C Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010 C (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated January 28,2010, issued 
in the original aggregate principal amount of$15,380,227. 

"Series 2010 D Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010 D (West Virginia DWTRF Program), of the Issuer, dated January 28, 2010, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $9,317,286. 

"Series 2010 E Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010 E (West Virginia DWTRF PrograrnJARRA), of the Issuer, dated January 28, 
2010, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$100,000. 

9 

Page 315 of 461



"Series 2010 F Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010 F (Bank Qualified), of the Issuer, dated January 28, 2010, issued in the original 
aggregate principal amount of $7,250,000. 

"Series 2012 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012 A (West Virginia DWTRF Program), of the Issuer, dated August 24, 2012, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $Y/O,OOO. 

"Series 2012 C Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012 C (Bank Qualified), of the Issuer, dated October 5, 2012, issued in the original 
aggregate principal amount of $2,330,000. 

"Series 2013 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2013 A (West Virginia Infrastructure Fund), of the Issuer, dated August 22, 2013, 
issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $4,605,260. 

"Series 2014 B Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2014 B, of the Issuer, dated July 13,2014, issued in the original aggregate principal 
amount of $505,421. 

"Series 2015 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 A (West Virginia Water Development Authority), of the Issuer, dated March 
31,2015 issued in the original aggregate principal amount of$137,568 .. 

"Series 2015 B Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 B (West Virginia Water Development Authority), of the Issuer, dated March 31, 
2015, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $4,586. 

"Series 2015 C Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 C (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated March 31, 2015 issued in 
the original aggregate principal amount of$8, 111,813. 

"Series 2015 D Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 D (West Virginia SRF Program), of the issuer, dated March 31, 20 IS issued in 
the original aggregate principal amount of$I,688,394. 

"Series 2015 E Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 E (West Virginia SRF Program), of the Issuer, dated June 11,2015 issued in the 
original aggregate principal amount of $662,300. 

"Series 2016 Bonds" means collectively, the Series 2016 A Bonds, the Series 
2016 B-1 Bonds, and the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds. 

10 

Page 316 of 461



"Series 2016 A Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2016 A, of the Issuer, originally authorized to be issued pursuant to this Ordinance 
and the Supplemental Resolution. 

"Series 2016 A Bonds Construction Fund" means the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Construction Fund created by Section 4.01 hereof. 

"Series 2016 A Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund" means the Costs of Issuance 
Fund created by Section 4.01 hereof. 

"Series 2016 A Bonds Redemption Account" means the Redemption Account 
created in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund by Section 4.02 hereof. 

"Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account" means the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Reserve Account created in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund by Section 4.02 hereof. 

"Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund" means the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking 
Fund created by Section 4.02 hereof. 

"Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account Requirement" means an amount equal 
to the lesser of (i) 10% of the original principal amount of the Series 2016 A Bonds, (ii) 
Maximum Annual Debt Service at the time of original issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds, 
or (iii) 125% of average annual Debt Service at the time of original issuance of the Series 
2016 A Bonds. 

"Series 2016 B Bonds" means, collectively, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds and 
the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds as hereinafter defined. 

"Series 2016 B-1 Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2016 B-1 (West Virginia SRF Program), issued contemporaneously with the 
issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of not more than 
$29,500,000, the proceeds of which will be used to finance a portion of the costs of the 
Sewer Treatment Plant Project. 

"Series 2016 B-2 Bonds" means the Combined Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2016 B-2 (West Virginia SRF Program/Green), issued contemporaneously 
with the issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of not more 
than $500,000, the proceeds of which will be used to finance a portion of the costs of the 
Sewer Treatment Plant Project. 

"Sewer Treatment Plant Project" means, collectively, the acquisition and 
construction of certain additions, betterments and improvements to the System, including 
the design, acquisition and construction of improvements to the wastewater treatment plant 
located in Star City which is part of the Sanitary Sewer System. 

11 

Page 317 of 461



"Sewer Treatment Plant Project Bonds" means, collectively, the Series 2016 
A Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds and the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds. 

"Sewer Treatment Plant Project Bond Ordinances" means, collectively, the 
ordinances authorizing the Sewer Treatment Plant Project Bonds. 

"State" means the State of West Virginia. 

"Supplemental Resolution" means any ordinance or resolution amendatory 
hereof or supplemental hereto and, when preceded by the article "the," refers specifically to 
the Supplemental Resolution or Resolutions to be adopted by the Issuer following enactment 
of this Ordinance, setting forth the final amounts, maturities, interest rates, redemption 
provisions, Bond Insurer provisions (if any) and other terms of the Series 2016 A Bonds and 
authorizing the sale of the Series 2016 A Bonds to the Original Purchaser; provided, that 
any provision intended to be included in the Supplemental Resolution and not so included 
may be contained in any other Supplemental Resolution. 

"Surplus Revenues" means the Net Revenues not required by the Bond 
Legislation to be set aside and held for the payment of or security for the Series 2016 Bonds, 
the Prior Bonds or any other obligations of the Issuer, including, without limitation, the 
Depreciation Fund, the Sinking Funds and the Reserve Accounts. 

"System" means the complete existing combined municipal waterworks, 
sewerage and storm water system of the Issuer, as presently existing in its entirety or any 
integral part thereof and shall include the Sewer Treatment Plant Project and any additions, 
betterments and improvements thereto hereafter acquired or constructed for said municipal 
waterworks, sewerage and stormwater system from any sources whatsoever, both within and 
without the Issuer. 

"Term Bonds" means Bonds subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, as 
described by Section 3.06 hereof. 

Words importing singular number shall include the plural number in each case 
and vice versa; words importing persons shall include firms and corporations and vice versa; 
and words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders 
and vice versa. 

Additional terms and phrases are defined in this Ordinance as they are used. 
Accounting terms not specifically defined herein shall be given meaning in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

The terms "herein," "hereunder," "hereby," "hereto," "hereof' and any similar 
terms refer to this Ordinance; and the term "hereafter" means after the date of enactment of 
this Ordinance. 

12 

Page 318 of 461



Articles, sections and subsections mentioned by number only are the 
respective articles, sections and subsections of this Ordinance so numbered. 

Section 1.02. Authority for this Ordinance. This Ordinance is enacted 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act and other applicable provisions of law. 

Section 1.03. Findings. The Council hereby finds and determines as 
follows: 

A. The Issuer is a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the 
State of West Virginia in Monongalia County of said State. 

B. The Issuer presently owns and operates, through the Board, a public 
combined waterworks, sewerage, and stormwater system. It is deemed necessary and 
desirable for the health and welfare of the inhabitants of the Issuer, and for the improvement 
of the water environment of the City and specifically of the Sewer Treatment Plant Project 
area, that there be acquired and constructed certain extensions, additions, betterments and 
improvements to the System, specifically including, but not limited to, the rehabilitation 
and improvement of the wastewater treatment plant located in Star City, and all necessary 
appurtenances; (collectively, the "Sewer Treatment Plant Project") in accordance with the 
plans and specifications prepared by the Consulting Engineers, which plans and 
specifications are on file with the Board. 

C. It is deemed necessary for the Issuer to issue its Combined Utility 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 A, in the aggregate principal amount of not more than 
$100,000,000, to permanently finance a portion of the costs of acquisition and construction 
of the Sewage Treatment Plant Project. Said costs shall be deemed to include the cost of all 
property rights, easements and franchises deemed necessary or convenient therefor; interest, 
if any, upon the Series 2016 A Bonds prior to and during acquisition or construction and for 
a period not exceeding 6 months after completion of acquisition and construction of the 
Sewer Treatment Plant Project; amounts which may be deposited in the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Reserve Account; underwriter's discount, engineering and legal expenses; expenses 
for estimates of costs and revenues; expenses for plans, specifications and surveys; other 
expenses necessary or incident to determining the feasibility or practicability of the 
enterprise; administrative expense; commitment fees; premiums for municipal bond 
insurance policy, debt service reserve account insurance policy or debt service reserve 
account surety bond; letter of credit fees; discount; initial fees for the services of registrars, 
paying agents, depositories or trustees or other costs in connection with the sale of the Series 
2016 A Bonds and such other expenses as may be necessary or incidental to the financing 
herein authorized; the acquisition and construction of the Sewage Treatment Plant Project 
and the placing of same in operation; and the performance of the things herein required or 
permitted, in connection with any thereof; provided, that reimbursement to the Issuer for 
any amounts expended by it for allowable costs prior to the issuance of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds or the repayment of indebtedness incurred by the Issuer for such purposes shall be 
deemed Costs of the Sewage Treatment Plant Project, as hereinafter defined. 

13 

Page 319 of 461



D. The period of usefulness of the System after completion of the Sewage 
Treatment Plant Project is not less than 30 years. 

E. it is in the best interests of the Issuer that the Series 2016 A Bonds be 
sold to the Original Purchaser pursuant to the terms and provisions of a bond purchase 
agl'eelm:lll lu be elllel"t!u illlu by allU belween lhe Issu~r alH.llh~ Original Pur~haser, as shall 
be approved by supplemental resolution of the Issuer. 

. F. There are or will be outstanding obligations of the Issuer which will 
rank on a parity with the Series 2016 A Bonds as to liens, pledge, source of and security for 
payment, being the Issuer's Prior Bonds, and the Issuer's Series 2016 B Bonds and Series 
2016 C Bonds, to be issued contemporaneously with the issuance of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds, and the Issuer's Series 2016 0 Bonds, which will be issued either 
contemporaneously with, or after, the issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds. 

Prior to the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds, the Issuer will obtain (i) the 
certificate of an Independent Certified Public Accountant stating that the coverage and 
parity tests of the Prior Bonds are met, and (ii) the written consent of the Holders of the 
Series 1995 Bonds, Series 2000 A Bonds, Series 2000 B Bonds, Series 2001 A Bonds, 
Series 2006 A Bonds, Series 2007 A Bonds, Series 2010 B Bonds, Series 2010 C Bonds, 
Series 2010 0 Bonds, Series 2010 E Bonds, Series 2012 A Bonds, Series 2013 A Bonds, 
Series 2015 A Bonds, Series 2015 B Bonds, Series 2015 C Bonds, Series 20150 Bonds and 
Series 2015 E Bonds to the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds on a parity with the Series 
1992 Bonds, Series 1995 Bonds, Series 2000 A Bonds, Series 2000 B Bonds, Series 2001 A 
Bonds, Series 2006 A Bonds, Series 2007 A Bonds, Series 2010 B Bonds, Series 2010 C 
Bonds, Series 2010 0 Bonds, Series 2010 E Bonds, Series 2012 A Bonds, Series 2013 A 
Bonds, Series 2015 A Bonds, Series 2015 B Bonds, Series 2015 C Bonds, Series 2015 0 
Bonds and Series 2015 E Bonds. The Series 2010 A Bonds, Series 2010 F Bonds, Series 
2012 C Bonds and Series 2014 B Bonds do not require written consent from the holders 
thereof. 

Other than the Prior Bonds, there are no other outstanding bonds or obligations 
of lhe Issuer which are secured by revenues or assets of the System. The Issuer is in 
compliance with all the covenants of the Prior Bonds and the Prior Ordinances. 

Other than the Prior Bonds, there are no other outstanding bonds or obligations 
of the Issuer which are secured by ievenues or assets of the System. 

G. The Issuer intends to issue the Series 2016 A Bonds and to pledge for 
payment thereof, from the Gross Revenues of the System, on a parity with one another and 
on a parity with such pledge in favor of the Holders of the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, the 
Series 2016 B-2 Bonds, and the Prior Bonds. 

14 

. . 

Page 320 of 461



H. The estimated revenues to be derived in each year after the date hereof 
from the operation of the System will be sufficient, to provide for the repair, maintenance 
and operation of the System, to pay the principal of, and interest on the Series 2016 A 
Bonds, Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, Series 2016 B-2 Bonds and the Prior Bonds as and when it 
becomes due and reasonable reserves therefor, to provide an adequate renewal and 
replacement fund, as hereinafter provided, and to make all other payments provided for in 
this Ordinance. 

I. It is in the best interests of the Issuer, and the residents thereof, that the 
Issuer issue the Series 2016 A Bonds, and secure the Series 2016 A Bonds by a pledge and 
assignment of the Gross Revenues derived from the operation of the System, the monies in 
the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund, including the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve 
Account therein, unexpended proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds and as further set forth 
herein. 

J. The Series 2016 A Bonds and the Certificate of Authentication and 
Registration to be endorsed thereon are to be in substantially the forms set forth in 
EXHIBIT A - FORM OF SERIES 2016 A BONDS attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference, with necessary and appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as 
permitted or required by this Ordinance or a Supplemental Resolution or as deemed 
necessary by the Registrar or the Issuer. 

K. All things necessary to make the Series 2016 A Bonds, when 
authenticated by the Registrar and issued as in this Ordinance provided, the valid, binding 
and legal special obligations of the Issuer according to the import thereof, and to validly 
pledge and assign those funds pledged hereby to the payment of the principal of and interest 
on the Series 2016 A Bonds, will be timely done and duly performed. 

L. The enactment of this Ordinance, the execution and issuance of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds and the amendment, subject to the terms thereof, will not result in any 
breach of, or constitute a default under, any instrument to which the Issuer is a party or by 
which it may be bound or affected. 

M. Prior to construction, the Issuer will have complied with all 
requirements of West Virginia law relating to authorization of the acquisition, construction 
and operation of the Water Reservoir Project and the System and issuance of the Series 
2016 A Bonds including but not limited to Chapter 24, Article 2, Paragraph 11 (1). 

Section 1.04. Ordinance Constitutes Contract. In consideration of the 
acceptance of the Series 2016 A Bonds by those who shall own or hold the same from time 
to time, this Ordinance shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the 
Issuer and such Bondholders, and the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be 
performed by the Issuer shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the legal 
Holders of any and all of such Series 2016 A Bonds, all of which shall be of equal rank and 
without preference, priority or distinction between anyone Series 2016 A Bond and any 

15 

Page 321 of 461



other Series 2016 A Bond, by reason of priority of issuance or otherwise, except as 
expressly provided therein and herein. 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION OF ACQUISITION AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE SEWER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT 

Section 2.01 Authorization of Acquisition and Construction of the Sewer 
Treatment Plant Project. There is hereby authorized and ordered the acquisition and 
construction of the Sewer Treatment Plant Project, at an estimated cost of not more than 
$130,000,000, of which up to $100,000,000 will be obtained from the proceeds of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds and up to $30,000,000 will be obtained from the proceeds of the sale 
of the Series 2016 B Bonds. 

ARTICLE III 
THE SERIES 2016 A BONDS 

Section 3.01 Form and Payment of Bonds. No Series 2016 A Bond shall be 
issued pursuant to this Ordinance except as provided in this Article III. Any Series 2016 A 
Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance may be issued only as fully registered Series 2016 
A Bonds without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral mUltiple thereof 
for any year of maturity. All Series 2016 A Bonds shall be dated as of the date provided in 
a Supplemental Resolution applicable to such series. All Series 2016 A Bonds shall bear 
interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication or, if 
authenticated after the Record Date but prior to the applicable interest payment date or on 
such interest payment date, from such interest payment date or, if no interest on such Serics 
2016 A Bonds has been paid, from the date thereof; provided, however, that, if, as shown by 
the records ofthe Registrar, interest on such Series 2016 A Bonds shall be in default, Bonds 
issued in exchange for Series 2016 A Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange shall bear 
interest from the date to which interest has been paid in full on the initial Series 2016 A 
Bonds surrendered. 

The principal of and the premium, ifany, on the Series 2016 A Bonds shall be 
payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective date of such payment, is legal 
tender for the payment of public and private debts under the laws of the United States of 
America upon surrender at the principal office of the Paying Agent. Interest on the Series 
2016 A Bonds shall be paid by check or draft made payable and mailed to the Holder 
thereof at his address as it appears in the Bond Register at the close of business on the 
Record Date, or, if requested, in the case of a Registered Owner of $1,000,000 or more of 
the Series 2016 A Bonds, by wire transfer to a domestic bank account specified in writing at 
least 5 days prior to such interest payment date by such Registered Owner. 

In the event any Series 2016 A Bond is redeemed in part, such bond shall be 
surrendered to and canceled by the Registrar, and the Issuer shall execute, and the Registrar 

16 

Page 322 of 461



shall authenticate and deliver to the Holder thereof, another Series 2016 A Bond in the 
principal amount of said 2016 A Bond then Outstanding. 

Section 3.02. Execution of Bonds. The Series 2016 A Bonds shall be 
executed in the name of the Issuer by the Mayor, by his or her manual or facsimile 
signature, and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed thereto or imprinted thereon and attested 
by the City Clerk by his or her manual or facsimile signature; provided, that, all such 
signatures and the seal may be by facsimile. In case anyone or more of the officers who 
shall have signed or sealed any of the Series 2016 A Bonds shall cease to be such officer of 
the Issuer before the Bonds so signed and sealed have been actually sold and delivered, such 
Bonds may nevertheless be sold and delivered as herein provided and may be issued as if 
the person who signed or sealed such Bonds had not ceased to hold such office. Any Series 
2016 A Bonds be signed and sealed on behalf of the City by such person as at the actual 
time of the execution of such Bonds shall hold the proper office in the City, although at the 
date of such Bonds such person may not have held such office or may not have been so 
authorized. 

Section 3.03. Authentication and Registration. No Series 2016 A Bond shall 
be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to any security or benefit under this 
Ordinance unless and until the Certificate of Authentication and Registration on such Series 
2016 A Bond, substantially in the form set forth in EXHIBIT A - FORM OF SERIES 2016 
A BONDS attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference with respect to the Series 
2016 A Bonds, shall have been duly manually executed by the Registrar. Any such 
manually executed Certificate of Authentication and Registration upon any such Series 2016 
A Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated, registered and 
delivered under this Ordinance. The Certificate of Authentication and Registration on any 
Series 2016 A Bond shall be deemed to have been executed by the Registrar if signed by an 
authorized officer of the Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer sign the 
Certificate of Authentication and Registration on all of the Series 2016 A Bonds issued 
hereunder. 

Section 3.04. Negotiability and Registration. Subject to the requirements for 
transfer set forth below, the Series 2016 A Bonds shall be, and have all of the qualities and 
incidents of, negotiable instruments under the Uniform Commercial Code of the State, and 
each successive Holder, in accepting any of said Bonds, shall be conclusively deemed to 
have agreed that such Bonds shall be and have all of the qualities and incidents of negotiable 
instruments under the Uniform Commercial Code of the State, and each successive Holder 
shall further be conclusively deemed to have agreed that said Bonds shall be incontestable in 
the hands of a bona fide holder for value. 

So long as any of the Series 2016 A Bonds remains Outstanding, the Registrar 
shall keep and maintain books for the registration and transfer of the Series 2016 A Bonds. 
The Series 2016 A Bonds shall be transferable only by transfer of registration upon the 
Bond Register by the registered owner thereof in person or by his attorney or legal 
representative duly authorized in writing, upon surrender thereof, together with a written 

17 

Page 323 of 461



instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or 
such duly authorized attorney or legal representative. Upon transfer of a Series 2016 A 
Bond, there shall be issued at the option of the Holder or the transferee another Bond or 
Bonds of the aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid amount of the transferred Bond 
and of the same series, interest rate and maturity of said transferred Bond. 

Upon surrender thereof at the office of the Registrar with a written instrument 
of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar and duly executed by the registered owner or his 
attorney or legal representative duly authorized in writing, Series 2016 A Bonds may at the 
option of the Holder thereof be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds 
of the same series, maturity and interest rate, in any authorized denominations. 

In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging a Series 2016 
A Bond is exercised, Bonds shall be delivered in accordance with the provisions of this 
Ordinance. All Series 2016 A Bonds surrendered in any such transfer or exchange shall 
forthwith be canceled by the Registrar. Transfers of Series 2016 A Bonds, the initial 
exchange of Bonds and exchanges of Bonds in the event of partial redemption of fully 
registered Bonds shall be made by the Registrar without charge to the Holder or the 
transferee thereof, except as provided below. For other exchanges of Series 2016 A Bonds, 
the Registrar may impose a service charge. For every such transfer or exchange of Series 
2016 A Bonds, the Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse its office for any tax 
or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange, 
and such tax or governmental charge, and such service charge for exchange other than the 
initial exchange or in the event of partial redemption, shall be paid by the person requesting 
such transfer or exchange as a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making 
such transfer or exchange. The Registrar shall not be obliged to make any such transfer or 
exchange of Series 2016 A Bonds that have been called for redemption. 

Section 3.05. Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost. In case any 
Series 2016 A Bond shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer may 
execute, in its discretion, and the Registrar shall authenticate, register and deliver any new 
Bond of like series, maturity and principal amount as the Bond, so mutilated, destroyed, 
stolen or lost, in exchange and upon surrender and cancellation of, such mutilated Bond, or 
in lieu of and substitution for the Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, and upon the Holder's 
furnishing the Issuer and the Registrar proof of his ownership thereof and that said Bond has 
been destroyed, stolen or lost and satisfactory indemnity and complying with such other 
reasonable regulations and conditions as the Issuer or the Registrar may prescribe and 
paying such expenses as the Issuer or the Registrar may incur. The name ofthe Bondholder 
listed in the Bond Register shall constitute proof of ownership. All Series 2016 A Bonds so 
surrendered shall be submitted to and canceled by the Registrar, and evidence of such 
cancellation shall be given to the Issuer. If such Bond shall have matured or be about to 
mature, instead of issuing a substitute Bond, the Issuer, by and through the Registrar, may 
pay the same, upon being indemnified as aforesaid, and, if such Bond be lost, stolen or 
destroyed, without surrender therefor. 

18 

Page 324 of 461



Any such duplicate Bonds issued pursuant to this section shall constitute 
original, additional contractual obligations on the part of the Issuer, whether or not the lost, 
stolen or destroyed Bonds be at any time found by anyone, and such duplicate Bonds shall 
be entitled to equal and proportionate benefits and rights as to lien and source of and 
security for payment from the Revenues pledged herein with all other Bonds issued 
hereunder. 

Section 3.06. Term Bonds. In the event Term Bonds are issued as part of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds pursuant to this Ordinance, the following provisions shall apply: 

1. The amounts to be deposited, apportioned and set apart by the Issuer 
from the Revenue Fund and into the Series 2016 A Bonds Redemption Account in 
accordance with Section 4.03 shall include (after credit as provided below) on the first of 
each month, beginning on the first day of that month which is 12 months prior to the first 
mandatory redemption date of said Term Bonds, a sum equal to 1112th of the amount (or, if 
the Series 2016 A Bonds mature semiannually rather than annually, that month which is 
6 months prior to the first mandatory redemption date of said Term Bonds, a sum equal to 
1I6th of the amount) required to redeem the principal amount of such Term Bonds which are 
to be redeemed as of the next ensuing mandatory Redemption Date, which amounts and 
dates, if any, with respect to a series of Bonds shall be set forth in the Supplemental 
Resolution relating thereto. 

2. At its option, to be exercised on or before the 60th day next preceding 
any such mandatory Redemption Date, the Issuer may (a) deliver to the Registrar for 
cancellation such Term Bonds in any aggregate principal amount desired or (b) receive a 
credit in respect of its mandatory redemption obligation for any such Term Bonds which 
prior to said date have been redeemed (otherwise than pursuant to this section) and canceled 
by the Registrar and not theretofore applied as a credit against any such mandatory 
redemption obligation. Each Term Bond so delivered or previously redeemed shall be 
credited by the Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the obligation of 
the Issuer on such mandatory Redemption Date, and Term Bonds delivered in excess of 
such mandatory redemption obligation shall be credited against future mandatory 
redemption obligations in the order directed by the Issuer, and the principal amount of such 
Term Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be 
accordingly reduced. 

3. The Issuer shall on or before the 60th day next preceding each 
mandatory Redemption Date furnish the Registrar and the Bond Commission with its 
certificate indicating whether and to what extent the provisions of (a) and (b) of the 
preceding paragraph are to be utilized with respect to such mandatory redemption payment 
and stating, in the case of the credit provided for in (b) of the preceding paragraph, that such 
credit has not theretofore been applied against any mandatory redemption obligation. 

4. After said 60th day but prior to the date on which the Registrar selects 
the Term Bonds to be redeemed, the Bond Commission may use the monies in the Series 

19 

Page 325 of 461



2016 A Bonds Redemption Account to purchase Term Bonds at a price less than the par 
value thereof and accrued interest thereon. The Bond Commission shall advise the Issuer 
and the Registrar of any Term Bonds so purchased, and they shall be credited by the 
Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the obligation of the Issuer on 
such mandatory Redemption Date, and any excess shall be credited against future 
mandatory redemption obligations in the order directed by the Issuer, and the principal 
amount of such Term Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redemption 
shall be accordingly reduced. 

5. The Registrar shall call for redemption, in the manner provided herein, 
an aggregate principal amount of such Term Bonds, at the principal amount thereof plus 
interest accrued to the Redemption Date (interest to be paid from the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Sinking Fund), as will exhaust as nearly as practicable such Series 2016 A Bonds 
Redemption Account payment designated to be made in accordance with paragraph (A)(1) 
of this section. Such redemption shall be by random selection made on the 45th day 
preceding the mandatory Redemption Date, in such manner as may be determined by the 
Registrar. For purposes of this section, "Term Bonds" shall include any portion of a fully 
registered Term Bond, in integrals of$5,000. 

Section 3.07. Notice of Redemption. Unless waived by any Holder of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds to be redeemed, official notice of any redemption shall be given by the 
Registrar on behalf of the Issuer by mailing a copy of an official redemption notice by 
registered or certified mail at least 30 days and not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed 
for redemption to the applicable Bond Insurer and the registered owner of the Series 2016 A 
Bond or Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register or at such other 
address as is furnished in writing by such registered owner to the Bond Registrar. 

So long as DTC (as CEDE & CO.) is the registered Owner of the Series 2016 
A Bonds, the Registrar shall send all notices of redemption to DTC and shall verify that 
DTC has received notice. Copies of all redemption notices shall also be posted on EMMA. 

All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state: 

(1) The Redemption Date, 

(2) The Redemption Price, 

(3) If less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification 
(and, in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be 
redeemed, 

(4) That on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price and interest 
accrued will become due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for 
redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date, 

20 

Page 326 of 461



(5) The place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the 
Redemption Price, which place of payment shall be the principal office of the Registrar, and 

(6) Such other information, if any, as shall be required for DTC-Eligible 
Bonds. 

If funds sufficient to redeem all Series 2016 A Bonds called for optional 
redemption have not been deposited with the Paying Agent at the time of mailing any notice 
of optional redemption, such notice shall also state that such optional redemption is subject 
to the deposit of such monies with the Paying Agent on or before the Redemption Date. If 
such monies are not so deposited, the Registrar shall notify all holders of Series 2016 A 
Bonds called for redemption of such fact. 

Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Series 2016 
A Bonds, or portions of the Series 2016 A Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the 
Redemption Date, become due and payable at the Redemption Price therein specified, and 
from and after such date (unless the Issuer shall default in the payment of the Redemption 
Price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such 
Series 2016 A Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds shall be 
paid by the Registrar at the Redemption Price. Installments of interest due on or prior to the 
Redemption Date shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon 
surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the registered 
owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal of 
such Bond. All Series 2016 A Bonds which have been redeemed shall be canceled and 
destroyed by the Bond Registrar and shall not be reissued. 

Failure to receive such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof 
shall not affect the validity of proceedings for the redemption of Series 2016 A Bonds, and 
failure to mail such notice shall not affect the validity of proceedings for the redemption of 
any portion of Bonds for which there was no such failure. 

Section 3.08. Persons Treated as Owners. The Issuer, the Registrar and any 
agent of the Issuer or the Registrar may treat the person in whose name any Bond is 
registered as the owner of such Bond for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal 
of, and interest on, such Bond and (except as provided in Section 6.18) for all other 
purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue. 

Section 3.09. Temporary Bonds. Until Bonds of any series in definitive 
form are ready for delivery, the Issuer may execute and the Registrar shall authenticate, 
register, if applicable, and deliver, subject to the same provisions, limitations and conditions 
set forth in this Article III, one or more printed, lithographed or typewritten Bonds in 
temporary form, substantially in the form of the definitive Bonds of such series, with 
appropriate omissions, variations and insertions, and in authorized denominations. Until 
exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall be entitled to 
the lien and benefit created under this Ordinance. Upon the presentation and surrender of 

21 

Page 327 of 461



any Bond or Bonds in temporary form, the Issuer shall, without unreasonable delay, prepare, 
execute and deliver to the Registrar, and the Registrar shall authenticate, register, if 
applicable, and deliver, in exchange therefor, a Bond or Bonds in definitive form. Such 
exchange shall be made by the Registrar without making any charge therefor to the Holder 
of such Bond in temporary form. 

Section 3.10. Series 2016 A Bonds. For the purposes of paying a portion of 
the costs of the Sewage Treatment Plant Project, capitalizing interest on the Series 2016 A 
Bonds, paying the premium for a municipal bond insurance policy, funding the Series 2016 
A Bonds Reserve Account with proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds or paying the 
premium for a municipal bond debt service reserve insurance policy, in a amount equal to 
the Series 2016 A Bonds Debt Service Reserve Requirement and paying costs in connection 
with the issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds, there shall be issued the Series 2016 A Bonds 
of the Issuer, in an aggregate principal amount of not more than $100,000,000. Said Series 
2016 A Bonds shall be designated "Combined Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 
A," or such other designation as may be appropriate for the year and sequence of the issue, 
as may be set forth in one or more Supplemental Resolution(s), and shall be issued in fully 
registered form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof for any 
period of maturity, not exceeding the aggregate principal amount of Series 2016 A Bonds 
maturing in the period of maturity for which the denomination is to be specified. The Series 
2016 A Bonds shall be numbered from AR-I consecutively upward. The Series 2016 A 
Bonds shall be dated; shall be in such aggregate principal amount (not to exceed 
$100,000,000); shall bear interest at such rate or rates, (not to exceed 8%), payable 
semiannually on such dates; shall mature on such dates (which may be annual or semi
annual) (not to exceed 35 years) and in such amounts; shall be subject to such mandatory 
and optional redemption provisions; and shall have such other terms, all as the Issuer shall 
prescribe herein and in the Supplemental Resolution. 

Section 3.11. Book Entry System for Series 2016 A Bonds. A. The 
Series 2016 A Bonds shall each initially be issued in the form of one fully-registered bond 
for the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2016 A Bonds of each maturity, registered 
in the name of CEDE & CO., as nominee of DTC. Except as provided in Paragraph E 
below, all of the Series 2016 A Bonds shall be registered in the registration books kept by 
the Registrar in the name of CEDE & CO., as nominee of DTC; provided, that if DTC shall 
request that the Series 2016 A Bonds be registered in the name of a different nominee, the 
Registrar shall exchange all or any portion of the Series 2016 A Bonds registered in the 
name of such nominee or nominees. No person other than DTC or its nominee shall be 
entitled to receive from the Issuer or the Registrar either a Series 2016 A Bond or any other 
evidence of ownership of the Series 2016 A Bonds, or any right to receive any payment in 
respect thereof unless PTC or its nominee shall transfer record ownership of all or any 
portion of the Series 2016 A Bonds on the registration books maintained by the Registrar, in 
connection with discontinuing the book entry system as provided in Paragraph E below. 

B. At or prior to settlement for the Series 2016 A Bonds, the Issuer and the 
Registrar shall execute or signifY their approval of a representation letter addressed to DTC 

22 

Page 328 of 461



in a form satisfactory to DTC (the "Representation Letter"). Any successor Registrar shall, 
in its written acceptance of its duties under this Ordinance, agree to take any actions 
necessary from time to time to comply with the requirements of the Representation Letter. 

C. So long as the Series 2016 A Bonds or any portion thereof are 
registered in the name of DTC or any nominee thereof, all payments of the principal or 
Redemption Price of or interest on such Series 2016 A Bonds shall be made to DTC or its 
nominee at the addresses set forth in the Representation Letter in New York Clearing House 
or equivalent next day funds on the dates provided for such payments to be made to any 
Bondholder under this Ordinance. Each such payment to DTC or its nominee shall be valid 
and effective to fully discharge all liability of the Issuer and the Registrar with respect to the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds to the extent of the 
sum or sums so paid. In the event of the redemption of less than all of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Outstanding of any maturity, the Registrar shall not require surrender by DTC of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds so redeemed, but DTC may retain such Series 2016 A Bonds and 
make an appropriate notation on the Series 2016 A Bonds certificate as to the amount of 
such partial redemption; provided, that DTC shall deliver to the Registrar, upon request, a 
written confirmation of such partial redemption. The records maintained by the Registrar 
shall be conclusive as to the amount of the Series 2016 A Bonds of such maturity which 
have been redeemed. 

D. The Issuer, the Paying Agent and the Registrar may treat DTC as the 
sole and exclusive owner of the Series 2016 A Bonds registered in its name or the name of 
its nominee for the purposes of payment of the principal or Redemption Price of or interest 
on the Series 2016 A Bonds, selecting the Series 2016 A Bonds or portions thereof to be 
redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to Bondholders under this 
Ordinance, registering the transfer of Series 2016 A Bonds, obtaining any consent or other 
action to be taken by Bondholders and for all other purposes whatsoever; and neither the 
Issuer nor the Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. Neither the Issuer 
nor the Registrar shall have any responsibility or obligation to any direct or indirect 
participant in DTC, any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Series 2016 A 
Bonds under or through DTC or any such participant, or any other person which is not 
shown on the registration books of the Registrar as being a Bondholder with respect to 
(i) the Series 2016 A Bonds, (ii) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any 
such participant, (iii) the payment by DTC or any such participant of any amount in respect 
of the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds, (iv) any 
notice which is permitted or required to be given to Bondholders under this Ordinance, 
(v) the selection by DTC or any such participant of any person to receive payment in the 
event of a partial redemption of the Series 2016 A Bonds, or (vi) any consent given or other 
action taken by DTC as Bondholder. 

E. The book entry system for registration of the ownership of the Series 
2016 A Bonds may be discontinued at any time if either: (i) DTC determines to resign as 
securities depository for the Series 2016 A Bonds; or (ii) the Issuer determines that 
continuation of the system of book entry transfers through DTC (or through a successor 
securities depository) is not in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the Series 2016 A 

23 

Page 329 of 461



Bonds. In either of such events (unless in the case described in clause (iii) above, the Issuer 
appoints a successor securities depository), the Series 2016 A Bonds shall be delivered in 
registered certificate form to such persons, and in such maturities and principal amounts, as 
may be designated by DTC, but without any liability on the part of the Issuer or the 
Registrar for the accuracy of such designation. Whenever DTC requests the Issuer and the 
Registrar to do so, the Issuer and the Registrar shall cooperate with DTC in taking 
appropriate action after reasonable notice to arrange for another securities depository to 
maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Series 2016 A Bonds. 

Section 3.12. Delivery of Series 2016 A Bonds. A. The Issuer shall 
execute and deliver the Series 2016 A Bonds to the Registrar, and the Registrar shall 
authenticate, register and deliver the Series 2016 A Bonds to the Original Purchaser upon 
receipt of the documents set forth below: 

(1) If not registered in the name ofDTC or its nominee, a list of the names 
in which the Series 2016 A Bonds are to be registered upon original issuance, together with 
such taxpayer identification and other information as the Registrar may reasonably require; 

(2) A request and authorization to the Registrar on behalf of the Issuer, 
signed by an Authorized Officer, to authenticate and deliver the Series 2016 A Bonds to 
DTC for the benefit of the Original Purchaser; 

(3) Copies, certified by the City Clerk, of this Ordinance and the 
Supplemental Resolution; 

(4) The unqualified approving opinion upon the Series 2016 A Bonds by 
Bond Counsel; and 

(5) Such other opinions, certificates and documents as shall be reasonably 
requested by the Original Purchaser. 

Section 3.13. Form of Series 2016 A Bonds. The definitive Series 2016 A 
Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth in EXHIBIT A - FORM OF SERlES 2016 
A BONDS attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, with such necessary and 
appropriate omissions, insertions and variations as are approved by those officers executing 
such Series 2016 A Bonds on behalf of the Issuer and execution thereof by such officers 
shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval, and the definitive Series 2016 A 
Bonds shall have the form of the opinion of Steptoe & Johnson PLLC, as Bond Counsel, 
attached thereto or printed on the reverse thereof. 

Section 3.14. Disposition of Proceeds of Series 2016 A Bonds. Upon the 
issuance and delivery of the Series 2016 A Bonds, the Issuer shaH forthwith deposit the 
proceeds thereof as follows: 

24 

Page 330 of 461



1. All interest accrued on the Series 2016 A Bonds from the date 
thereof to the date of delivery thereof, if any, shall be deposited in the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Sinking Fund and applied to payment of interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds at the first 
interest payment date. 

2. if a Municipal Bond Insurance Policy has been obtained to secure 
the payment of the principal of, and interest on, the Series 2016 A Bonds, the premium for 
such Municipal Bond Insurance Policy shall be paid to the Bond Insurer. 

3. An amount of the proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds equal to the 
amount, if any, set forth in the Supplemental Resolution shall be remitted to the Bond 
Commission for deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account; provided, that to the 
extent the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Requirement is satisfied in whole or in part from a 
municipal bond debt serve reserve insurance polity, letter of credit, surety bond or other 
credit facility, proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds shall be deposited in the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Reserve Account only to the extent needed to satisfy the balance ofthe Series 2016 A 
Bonds Reserve Requirement. 

4. The amount of Series 2016 A Bond proceeds which, together with 
other monies or securities deposited therein shall be equal to the Costs of Issuance of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds shall be deposited with the Depository Bank in the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund and shall be drawn out, used and applied by the Issuer solely 
to pay costs of issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds at the written direction of the Issuer. 
Monies not to be applied immediately to pay such costs of issuance may be invested in 
accordance with this Ordinance, subject however, to applicable yield restrictions as may be 
in effect under the Code. If for any reason such proceeds, or any part thereof, are not 
necessary for, or are not applied to such purpose within 120 days following the Closing Date 
for the Series 2016 A Bonds, such unapplied proceeds shall be transferred by the Issuer to 
the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund established in Section 4.0 I hereof and applied to the 
next ensuing payment of interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds. All such proceeds shall 
constitute a trust fund for such purposes, and there hereby is created a lien upon such 
monies until so applied in favor of the Holders of the Series 2016 A Bonds from which such 
proceeds are derived. 

5. The balance of Series 2016 A Bonds proceeds, if any, shall be 
deposited in the Series 2016 A Bonds Construction Fund and disbursed as provided in 
Section 3.15 hereof. 

Section 3.15. Disbursements from the Series 2016 A Bonds Construction 
Fund. Disbursements from the Series 2016 A Bonds Construction Fund, except for payment 
of Costs of Issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds in excess of the monies available in the 
Costs of Issuance Fund which shall be made upon request of the Utility, shall be made only 
for design, acquisition and construction of capital improvements, repairs and replacements 
for the Sewer Treatment Plant Project, including all necessary engineering and other 
professional services relating thereto. Pending such application, monies in the Series 2016 

25 

Page 331 of 461



A Bonds Construction Fund, incl uding any accounts therein, shall be invested and 
reinvested in Qualified Investments at the written direction of the Utility. 

ARTICLE IV 
SYSTEM REVENUES; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

Section 4.01. Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Depository 
Bank. Pursuant to this Article IV, the following special funds are created with (or 
continued if previously established by Prior Ordinances), and shall be held by, the 
Depository Bank, segregated from all other funds and accounts of the Depository Bank or 
the Issuer and from each other (except as set forth in this Section 4.01), and used solely for 
the purposes provided herein: 

(1) Revenue Fund (established by the Prior Ordinances); 

(2) Depreciation Fund (established by the Prior Ordinances); 
(3) Operation and Maintenance Fund (established by the Prior 

Ordinances); and 

(4) Series 2016 A Bonds Construction Fund. 

Section 4.02. Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Bond Commission. 
The following special funds or accounts are hereby created (or continued is established by 
Prior Ordinances or the Sewer Treatment Plant Project Bond Ordinances) with and shall be 
held by the Bond Commission, separate and apart from all other funds or accounts of the 
Bond Commission or the Issuer and from each other: 

(1) Series 1992 Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(2) Series 1992 Bonds Reserve Account established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(3) Series 1995 Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(4) Series 1995 Bonds Reserve Account established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(5) Series 2000 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(6) Series 2000 A Bonds Reserve Account established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

26 

Page 332 of 461



(7) Series 2000 B Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(8) Series 2000 B Bonds Reserve Account established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(9) Series 2001 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(10) Series 2001 A Bonds Reserve Account established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(11) Series 2006 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(12) Series 2006 A Bonds Reserve Account established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(13) Series 2007 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); . 

(14) Series 2007 A Bonds Reserve Account established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(15) Series 2010 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(16) Series 2010 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances ); 

(17) Series 2010 C Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(18) Series 2010 C Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(19) Series 2010 D Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(20) Series 2010 D Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(21) Series 2010 E Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

27 

Page 333 of 461



(22) Series 2010 E Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(23) Series 2010 F Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(24) Series 2010 F Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(25) Series 2012 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(26) Series 2012 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(27) Series 2012 C Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(28) Series 2012 C Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(29) Series 2013 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(30) Series 2013 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(31) Series 2014 B Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(32) Series 2014 B Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(33) Series 2015 A Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(34) Series 2015 A Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(35) Series 2015 B Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(36) Series 2015 B Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

28 

Page 334 of 461



(37) Series 2015 C Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(38) Series 2015 C Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(39) Series 2015 D Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances) ; 

(40) Series 2015 D Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(41) Series 2015 E Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(42) Series 2015 E Bonds Reserve Account (established by Prior 
Ordinances); 

(43) Series 2016 B-1 Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Sewer 
Treatment Plant Project Bond Ordinances); 

(44) Series 2016 B-1 Bonds Reserve Account (established by Sewer 
Treatment Plant Project Bond Ordinances); 

(45) Series 2016 B-2 Bonds Sinking Fund (established by Sewer 
Treatment Plant Project Bond Ordinances); 

(46) Series 2016 B-2 Bonds Reserve Account (established by Sewer 
Treatment Plant Project Bond Ordinances); 

(47) Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund; and 

(48) Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account 

Section 4.03. System Revenues and Application Thereof. So long as any of 
the Series 2016 A Bonds shall be Outstanding and unpaid, the Issuer covenants as follows: 

A. The entire Gross Revenues derived from the operation of the System 
and all parts thereof shall be deposited by the Issuer in the Revenue Fund. The Revenue 
Fund shall be kept separate and distinct from all other funds of the Issuer and the Depository 
Bank and used only for the purposes and in the manner herein provided. All Revenues at 
any time remaining on deposit in the Revenue Fund shall be disposed of only in the 
following manner and order of priority: 

29 

Page 335 of 461



(1) The Issuer shall first, from the monies in the Revenue Fund, on the first 
day of each month, simultaneously remit to the Bond Commission (i) the amounts required 
by the Prior Ordinances to for payment of interest on the Series 1995 Bonds, Series 2001 A 
Bonds, Series 2006 A Bonds, Series 2007 A Bonds, Series 2010 A Bonds, Series 2010 C 
Bonds, Series 2010 D Bonds, Series 2010 E Bonds, Series 2010 F Bonds, Series 2012 A 
Bonds, Series 2012 C Bonds, Series 2014 B Bonds, Series 2015 A Bonds; (ii) the amounts 
required by the ordinance authorizing the Series 2016 B Bonds to be deposited into the 
respective sinking funds for the payment of interest on the Series 2016 B Bonds; and (iii) 
beginning on the first day of that month which is 6 months prior to the first interest payment 
date on the Series 2016 A Bonds, apportion and set apart out of the Revenue Fund and 
deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund, a sum equal to 1I6th of the amount of 
interest which will become due on said Series 2016 A Bonds on the next ensuing 
semiannual interest payment date; provided, that in the event the period to elapse between 
the date of such initial deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund and the next 
ensuing semiannual interest payment date is less than or greater than 6 months, then such 
monthly payments shall be increased or decreased proportionately to provide, 1 month prior 
to the next ensuing semiannual interest payment date, the required amount of interest 
coming due on such date, and provided further, that the initial amount required to be 
transferred from the Revenue Fund and deposited in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund 
shall be reduced by the amount of accrued interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds deposited 
therein and subsequent amounts required to be transferred from the Revenue Fund and 
deposited in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund shall be reduced by the amount of any 
earnings credited to the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund. 

(2) The Issuer shall next, on the first day of each month, transfer from the 
Revenue Fund and, simultaneously remit to the Bond Commission (i) the amounts required 
by the Prior Ordinances to be deposited in the Prior Bonds Sinking Funds for paYIIlt:nl of 
principal on the Prior Bonds; (ii) the amounts required by the ordinance authorizing the 
Series 2016 B Bonds to be deposited into the respective sinking funds for the payment of 
principal on the Series 2016 B Bonds; and (iii) for deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Sinking Fund (and in the Series 2016 A Bonds Redemption Account therein in the case of 
Term Bonds which are to be redeemed) on the first day of each month, beginning on the 
first day of that month which is 12 months prior to the first principal payment or mandatory 
Redemption Date of the Series 2016 A Bonds, a sum equal to 1I12th ofthe amount (or 1I6th 
of the amount if the Series 2016 A Bonds mature semiannually rather than annually) of 
principal which will mature or be redeemed and become due on the Series 2016 A Bonds on 
the next ensuing principal payment or mandatory Redemption Date; provided, that in the 
event the period to elapse between the date of such initial deposit in the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Sinking Fund and the next ensuing principal payment or mandatory Redemption Date 
is less than or greater than 12 months (or 6 months if the Series 2016 A Bonds mature 
semiannually rather than annually), then such monthly payments shall be increased or 
decreased proportionately to provide, one month prior to the next ensuing principal payment 
date or mandatory Redemption Date, the required amount of principal coming due on such 
date, and provided further, that the amount of such deposits shall be reduced by the amount 

30 

Page 336 of 461



of any earnings credited to the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund and not previously 
credited pursuant to the preceding paragraph. 

(3) The Issuer shall next, on the first day of each month, transfer from the 
Revenue Fund and, simultaneously remit to the Bond Commission (i) the amounts required 
by the Prior Ordinances to be deposited in the respective Reserve Accounts for the Prior 
Bonds; (ii) the amounts required by the ordinance authorizing the Series 2016 B Bonds to be 
deposited into the respective reserve accounts for the Series 2016 B Bonds, if any; and (iii) 
commencing 13 months prior to the first date of payment of principal of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds or upon completion of construction of the Sewer Treatment Plant Project, whichever 
is earlier, if not fully funded upon issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds, for deposit in the 
Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account, an amount equal to 11120th of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Reserve Requirement; provided, that no further payments shall be made into the 
Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account when there shall have been deposited therein, and as 
long as there shall remain on deposit therein, an amount equal to the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Reserve Requirement; provided further, that if the amounts in the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Reserve Accol,lnt, as a result of a decrease in value of the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve 
Account below the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account Requirement or any withdrawal 
from the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account, the Issuer shall apply such monies for 
deposit into the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account, beginning with the first full 
calendar month following the date on which (a) the valuation of investments in the Series 
2016 A Bonds Reserve Account results in a determination that the amount of monies and 
the value of the Qualified Investments deposited to the credit of the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Reserve Account is less than the Series 2016 A Bond Reserve Account Requirement, or (b) 
any amount is withdrawn from the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account for deposit into 
the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund. To the extent Net Revenues and any other legally 
available funds are available therefor, the amount so deposited shall be used to restore the 
amount of monies on deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account to an amount 
equal to the Series 2016 A Bond Reserve Account Requirement to the full extent that such 
Net Revenues are available; provided, however, that if the shortfall in the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Reserve Account is due to a decrease in the value of investments therein, such 
shortfall shall be replenished by not less than 4 equal monthly payments, and if such 
shortfall is due to a withdrawal from the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account, such 
shortfall shall be replenished by not less than 12 equal monthly payments, and provided 
further, that no payments shall be required to be made into the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve 
Account whenever and as long as the amount deposited therein shall be equal to the Series 
2016 A Bond Reserve Account Requirement. 

Amounts in the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account shall be used only for 
the purpose of making payments of principal of and interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds 
when due, when amounts in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund are insufficient therefor 
and for no other purpose. 

(4) The Issuer shall next, each month, transfer from the Revenue Fund an 
amount sufficient to pay current Operating Expenses of the System. 

31 

Page 337 of 461



(5) The Issuer shall next, on the first day of each month, transfer from the 
monies remaining in the Revenue Fund and remit to the Depository Bank for deposit in the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund (as previously set forth in the Prior Ordinances and not in 
addition thereto), a sum equal to 2.5% of the Gross Revenues each month, exclusive of any 
payments for account of any Reserve Account. All funds in the Renewal and Replacement 
Fund shall be kept apart from all other funds of the Issuer or of the Depository Bank and 
shall be invested and reinvested in accordance with Article VIII hereof. Subject to the 
restrictions contained in the Prior Ordinances, so long as the Prior Bonds are outstanding, 
withdrawals and disbursements may be made from the Renewal and Replacement Fund for 
replacements, emergency repairs, or improvements or extensions to the System; provided, 
that any deficiency in any Reserve Account, except to the extent such deficiency exists 
because the required payments into such account have not, as of the date of determination of 
a deficiency, funded such account to the maximum extent required hereof, shall be promptly 
eliminated with monies from the Renewal and Replacement Fund. 

(6) Whenever all of the required and provided transfers and payments from 
the Revenue Fund into the several special funds, as hereinabove provided, are current and 
there remains in the Revenue Fund a balance in excess of the estimated amounts required to 
be so transferred and paid into such funds during the following month or such other period 
as required by the Act, such excess shall be considered as surplus revenues (the "Surplus 
Revenues"). Surplus Revenues may be used for any lawful purpose of the System. 

B. The Bond Commission is hereby designated as the fiscal agent for the 
administration of the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund created hereunder, and all amounts 
required for said Sinking Fund shall be remitted to the Bond Commission from said 
Revenue Fund and from the proceeds of the sale of the Series 2016 A Bonds, by the Issuer 
at the times and as otherwise provided herein. All remittances made by the Issuer to the 
Bond Commission shall clearly identify the fund or account into which each amount is to be 
deposited. 

C. The monies on deposit in the Revenue Fund and the Renewal and 
Replacement Fund in excess of the sum insured by the FDIC shall at all times be secured, to 
the full extent thereof in excess of such insured sum, by Government Obligations or by other 
Qualified Investments as shall be eligible as security for deposits of municipal funds under 
the laws of the State. 

D. Principal, interest or reserve payments, whether for a deficiency or 
otherwise, shall be made on a parity and pro rata, with respect to the Prior Bonds, the Series 
2015 A Bonds and the Series 2016 B Bonds, all in accordance with the respective principal 
amounts then Outstanding. 

ARTICLE V 
INVESTMENTS; NON-ARBITRAGE; 

32 

Page 338 of 461



REBATES OF EXCESS INVESTMENT EARNINGS 

Section 5.0l. Investments. The Issuer, through the Board, shall invest and 
reinvest, and shall instruct the Bond Bond Commission and the Depository Bank to invest 
and reinvest, any monies held as a part of the funds and accounts created by this Ordinance 
in Qualified Investments to the fullest extent possible under applicable laws, this Ordinance, 
the need for such monies for the purposes set forth herein and the specific restrictions and 
provisions set forth in this section. 

Except as provided below, any investment shall be held in and at all times 
deemed a part of the fund or account in which such monies were originally held, and the 
interest accruing thereon and any profit or loss realized from such investment shall be 
credited or charged to the appropriate fund or account. The Issuer shaH, though the Board, 
sell and reduce to cash a sufficient amount of such investments whenever the cash balance 
in any fund or account is insufficient to make the payments required from such fund or 
account, regardless of the loss on such liquidation. The Issuer, through the Board, may 
make any and all investments permitted by this section through the bond department of the 
Depository Bank. The Depository Bank shall not be responsible for any losses from such 
investments, other than for its own negligence or willful misconduct. 

The following specific provisions shall apply with respect to any investments 
made under this section (unless otherwise required by the Bond Insurer and as set forth in 
the Supplemental Resolution): 

(A) Qualified Investments acquired for the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve 
Account shall mature or be subject to retirement at the option of the holder within not more 
than 5 years from the date of such investment. 

(B) The Issuer, through the Board, shall, or shall cause the Bond 
Commission to, annually transfer from the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account to the 
Sinking Fund any earnings on the monies deposited therein and any other funds in excess of 
the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Requirement; provided, however, that there shall at all 
times remain on deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account an amount at least 
equal to the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Requirement. 

(C) In computing the amount in any fund or account, Qualified Investments 
shall be valued at the lower of the cost or the market price, exclusive of accrued interest. 
Valuation of all funds and accounts shall occur annually, except in the event of a withdrawal 
from the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account, whereupon it shall be valued immediately 
after such withdrawal. If amounts on deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account 
shall, at any time, be less than the applicable Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Requirement, 
the applicable Bond Insurer shall be notified immediately of such deficiency, and such 
deficiency shall be made up from the first available Gross Revenues after required deposits 
to the Sinking Fund and otherwise in accordance with Section 4.03(3). 

33 

Page 339 of 461



(E) All amounts representing accrued and capitalized interest shall be held 
by the Bond Commission, pledged solely to the payment of interest on the Series 2016 A 
Bonds, as appropriate, and invested only in Government Obligations maturing at such times 
and in such amounts as are necessary to match the interest payments to which they are 
pledged. 

(F) Notwithstanding the foregoing, all monies deposited in the Series 2016 
A Bonds Sinking Fund may be invested by the Bond Commission in the West Virginia 
"consolidated fund" managed by the West Virginia Investment Management Board pursuant 
to Chapter 12, Article 6 of the Code of West Virginia, 193 1, as amended. 

Section 5.02. Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Issuer shall deliver a 
continuing disclosure agreement or certificate in form acceptable to the Original Purchaser 
sufficient to ensure compliance with SEC Rule 15c2-12, as it may be amended from time to 
time, and the Issuer hereby instructs the Mayor and City Manager to take all actions 
necessary for the Issuer to comply with the continuing disclosure agreement. 

Section 5.03. Arbitrage. The Issuer covenants that (i) it will restrict the use of 
the proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds in such manner and to such extent as may be 
necessary, so that such Series 2016 A Bonds will not constitute "arbitrage bonds" under 
Section 148 of the Code and Regulations prescribed thereunder, and (ii) it will take all 
actions that may be required of it (including, without implied limitation, the timely filing of 
a Federal information return with respect to such Bonds) so that the interest on the Series 
2016 A Bonds will be and remain excluded from gross income for Federal income tax 
purposes, and will not take any actions which would adversely affect such exclusion. 

Section 5.04. Tax Certificate, Rebates, and Rebate Fund. The Issuer shall 
deliver a certificate of arbitrage, a tax certificate or other similar certificate (the "Tax 
Certificate") to be prepared by nationally recognized bond counselor tax counsel relating to 
payment of arbitrage rebate and other tax matters as a condition to issuance of any series of 
Bonds. In addition, the Issuer covenants to comply with all Regulations from time to time 
in effect and applicable to the Series 2016 A Bonds as may be necessary in order to fully 
comply with Section 148(f) of the Code, and covenants to take such actions, and refrain 
from taking such actions, as may be necessary to fully comply with such Section l48(f) of 
the Code and such Regulations, regardless of whether such actions may be contrary to any 
of the provisions ofthis Ordinance. 

The Issuer shall calculate, annually, the rebatable arbitrage, determined in 
accordance with Section 148(f) of the Code. Upon completion of each such annual 
calculation, the Issuer or the Board shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, in the Rebate 
Fund such sums as are necessary to cause the aggregate amount on deposit in the Rebate 
Fund to equal the sum determined to be subject to rebate to the United States, which, 
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, shall be paid from investment earnings on 
the underlying fund or account established hereunder and on which such rebatable arbitrage 
was earned or from other lawfully available sources. Notwithstanding anything herein to 

34 

Page 340 of 461



the contrary, the Rebate Fund shall be held free and clear of any lien or pledge hereunder 
and used only for payment of rebatable arbitrage to the United States. The Issuer shall pay, 
or cause to be paid, to the United States, from the Rebate Fund, the rebatable arbitrage in 
accordance with Section 148(f) of the Code and such Regulations. In the event that there 
are any amounts remaining in the Rebate Fund following all such payments required by the 
preceding sentence, the Depository Bank shall pay said amounts to the Issuer to be used for 
any lawful purpose of the System. The Issuer shall remit payments to the United States in 
the time and at the address prescribed by the Regulations as the same may be in time to time 
in effect with such reports and statements as may be prescribed by such Regulations. In the 
event that, for any reason, amounts in the Rebate Fund are insufficient to make the 
payments to the United States which are required, the Issuer shall assure that such payments 
are made by the Issuer to the United States, on a timely basis, from any funds lawfully 
available therefore. The Issuer at its expense, may provide for the employment of 
independent attorneys, accountants or consultants compensated on such reasonable basis as 
the Issuer may deem appropriate in order to assure compliance with this Section 5.04. The 
Issuer shall keep and retain, or cause to be kept and retained, records of the determinations 
made pursuant to this Section 5.04 in accordance with the requirements of Section 148(f) of 
the Code and such Regulations. In the event the Issuer fails to make such rebates as 
required, the Issuer shall pay any and all penalties and other amounts, from lawfully 
available sources, and obtain a waiver from the Internal Revenue Service, if necessary, in 
order to maintain the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. 

ARTICLE VI 
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER 

Section 6.01. Covenants Binding and Irrevocable. All the covenants, 
agreements and provisions of this Ordinance shall be and constitute valid and legally 
binding covenants of the Issuer and shall be enforceable in any court of competent 
jurisdiction by any Holder or Holders of the Series 2016 A Bonds, as prescribed by 
Article VII. In addition to the other covenants, agreements and provisions of this 
Ordinance, the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees with the Holders of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds, as hereinafter provided in this Article VI. All such covenants, agreements and 
provisions shall be irrevocable, except as provided herein, as long as any of the Series 2016 
A Bonds or the interest thereon, are Outstanding and unpaid. 

Section 6.02. Bonds not to be Indebtedness of the Issuer. The Series 2016 A 
Bonds shall not be or constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer within the meaning of any 
constitutional, statutory or charter limitation of indebtedness but shall be payable solely 
from the Gross Revenues of the System, the monies in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking 
Fund and all accounts therein, the unexpended proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds or 
monies in a construction fund, if any, all as herein provided. No Holder or Holders of any 
Series 2016 A Bonds issued hereunder shall ever have the right to compel the exercise of the 
taxing power of the Issuer to pay said Series 2016 A Bonds or the interest thereon. 

35 

Page 341 of 461



Section 6.03. Bonds Secured by Pledge of Gross Revenues and Monies in 
Sinking Fund. The payment of the debt service of all of the Series 2016 A Bonds issued 
hereunder shall be secured forthwith equally and ratably by a first lien on the Gross 
Revenues derived from the operation of the System on a parity with one another and with 
the lien on the Gross Revenues in favor of the Holders of the Prior Bonds, the Series 2016 
B-1 Bonds and the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds and, in the instance of the Series 2016 A Bonds, 
all monies and securities in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund, including the Series 
2016 A Bonds Reserve Account therein, to the extent necessary to make the payments 
required under Section 4.03. The Gross Revenues derived from the System, in an amount 
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Prior Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, 
the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds and the Series 2016 A Bonds herein authorized, and to make the 
payments into the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund, all monies and securities in the Series 
2016 A Bonds Sinldng Fund, including the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account therein. 

Section 6.04. Rates. Equitable rates or charges for the use of and service 
rendered by the System have been established all in the manner and form required by law. 
Copies of such rates and charges so established may be obtained from the Board by all 
interested parties. The schedule of rates and charges shall at all times be adequate to 
produce Gross Revenues from the System sufficient to pay Operating Expenses and to make 
the prescribed payments into the funds created hereunder. Such schedule of rates and 
charges shall be changed and readjusted whenever necessary so that the aggregate of the 
rates and charges will be sufficient for such purposes. In order to assure full and continuous 
performance of this covenant, with a margin for contingencies and temporary unanticipated 
reduction in income and revenues, the Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that the schedule 
of rates or charges from time to time in effect shall be sufficient, together with other 
revenues of the System (i) to provide for all Operating Expenses of the System, and (ii) to 
leave a balance each year equal to at least 115% of the maximum amount required in any 
year for payment of principal of and interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds and all other 
obligations secured by a lien on or payable from such revenues on a parity with the Series 
2016 A Bonds, including the Prior Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds and the Series 2016 
B-2 Bonds. 

The Issuer hereby covenants to commence enactment of such ordinance or 
ordinances as shall be required to increase the rates and charges for the services and 
facilities of the System within 120 days following a determination of the Independent 
Accountant that less than the above-required coverage exists or in the event that the annual 
audit repOli shows less than the above-required coverage, such increase to provide rates and 
charges sufficient to produce such required coverage. 

The Issuer expressly reserves the right to reduce the rates for the System in 
effect as of the date of issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds in the event that, based on a 
certificate of an Independent Certified Public Accountant, even after any such decrease in 
rates, the Issuer will meet the requirements of the Section 6.04 and is not in default under 

36 

Page 342 of 461



any other provision of any ordinance authorizing in bonds or other indebtedness secured by 
the Gross Revenues of the System. 

Section 6.05. Completion of Sewer Treatment Plant Project; Operation and 
Maintenance. The Issuer will complete the Sewer Treatment Plant Project as promptly as 
possible. The Issuer will maintain the System in good condition and will operate the same 
as a revenue-producing enterprise in an efficient and economical manner, making such 
expenditures for equipment and for renewal, repair and replacement as may be proper for 
the economical operation and maintenance thereof from the revenues of said System in the 
manner provided in this Ordinance. 

The Issuer will obtain all permits required by state and federal laws for the 
acquisition and construction of the Sewer Treatment Plant Project. 

Section 6.06. Sale of the System. So long as the Prior Bonds are 
Outstanding, the Issuer shall not sell, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of the System, 
except as provided by the Prior Ordinances. Additionally, so long as the Series 2016 A 
Bonds are Outstanding, the System may be sold, mortgaged, leased or otherwise disposed of 
only as a whole, or substantially as a whole, and only if the net proceeds to be realized shall 
be sufficient to defease the pledge created by this Ordinance as provided by Section 9.01. 
The proceeds from such sale, mortgage, lease or other disposition of the System shall be 
immediately remitted to the Bond Commission for deposit in the Series 2016 A Bonds 
Sinking Fund, and otherwise as prescribed by Section 9.01. Any balance remaining after 
such defeasance shall be remitted to the Issuer by the Bond Commission unless necessary 
for the payment of other obligations of the Issuer payable out of the Revenues of the 
System. 

The foregoing provision notwithstanding, the Board shall have and hereby 
reserves the right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any of the property comprising a part 
of the System hereinafter determined in the manner provided herein to be no longer 
necessary, useful or profitable in the operation thereof. Prior to any such sale, lease or other 
disposition of such property, if the amount to be received therefor is not in excess of 
$1,000,000, the Board shall, in writing, determine that such property comprising a part of 
the System is no longer necessary, useful or profitable in the operation thereof, and the 
Board may then provide for the sale of such property. The proceeds of any such sale shall 
be used for any lawful purpose of the System. If the amount to be received from such sale, 
lease or other disposition of said property shall be in excess of $1,000,000 but not in excess 
of $1,000,000, the Board shall first, in writing, determine with the written approval of the 
Consulting Engineers that such property comprising a part of the System is no longer 
necessary, useful or profitable in the operation thereof, and the Board may then, if it be so 
advised, by resolution duly adopted, approve and concur in such finding and authorize such 
sale, lease or other disposition of such property in accordance with the laws of the State. 
The proceeds derived from any such sale, lease or other disposition of such property, in 
excess of $1,000,000 and not in excess of $5,000,000, shall be deposited by the Issuer into 
the Renewal and Replacement Fund. Such payments of such proceeds into the Renewal and 

37 

Page 343 of 461



Replacement Fund shall reduce the amounts required to be paid into said funds by other 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

No sale, lease or other disposition of the properties of the System shall be 
made by the Issuer if the proceeds to be derived therefrom shall be in excess of $5,000,000 
and insufficient to defease the pledge created by this Ordinance, as provided by 
Section 9.01, without the prior approval and consent in writing ot' any applicable Hond 
Insurer and the Holders, or their duly authorized representatives, of 60% in amount of 
Bonds then Outstanding. The Issuer shall prepare the form of such approval and consent for 
execution by the Bond Insurer and the then Holders of the Bonds for the disposition of the 
proceeds of the sale, lease or other disposition of such properties of the System. 

Section 6.07. Issuance of Other Obligations Payable Out of Revenues and 
General Covenant Against Encumbrances. The Issuer shall not issue any other obligations 
whatsoever, except Additional Parity Bonds provided for in Section 6.08 hereof, payable 
from the revenues of the System which rank prior to, or equally, as to lien on and source of 
and security for payment from the Gross Revenues with the Series 2016 A Bonds; and all 
obligations hereafter issued by the Issuer payable from the revenues of the System, except 
such Additional Parity Bonds, shall contain an express statement that such obligations are 
junior and subordinate as to lien on and source of and security for payment from such 
revenues and in all other respects to the Series 2016 A Bonds. 

The Issuer shall not create, or cause or permit to be created, any debt, lien, 
pledge, assignment, encumbrance or any other charge having priority over or, except with 
respect to such Additional Parity Bonds, being on a parity with the lien of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds, and the interest thereon, upon any of the income and revenues of the System pledged 
for payment of the Series 2016 A Bonds and the interest thereon in this Ordinance or upon 
the System or any part thereof. 

Section 6.08. Additional Parity Bonds. So long as the Prior Bonds, Series 
2016 B-1 Bonds or Series 2016 B-2 Bonds are outstanding, the limitations on the issuance 
of parity obligations set forth in the Ordinances authorizing such bonds shall be applicable. 
In addition, no Additional Parity Bonds, as in this section defined, payable out of the 
revenues of the System shall be issued after the issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds 
pursuant to this Ordinance, except under the conditions and in the manner herein provided. 

No such Additional Parity Bonds shall be issued except for the purpose of 
financing the costs of design, acquisition, construction or equipping additions, betterments 
or improvements for the System, refunding all or a portion of one or more series of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds issued pursuant hereto, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, the Series 2016 B-
2 Bonds, or the Prior Bonds, refunding all or a portion of any series of Additional Parity 
Bonds hereinafter issued, paying claims which may exist against the revenues or facilities of 
the System, or all of such purposes. 

38 

Page 344 of 461



No such Additional Parity Bonds shall be issued at any time, however, unless 
and until there has been procured a written statement by an Independent Certified Public 
Accountant, reciting the conclusion that the Net Revenues actually derived, subject to the 
adjustments hereinafter provided for, from the System during any 12 consecutive months 
within the 18 months immediately preceding the date of the actual issuance of such 
Additional Parity Bonds, plus the estimated average increased annual Net Revenues to be 
received in each of the 3 succeeding years after the date of issuance of such Additional 
Parity Bonds, shall be not less than 115% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service on the 
following: 

(1) The Series 2016 A Bonds then Outstanding; 

(2) The Prior Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds and the Series 2016 B-2 
Bonds then Outstanding; 

(3) Any Additional Parity Bonds theretofore issued pursuant to the 
provisions contained in this Bond Legislation then Outstanding; and 

(4) The Additional Parity Bonds then proposed to be issued. 

The "estimated average increased annual Net Revenues to be received in each 
of the 3 succeeding years," as that term is used in the computation provided in the above 
paragraph, shall refer only to the increased Net Revenues estimated to be derived from the 
improvements to be financed by such Additional Parity Bonds and any increase in rates 
enacted by the Issuer, the time for appeal of which shall have expired (without successful 
appeal) prior to the issuance of such Additional Parity Bonds. 

The Net Revenues actually derived from the System during the 12 consecutive 
month period hereinabove referred to may be adjusted by adding to such Net Revenues such 
additional Net Revenues which would have been received, in the opinion of the Independent 
Accountant, as stated in a certificate on account of increased rates, rentals, fees and charges 
for the System enacted by the Issuer, the time for appeal of which shall have expired 
(without successful appeal) prior to issuance of such Additional Parity Bonds. 

The term "Additional Parity Bonds," as used in this section, shall be deemed to 
mean additional Bonds issued under the provisions and within the limitations of this section, 
payable from the Gross Revenues of the System on a parity with the Series 2016 A Bonds, 
the Series B-1 Bonds, the Series B-2 Bonds and the Prior Bonds, and all the covenants and 
other provisions of this Ordinance (except as to details of such Additional Parity Bonds 
inconsistent herewith) shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Holders 
of the Series 2016 A Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds and the 
Prior Bonds and the Holders of any Additional Parity Bonds theretofore or subsequently 
issued from time to time within the limitations of and in compliance with this section. All 
the Bonds, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, shall rank equally with respect 
to their lien on the Gross Revenues of the System, and their source of and security for 

39 

Page 345 of 461



payment from said Gross Revenues, without preference of any Bond over any other. The 
Issuer shall comply fully with all the increased payments into the various funds and 
accounts created in this Ordinance required for and on account of such Additional Parity 
Bonds, in addition to the payments required for Bonds theretofore issued pursuant to this 
Ordinance. 

The term "Additional Parity Bonds," as used in this section, shaH not be 
deemed to include bonds, notes, certificates or other obligations subsequently issued, the 
lien on the Gross Revenues of the System of which is subject to the prior and superior lien 
of the Bonds on such Gross Revenues. The Issuer shall not issue any obligations 
whatsoever payable from the Revenues of the System, or any part thereof, which rank prior 
to or equally, as to lien and source of and security for payment from such Revenues with the 
Series 2016 A Bonds except in the manner and under the conditions provided in this section. 

No Additional Parity Bonds, as in this section defined, shall be issued at any 
time, however, unless all of the payments into the respective funds and accounts provided 
for in this Ordinance on account of the Bonds then Outstanding (excluding the Renewal and 
Replacement Fund), and any other payments provided for in this Ordinance, shall have been 
made in full as required to the date of delivery of the Additional Parity Bonds and the Issuer 
shall then be in full compliance with all the covenants, agreements and terms in the 
Ordinance and every ordinance supplemental thereto, or shall have fully corrected any 
delinquency or deficiency with respect to such payments and compliance. 

Section 6.09. Insurance and Bonds. The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees, 
that so long as the Series 2016 A Bonds remain Outstanding, the Issuer or the Board will, as 
an Operating Expense, procure, carry and maintain insurance and bonds and workers' 
compensation coverage with a reputable insurance carrier or carriers or bonding company or 
companies rated at least "A" by Standard & Poor's Corporation covering the following risks 
and in the following amounts: 

A. FIRE, LIGHTNING, V ANDALISM, MALICIOUS MISCHIEF AND 
EXTENDED COVERAGE INSURANCE, on all above-ground insurable portions of the 
System in an amount equal to the greater of the fair appraised value or the original cost 
thereof. In the event of any damage to or destruction of any portion of the System, the 
Board will promptly arrange for the application of the insurance proceeds for the repair or 
reconstruction of such damages or destroyed portion. The Board will itself, or will require 
each contractor and subcontractor to, obtain and maintain builder's risk insurance to protect 
the interests of the Board and the Issuer during construction of the Sewer Treatment Plant 
Project in the full insurable value thereof. 

B. PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE, with limits of not less than is 
customarily carried by municipalities of equivalent size with respect to works and properties 
similar to the System to protect the Issuer and the Board from claims for bodily injury 
and/or death and from claims for damage to property of others which may arise from the 
operation of the System, and insurance with the same limits to protect the Issuer and the 

40 

Page 346 of 461



Board from claims arising out of operation or ownership of motor vehicles of or for the 
System; provided, that the Board, with the review of an independent insurance consultant 
and the concurrence of the Issuer, may elect to self-insure. 

If the Issuer determines in good faith that any required insurance is not 
commercially available at a reasonable cost with reasonable terms, it shall engage an 
insurance consultant to verify the determination and to make recommendations regarding 
the types, amounts and provisions of any such insurance that should be purchased or funded 
by the Issuer, taking into consideration the costs and practices of other municipal water and 
sewer systems of similar size and type in the State to the extent that such information is 
available. The Issuer may, upon resolution adopted in good faith and upon the 
recommendations of the insurance consultant, adopt alternate or supplemental risk 
management programs which the Issuer determines to be reasonable, including the right to 
self-insure and participate in captive insurance companies. 

C. WORKERS' COMPENSATION COVERAGE FOR ALL 
EMPLOYEES OF OR FOR THE SYSTEM ELIGIBLE THEREFOR; AND 
PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT OR COMPLETION BONDS, such bonds to be in the 
amounts of not less than 100% of the amount of any construction contract and to be required 
of each contractor dealing directly with the Board and such payment bonds will be filed 
with the Clerk of the County Commission of Monongalia County prior to commencement of 
construction of any additions, extensions or improvements for the System in compliance 
with West Virginia Code, Section 38-2-39. 

D. FLOOD INSURANCE, if the facilities of the System are or will be 
located in designated special flood or mudslide-prone areas and to the extent available at 
reasonable cost to the Issuer. 

E. BUSINESS INTERRUPTION INSURANCE, to the extent available at 
reasonable cost to the Issuer. 

F. FIDELITY BONDS will be provided as to every officer, member and 
employee of the Issuer or the Governing Body having custody of the revenues or of any 
other funds of the System, in an amount at least equal to the total funds in the custody of any 
such person at anyone time. 

The Issuer shall require all contractors engaged in the construction of the 
Sewer Treatment Plant Project to furnish a performance bond and a payment bond, each in 
an amount equal to 100% of the contract price of the portion of the Sewer Treatment Plant 
Project covered by the particular contract as security for the faithful performance of such 
contract. 

The Issuer shall also require all contractors engaged in the construction of the 
Sewer Treatment Plant Project to carry such workers' compensation coverage for all 
employees working on the Sewer Treatment Plant Project and public liability insurance, 

41 

Page 347 of 461



vehicular liability insurance and property damage insurance in amounts adequate for such 
purposes and as is customarily carried with respect to works and properties similar to the 
Sewer Treatment Plant Project. 

Section 6.10. Services Rendered to the Board or Issuer. The Board will not 
render or cause to be rendered any free services of any nature by its System; and, in the 
event the Board, the Issuer or any department, agency, instrumentality, officer or employee 
thereof shall avail himself of the facilities or services provided by the System or any part 
thereof, the same rates, fees or charges applicable to other customers receiving like services 
under similar circumstances shall be charged the Board, the Issuer and any such department, 
agency, instrumentality, officer or employee. Such charges shall be paid as they accrue, and 
the Board or the Issuer shall transfer from its general funds sufficient sums to pay such 
charges for service to any of its departments or properties. The revenues so received shall 
be deemed to be revenues derived from the operation of the System and shall be deposited 
and accounted for in the same manner as other revenues derived from such operation of the 
System. 

Section 6.11 . Enforcement of Collections. The Issuer shall, through the 
Board, diligently enforce and collect all fees, rentals or other charges for the services and 
facilities of the System, and take all steps, actions and proceedings for the enforcement and 
collection of such fees, rentals or other charges which shall become delinquent to the full 
extent permitted or authorized by the Act, the rules and regulations of the Public Service 
Commission of West Virginia and other laws of the State of West Virginia. 

Section 6.12. No Competing Franchise. To the extent legally allowable, 
neither the Issuer nor the Board will grant or cause, consent to or allow the granting of any 
franchise or permit to any person, firm, corporation or body, or agency or instrumentality 
whatsoever for the providing of any services which would compete with services provided 
by the System. 

Section 0.11 . Rooks ,md Records. The Board will keep books and records of 
the System, which shall be separate and apart from all other books, records and accounts of 
the Board or the Issuer, in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all 
transactions relating to the System, and any Holder of a Series 2016 A Bond, shall have the 
right at all reasonable times to inspect the System, and all parts thereof, and all records, 
accounts and data of the Board relating thereto. 

The accounting system for the System shall foHow current generally accepted 
accounting principles, to the extent allowable under and in accordance with the rules and 
regulations of the Public Service Commission of West Virginia and the Act. Separate 
control accounting records shall be maintained by the Board. Subsidiary records as may be 
required shall be kept in the manner, on the forms, in the books and along with other 
bookkeeping records as prescribed by the Board. The Board shall prescribe and institute the 
manner by which subsidiary records of the accounting system which may be installed 

42 

Page 348 of 461



remote from the direct supervision of the Board shall be reported to such agent of the Board 
as it shall direct. 

The Issuer or the Board shall, at least once a year, cause the books, records and 
accounts of the System to be completely audited by an Independent Accountant. 

Section 6.14. Operating Budget. The Board shall annually, at least 45 days 
preceding the beginning of each Fiscal Year, or at such earlier date required by the charter 
of the Issuer, prepare and adopt by resolution a detailed, balanced budget of the estimated 
revenues and expenditures for operation and maintenance of the System during the 
succeeding Fiscal Year. 

Section 6.15. Mandatory Connections. The mandatory use of the sewerage 
portion of the System is essential and necessary for the protection and preservation of the 
public health, comfort, safety, convenience and welfare of the inhabitants and residents of, 
and the economy of, the Issuer, and in order to assure the rendering harmless of sewage and 
waterborne waste matter produced or arising within the territory served by the sewerage 
portion of the System. Accordingly, every owner, tenant or occupant of any house, dwelling 
or building located near the System, to the extent permitted by the laws of the State and the 
rules and regulations of the Public Service Commission of West Virginia, shall connect with 
and use the sewerage portion of the System. 

Any such house, dwelling or building from which emanates sewage or 
waterborne waste matter and which is not so connected with the sewerage portion of the 
System is hereby declared and found to be a hazard to the health, safety, comfort and 
welfare of the residents of the Issuer and a public nuisance which shall be abated to the 
extent permitted by law and as promptly as possible by proceedings in a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

Section 6.16. Statutory Mortgage Lien. For the further protection of the 
Holders of the Series 2016 A Bonds, a statutory mortgage lien upon the System is granted 
and created by the Act, which statutory mortgage lien is hereby recognized and declared to 
be valid and binding, shall take effect immediately upon the issuance of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds and shall be on a parity with one another and with the statutory mortgage lien in 
favor of the Holders of the Prior Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds and the Series 2016 B-2 
Bonds. 

Section 6.17. Tax Covenants. The Issuer hereby further covenants and agrees 
as follows: 

A. PRIV ATE BUSINESS USE LIMITATION. The Issuer shall assure 
that (i) not in excess of 10% of the Net Proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds are used for 
Private Business Use if, in addition, the payment of more than 10% of the principal or 10% 
of the interest due on such Series 2016 A Bonds during the term thereof is, under the terms 
of such Bonds or any underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secured by any interest 

43 

Page 349 of 461



in property used or to be used for a Private Business Use or in payments in respect of 
property used or to be used for a Private Business Use or is to be derived from payments, 
whether or not to the Issuer, in respect of property or borrowed money used or to be used for 
a Private Business Use; and (ii) in the event that both (A) in excess of 5% of the Net 
Proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds are used for a Private Business Use, and (B) an 
amount in excess of 5% of the principal or 5% of the interest due on the Series 2016 A 
Bonds during the terms thereof is, under the terms of such Series :,W 16 A Hands or any 
underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secured by any interest in property used or to 
be used for said Private Business Use or in payments in respect of property used or to be 
used for said Private Business Use or is to be derived from payments, whether or not to the 
Issuer, in respect of property or borrowed money used or to be used for said Private 
Business Use, then said excess over said 5% of Net Proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds 
used for a Private Business Use shall be used for a Private Business Use related to the 
governmental use of the System, or if the Series 2016 A Bonds are for the purpose of 
financing more than one project, a portion of the System, and shall not exceed the proceeds 
used for the governmental use of that portion of the System to which such Private Business 
Use is related. All ofthe foregoing shall be determined as provided for in the Code. 

B. PRlV ATE LOAN LIMITATION. The Issuer shall assure that not in 
excess of the lesser of5% of the Net Proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds or $5,000,000 are 
used, directly or indirectly, to make or finance a loan to persons other than state or local 
government units. 

C. FEDERAL GUARANTEE PROHIBITION. The Issuer shall not take 
any action or permit or suffer any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to 
cause the Series 2016 A Bonds to be directly or indirectly "federally guaranteed" within the 
meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code and Regulations promulgated thereunder. 

D. INFORMATION RETURN. The Issuer will file all statements, 
instruments and returns necessary to assure the tax-exempt status of the Series 2016 A 
Rond" and the interest thereon, including without limitation, the information return required 
under Section 149(e) of the Code. 

E. FURTHER ACTIONS. The Issuer will take all actions that may be 
required of it so that the interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds will be and remain excludable 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and will not take any actions which 
would adversely affect such exclusion. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
Issuer agrees to comply with the provisions of the Tax Certificate, which are hereby 
incorporated herein. This covenant shall survive payment in full or defeasance of the Series 
2016 A Bonds. 

Section 6.18. Covenants Regarding the Municipal Bond Insurance 
Policy. The Issuer intends to obtain Municipal Bond Insurance Policies for the Series 2016 
A Bonds. In the event such Municipal Bond Insurance Policies are obtained, certain 
additional covenants of the Issuer will be required by the Bond Insurer as a condition to 

44 

Page 350 of 461



insuring the Series 2016 A Bonds. These additional covenants shall be set forth in full in 
the Supplemental Resolution, shall apply to the Series 2016 A Bonds and any other Bonds 
which may be insured by such Bond Insurer, and shall be controlling in the event any other 
provisions of this Ordinance may be in conflict therewith. 

Section 6.19. Covenants Regarding the Municipal Bond Debt Service 
Reserve Insurance Policy. The Issuer intends to obtain a Municipal Bond Debt Service 
Reserve Insurance Policy to fund the Series 2016 A Bonds Debt Service Reserve Account. 
In the event such Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy is obtained, 
certain additional covenants of the Issuer will be required by the Bond Insurer as a condition 
to providing the Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy. These additional 
covenants shall be set forth in full in the Supplemental Resolution, shall apply to the Series 
2016 A Bonds, and shall be controlling in the event any other provisions of this Ordinance 
may be in conflict therewith. 

Section 6.20. Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Issuer shall 
deliver a continuing disclosure agreement or certificate in form acceptable to the Original 
Purchaser, the form of which shall be approved by the Supplemental Resolution, sufficient 
to ensure compliance with Rule 15c2-12, as it may be amended from time to time, and the 
Mayor is authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement on behalf of the Issuer, with such changes as the Mayor shall approve, such 
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement by the Mayor. The Mayor and Clerk are further authorized to take all actions 
necessary for the Issuer to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

Section 6.21 Preliminary Official Statement; Official Statement. The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Series 2016 A Bonds 
shall be and the same is hereby approved. The form of the Preliminary Official Statement 
shall be in such form as may be approved by the Supplemental Resolution. The Mayor is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver a final official statement on behalf of 
the Issuer, which shall be in substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement 
with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be required to reflect the terms of the 
sale of the Series 2016 A Bonds and as the Mayor may approve (the "Official Statement"). 
The execution of the Official Statement by the Mayor shall be conclusive evidence of such 
approval. Copies of the Official Statement are hereby authorized to be prepared and 
furnished to the Original Purchaser for distribution. 

Section 6.22. Bond Purchase Agreement. The Series 2016 A Bonds shall 
be sold to the Original Purchaser pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement. If not so authorized by previous ordinance, the Mayor is specifically authorized 
and directed to execute the said Bond Purchase Agreement in such form as may be approved 
by the Supplemental Resolution, and the Clerk is directed to affix the seal of the Issuer, 
attest the same and deliver the said Bond Purchase Agreement to the Original Purchaser. 

45 

Page 351 of 461



ARTICLE VII 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 7.01. Events of Default. Each of the following events shall 
constitute an "Event of Default" with respect to the Series 2016 A Bonds: 

(A) If default occurs In the due and punctual payment of the principal of or 
interest on any Series 2016 A Bond; 

(B) If default occurs in the Issuer's observance of any of the covenants, 
agreements or conditions on its part in this Ordinance or any Supplemental Resolution or in 
the Series 2016 A Bonds contained, and such default shall have continued for a period of 
30 days after written notice specifYing such default and requiring the same to be remedied 
shall have been given to the Issuer by any Bondholder or any Insurer; or 

(C) If the Issuer files a petition seeking reorganization or arrangement 
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of 
America; or 

(D) If default occurs with respect to the Prior Bonds or the Prior 
Ordinances, or the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds or the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds or the Series 2016 
B Ordinance. 

Section 7.02. Enforcement. Upon the happening and continuance of any 
Event of Default, any Bondholder (with the prior written consent of the applicable Bond 
Insurer) or any Bond Insurer may exercise any available remedy and bring any appropriate 
action, suit or proceeding to enforce his rights and, in particular: 

(A) Bring suit for any unpaid principal or interest then due; 

(B) By mandamus or other appropriate proceeding enforce all rights of the 
Bondholders, including the right to require the Issuer to perform its duties under the Act and 
this Ordinance; 

(C) Bring suit upon the Series 2016 A Bonds, as applicable; 

(D) By action at law or bill in equity require the Issuer to account as if it 
were the trustee of an express trust for the Bondholders; and 

(E) By action or bill in equity enjoin any acts in violation of this Ordinance 
or the rights of the Bondholders. 

No remedy by the terms of this Ordinance conferred upon or reserved to the 
Bondholders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given to the 

46 

Page 352 of 461



Bondholders hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or by statute all pro rata, with 
respect to the Prior Bonds the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds, and any 
Additional Parity Bonds, and the Series 2016 A Bonds, in accordance with the respective 
principal amounts then Outstanding. 

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default 
or Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver 
of any such default or Event of Default or acquiescence therein, and every such right and 
power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

No waiver of any default or Event of Default hereunder by the Bondholders 
shall be made without the prior written consent of the applicable Bond Insurer or shall 
extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or Event of Default or shall impair any 
rights or remedies consequent thereto. 

Section 7.03. Appointment of Receiver. If there be any Event of 
Default existing and continuing, any Bondholder or any Bond Insurer shall, in addition to all 
other remedies or rights, have the right by appropriate legal proceedings to obtain the 
appointment of a receiver to administer the System on behalf of the Issuer, with power to 
charge rates, rentals, fees and other charges sufficient to provide for the payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 Bonds, the Series 
2016 B-2 Bonds, and the Prior Bonds, the deposits into the funds and accounts hereby 
established as herein provided and the payment of Operating Expenses of the System and to 
apply such rates, rentals, fees, charges or other Revenues in conformity with the provisions 
of this Ordinance and the Act. 

The receiver so appointed shall forthwith, directly or by his agents and 
attorneys, enter into and upon and take possession of all facilities of said System and shall 
hold, operate, maintain, manage and control such facilities, and each and every part thereof, 
and in the name of the Issuer exercise all the rights and powers of the Issuer with respect to 
said facilities as the Issuer itself might do. 

Whenever all that is due upon the Series 2016 A Bonds issued pursuant to this 
Ordinance and interest thereon and under any covenants of this Ordinance for reserve, 
sinking or other funds and accounts and upon any other obligations and interest thereon 
having a charge, lien or encumbrance upon the Revenues of the System shall have been paid 
and made good, and all defaults under the provisions of this Ordinance shall have been 
cured and made good, and all monies due hereunder or under any Supplemental Resolution 
have been paid in full, possession of the System shall be surrendered to the Issuer upon the 
entry of an order of the court to that effect. Upon any subsequent default, any Bondholder 
shall have the same right to secure the further appointment of a receiver upon any such 
subsequent default. 

Such receiver, in the performance of the powers hereinabove conferred upon 
him, shall be under the direction and supervision of the court making such appointment, 

47 

Page 353 of 461



shall at all times be subject to the orders and decrees of such court and may be removed 
thereby and a successor receiver appointed in the discretion of such court. Nothing herein 
contained shall limit or restrict the jurisdiction of such court to enter such other and further 
orders and decrees as such court may deem necessary or appropriate for the exercise by the 
receiver of any function not specifically set forth herein. 

Any receiver appointed as provided herein shall hold and operate the System 
in the name of the Issuer and for the joint protection and benefit of the Issuer and the 
Holders of the Series 2016 A Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance. Such receiver shall 
have no power to sell, assign, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any assets of any kind or 
character belonging or pertaining to the System, but the authority of such receiver shall be 
limited to the possession, operation and maintenance of the System, for the sole purpose of 
the protection of both the Issuer and the Bondholders, and the curing and making good of 
any default under the provisions of this Ordinance, and the title to and ownership of said 
System shall remain in the Issuer, and no court shall have any jurisdiction to enter any order 
or decree permitting or requiring such receiver to sell, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any 
assets of the System. 

Notwithstanding any other proVISIOn of this Ordinance, in determining 
whether the rights of the Bondholders will be adversely affected by any action taken 
pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, any trustee or Bondholder's 
committee shall consider the effect on the Bondholders as if no Municipal Bond Insurance 
Policy were then in effect. 

Section 7.04. Restoration ofIssuer and Bondholder. In case any Bondholder 
shall have proceeded to enforce any right under this Ordinance by the appointment of a 
receiver, by entry or otherwise, and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or 
abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely, then and in every such 
case the Issuer and such Bondholder shall be restored to their former positions and rights 
hereunder, and all rights and remedies of such Bondholder shall continue as if no such 
proceedings h(ld been taken. 

48 

Page 354 of 461



ARTICLE VIn 
REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT 

Section 8.01. Appointment of Registrar. The Registrar for the Series 2016 
A Bonds shall be appointed pursuant to the Supplemental Resolution. The Issuer is hereby 
authorized and directed to enter into an agreement with the Registrar, the substantial form of 
which agreement is to be approved by Supplemental Resolution. 

Section 8.02. Responsibilities of Registrar. The recitals of fact in the Bonds 
shall be taken as statements of the Issuer, and the Registrar shall not be responsible for their 
accuracy. The Registrar shall not be deemed to make any representation as to, and shall not 
incur any liability on account of, the validity of the execution of any Series 2016 A Bonds 
by the Issuer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Registrar shall be responsible for any 
representation in its Certificate of Authentication on the Series 2016 A Bonds. The 
Registrar and any successor thereto shall agree to perform all the duties and responsibilities 
spelled out in this Ordinance and any other duties and responsibilities incident thereto, all as 
provided by said agreement described in Section 8.01. 

Section 8.03. Evidence on Which Registrar May Act. Except as otherwise 
provided by Section 10.02, the Registrar shall be protected in acting upon any notice, 
resolution, request, consent, order, certificate, opinion or other document believed by it to be 
genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties. Whenever the 
Registrar shall deem it necessary or desirable that a fact or matter be proved or established 
prior to taking or suffering any action, such fact or matter, unless other evidence is 
specifically prescribed, may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a 
certificate of an Authorized Officer of the Issuer, but in its discretion the Registrar may 
instead accept other evidence of such fact or matter. 

Section 8.04. Compensation and Expenses. The Issuer shall pay to the 
Registrar from time to time reasonable compensation for all services, including the transfer 
of registration of Series 2016 A Bonds, the first exchange of Series 2016 A Bonds and the 
exchange of Series 2016 A Bonds in the event of partial redemption, incurred in the 
performance of its duties hereunder. 

Section 8.05. Certain Permitted Acts. The Registrar may become the owner 
of or may deal in Series 2016 A Bonds as fully and with the same rights it would have if it 
were not Registrar. To the extent permitted by law, the Registrar may act as depository for, 
and permit any of its officers or directors to act as a member of, or in any other capacity 
with respect to, any committee formed to protect the rights of Bondholders or effect or aid 
in any reorganization growing out of the enforcement of the Series 2016 A Bonds, or this 
Ordinance, whether or not any such committee shall represent the Holders of a majority in 
principal amount of the Series 2016 A Bonds Outstanding. 

Section 8.06. Resignation of Registrar. The Registrar may at any time resign 
and be discharged of its duties and obligations under this Ordinance by giving not less than 

49 

Page 355 of 461



60 days' written notice to the Issuer and publishing in an Authorized Newspaper notice (or 
mailing such notice to each Bondholder in the event all Bonds are fully registered), 
specifYing the date when such resignation shall take effect, within 20 days after the giving 
of such written notice. A copy of such notice shall also be mailed to each owner of a fully 
registered Bond or a coupon Bond registered as to principal (other than to bearer) . Such 
resignation shall take effect upon the day specified in such notice unless a successor shall 
have bet::ll plt::viuusly awuiult::u by lllt:: Issut::r ur uUlluhuluers, ill whkh evenl such 
resignation shall take effect immediately; provided, that in no event shall such resignation 
take effect until a successor has been appointed and has accepted its duties as Registrar. 

Section 8.07. Removal. The Registrar may be removed at any time by the 
Issuer, the applicable Bond Insurer or by the Holders of a majority in principal amount of 
the Series 2016 A Bonds then Outstanding by an instrument or concurrent instruments in 
writing signed and duly acknowledged by the Issuer, the applicable Bond Insurer or by such 
Bondholders or their attorneys duly authorized in writing and delivered to the Issuer, as the 
case may be. Copies of each such instrument shall be delivered by the Issuer to the 
Registrar. Such removal shall take effect upon the date stated in such instrument; provided, 
that in no event shall such removal take effect until a successor has been appointed and has 
accepted its duties as Registrar. 

Section 8.08. Appointment of Successor. In case at any time the Registrar 
shall resign or shall be removed or shall become incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged 
bankrupt or insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator or conservator of the Registrar or of its 
property shall be appointed, or if any public officer or court shall take charge or control of 
the Registrar or of its property or affairs, a successor may be appointed by the Holders of a 
maj ority in principal amount of the Series 2016 A Bonds then Outstanding by an instrument 
or concurrent instruments in writing signed by such Bondholders or their attorneys duly 
authorized in writing and delivered to the Issuer and such successor Registrar, notification 
thereof being given to the predecessor Registrar. Pending such appointment, the Issuer shall 
forthwith appoint a Registrar to fill such vacancy until a successor Registrar shall be 
appointed by such Bondholders. The Issuer shall publish in an Authorized Newspaper (or 
mail to each Bondholder in the event all Bonds are fully registered) notice of any such 
appointment within 20 days after the effective date of such appointment. A copy of such 
notice shall also be mailed to each owner of a fully registered Bond or a coupon Bond 
registered as to principal (other than to bearer). Any successor Registrar appointed by the 
Issuer shall, immediately and without furlher acl, be superseded by a Registrar appointed by 
such Bondholders. If in a proper case no appointment of a successor Registrar shall be 
made within 45 days after the Registrar shall have given to the issuer written notice of 
resignation or after the occurrence of any other event requiring such appointment, the 
Registrar or any Bondholder may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a 
successor. Any Registrar appointed under the provisions of this section shall be a bank, 
trust company or national banking association authorized to perform the duties imposed 
upon it by this Ordinance. 

50 

Page 356 of 461



Section 8.09. Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor. Any 
predecessor Registrar or Paying Agent shall pay over, assign and deliver any monies, books 
and records held by it to its successor. 

Section 8.10. Merger or Consolidation. Any company into which the 
Registrar may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any 
company resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party, 
or any company to which the Registrar or any public officer or court may sell or transfer all 
or substantially all of its corporate trust business, shall be the successor to such Registrar 
without the execution or filing of any paper or the performance of any further act; provided, 
however, that such company shall be a bank, trust company or national banking association 
meeting the requirements set forth in Section 8.08. 

Section 8.11. Adoption of Authentication. In case any of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds shall have been authenticated but not delivered, any successor Registrar may adopt a 
Certificate of Authentication and Registration executed by any predecessor Registrar and 
deliver such Bonds so authenticated, and, in case any Bonds shall have been prepared but 
not authenticated, any successor Registrar may authenticate such Bonds in the name of the 
predecessor Registrar or in its own name. 

Section 8.12. Paying Agent. The West Virginia Municipal Bond 
Commission shall initially serve as Paying Agent. Any alternate Paying Agent must be a 
bank, trust company or national banking association authorized to perform the duties 
imposed upon it by this Ordinance. Such alternate Paying Agent shall signifY its acceptance 
of the duties and obligations imposed upon it pursuant hereto by executing and delivering to 
the Issuer a written acceptance thereof. Any successor Paying Agent shall take such actions 
as may be necessary to ensure that the Series 2016 A Bond shall be and remain DTC
Eligible. 

Each Paying Agent shall be entitled to payment and reimbursement for 
reasonable fees for its services rendered hereunder and all advances, counsel fees and other 
expenses reasonably and necessarily made or incurred by such Paying Agent in connection 
with such services solely from monies available therefor. 

Any bank, trust company or national banking association with or into which 
any Paying Agent may be merged or consolidated, or to which the assets and business of 
such Paying Agent may be sold, shall be deemed the successor of such Paying Agent for the 
purposes of this Ordinance. If the position of Paying Agent shall become vacant for any 
reason, the Issuer shall, within 30 days thereafter, appoint a bank, trust company or national 
banking association located in the same city as such Paying Agent to fill such vacancy; 
provided, however, that, if the Issuer shall fail to appoint such Paying Agent within said 
period, the Bond Commission, a court of competent jurisdiction or a majority of the 
Bondholders may make such appointment. 

51 

Page 357 of 461



The Paying Agents shall enjoy the same protective prOVISIOns in the 
performance of their duties hereunder as are specified in this Article VIII with respect to the 
Registrar, insofar as such provisions may be applicable. 

Notice of the appointment of successor or additional Paying Agents or fiscal 
agents shall be given in the same manner as provided by Section 8.08 hereof with respect to 
the appointment of a successor Registrar. 

All monies received by the Paying Agents shall, until used or applied as 
provided in this Ordinance, be held in trust for the purposes for which they were received. 

ARTICLE IX 
DEFEASANCE; DISCHARGE OF PLEDGE OF ORDINANCE 

Section 9.01. Defeasance; Discharge of Pledge of Ordinance. If the Issuer 
shall payor cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid, to the respective Holders of 
all Series 2016 A Bonds the principal of and interest due or to become due thereon, at the 
times and in the manner stipulated therein and in this Ordinance, and all other monies due 
hereunder have been paid, then this Ordinance and the pledges of the Gross Revenues and 
other monies and securities pledged hereunder, and all covenants, agreements and other 
obligations of the Issuer on behalf of the Holders of the Series 2016 A Bonds made 
hereunder, as applicable, shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void and be 
discharged and satisfied. 

Bonds for the payment of which either monies in an amount which shall be 
sufficient, or securities the principal of and the interest on which, when due, will provide 
monies which, together with the monies, if any, deposited with the Paying Agent at the same 
or earlier time, shall be sufficient, to pay as and when due the respective principal of and 
interest on such Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the 
effect expressed in the first paragraph of this section. All Series 2016 A Bonds shall, prior 
to the maturity thereof, be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect 
expressed in the first paragraph of this section if there shall have been deposited with the 
Bond Commission or an escrow trustee either monies in an amount which shall be 
sufficient, or securities the principal of and the interest on which, when due, will provide 
monies which, together with the monies, if any, deposited with the Bond Commission or 
said escrow trustee at the same or earlier time shall be sufficient, to pay when due the 
principal of, any redemption premium on and interest due and to become due on said Bonds 
on and prior to the maturity date thereof, or if the Issuer irrevocably determines to redeem 
any of said Bonds prior to the maturity thereof, on and prior to said Redemption Date. 
Neither securities nor monies deposited with the Bond Commission or an escrow trustee 
pursuant to this section nor principal or interest payments on any such securities shall be 
withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of 
the principal of and interest on said Bonds; provided, that any cash received from such 
principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on such securities deposited 

52 

Page 358 of 461



with the Bond Commission or said escrow trustee, if not then needed for such purpose, 
shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in securities maturing at times and in amounts 
sufficient to pay when due the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest to 
become due on said Bonds on and prior to such maturity or Redemption Dates thereof, and 
interest earned from such reinvestments shall be paid over to the Issuer as received by the 
Bond Commission or said escrow trustee, free and clear of any trust, lien or pledge. 

ARTICLE X 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.01. Amendment of Ordinance. Prior to issuance of the Series 
2016 A Bonds, this Ordinance may be amended, modified or supplemented in any way by 
the Supplemental Resolution. All provisions required by the Bond Insurer, if any, shall be 
set forth in the Supplemental Resolution and to the extent they constitute an amendment or 
modification of this Ordinance, shall be controlling. Following issuance of the Series 2016 
A Bonds, this Ordinance and any Supplemental Resolution may, without the consent of any 
Bondholder or other person, be amended, modified or supplemented in any manner which, 
in the opinion of Bond Counsel, does not materially adversely affect the interests of the 
Bondholders or any Bond Insurer, provided, that in the event any of the Bonds are insured, 
no such amendment or modification which affects the rights of the applicable Bond Insurer 
for such Bonds may be made without the written consent of such Bond Insurer. Otherwise, 
no materially adverse amendment or modification to this Ordinance, or of any Supplemental 
Resolution, may be made without the written consent of the Holders of 60% in aggregate 
principal amount of the Series 2016 A Bonds then Outstanding and affected thereby and the 
Bond Insurer, which must be filed with the Clerk of the Issuer before any such modification 
or amendment may be made. No such modification or amendment shall extend the maturity 
of or reduce the interest rate on, or otherwise alter the terms of payment of the principal of 
or interest on, any Bond without the express written consent of the Holder of such Bond, nor 
reduce the percentage of Series 2016 A Bonds required for consent to any such modification 
or amendment. 

Section 10.02. Evidence of Signatures of Bondholders and Ownership of 
Bonds. Any request, consent, revocation of consent or other instrument which this 
Ordinance may require or permit to be signed and executed by Bondholders may be in one 
or more instruments of similar tenor, and shall be signed or executed by such Bondholders 
in person or by their attorneys duly authorized in writing. Proof of the execution of any 
such instrument, or of an instrument appointing or authorizing any such attorney, shall be 
sufficient for any purpose of this Ordinance ifmade in the following manner, or in any other 
manner satisfactory to the Issuer or the Registrar, as the case may be, which may 
nevertheless in its discretion require further or other proof in cases where it deems the same 
desirable: 

A. The fact and date of the execution by any Bondholder or his attorney of 
any such instrument may be proved (i) by the certificate of a notary public or other officer 

53 

Page 359 of 461



authorized to take acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded in the jurisdiction in which he 
purports to act that the person signing such instrument acknowledged to him the execution 
thereof, or by the affidavit of a witness of such execution, duly sworn to before such a 
notary public or other officer or (ii) by the certificate, which need not be acknowledged or 
verified, of an officer of a bank, a trust company or a financial firm or corporation 
satisfactory to the Issuer or the Registrar, as the case may be, that the person signing such 
instrument acknowledged to such bank, trust company, firm or corporation the execution 
thereof. 

B. The authority of a person or persons to execute any such instrument on 
behalf of a corporate Bondholder may be established without further proof if such 
instrument is signed by a person purporting to be the president or treasurer or a vice
president or an assistant treasurer of such corporation with a corporate seal affixed, and is 
attested by a person purporting to be its secretary or assistant secretary. 

C. The amount of fully registered Series 2016 A Bonds held by a person 
executing any instrument as a Bondholder, the date of his holding such Series 2016 A Bonds 
and the numbers and other identification thereof, shall be confirmed by the Bond Register. 

Any request, consent or other instrument executed by the Holder of any Bond 
shall bind all future Holders and owners of such Bond in respect of anything done or 
suffered to be done hereunder by the Issuer or the Registrar in accordance therewith. 

Section 10.03. Preservation and Inspection of Documents. To the extent 
allowable under law, all reports, certificates, statements and other documents received by 
the Registrar under the provisions of this Ordinance shall be retained in its possession and 
shall be available at all reasonable times for the inspection of the Issuer or any Bondholder, 
and their agents and their representatives, but any such reports, certificates, statements or 
other documents may, at the election of the Registrar, be destroyed or otherwise disposed of 
at any time after such date as the pledge created by this Ordinance shall be discharged as 
provided in Section 9.01. 

Section 10.04. Cancellation of Bonds. All Series 20 16 A Bonds purchased 
or paid shall, if surrendered to the Issuer, be canceled and delivered to the Registrar, or, if 
surrendered to the Registrar, be canceled by it. No such Bonds shall be deemed Outstanding 
under this Ordinance and no Series 2016 A Bonds shall be issued in lieu thereof. All such 
Bonds shall be canceled and upon order of the Issuer shall be destroyed, and a certificate 
evidencing such destruction shall be delivered to the Issuer. 

Section 10.05. Failure to Present Bonds. Anything in this Ordinance to the 
contrary notwithstanding, any monies held by the Bond Commission or a Paying Agent in 
trust for the payment and discharge of any of the Series 20 I 6 A Bonds which remain 
unclaimed for two years after the date on which such Bonds have become due and payable, 
whether by maturity or upon call for redemption, shall at the written request ofthe Issuer be 
paid by the Bond Commission or said Paying Agent to the Issuer as its absolute property 

54 

Page 360 of 461



and free from trust, and the Bond Commission or said Paying Agent shall thereupon be 
released and discharged with respect thereto, and the Holders of such Bonds shall look only 
to the Issuer for the payment of such Bonds; provided, however, that, before making any 
such payment to the Issuer, the Registrar, if so advised by the Bond Commission, or said 
Paying Agent shall send to the Holder, at the address listed on the Bond Register, by 
certified mail, a notice that such monies remain unclaimed and that, after a date named in 
said notice, which date shall be not less than 30 days after the date of such notice is mailed, 
the balance of such monies then unclaimed will be returned to the Issuer. 

Section 10.06. Notices, Demands and Requests. Unless otherwise expressly 
provided, all notices, demands and requests to be given or made hereunder to or by the 
Issuer, the Registrar, the Depository Bank, the Original Purchaser or the Bond Insurer shall 
be in writing and shall be properly made if sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, and 
addressed as follows or if hand-delivered to the individual to whom such notice, demand or 
request is required to be directed as indicated below: 

ISSUER 
The City of Morgantown 
389 Spruce Street 
Morgantown, West Virginia 26505 
Attention: City Manager 

and 

Morgantown Utility Board 
278 Greenbag Road 
Morgantown, West Virginia 26507 
Attention: General Manager 

REGISTRAR 
[Name(s) and addresses) to be set forth in Supplemental Resolution] 

PAYING AGENT 
West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission 
900 Pennsylvania Avenue 
Suite 1117 
Charleston, West Virginia 25302 
Attn: Executive Director 

DEPOSITORY BANK 
[Name(s) and addresses) to be set forth in Supplemental Resolution] 

ORIGINAL PURCHASER 
[Name(s) and addresses) to be set forth in Supplemental Resolution] 

BOND INSURER 

55 

Page 361 of 461



[Name(s) and addressees) to be set forth in the Supplemental 
Resolution] 

Any party listed above may change such address listed for it at any time upon written notice 
of change sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, to the other parties. 

Section 10.07. No Personal Liability. No member of the Council, the Board 
or officer or employee of the Issuer shall be individually or personally liable for the 
payment of the principal of or the interest on any Bond, but nothing herein contained shall 
relieve any such member, official or employee from the performance of any official duty 
provided by law or this Ordinance. 

Section 10.08. Law Applicable. The laws of the State shall govern the 
construction of this Ordinance and of all Series 2016 A Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 10.09. Parties Interested Herein. Nothing in this Ordinance 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or give to, any person 
or corporation, other than the Issuer, the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Holders of the 
Series 2016 A Bonds, the applicable Bond Insurer, if any, and the Original Purchaser, any 
right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Ordinance. All the covenants, stipulations, 
promises and agreements contained in this Ordinance by and on behalf of the Issuer shall be 
for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Issuer, the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Holders 
of the Series 2016 A Bonds, the Bond Insurer and the Original Purchaser. 

Section 10.10. Severability of Invalid Provisions. If any section, paragraph, 
clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect 
any of the remaining provisions ofthis Ordinance. 

Section 10.11. Table of Contents and Headlines. The Table of Contents and 
headings of the articles, sections and subsections hereof are for convenience only and shall 
neither control nor affect in any way the meaning or construction of any of the provisions 
hereof. 

Section 10.12. Conflicting Provisions Repealed. All ordinances, orders, 
resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, are, to the 
extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 10.13. Procedure on Enactment of Ordinance: Public Hearing. Upon 
adoption of this Ordinance, the Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to have an abstract 
of this Ordinance, which abstract has been determined by the Council of the Issuer to 
contain sufficient information to give notice of the contents of such Ordinance, published 
once each week for 2 successive weeks, with not less than six full days between each 
publication, the first such publication to be not less than 10 days before the date stated 
below for the public hearing, in the Dominion Post, a newspaper published and having a 
general circulation in The City of Morgantown, together with a notice to all persons 

56 

Page 362 of 461



concerned, stating that this Ordinance has been adopted and that the Issuer contemplates the 
issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds described in this Ordinance and that any person 
interested may appear before the Council at the public hearing to be had at a public meeting 
of Council on the 2nd day of February, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the 
City Hall, Morgantown and present protests, and that a certified copy of this Ordinance is on 
file with the Clerk for review by interested parties during the office hours of the Clerk. At 
such hearing all protests and suggestions shall be heard by the Council and it shaH then take 
such action as it shaH deem proper in the premises. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank] 

57 

Page 363 of 461



Section 10.14. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become 
effective following public hearing hereon in accordance with the Act. 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Effective following 
Public Hearing held on: 

January 5, 2016 

January 19,2016 

February 2,2016 

THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

Mayor 

58 

Page 364 of 461



CER TIFICA TION 

Certified a true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance duly enacted by 
the City Council of THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on February 2, 2016, pursuant to proper notice, at which meeting a quorum 
was present and acting throughout, and which Ordinance was enacted following a public 
hearing thereon, notice of which public hearing was published once a week for 
two successive weeks in a newspaper having a general circulation in The City of 
Morgantown, the first publication having been not less than 10 days prior to such public 
hearing. 

Dated this __ day of December, 2016. 

[SEAL] 

City Clerk 

59 

Page 365 of 461



No. AR-- - -

EXHIBIT A - FORM OF SERIES 2016 A BONDS 

[DTC Legend] 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STA TE OF WEST VIRGINIA 

$_----

THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN (WEST VIRGINIA) 
COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 A 

INTEREST RATE: M TURJTY DATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP: 

% ---

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

KNOW ALL MEN BY nrnSE PRESENTS: That THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN (West Virginia), a municipal corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the State of West Virginia (the "Issuer"), for v(llue received, hereby promises to 
pay, solely from the special funds provided therefor, as hereinafter set forth, to the 
Registered Owner specified above, or registered assigns (the "Registered Owner"), on the 
Maturity Date specified above, the Principal Amount specified above and solely from such 
special funds also to pay interest on said Principal Amount from the Interest Payment Date 
(as hereinafter defined) preceding the date of authentication hereof or, if authenticated after 
the Record Date (as hereinafter defined) but prior to the applicable Interest Payment Date or 
on said Interest Payment Date, from said Interest Payment Date or, if no interest has been 
paid, from the Bond Date specified above, or, if and to the extent that the Issuer shall default 
in the payment of interest on any Interest Payment Date, then this Bond shall bear interest 
from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided 
for, and in which case any Bond surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be dated as of the 
Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full, at the Interest Rate per annum 
specified above, semiannually, on 1 and 1, in each 
year, beginning 1, 20_ (each an "Interest Payment Date"), until maturity 

60 

Page 366 of 461



or until the date fixed for redemption if this Bond is called for prior redemption and 
payment on such date is provided for. Capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall 
have the meanings ascribed thereto in the hereinafter-described Ordinance. 

Interest accruing on this Bond on and prior to the Maturity Date hereof shall 
be payable by check or draft mailed by the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission, 
Charleston, West Virginia, as paying agent (in such capacity, the "Paying Agent"), to the 
Registered Owner hereof as of the applicable Record Date (each 15 and 
_ ______ 15) or, in the event of a default in the payment of Bonds, that special 
record date to be fixed by the hereinafter named Registrar by notice given to the Registered 
Owners not less than. 1 0 days prior to said special record date at the address of such 
Registered Owner as it appears on the registration books of the Issuer maintained by 

_____ -,--....)' West Virginia, as registrar (in 
such capacity, the "Registrar"), or, at the option of any Registered Owner of at least 
$1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Bonds, by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to a domestic bank account specified in writing by the Registered Owner to 
the Paying Agent at least 5 days prior to such Record Date. Principal and premium, if any, 
shall be paid when due upon presentation and surrender of this Bond for payment at the 
office of the Paying Agent, in Charleston, West Virginia. 

This Bond is one of an issue of a series of bonds, in the aggregate principal 
amount of $ designated "The City of Morgantown Combined Utility 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 A" (the "Series 2016 A Bonds"), of like tenor and 
effect, except as to number, denomination, date of maturity and interest rate, dated 
_ ___ ___ , 2016, upon original issuance, the proceeds of which are to be used, 
together with other funds ofthe Issuer, (i) to finance the cost of acquisition and construction 
of Sewer Treatment Plant Project: [(ii) to capitalize interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds;] 
[(iii) pay the premium for a Municipal Bond Insurance Policy to secure the payment of the 
principal of, and interest on, the Series 2016 A Bonds;] [(iv) to fund a reserve account for 
the Series 2016 A Bonds/to pay the premium for a Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve 
Insurance Policy for the Series 2016 A Bonds] in an amount equal to the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Reserve Requirement; and (v) to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2016 A 
Bonds and related costs. The Series 2016 A Bonds are issued under the authority of and in 
full compliance with the Constitution and statute of the State of West Virginia, including 
particularly, Chapter 8, Article 20 of the West Virginia Code of 1931, as amended (the 
"Act"), and an ordinance duly enacted by the City Council of the Issuer on • 
2016, and supplemented by a supplemental resolution adopted by said Council on 
______ ....;, 2016 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Ordinance"), and is 
subj ect to all the terms and conditions of said Ordinance. The Ordinance provides for the 
issuance of additional bonds under certain conditions, and such bonds would be entitled to 
be paid and secured equally and ratably from and by the funds and revenues and other 
security provided for the Series 2016 A Bonds under the Ordinance. Reference is hereby 
made to the Ordinance, as the same may be amended and supplemented from time to time, 
for a description of the rights, limitations of rights, obligations, duties and immunities of the 
Issuer, the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Registered Owners of the Series 2016 A Bonds 

61 

Page 367 of 461



and the Registered Owners of any subsequently issued additional bonds. Executed 
counterparts or certified copies of the Ordinance are on file at the office of the City Clerk in 
The City of Morgantown, West Virginia. 

[The Series 2016 A Bonds are additionally secured, but only to the extent 
described in the Statement of Insurance printed on the Bonds, by a policy of municipal 
bond insurance issued by [Bond Insurerl .J 

THIS BOND IS ISSUED ON A PARITY WITH RESPECT TO LIENS, PLEDGE 
AND SOURCE OF AND SECURITY FOR PAYMENT, AND IN ALL RESPECTS, WITH 
THE ISSUER'S: 

(1) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 
1995 (WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED APRIL 27, 1995, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,601,477 (THE "SERIES 1995 
BONDS"); 

(2) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2000 A 
(WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED FEBRUARY 29, 2000, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $7,842,000 (THE "SERIES 2000 A 
BONDS"); 

(3) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2000 B 
(WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED FEBRUARY 29, 2000, ISSUED IN 
THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,488,000 (THE "SERIES 
2000 B BONDS"); 

(4) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2001 A 
(WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED FEBRUARY 8, 2001, ISSUED IN 
THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $3,812,470 (THE "SERIES 
2001 A BONDS"); 

(5) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2006 A 
(WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JUNE 30, 2006, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PR INCTPAL AMOUNT OF $6,410,191 (THE "SERIES 2006 A 
BONDS"); 

(6) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2007 A 
(WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED AUGUST 14, 2007, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,500,000 (THE "SERIES 2007 A 
BONDS"); 

(7) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 A 
(DIRECT PAYMENT BUILD AMERICA BONDS), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, 
ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $37,950,000 (THE 

62 

Page 368 of 461



"SERIES 2010 A BONDS"); 

(8) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 B 
(WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAMIARRA), DATED JANUARY 28,2010, ISSUED IN 
THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $81,600 (THE "SERIES 2010 B 
BONDS"); 

(9) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 C 
(WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JANUARY 28,2010, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $15,380,227 (THE "SERIES 2010 C 
BONDS"); 

(10) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010 D 
(WEST VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM), DATED JANUARY 28,2010, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $9,317,286 (THE "SERIES 2010 D 
BONDS"); 

(11) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERJES 2010 E 
(WEST VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAMIARRA), DATED JANUARY 28,2010, ISSUED 
IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $100,000 (THE "SERIES 
2010 E BONDS"); 

(12) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERJES 2010 F 
(BANK QUALIFIED), DATED JANUARY 28, 2010, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF $7,250,000 (THE "SERIES 2010 F BONDS"); 

(13) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 A 
(WEST VIRGINIA DWTRF PROGRAM), DATED AUGUST 24,2012, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $570,000 (THE "SERIES 2012 A 
BONDS"); 

(14) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERJES 2012 C 
(BANK QUALIFIED), DATED OCTOBER 5, 2012, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $2,330,000 (THE "SERIES 2012 C BONDS"); 

(15) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERJES 2013 A 
(WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND), DATED AUGUST 22, 2013, ISSUED IN 
THE ORIGINAL AGGREGA TE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,605,260 (THE "SERIES 2013 
A BONDS"); 

(16) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2014 B 
DATED JULY 23, 2014, ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF $505,421 (THE "SERIES 2014 B BONDS"); 

63 

Page 369 of 461



(17) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 A 
(WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITy), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, 
ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $137,568 (THE 
"SERIES 2015 A BONDS"); 

(18) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 B 
(WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY), DAIED MAkCH 31, 2015, 
ISSUED IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $4,586 (THE 
"SERIES 2015 B BONDS"); 

(19) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 C 
(WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,111,813 (THE "SERIES 2015 C 
BONDS"); 

(20) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 D 
(WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED MARCH 31, 2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,688,394 (THE "SERIES 2015 D 
BONDS"); 

(21) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 
E (WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED JUNE 11, 2015, ISSUED IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $662,300 (THE "SERIES 2015 E 
BONDS"), (COLLECTIVELY, THE "PRIOR BONDS"); 

(22) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 
B-1 (WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM), DATED DECEMBER _, 2016, ISSUED 
SIMULTANEOUSLY HEREWITH, IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF $ (THE "SERIES 2016 B-1 BONDS"); AND 

(23) COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2016 
B-2 (WEST VIRGINIA SRF PROGRAM/GREEN), DATED DECEMBER _, 2016, 
ISSUED SIMULTANEOUSLY HEREWITH, IN THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $ (THE "SERlES 2016 B-2 BONDS"). 

The Series 2016 A Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated 
maturity dates, as provided in the Ordinance and as set forth in the following lettered 
paragraphs: 

(A) Optional Redemption. The Bonds maturing on and after , 
20 __ , are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer on or after 
_ ____ --', 20 __ , in whole at any time and in part on any Interest Payment Date, 
as directed by the Issuer, in reverse order of maturity and by lot within a maturity, at the 

64 

Page 370 of 461



following Redemption Prices (expressed as percentages of the principal amount of Bonds to 
be redeemed), plus interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption: 

Period During Which Redeemed 
(Dates Inclusive) 

Redemption 
Price 

__ (B) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Bonds maturing on 
______ -J' 20 and 20 are subject to annual mandatory sinking fund 
redemption prior to maturity by random selection as may be determined by the Registrar, on 
_______ 1 of the years and in the principal amounts set forth below, at the 
Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount of each Bond so called for redemption 
plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption: 

Bonds Maturing 1, 20 

Year ( I) Principal Amount 

Bonds Maturing 1, 20 

Year ( 1) Principal Amount 

* Final Maturity 

In the event of any redemption of less than all outstanding Series 2016 A 
Bonds, the maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent at the direction 
of the Issuer and Series 2016 A Bonds to be redeemed shall be determined by lot within a 
maturity, or in such other manner deemed appropriate by the Paying Agent. If less than all 
the Series 2016 A Bonds are to be redeemed, the Series 2016 A Bonds to be redeemed shall 

65 

Page 371 of 461



be identified by reference to the Series designation, date of issue, CUSIP numbers and 
Maturity Dates. 

Notice of any redemption of this Series 2016 A Bond, unless waived, shall be 
given by the Paying Agent on behalf of the Issuer by mailing an official redemption notice 
by registered or certified mail at least 30 days and not more than 60 days prior to the date 
fixed for redemption to the Registered Owner of the Series 2016 A Bond or Series 2016 A 
Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register or at such other address as 
is furnished in writing by such Registered Owner to the Paying Agent. Such notice shall 
also be given by the Paying Agent to the Registrar. Notice of redemption having been given 
as aforesaid, the Series 2016 A Bonds or portions of Series 2016 A Bonds so to be redeemed 
shall, on the Redemption Date, become due and payable at the Redemption Price therein 
specified, and from and after such date (unless the Issuer shall default in the payment of the 
Redemption Price) such Series 2016 A Bonds or portions of Series 2016 A Bonds shall 
cease to bear interest. 

Failure to receive such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof 
shall not affect the validity of proceedings for the redemption of this Series 2016 A Bond. 

The Series 2016 A Bonds and the interest thereon are payable only from and 
are secured by the Gross Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) to be derived from the 
operation of the System, on a parity in all respects with the pledge of the Gross Revenues 
created in favor of the holders of the Prior Bonds, the Series 2016 B Bonds, the Series 2016 
C Bonds [and the Series 2016 D Bonds], all monies in the Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking 
Fund, and the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account therein, established under the 
Ordinance, and the unexpended proceeds of the Series 2016 A Bonds, and the Issuer hereby 
and in the Ordinance pledges such revenues and monies to such payment. Said Gross 
Revenues -shall be sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on all bonds which may be 
issued pursuant to the Act and shall be set aside as a special fund hereby pledged for such 
purpose and to make the other payments required by the Ordinance. This Series 2016 A 
Bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer within any constitutional or statutory 
provision or limitation, nor shall the Issuer be obligated to pay the same or the interest 
hereon except from said special fund provided from the Gross Revenues, the monies in the 
Series 2016 A Bonds Sinking Fund and the Series 2016 A Bonds Reserve Account and said 
unexpended Series 2016 A Bond proceeds. Pursuant to the Ordinance, the Issuer has 
covenanted and agreed to establish and maintain just and equitable rates and charges for the 
use of the System and the services rendered thereby, which shall be sufficient, together with 
other revenues of the System, to provide for the reasonable expenses of operation, repair and 
maintenance of the System, and to leave a balance each year equal to at least 115% of the 
maximum amount payable in any year for principal of and interest, if any, on the Series 
2016 A Bonds and all other obligations secured by a lien on or payable from such revenues 
on a parity with the Series 2016 A Bonds, including the Prior Bonds, the Series 2016 B-1 
Bonds and the Series 2016 B-2 Bonds. The Issuer has entered into certain further covenants 
with the registered owners of the Series 2016 A Bonds, for the terms of which reference is 
made to the Ordinance. Remedies provided the registered owners of the Series 2016 A 

66 

Page 372 of 461



Bonds are exclusively as provided in the Ordinance, to which reference is here made for a 
detailed description thereof. 

All monies received from the sale of the Bonds except for accrued interest 
thereon shall be applied solely to pay all costs of the Sewer Treatment Plant Project, 
capitalize the interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds for a period of [pay the 
premium for a Municipal Bond Insurance Policy to secure the payment of the principal of 
and interest on the Series 2016 A Bonds, [fund a reserve account for the Series 2016 A 
Bonds/pay the premium for a Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy to 
fund the reserve account for the Series 2016 A Bonds] in amount equal to the Series 2016 A 
Bonds Reserve Requirement, and pay costs of issuance of the Bonds, and there shall be, and 
hereby is, created and granted a lien upon such monies, until so applied, in favor of the 
registered owners of said Series 2016 A Bonds. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts, 
conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the 
issuance of this Series 2016 A Bond have existed, have happened and have been performed 
in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that the amount of this Series 2016 A 
Bond, together with all other obligations of said Issuer, does not exceed any limit prescribed 
by the Constitution or statutes of the State of West Virginia, and that a sufficient amount of 
the revenues of the System has been pledged to and will be set aside into said special fund 
by said Issuer for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2016 A 
Bonds of which this Series 2016 A Bond is one. 

This Series 2016 A Bond, under the provisions of the Act is and has all the 
qualities and incidents of, a negotiable instrument under the Uniform Commercial Code of 
the State of West Virginia, but may be transferred only upon the surrender hereof at the 
office of the Registrar and otherwise as provided by the within-described Ordinance. 

This Series 2016 A Bond and the income there from are, under the Act, 
exempt from all taxation by the State of West Virginia, or any county, municipality, 
political subdivision or agency thereof. 

This Series 2016 A Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the 
Ordinance, or become valid or obligatory for any purpose, until the certificate of 
authentication and registration hereon shall have been signed by the Registrar. 

All provisions of the Ordinance, as defined on the reverse hereof, and the 
statutes under which this Series 2016 A Bond is issued shall be deemed to be a part of the 
contract evidenced by this Series 2016 A Bond to the same extent as if written fully herein. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank] 

67 

Page 373 of 461



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
(West Virginia) has caused this Bond to be signed by its Mayor, and its corporate seal to be 
imprinted hereon and attested by its City Clerk, and has caused this Series 2016 A Bond to 
be dated as of the Series 2016 A Bond Date specified above. 

[SEAL] 

[Manual or facsimile signature] 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

[Manual or facsimile signature] 
City Clerk 

68 

Page 374 of 461



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
AND REGISTRATION 

This Series 2016 A Bond is one of the fully registered Series 2016 A Bonds 
described in the within-mentioned Ordinance and has been duly registered in the name of 
the Registered Owner on the date set forth below. Attached hereto is the complete text of 
the opinion of Steptoe & Johnson PLLC, bond counsel, signed originals of which are on file 
with the Registrar, delivered and dated on the date of the original delivery of and payment 
for the Series 2016 A Bonds. 

Dated: ______ , 2016. 

As Registrar 

By ____ ~ __ ~-------_ 
Its Authorized Officer 

69 

Page 375 of 461



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE 

[Bond Insurance Legend] 

70 

Page 376 of 461



(FORM OF) 
ASSIGNMENT 

Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers 
unto the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably 
constitute and appoint to transfer the said Bond on the 
books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: _____ --', 20 _ _ 

SIGNA TURE GUARANTEED: 

(Bank, Trust Company or Firm) 

(Authorized Officer) 

NOTICE: The Assignor's signature to this Assignment must correspond with 
the name as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without 
alteration or any change whatever. 

71 

Page 377 of 461



THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 

COMBINED UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2016 A (TAX EXEMPT) 

Section 1.01 
Section 1.02 
Section 1.03 
Section 1.04 

BOND ORDINANCE 

Table of Contents 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS; STATUTORY AUTHORITY; FINDINGS 

Definitions 
Authority for this Ordinance 
Findings 
Ordinance Constitutes Contract 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION OF ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF PROJECT 

Section 2.01 

Section 3.01 
Section 3.02 
Section 3.03 
Section 3.04 
Section 3.05 
Section 3.06 
Section 3.07 
Section 3.08 
Section 3.09 
Section 3.10 
Section 3.11 
Section 3.12 
Section 3.13 

Authorization of Acquisition and Construction of the Sewer Treatment 
Plant Project 

ARTICLE III 
THE SERIES 2016 A BONDS 

Form and Payment of Bonds 
Execution of Bonds 
Authentication and Registration 
Negotiability and Registration 
Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost 
Term Bonds 
Notice of Redemption 
Persons Treated as Owners 
Temporary Bonds 
Series 2016 A Bonds 
Book Entry System for Series 2016 A Bonds 
Delivery of Series 2016 A Bonds 
Form of Series 2016 A Bonds 

Page 378 of 461



Section 3.14 
Section 3.15 

Section 4.01 
Section 4.02 
Section 4.03 

Section 5.01 
Section 5.02 
Section 5.03 
Section 5.04 

Section 6.01 
Section 6.02 
Section 6.03 

Section 6.04 
Section 6.05 

Section 6.06 
Section 6.07 

Section 6.08 
Section 6.09 
Section 6.10 
Section 6.11 
Section 6.l2 
Section 6.13 
Section 6.14 

Disposition of Proceeds of Series 2016 A Bonds 
Disbursements from the Series 2016 A Bonds Construction Fund 

ARTICLE IV 

SYSTEM REVENUES; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Depository Bank 
Establishment of Funds and Accounts with Bond Commission 
System Revenues and Application Thereof 

ARTICLE V 

INVESTMENTS; NON-ARBITRAGE; 
REBATES OF EXCESS INVESTMENT EARNINGS 

Investments 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
Arbitrage 
Tax Certificate, Rebate and Rebate Fund 

ARTICLE VI 

ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER 

Covenants Binding and Irrevocable 
Bonds not to be Indebtedness of the Issuer 
Bonds Secured by Pledge of Gross Revenues and Monies in Sinking 
Fund 
Rates 
Completion of Sewer Treatment Plant Project; Operation and 
Maintenance 
Sale of the System 
Issuance of Other Obligations Payable Out of Revenues and General 
Covenant Against Encumbrances 
Additional Parity Bonds 
Insurance and Bonds 
Services Rendered to the Board or Issuer 
Enforcement of Collections 
No Competing Franchise 
Books and Records 
Operating Budget 

ii 

Page 379 of 461



Section 6.15 
Section 6.16 
Section 6.17 
Section 6.18 
Section 6.19 

Sediul1 6.20 
Section 6.21 
Section 6.22 

Section 7.01 
Section 7.02 
Section 7.03 
Section 7.04 

Section 8.01 
Section 8.02 
Section 8.03 
Section 8.04 
Section 8.05 
Section 8.06 
Section 8.07 
Section 8.08 
Section 8.09 
Section 8.10 
Section 8.11 
Section 8.12 

Mandatory Connections 
Statutory Mortgage Lien 
Tax Covenants 
Covenants Regarding the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy 
Covenants Regarding the Municipal Hond Debt Service Reserve 
Insurance Policy 
CUllliuuing Disdusufe AgreeIllelll 
Preliminary Official Statement 
Bond Purchase Agreement 

ARTICLE VII 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Events of Default 
Enforcement 
Appointment of Receiver 
Restoration of Issuer and Bondholder 

ARTICLE VIII 
REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT 

Appointment of Registrar 
Responsibilities of Registrar 
Evidence on Which Registrar May Act 
Compensation and Expenses 
Certain Permitted Acts 
Resignation of Registrar 
Removal 
Appointment of Successor 
Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor 
Merger or Consolidation 
Adoption of Authentication 
Paying Agent 

ARTICLE IX 
DEFEASANCE; DISCHARGE OF PLEDGE OF ORDINANCE 

Section 9.01 

Section 10.01 
Section 10.02 

Defeasance; Discharge of Pledge of Ordinance 

ARTICLE X 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Amendment of Ordinance 
Evidence of Signatures of Bondholders and Ownership of Bonds 

iii 

Page 380 of 461



Section 10.03 
Section 10.04 
Section 10.05 
Section 10.06 
Section 10.07 
Section 10.08 
Section 10.09 
Section 10.10 
Section 10.11 
Section 10.12 
Section 10.13 
Section 10.14 

SIGNATURES 
CERTIFICATION 

Preservation and Inspection of Documents 
Cancellation of Bonds 
Failure to Present Bonds 
Notices, Demands and Requests 
No Personal Liability 
Law Applicable 
Parties Interested Herein 
Severability of Invalid Provisions 
Table of Contents and Headings 
Conflicting Provisions Repealed 
Procedure on Enactment of Ordinance; Public Hearing 
Effective Date 

EXHIBIT A - FORM OF SERIES 2016 A BONDS 

iv 

Page 381 of 461



RIGHT -OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS RIGHT-Of-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT, made and executed this 

__ day of _____ , 2016, by and between the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, party of 

the first part, Grantor, and the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, a municipal corporation, acting 

by and through the Morgantown Utility Board, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Board," 

party of the second part, Grantee, 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of $1 .00 and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party of the first 

part, Grantor, does hereby grant and convey, with covenants of General Warranty, unto the said party 

of the second part, Grantee, and to its successors or assigns, a right-of-way and easement to 

construct, lay, operate, maintain, remove, reconstruct, replace, or repair pipelines for the carrying 

and transporting of raw water in, on, under, over, and through a certain tract and parcel of land 

situate in Morgantown Taxing District, Tax Map 48A, Parcel 4, Monongalia County, West Virginia, 

and which said tract and parcel of land is further described in a deed recorded in the Office of the 

Clerk of the County Commission of Monongalia County, West Virginia, in Deed Book No. 678 at 

Page 631, to which said deed reference is hereby made for all pertinent purposes. 

follows : 

The location of said right-of-way and easement proposed upon said property is as 

±S90-foot water line easement; all as depicted and further described in 
Exhibit "A", attached and incorporated herein. 

It is covenanted and agreed between the parties hereto that the Board shall have a 

centerline right-of-way and easement on said property twenty (20) feet in width, as constructed, and 

an easement(s) approximately perpendicular to the installed main line in order to emplace necessary 

service line(s) between the main and the served parcel, in order to facilitate water service. It is 

further covenanted and agreed that the Board shall properly backfill and restore to ground level, 

insofar as is practicable, any ditch opened on said right-of-way and easement upon the completion of 

any construction work performed thereon . 

The said Grantor further grants and conveys unto said Grantee, its successors or assigns, 

the right of ingress, egress, and regress, to and from said right-of-way and easement for all proper 

purposes and at all reasonable times and a temporary construction right-of-way and easement of such 

X:\EnglProjecls\Misc\Raw Waler SlOrage Upgrades\42 I 00 - Dcsign\42 I 9 I . ROW'sIRaw Walerline ROW'slCily of 
MorganlownlCily of Morganlown_890'(walerline)Tax Map 48A_PCL4.doc 

Page 382 of 461



width as is reasonable and necessary to carry out the construction, repair, or replacement of all or 

part of the above-described water lines. The said Grantor does also gran! and convey unto the said 

Grantee, its successors or assigns, the right to use said right-of-way and easement herein granted, 

along the course of the proposed water line, for the further purpose of transporting pipe, fittings, 

machinery, and equipment to and from neighboring lands. in and about the construction, operation, 

maintenance, removal, and replacement of the sanitary water pi peli ne or I ines proposed to be laid on 

said right-oF-way and easement. 

The said Grantor, their heirs or assigns, shall use and enjoy the premises of said right-of-

way and easement, except for the purposes hereinabove granted to the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, except that the said Grantor covenants and agrees not to erect any structure or place any 

object upon the right-of-way and easement hereby conveyed which would in any way interfere with 

the use and occupancy of said right-oF-way and easement by the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, for the purposes herei nabove stated. Grantor further covenants and agrees not to change the 

contour or grade of the surface of the land upon which the above-described right-of-way and 

easement is located without first obtaining written permission to do so from Grantee, its successors 

or assigns. 

The Grantor does grant and convey said right-of-way and easement to the Grantee, its 

successors or assigns, upon the following terms and conditions: NONE 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their personal representatives, 

heirs, successors or assigns. 

DECLARATION OF CONSIDERATION OR VALUE 

The undersigned hereby declare: 

That the conveyance made in the document to which this declaration is appended is 

exempt from taxation under the provisions of Chapter II, Article 22, of the Code of West Virginia, 

for the reason that it is a conveyance made to a political subdivision of the State of West Virginia. 

(Without Consideration). 

X:\Eng\ProjeclslMisc\Raw Waler SlOragc Upgrades142100 - Designl42191 - ROW's\Raw Walerline ROW'sICily of 2 
MorganlownlCilY of Morganlown_890'(walerlinc)Tax_Map 48A_PCU.doc 

Page 383 of 461



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Morgantown, has caused its name to be hereunto 

subscribed by Glen Kelly, its Interim City Manager. by authority duly given. and the said 

Morgantown Utility Board. aCling for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal 

corporation, has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General 

Manager. by authority duly given. 

WITNESS the following signatures: 

MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD 

By: _________ _ 

Timothy L. Ball, P.E. 
General Manager 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

On behalf of the 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: _________ _ 

Glen Kelly 
Interim City Manager 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_____ -', 2016, by Glen Kelly, Interim City Manager, acting for and on behalf of the City of 

Morgantown. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

______ . 2016, by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General Manager of the Morgantown Utility 

Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal corporation. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

This instrument prepared by: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

Morgantown Utility Board 
278 Greenbag Road 
P.O. Box 852 
Morgantown, WV 26507-0852 

X:lEnglProjecls\\1iscIRaw Waler Siorage Upgrades142 J 00· Design142 J 9 J - ROW'sIRaw Walerline ROW'sICily of 3 
MorganlownlCily of Morganlown_890'(walerJine)Tax Map 48A PCL4.doc 

Page 384 of 461



Page 385 of 461



RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT, made and executed this 

__ day of _____ , 2016, by and between the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, party of 

the first part, Grantor, and the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, a municipal corporation, acting 

by and through the Morgantown Utility Board, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Board," 

party of the second part, Grantee, 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of $1.00 and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party of the first 

part, Grantor, does hereby grant and convey, with covenants of General Warranty, unto the said party 

of the second part, Grantee, and to its successors or assigns, a right-of-way and easement to 

construct, lay, operate, maintain, remove, reconstruct, replace, or repair pipelines for the carrying 

and transporting of raw water in, on, under, over, and through a certain tract and parcel of land 

situate in Morgantown Taxing District, Tax Map 48, Parcel 41, Monongalia County, West Virginia, 

and which said tract and parcel of land is further described in a deed recorded in the Office of the 

Clerk of the County Commission of Monongalia County, West Virginia, in Deed Book No. 740 at 

Page 209, to which said deed reference is hereby made for all pertinent purposes. 

follows: 

The location of said right-of-way and easement proposed upon said property is as 

±935-foot water line easement; all as depicted and further described in 
Exhibit "A", attached and incorporated herein. 

It is covenanted and agreed between the parties hereto that the Board shall have a 

centerline right-of-way and easement on said property twenty (20) feet in width, as constructed, and 

an easement(s) approximately perpendicular to the installed main line in order to emplace necessary 

service !ine(s) between the main and the served parcel, in order to facilitate water service. It is 

further covenanted and agreed that the Board shall properly backfill and restore to ground level, 

insofar as is practicable, any ditch opened on said right-of-way and easement upon the completion of 

any construction work performed thereon. 

The said Grantor further grants and conveys unto said Grantee, its successors or assigns, 

the right of ingress. egress, and regress, to and from said right-of-way and easement for all proper 

purposes and at all reasonable times and a temporary construction right-of-way and easement of such 

X:\Eng\ProjccIsIMisc\Raw Waler Slorage Upgrades\42100 - Design\42191 - ROW's\Raw Walerline ROW'slCily or 
Morgantown\Cily of Morganlown_935"(w3Ierlinc)Tax_Map 48_PCLA I.doc 

Page 386 of 461



width as is reasonable and necessary to carry out the construction, repair. or replacement of all or 

part of the above-described water lines. The said Grantor does also grant and convey unto the said 

Grantee. its successors or assigns. the right to use said right-of-way and easement herein granted. 

along the course of the proposed water line. for the further purpose of transporting pipe. fittings. 

machinery. and equipment to and from neighboring lands, in and about the construction. operation. 

maintenance, removal, and replacement of the sanitary water pipeline or lines proposed to be laid on 

said right-of-way and easement. 

The said Grantor. their heirs or assigns. shall use and enjoy the premises of said right-of-

way and easement. except for the purposes hereinabove granted to the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, except that the said Grantor covenants and agrees not to erect any structure or place any 

object IIpon the right-of-way and easement hereby conveyed which would in any way interfere with 

the use and occupancy of said right-of-way and easement by the said Grantee. its successors or 

assigns, for the purposes hereinabove stated. Grantor further covenants and agrees not to change the 

contour or grade of the surface of the land upon which the above-described right-of-way and 

easement is located without first obtaining written permission to do so from Grantee, its successors 

or assigns. 

The Grantor does gmnt and convey said right-of-way and easement to the Grantee, its 

successors or assigns, upon the following terms and conditions: NONE 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their personal representatives, 

heirs. successors or assigns. 

DECLARA TION OF CONSIDERATION OR VALUE 

The undersigned hereby declare: 

That the conveyance made in the document to which this declaration is appended is 

exempt from taxation underthe provisions of Chapter I I, Article 22, of the Code of West Virginia. 

for the reason that it is a conveyance made to a political subdivision of the State of West Virginia. 

(Without Consideration). 

x:\EnglProjecrs\I"lisc\Raw Warer Storage Upgrades\42100 - OC5i8n\42191 • ROW's\Raw Walerlinc ROW'slCily of 2 
MorganiownlCily of Morganlown_935'(warerliT1<!}Tax_Map 48_PCL41.<loc 

Page 387 of 461



IN WITNESS WHEREOF,the City of Morgantown, has caused its name to be hereunto 

subscribed by Glen Kelly, its Interim City Manager, by authority duly given, and the said 

Morgantown Utility Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal 

corporation, has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General 

Manager, by authority duly given. 

WITNESS the following signatures: 

MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD 

By: _________ _ 

Timothy L. Ball, P .E. 
General Manager 

ST ATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

On behalf of the 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: _________ _ 

Glen Kelly 
Interim City Manager 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_____ . 2016, by Glen Kelly, Interim City Manager, acting for and on behalf of the City of 

Morgantown. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNfY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

______ , 2016, by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General Manager of the Morgantown Utility 

Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal corporation. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

This instrument prepared by: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

Morgantown Utility Board 
278 Greenbag Road 
P.O. Box 852 
Morgantown, WV 26507-0852 

X:lEng\ProjeclsIMisc\Raw Waler Siorage Upgrades142100 - Design142191 - ROW',lRaw Walerline ROW'slCily of 3 
MorganlownlCily of Morganlown_935'(walt:rline)Tax. Map 48]CL41.doc 

Page 388 of 461



EXHIBIT "A" 
.................... -.... .......... 

\, 

Proposed C/l Right-of-way fram 
The City of Morgantown To The 

Morgantown Utility Boord. 

-, eertify that I ern enQO!jled in surve)'in; 
CI .. du~lwely for the MorgQr'llown Utility Boord. 
c poUticol subdivision of the !ilote of West 
VlI'9 ink:l. on<CI: bd"", I om e1C8'T1pt f1-QITI 
re9 !.iIOt!ofi ~ one l1e: eJt-':!r...9 under Wesl 
Virginia Code lO- 1~ 

AW-2209 

SHT._1_ Of" ..2... 

Page 389 of 461



RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT, made and executed this 

__ day of _____ , 2016, by and between the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, party of 

the first part, Grantor, and the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, a municipal corporation, acting 

by and through the Morgantown Utility Board, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Board," 

party of the second part, Grantee, 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of $1 .00 and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party of the first 

part, Grantor, does hereby grant and convey, with covenants of General Warranty, unto the said party 

of the second part, Grantee, and to its successors or assigns, a right-of-way and easement to 

construct, lay, operate, maintain, remove, reconstruct, replace. or repair pipelines for the carrying 

and transporting of raw water in, on, under, over, and through a certain tract and parcel of land 

situate in Morgantown Taxing District, Tax Map 48A, Parcel 4.2, Monongalia County, 

West Virginia, and which said tract and parcel ofland is further described in a deed recorded in the 

Office of the Clerk of the County Commission of Monongalia County, West Virginia, in Deed Book 

No. 776 at Page 325, to which said deed reference is hereby made for all pertinent purposes. 

follows: 

The location of said right-of-way and easement proposed upon said property is as 

±120-foot water line easement; all as depicted and further described in 
Exhibit "A", attached and incorporated herein. 

It is covenanted and agreed between the parties hereto that the Board shall have a 

centerline right-of-way and easement on said property twenty (20) feet in width, as constructed, and 

an easement(s) approxi mately perpendicular to the installed main line in order to emplace necessary 

service line(s) between the main and the served parcel, in order to facilitate water service. It is 

further covenanted and agreed that the Board shall properly backfill and restore to ground level, 

insofar as is practicable, any ditch opened on said right-of-way and easement upon the completion of 

any construction work performed thereon. 

The said Grantor further grants and conveys unto said Grantee, its successors or assigns, 

the right of ingress. egress, and regress, to and from said right-of-way and easement for all proper 

purposes and at all reasonable times and a temporary construction right-of-way and easement of such 

X:lEng\ProjectslMisc\R~w W~tcr Stor~gc Upgrades\42100 - Design\42191 . ROW'slRaw Waterline ROW'slCity of 
MorgantQwnlCity of Morgantown_120'(w~terline)Tax_Map 48A_PCL4.2.doc 

Page 390 of 461



width as is reasonable and necessary to carry out the construction. repair, or replacement of all or 

part of the above-described water lines. The said Grantor does also grant and convey unto the said 

Grantee. its successors or assigns, the right LO use said right-of-way and easement herein granted. 

along the course of the proposed sanitary water line, for the further purpose of transporting pipe. 

fittings, machinery, and equipment to and from neighboring lands, in and about the construction, 

operation, maintenance, removal, and replacement of the water sewer pipeline or lines proposed to 

be laid on said right-of-way and easement. 

The said Grantor, their heirs or assigns, shall use and enjoy the premises of said right-of-

way and easement, except for the purposes hereinabove granted to the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, except that the said Grantor covenants and agrees not to erect any structure or place any 

object upon the right-of-way and easement hereby conveyed which would in any way interfere with 

the use and occupancy of said right-or-way and easement by the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, for the purposes hereinabove staled. Grantor further covenants and agrees not to change the 

contour or grade of the surface of the land upon which the above-described right-of-way and 

easement is located without first obtaining written permission to do so from Grantee, its successors 

or assigns. 

The Grantor does grant and convey said right-of-way and easement to the Grantee, its 

successors or assigns. upon the following terms and conditions: NONE 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their personal representatives, 

heirs, successors or assigns. 

DECLARATION OF CONSIDERA nON OR VALUE 

The undersigned hereby declare: 

That the conveyance made in the document to which this declaration is appended is 

exempt from taxation under the provisions of Chapter 11, Article 22, of the Code of West Virginia, 

for the reason that it is a conveyance made to a political subdivision of the State of West Virginia. 

(Without Consideration), 

X :\Eng\Projecls\Misc\Raw Waler Slorage Upgrades\42100 . Design\42191 - ROW's\Raw Walerline ROW's\Cily or 2 
Morganlown\CilY of Morganlown_120'(walcrline)Tax_Map 48A_PCL4.2.uoc 

Page 391 of 461



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Morgantown, has caused its name to be hereunto 

subscribed by Glen Kelly, its Interim City Manager, by authority duly given, and the said 

Morgantown Utility Board. acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown. a municipal 

corporation, has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General 

Manager, by authority duly given. 

WITNESS the following signatures: 

MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD 

By: _________ _ 

Timothy L. Ball, P.E. 
General Manager 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA. to-wit: 

On behalf of the 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: _________ _ 

Glen Ke\ly 
Interim City Manager 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_____ .2016, by Glen Kelly, Interim City Manager, acting for and on behalf of the City of 

Morgantown. 

My commission expires: _______________ ' 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

______ .2016, by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General Manager of the Morgantown Utility 

Board, acti ng for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown. a municipal corporation. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

This instrument prepared by: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

Morgantown Utility Board 
278 Greenbag Road 
P.O. Box 852 
Morgantown, WV 26507-0852 

X:\EngIProjccls\Misc\Raw Waler Slorage Upgrades\42100 Dcsign142191· ROW's\Raw Walerline ROW'slCily of 3 
MorganlownlCily of MorganlOWR_120'(walerline)Tnl<_Map 48A]CLA.2.doc 

Page 392 of 461



IIORGANTOWH • UTIUTY • BOARD 

EXHIBIT "A" ..... ----.- Proposed ell Right-of-way From 
The City o~ Morgcmtawn To The 

Morgantown Utility Boord. 

-. certify that I am engaged in 5U4"veying 
nclu!ively ,~ the Morganlown Utility Board. 
o political luCdM,ion of tho Stale of West 
Virginio, and bell&ve I om exempt frQM 
regulations ond lic""''''g UJ1OCI" w.st 
Vlf9inla Code Jo-1J~6·. 

AW-2209 

SIfT._1_ OF_1_ 

Page 393 of 461



RIGHT·OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS RIGHT-Of-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT, made and executed this 

__ day of _____ , 2016, by and between the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, party of 

the first part, Grantor, and the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, a municipal corporation, acting 

by and through the Morgantown Utility Board, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Board," 

party of the second part, Grantee, 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of $1.00 and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party of the first 

part, Grantor, does hereby grant and convey, with covenants of General Warranty, unto the said party 

of the second part, Grantee, and to its successors or assigns, a right-or-way and easement to 

construct, lay, operate, maintain, remove, reconstruct, replace, or repair pipelines for the carrying 

and transporting of sanitary sewage in, on, under, over, and through a certain tract and parcel ofland 

situate in Morgan Taxing District, Tax Map 3A, Parcel 56.2, Monongalia County, West Virginia, 

and which said tract and parcel of land is further described in a deed recorded in the Office of the 

Clerk of the County Commission of Monongalia County, West Virginia, in Deed Book No. 1221 at 

Page 430, to which said deed reference is hereby made for all pertinent purposes. 

follows: 

The location of said right-of-way and easement proposed upon said property is as 

±86·root sanitary sewer line easement; all as depicted and rurther 
described in Exhibit "A," attached and incorporated herein. 

It is covenanted and agreed between the parties hereto that the Board shall have a 

centerline right-of-way and easement on said property 20 feet in width, as constructed, and an 

easement(s) approximately perpendicular to the installed main line in order to emplace necessary 

service !ine(s) between the main and the served parcel, in order to facilitate sewer service. It is 

further covenanted and agreed that the Board shall properly backfill and restore to ground level, 

insofar as is practicable, any ditch opened on said right-of-way and eao;ement upon the completion of 

any construction work performed thereon. 

The said Grantor further grants and conveys unto said Grantee, its successors or assigns, 

the right of ingress, egress, and regress, to and from said right-of-way and easement for all proper 

purposes and at all reasonable times and a temporary construction right-of·way and easement of such 

X:lEng\ProjeCISIWork OrdersIAS_WORK ORDERSIAS-1168 - Popcnoe Run InierCeplor Improvemenls (3-2015)144100-
Design144 191 - ROW-sICily of Morganlown_86.doc 

Page 394 of 461



width as is reasonable and necessary to carry out the construction, repair, or replacement of all or 

part of the above-described sewer lines. The said Grantor does also grant and convey unto the said 

Grantee, its successors or assigns, the right to use said right-of-way and easement herein granted, 

along the course of the proposed sanitary sewer line, for the further purpose of transporting pipe, 

fittings, machinery, and equipment to and from neighboring lands, in and about the construction, 

operation, maintenance, removal, and replacement of the sanitary sewer pipeline or lines proposed to 

be laid on said right-of-way and easement. 

The said Grantor, their heirs or assigns, shall use and enjoy the premises of said right-of-

way and easement, except for the purposes hereinabove granted to the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, except that the said Grantor covenants and agrees not to erect any structure or place any 

object upon the right-of-way and easement hereby conveyed which would in any way interfere with 

the use and occupancy of said right-of-way and easement by the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, for the purposes hereinabove stated. Grantor further covenants and agrees not to change the 

contour or grade of the surface of the land upon which the above-described right-of-way and 

easement is located without first obtaining written permission to do so from Grantee, its successors 

or assigns. 

The Grantor does grant and convey said right-of-way and easement to the Grantee, its 

successors or assigns, upon the following terms and conditions: NONE 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their personal representatives, 

heirs, successors or assigns. 

DECLARATION OF CONSIDERATION OR VALUE 

The undersigned hereby declare: 

That the conveyance made in the document to which this declaration is appended is 

exempt from taxation under the provisions of Chapter II, Article 22, of the Code of West Virginia, 

for the reason that it is a conveyance made to a political subdivision of the State of West Virginia. 

(Without Consideration). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Morgantown, has caused its name to be hereunto 

subscribed by Glen Kelly, its Interim City Manager. by authority duly given, and the said 

Morgantown Utility Board, acting for and on behalf of the <;:ity of Morgantown, a municipal 

corporation, has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General 

Manager, by authority duly given. 

X;\Eng\Projecls\Work Orders\AS_ WORK ORDERS\AS-1168 . Popenoc Run Inlerceptor Improvemenls (3·2015)\44100 - 2 
Design\4419 J - ROW"s\Cily of Morganlown_86.doc 

Page 395 of 461



WITNESS the following signatures: 

MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD 

By: __________________ _ 

Timothy L. Ball. P.E. 
General Manager 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA. 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA. to-wit: 

On behalf of the 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: ______________ _ 

Glen Kelly 
Interim City Manager 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_____ . 2016, by Glen Kelly, Interim City Manager. acting for and on behalf of the City of 

Morgantown. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

______ ,2016, by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General Manager of the Morgantown Utility 

Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal corporation. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

This instrument prepared by: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

Morgantown Utility Board 
278 Greenbag Road 
P.O. Box 852 
Morgantown, WV 26507-0852 

X:\EnglProjccls\Work Orders\AS_ WORK ORDERS\AS·I J68 . Popenoe Run Inlerceplor Improvemenls (3·2015)\44100· 3 
\)esign\44191 . ROW's\Cily or Morganlown_86.doc 

Page 396 of 461



\ \ I : 
" \ Rf;9~~1 W :'111 ~I\KIS / / 

"0'1(;" .. , / ' 
" , T.,,:tAo P&Cf$.' ,' /' 

, \ O~ 1""4 "C ~~: I ' 
.. \ : ; 
\ \ ! ~ 
, \ I .I "" , \' . "~ 

SM"O"" tA"'.lf? 
'IORGA.N 

n,- 1.\ Pfl.R 5.~ 

09 ~!~ PG ,~" 

" / ' r-o'C,.~Ekr \\ ~lf;t.t~\)(J' / " 

\ 
' t;4:r)P(;..t.}I.J , " 

\ ' ! •• ~ 3At F--AA:, • , "-
, \ / l'~ ':,. I'U I,j / " 

'\ : :" \ / .I " ~, 

, 

! 
i 
i 

I 

/ , 

i . 

\/ 't!-\
, " ,I CIT'" Of .~. ,,. .. 'f~,.... I __ 
\/ • W)lI"m 

\ '<. / :'.~J. ""115.( , 
1:9-\ " 09 :';t;"1 1"':;,"'30 ±SSt I 

DRAWN 81': 

\---___ / I I , __ r \ ---t----_ , --/ -
~ , - , ~-.. CIlY'QF MORGANTOWN , 

, MORGAN \ 
.. 1M 3A PAR 56.2 

EXISTING SANITARY 
TO BE ABANDONED 

' -,-" I DB 1221 PG 0130 ! \ / " , , .~ , 
" ', / / :t142' 

CITY OC MO~C."NTOWN 
MO~C;\N70WN 

-~ :::'PA=i; 
OR ?;'! P(, 17R 

Chris Linger DAlE: 08/28/15 IIIDISIDN: 

''-'' '-'''-' ''- /,/'/ 
"'-JV 

!WE: 

i ""--- ---- -... r-- ... ___ 
. 
i Jl.D'TrI ~ JO"~I;(J'I 

MOq~N~ 

V, Pf\"~J 
OB''/!; ~-::., 

I , 

I 
i 

ROIl ~ C,,"', o'oJ..Lf.N 
'/nRt?A~. 

j'~ ~I\ PAC; ;Yl 

ORt 1
"" "G:)S] 

I : 
~---- ·-··---- ---l_._ I : 
: I I ; 

PROPOSED SANITARY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY (x861 AOA'.~ LEE ~ '.(OROAI' 

, I ............... - . 
---~ , " 

r:',.'·~~m 
.M~P>';~N 

7M';h o.'\P.$! 
nf\UA5 =G ~1n 

, , 
/ "'-, " 

/( "'" ~ , 

~ 
~ 
'~ 
-\ 

c,TY "JJ; t,·IJRC..f..fIfO\"'l 
'.IC·~GMlrO' .... ", 

n .... -"i r'tf\C ~ 

DR?2!i "C H~ 

" J 

'>. PROPOSED 30· 
....;;: SANITARY 

IlRAWIG lTI1£: 

" 

-"-. 

EXHIBIT "A" 
~ WORGAHTOWN • UT/uTY· BCMRD ... J Proposed C/L Right-of-way From 
m __ .... _~_._. __ ._ The City of Morgantown Ta The 

Morgantown Utility Boord. 

DESIGH BY': DAlE: 

CHEa<ED lIlY: om: 
N'I'NI\IED BY: om: 
~ 1" 50' 

-I certify thot I com angcged in 3Uf"\lll:yin~ 
exclusively tor the Morgantown Utility Beard. 
a polltteOI subdlvl'!!Ilon 01 the State of West 
Vlt'~. on.d blHI!!""" I am IlIxempt from 
regutalior. . and kct"a!n9 under West 

V"_~~ 

Chrd'opn L 1ft9. 

This ExhiI:Jlt ~ I'\Ol Intended to be a 
property sul'Y8y. It is intended to be lJeed 
for inrcrmatlDn purpose, ~ty. 

PRIDoIECT NUIIBER DIW/IIC NUMBER 

AS-1168 

SllTo_1_ OF_1_ 

Page 397 of 461



RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT, made and executed this 

__ day of _____ , 2016, by and between the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, party of 

the first part, Grantor, and the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, a municipal corporation, acting 

by and through the Morgantown Utility Board, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Board," 

party of the second part, Grantee, 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of $ 1.00 and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party of the first 

part, Grantor, does hereby grant and convey, with covenants of General Warranty, unto the said party 

of the second part, Grantee, and to its successors or assigns, a right-of-way and easement to 

construct, lay, operate, maintain, remove, reconstruct, replace, or repair pipelines for the carrying 

and transporting of sanitary sewage in, on, under, over, and through a certain tract and parcel ofland 

situate in Morgan Taxing District, Tax Map 3A, Parcel 54, Monongalia County, West Virginia, and 

which said tract and parcel of land is further described in a deed recorded in the Office of the Clerk 

of the County Commission of Monongalia County, West Virginia, in Deed Book No. 1221 at Page 

430, to which said deed reference is hereby made for all pertinent purposes. 

follows: 

The location of said right-of-way and easement proposed upon said property is as 

±97-root sanitary sewer line easement; all as depicted and further 
described in Exhibit "A," attached and incorporated herein. 

It is covenanted and agreed between the parties hereto that the Board shall have a 

centerline right-of-way and easement on said property 20 feet in width, as constructed, and an 

easement(s) approximately perpendicular to the installed main line in order to emplace necessary 

service line(s) between the main and the served parcel, in order to facilitate sewer service. It is 

further covenanted and agreed that the Board shall properly backfill and restore to ground level, 

insofar as is practicable, any ditch opened on said right-of-way and easement upon the completion of 

any construction work perfonned thereon. 

The said Grantor further grants and conveys unto said Grantee, its successors or assigns, 

the right of ingress, egress, and regress, to and from said right-of-way and easement for all proper 

purposes and at all reasonable times and a temporary construction right-of-way and easement of such 

X:\Eng\ProjeclsIWork OrderslAS_ WORK ORDERSIAS·116H . Popenoe Run Inlerceplor Improvemenls (J·20 15)1441 00 · 
Design144191 - ROW'sICiIY of Morgonlown_97.uoc 

Page 398 of 461



width as is reasonable and necessary to carry out the construction, repair, or replacement of all or 

part of the above-described sewer lines. The said Grantor does also grant and convey unto the said 

Grantee, its successors or assigns, the right to use said right-of-way and easement herein granted, 

along the course of the proposed sanitary sewer line, for the further purpose of transporting pipe, 

fittings, machinery, and equipment to and from neighboring lands, in and about the construction, 

operation, maintenance, removal, and replacement of the sanitary sewer pipeline or lines proposed to 

be laid on said right-of-way and easement. 

The said Grantor, their heirs or assigns, shall use and enjoy the premises of said right-of-

way and easement, except for the purposes hereinabove granted to the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, except that the said Grantor covenants and agrees not to erect any structure or place any 

object upon the right-of-way and easement hereby conveyed which would in any way interfere with 

the use and occupancy of said right-of-way and easement by the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, for the purposes hereinabove stated. Grantor further covenants and agrees not to change the 

contour or grade of the surface of the land upon which the above-described right-of-way and 

easement is located without first obtaining written permission to do so from Grantee, its successors 

or assigns. 

The Grantor does grant and convey said right-of-way and easement to the Grantee, its 

successors or assigns, upon the following terms and conditions: NONE 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their personal representatives, 

heirs, successors or assigns. 

DECLARATION OF CONSIDERATION OR VALUE 

The undersigned hereby declare: 

That the conveyance made in the document to which this declaration is appended is 

exempt from taxation under the provisions of Chapter II, Article 22, of the Code of West Virginia, 

for the reason that it is a conveyance made to a political subdivision of the State of West Virginia. 

(Without Consideration). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Morgantown, has caused its name to be hereunto 

subscribed by Glen KelIy, its Interim City Manager, by authority duly given, and the said 

Morgantown Utility Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal 

corporation, has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General 

Manager, by authority duly given. 

X:lEng\ProjeclsIWork Orders\AS_ WORK ORDERS\AS-1168 - Popenoe Run Inlerceplor Improvemenls (3·2015)144100 - 2 
Design\44191 . ROW-sICily of Morganlown_97.doc 

Page 399 of 461



WITNESS the following signatures: 

MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD 

By: _________ _ 

Timothy L. Ball, P.E. 
General Manager 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

On behal f of the 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: __________ _ 

Glen Kelly 
Interim City Manager 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_____ • 2016, by Glen Kelly, Interim City Manager, acting for and on behalf of the City of 

Morgantown. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_____ ~. 2016, by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General Manager of the Morgantown Utility 

Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal corporation. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

This instrument prepared by: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

Morgantown Utility Board 
278 Greenbag Road 
P.O. Box 852 
Morgantown, WV 26507-0852 

X:lEnglProjccls\Work On/crsIAS_WORK ORDERSIAS-J 168 - Popenoe Run Inlerceptor Improvements (3-2015)\44100 - 3 
Dcsigo\44191 - ROW'slCity of Morgantown 97.doc 

Page 400 of 461



\ \ / 
'\ \ ht;·Hi~_r.cr ~.~ r~IR~'·."',I~ / 
\ \ ' ,'()R(:',N / 

" t': 1.\ '''f~Q, 53 ' 
\ , 0 0, :~:.., PC ,,) i . \ ' \. , / 

, \ i 
\. \ : 
\ \ ,I 

~a;;ERT \', IIlP; ;q,\I(1S 
1.o(J"lGo>N: 

.. \ i 
\, " 

-,~ l<\ PAR 53 : 
DB ~~iI rc,~ 

. / \\ , 

\./ 
\'{ 

PROPOSED SANITARY 
RIGHT -OF-WAY (:1:97') 

G· ...... _ 
\ --, ---_.-
\ 

\ 

\ \ r-- , 

\\., ~±95' I' 
.. , ' 

EXISTING SANITARY •• , • ' 

TO BE ABANDONED ... 

i . , 
I , , 

s;..!~'OnAJ~lJl~~ 
,.·OM:;..· ..... 

7l.. ,"\A Pl\~~" 
oe ':!'-1 I'G I~~ /, 

I ", 
I "-

I .. 

I '~ 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

MORGAN 
TM3A PAR54 

DB 1221 PG 430 

:t97' 

/ 

/ "', '/ .... , / ,/., 

DRAWN 8'1': 

err ... CF MO~t~ANTOI.VN 
MO=<t'"_ANTOWr-.; 

-M f, PAR L 
os 222:1 PC 178 

Chris Lin<,ler Do\1E: 08/28/15 IRFoIISION: 

..... ,/ 
'-...!/ 

DIiTE: 

,I 
,I , 

I 

I 
i , 

I 

AOI~ 8; CJ""C! N...lf,J 
,,' O'l\i>\N 

M 3~ PI\R!'oG 
I!~ : . ,~ PC!;;) 

, 
I 
i , 
i 
I 

.... --. ... .-..,. ..... r-- .. _ 

JOOl'N L JOI-INSON 
!.CO,!jl,:,' 

~'~""'''51; 
oa 1,5 F1(:, 7q~ 

. r --.------ l' . _._-i : ---
, I 
i : 
t A,O.':' ~~' LEE;tj, / ' Oo.r."", I - " ~",~. ' ___ I (' .. I'V'jAO" 

_ ____ . __ ~JOQ.t;:!I" 
__ ~ : ,~ J'~ rc,fl5ij • 

'7'~OroJO:;GN.TO"'" . --• • _ , h&,.t" .O~'O 
MOOG"'· / .......... 

• ...-1'" f~I\R~' ~" ...... 
1m ,n' I"G~Jli ,/ '. / " 

~ ,/" "'. -- / " ~ // ", 
y' " 

./\ " I ". 
I . 

I 
\ 
\ 
\ 

., 
c., 
'1, 
~ 

%. 

OW OF "",,<;;.10 TOW'. 
.'C· .. ;tGA~'" :\~~ .... 
-'J PAq 

OR ns 1>G'18 

\ ). PROPOSED 30" 
- < SANITARY 

DIWIING TJn[: 

DESIGN 8'1': Do\1E: IIORGA~OWN • UTIUTY • BCMRD Proposed C/L Right-of-way From 
The City of Morgantown To The 

Morgantown UWi(y Board. EXHIBIT "A" 
-............... ~-........ ....-.......... CHECKED BY: 

APPROVED BY: 

DIiTE: 

DAm 
sc.t.I..E; 1· 50' 

"I cerUfy tha1 I am en"jloQed in 5ur~ying 
elCclusi~y for the MorgontoW'1"I lJtlrlty Board. 
o political !ubdivl,)on Qf the Stahl of West 
Virqh1Jo. vlld DeJieveo I om It:I:el'l''lpt from 
r~otlc.,... cnc 1 ( C:~ r'l liI'l9 undet' West 

V~q~ lo C_ (JKJ::) 
Ch ristopher L.. L#I gf't 

n,ls Ed'!lbjt is ne\ int.,ded to b~ 0 
property SYI"J!IIy. It i, inte"ded to be used 
tor ifllormction purpow, only. 

PRDJECI' NUIEER DRAWING NUMBER 

AS-1168 

SHT,_1_ OF_1_ 

Page 401 of 461



RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT, made and executed this 

__ day of _____ , 2016, by and between the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, party of 

the first part. Grantor, and the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, a municipal corporation, acting 

by and through the Morgantown Utility Board, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Board," 

party of the second part, Grantee, 

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the sum of $1.00 and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the said party of the first 

part, Grantor, does hereby grant and convey, with covenants of General Warranty, unto the said party 

of the second part, Grantee, and to its successors or assigns, a right-of-way and easement to 

construct, lay, operate, maintain, remove. reconstruct. replace, or repair pipelines for the carrying 

and transporting of sanitary sewage in, on, under. over, and through a certain tract and parcel ofland 

situate in Morgantown Taxing District, Tax Map 8, Parcel 2. Monongalia County. West Virginia. 

and which said tract and parcel of land is further described in a deed recorded in the Office of the 

Clerk of the County Commission of Monongalia County. West Virginia, in Deed Book No. 225 at 

Page 178. to which said deed reference is hereby made for all pertinent purposes. 

follows: 

The location of said right-of-way and easement proposed upon said property is as 

±1,682-foot sanitary sewer line easement; all as depicted and further 
described in Exhibit "A," attached and incorporated herein. 

It is covenanted and agreed between the parties hereto that the Board shall have a 

centerline right-of-way and easement on said property 20 feet in width. as constructed, and an 

easement(s) approximately perpendicular to the installed main line in order to emplace necessary 

service \ine(s) between the main and the served parcel, in order to facilitate sewer service. It is 

further covenanted and agreed that the Board shall properly backfill and restore to ground level, 

insofar as is practicable. any ditch opened on said right-of-way and easement upon the completion of 

any construction work performed thereon. 

The said Grantor further grants and conveys unto said Grantee, its successors or assigns. 

the right of ingress, egress, and regress. to and from said right-of-way and easement for all proper 

purposes and at all reasonable ti mes and a temporary construction right-of-way and easement of such 

X:\Eng\ProjeCl.IWork Orders\AS_ WORK ORDERSIAS-II68 - Popenoe Run Interceptor Improvements (3-2015)144100-
Dcsignl44191 - ROW'slCity or Mor8ontown_1682.doc 

Page 402 of 461



width as is reasonable and necessary to carry out the construction, repair, or replacement of all or 

part of the above-described sewer lines. The said Grantor does also grant and convey unto the said 

Grantee. its successors or assigns, the right to use said right-of-way and easement herein granted. 

along the course of the proposed sanitary sewer line. for the further purpose of transporting pipe, 

fittings, machinery, and equipment to and from neighboring lands. in and about the construction. 

operation. maintenance. removal, and replacement oFttie sanitary sewer pipeline or lines proposed to 

be laid on said right-oF-way and easement. 

The said Grantor, their heirs or assigns, shall use and enjoy the premises of said right-of-

way and easement, except for the purposes hereinabove granted to the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns, except that the said Grantor covenants and agrees not to erect any structure or place any 

object upon the right-of-way and easement hereby conveyed which would in any way interfere with 

the use and occupancy of said right-of-way and easement by the said Grantee, its successors or 

assigns. for the purposes hereinabove stated. Grantor further covenanls and agrees nol to change the 

contour or grade of the surface of the land upon which the above-described right-of-way and 

easement is located without first obtaining written permission to do so from Grantee, its successors 

or assigns. 

The Grantor does grant and convey said right-of-way and easement to the Grantee, its 

successors or assigns, upon the following terms and conditions: NONE 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their personal representatives, 

heirs, successors or assigns. 

DECLARATION OF CONSIDERATION OR VALUE 

The undersigned hereby declare: 

That the conveyance made in the document to which this declaration is appended is 

exempt from taxation under the provisions of Chapter II, Article 22, of the Code of West Virginia, 

for the reason that it is a conveyance made to a political subdivision of the State of West Virginia. 

(Without Consideration). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Morgantown. has caused its name to be hereunto 

subscribed by Glen Kelly, its Interim City Manager, by authority duly given, and the said 

Morgantown Utility Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal 

corporation, has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General 

Manager. by authority duly given. 

X:\Eng\ProjeCISIWork Orders\AS_WORK ORDERS\AS-1168· Popcnoe Run Interceptor Improvements (3-2015)144100· 2 
Designl44191 - ROW'slCity of Morganlown_1682.doc 

Page 403 of 461



WITNESS the following signatures: 

MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD 

By: _________ _ 

Timothy L. Ball, P.E. 
General Manager 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

On behalf of the 
CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: _________ _ 

Glen Kelly 
Interim City Manager 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_ _ ___ , 2016, by Glen Kelly, lnteri m City Manager, acti ng for and on behalf of the City of 

Morgantown. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

COUNTY OF MONONGALIA, to-wit: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of 

_ ____ ~, 2016, by Timothy L. Ball, P.E., General Manager of the Morgantown Utility 

Board, acting for and on behalf of the City of Morgantown, a municipal corporation. 

My commission expires: ______________ _ 

This instrument prepared by: 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of West Virginia 

Morgantown Utility Board 
278 Greenbag Road 
P.O. Box 852 
Morgantown, WV 26507-0852 

X:\Eng\ProjcctsIWork Ordcrs\AS_ WORK ORDERS\AS-1168 - Popcnoc Run Inlerceplor Improvements (3-2015)144100 · 3 
Design\44191 - ROW'slCily or Morganlown_1682 .doc 

Page 404 of 461



PROPOSED SANITARY '\,' • \ . . ' _ .. I , 
RIGHT-Of-WAY (:t36') 

, 
/1 

t ,"" ... : . 
~ ~.' -"', ' ...... .. ...... J [ , 

... r---........ I 

I~' I ''t---...
J 

• ...... : - , 
PROPOSED 30" 

SANrrARY 

/" 
: \ , 

:~ "" " " 
I ,,~ 

" " ... ... 
. " , ' . '\ -~ / ' 

"- .. "\ .. ... 

... 
'O .... '~OE RlJN \ 

" '\ ., 
I ,, ') EXISTING SANTTARY .. \ r TO BE ABANDONED 

,/ \'\ ' .... 

I .. i \ , \ , \ 
I Df~ t.'l~~ J< \, I 'I. .... 

I :&~o:.r" '/ ' 
" 1).1'; "JNV 'L-_ .. _ \ 

/ '--"', 
\ 

~:). 

\ 

... 
... 

\ 
\ 

IIIWIN BY: Chris Linger 1M1£: 08/28/1 S IR£VISIDN: 

DESIGN BY: 1M1£: 

\ 

\""",,!J r:t)! I~:'I.'A 
PA'll<lNG 1.0T 

1M1£: 

• 

\ 
... '\, 

'\, 

~3' 

\, 

'''''', 

,'~. " r-~~ l ' , i 
_.-.. \ I 

\ 
" \ '--'-1 \ : ~ '. __ -- L-A \ \ \ - j 
, '\ ' \l ' 

PROPOSED SANITARY l... - - j...~~~. "\ 

RIGHT-Of-WAY (±1646') - - ....,.- ,--"\ " 

CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
MORGANTOWN 

TM8 PAR2 
08225 PG 178 

- _- --1Y \ \ / 
\ f...~ \ ) ........ _\ / \: -......... i' ""I \ . .. ...... .-

. -' j \ . ' '< , ....... :: '" '. , -... '-. / 
"','Z.. / / 

" " ' ' 

, , 

.. .J / ' ,, ; . 

...... ..... / .. ' 

FOPENOE RUN ""',>_ _ -"""""""-:::t / 
... ' J . • ...... ....... . 

X'lEPPS"AI'K " .. '--- \. ---- ...... --........:, 

±10' 

'\" 

" e<rl lly '~ol I ~'" """aq.d In .ur~)in9 
•• ", ... o<Iy'or ' he --9Cnl""" Ulm, y ao~ 
o pollUeol .. bdMolon 01 t~. State 01 lilnl 
Y,r9w, ia, <lnd ~leve I em .~! from 
regulat ions and lic~,"'; und't r " IU 

~rgi"~~. 7]m 
~ris'ophe.r L Un.;.,. 

Thi$ Eld1lblt Is "DI lnttll"ded to be a 
pro~rty 'IJNe)&. II ,. ~'en d'od to tie u,1J(I 
for information purpcsew o"'y. 

PROJECT NUIIIER I lIWIING NUllBER l IJORGAHTOWN • UT/UTY· SOARO 'm::: J Proposed C/L Right-at-way From 
:-_ ..... _ .... _.--.- The City of Morga'}town To The I AS-1168 

Morgantown UilMy Boord. 

CHECKED B'f: 1M1£: 

AI'PRO\IED BY: 1M1£: EXHIBIT "A
n 

seAL£: 1 .. 200' SHI'._1_ DF_1_ 

Page 405 of 461



Fairmont Morgantown Housing Authority's Responses to Questions regarding creation of 
proposed Morgantown Redevelopment District No.5 - Upper FaIling Run TIF District 

1) In reviewing the TIF statue, I want to ask you if you believe it truly meets 

the requirements of a TIF- How does it encourage economic growth and 
development. What are the future jobs and income derived from this 
project? 

Under and in accordance with the TIF Act, the TIF application proposes the construction of public 
infrastructure improvements, roadways, water and sewer extensions, stormwater, and related 
improvements. These public improvements, all authorized TIF project improvements, are proper 
under the TIF Act as necessary to allow the development of the project site - in accordance with 
W.Va. Code §7-11B-2(a) which provides: "It is found and declared to be the policy of this state to 
promote and facilitate the orderly development and economic stability of its communities. County 
commissions [ and municipalities] need the ability to raise revenue to finance capjtal improvements 
and facilities that are designed to encourage economic growth and development in geographic 
areas characterized by high levels of unemployment stagnant employment, slow income growth, 
contaminated property or inadequate infrastructure. The construction of necessary capital 
improvements in accordance with local economic development plans will encourage investing in 
job-producing private development and expand the public tax base." (Emphasis added). Without 
the availability ofTIF Funds to construct the noted public infrastructure improvements, to address 
"inadequate infrastructure" to the site, the development of the site and construction ofthe proposed 
affordable senior and memory care housing would not be feasible. Affordable housing has been 
identified as a leading limiter of economic growth of the greater Morgantown area. As set forth 
in the appl ication, the project will generate approximately 77 construction and permanent jobs as 
well as provide much needed senior, retirement and memory care housing within the boundaries 
of The City of Morgantown. 

2) Who is really benefitting from this Tif Project???? ConSidering I have 

learned that this ;s not for low income housing .... and the Mgtn Fairmont 

Housing Authority plans on selling the property to a developer??? 

Both Morgantown and the greater Monongalia County area and its senior citizens are the 
beneficiaries of this TIF Project. The Fairmont Morgantown Housing Authority (FMHA) is a 
public housing authority, created and established by the cities of Morgantown and Fairmont to 
address affordable housing including affordable senior and memory care housing issues and needs 
in both communities. This project is in furtherance of their statutory mandate and addresses a 
crucial housing shortage for the noted population of The City of Morgantown. This project is for 

Page 406 of 461



and will benefit low income seniors, by constructing affordable senior and memory care housing 
that permits them to remain contributing citizens of the City. In order to facilitate construction of 
the project and to make the land and project subject to ad valorem taxation, thus creating the TIF 
increment necessary to fund the TIF Project, it is necessary for FMHA to sell the property to a 
private developer under the condition the project will be for the intended purposes as also 
reinforced by the WVU deed restriction. The proceeds of sale will be used by FMHA to further its 
mission by-providing additional funds to FMHA for other low income and affordable housing 
projects. 

3) There are currently 8 TIFs in this County ... and the state has strongly voiced 

concerns with the Tlfs that were alreadv in place. Four of the current TIFS 

are in the City ..• By adding a new TIF, which mayor may not generate any 

economic development, this could have a detrimental effect on any future 

Tif projects.... I ~ 

The West Virginia Development Office, which oversees the State's approval of all TIF 
applications, has reviewed and approved this application (see attached). We were advised by the 
WVDO that Commissioner Bloom contacted them with his concerns, they took those concerns 
into consideration and then approved the application. The WVDO has not advised the FMHA or 
its legal counsel of any such concerns respecting this application. The State's approval speaks for 
itself on this point. 

1) The deed that was given to the Fairmont ·Mgtn Housing Authority clearly 

states the following: •..•.. read it .... the prOject, which I know several of you 

believ~for low income housing ..... well, only a small percentage .. the 
majority of this housing is not low income housing ... 

There is clearly a legal question concerning between the deed of the property and 
the letter from WVU (February 2, 2005) which rewrites the concept of what low 

income housing Is ... in the letter it states,"By copy of this letter, I will ask Beverly 
Kerr to update the property deed." This was never done. 

The deed from West Virginia University (WVU) to FMHA provides that the property must be 
used for "low-cost affordable housing." Subsequent to execution and recordation of the referenced 
deed, WVU provided written correspondence to FMHA clarifying that they intended the term 
"Low-cost housing" is to be defined "as residential property that is leased or conveyed to persons 
at or below 150% of the area median income as established by the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development.' Additionally, as part of developing the current project, FMHA and 
WVU had agreed to execute an amendment to be recorded to publicly clarify these exact applicable 
terms. FMHA and WVU have held finalizing, executing and recording this additional 

Page 407 of 461



documentation until such time that the private developer is selected and all parties can agree on 
the final language of such documents. 

-
2) The description reads: ... (read the paper) ....... and you are using a TIF to build 

a student housing complex 

The application contained a reference to a potential low-income single mother student housing 
project in addition to the senior/retirement and memory care housing project. However, upon 
further evaluation and consideration of this site for such project, FMHA has decided to not pursue 
that project on this site. Note, however, that the proposal was to assist non-traditional low-income 
single mothers attempting to gain a college education to improve their and their children's lot in 
life. 

3) The recommendations includes - 60 housing u'J.its priced up to $300,000 , 
or pricing units higher starting at $900 llc.Jvtlj 

4) In the study states the average income age of 55 and older in the 

Morgantown community is $48,472 a year in 201S .... and will increase to 

$54,830 ... 00 you reallv believe those numbers??? 

The studies, data and recommendations in the application and supporting documentation speak for 
themselves. 

Page 408 of 461



-Sol met with the Assessors office .... to try and find some answers ..• 

• learned that because you will be having Low income housing - it is treated 

differently when being assessed .. .!t was statated that it could generate $4 - 6 
mllllon ...... during the 30 year Tif period. 

low income housing may be interpreted as government subsidized housing. If 
that is the case the values used to assess property are different than a normal 
housing project. 

To determine assessed values for low income housingl a different methodology is 
used .• 

Example: A $6,000,000 project may be put on the land book for approximately 
$700,000 or roughly 10% of the project cost. That is based on the actual figures 
supplied by a project being looked at for Morgantown. 

This has been the trend in the surrounding states and there are several projects 
being treated in a like manner currently In West Virginia. 

I contacted Kanawha county to confer with them about this issue and that is what 
I was told. If we went to court, we would be over-ruled because precedent has 
already been set. 

Comment respecting potential assessment treatment of the project - FMHA and all potential 
private developers interested in the project understand and fully expect the project to be taxed as 
all other private housing projects and not receive any reduced or special tax treatment. There is 
not intent or expectation that the project will receive any government subsidies. 

2) The deed for the property is currently non taxable ..• so the group would have to 
sell it to the developer ... ls there a precedent with this development ..... And more 
importantly ... what Is the difference between WVU using a private/public deal to 
build student housing and what you are doing with this project????? How does 

this bring in economic development?? L I A.' J. J... I1J. J ~ 

Page 3, question #2 - See above respecting ownership, transfer and tax treatment ofthe proposed 
project. The economic benefits of this project to The City of Morgantown is to provide affordable 
housing to productive seniors within the boundaries of the City, which increases all levels of 
economic activity within the City and County. 

Page 409 of 461



· 'r-
Other areas that need to be answered are ...... the road coming out to 705 and was 
the MMPO aware of this new road??? Or the curreJ1t law suit in front of t~e 
Supreme Court about private/public taxation? ~ ... J ~ f -l .... ~ pf/"tf -it,'t 

{ , .. .J ,"",+ 
I 

MPO Question - The MPO is aware of the project and has advised FMHA that through a traffic 
simulation analysis the impact of the project on RT 705 would be minimal and would not be 
considered incompatible with MPO plans. 

Supreme Court Tax Case - The referenced case has absolutely no relevance to this project. 

A TIF is for a private developer who is building or planning to build a project 
requesting a TIF for needed infrastructure. It has never been used for a non

profit who is going to sell to the highest bidder. 

This is not the first TIF and similar project plan in West Virginia proposed by a public or nonprofit 
entity, nor even the first in Monongalia County (i.e., the County's Mon General Hospital TIF 
Project - access road project). Further, as the current owner of the property and charged with 
addressing and developing low-income and affordable housing in The City of Morgantown, 
FMHA has set the parameters for the development and operation of this much needed affordable 
senior and memory care housing and is currently in the active process of identifying and selecting 
a private developer to undertake the development, financing, construction and operation of the 
project - as a private project subject to ad valorem taxes for purposes of permitting the TIF project 
to be finance the necessary public infrastructure improvements required to make the site feasible. 

Page 410 of 461



/ 

~ V;J 
{WeIst Vi'}Iinia v' 
~JUSA 

October 6,2016 

Mr. Jeff Mikorski 
City Manager 
City of Morgantown 
389 Spruce Street, 3m Floor 
Morgantown. WV 26505 

Dear Mr. Mikorski: 

WEST VIRGINIA DEVELOPMENT OFFICE 

1900 Kanawha Boulevard East· Charleston, WV 25305-0311 
(304) 558-2234· (800) 982-3386 • WVDO.org 

This correspondence serves as official notice that pursuant to W. Va. Code §7-11B-7 and 7-11B-
8, the West Virginia Development Office (WVDO) has reviewed the City of Morgantown's 
application for Tax Increment Financing (TIF) for District #5 Upper Falling Run and Project #1. 
The WVDO has found that the application is complete and thereby approved a total additionaI 
bonding capacity not to exceed $7,000,000. These funds will be used to extend the road, water, 
sewer and other necessary infrastructure to the proposed development in the Upper Fa1ling Run 
area in Morgantown. 

Thank you for your cooperation regarding this process. If you have any questions. please do not 
hesitate to contact Mr. Todd E. Hooker at (304) 558-2234. 

~(~uro[~~VT) 
ExecutIve DIrector ...... Y 

JKB:teh 

cc: Todd Hooker. WVDO 

Page 411 of 461



District and Project Plan Approval Ordinance 

ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND CREATING A NEW 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT IN THE CITY 
OF MORGANTOWN, MONONGALIA COUNTY, WEST 
VIRGINIA TO BE KNOWN AS "THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.5"; 
APPROVING THE UPPER FALLING RUN PROJECT 
PLAN NO. 1 AS APPROVED BY THE WEST VIRGINIA 
DEVELOPMENT OFFICE; ESTABLISHING A TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING FUND AND PROVIDING FOR 
OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. 

WHEREAS, The City of Morgantown (the "City") is authorized by the West Virginia 
Tax Increment Financing Act, Chapter 7, Article lIB of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as 
amended (the "Act"), to create development or redevelopment districts, cause project plans to be 
prepared, issue tax increment financing obligations and take other actions to facilitate the orderly 
development and economic stability of the City, all as more fully set forth in the Act; 

WHEREAS, Fairmont-Morgantown Housing Authority ("FMHA"), has requested that 
the City (i) approve the creation of a development district to be known and designated as "The 
City of Morgantown Development District No.5", comprised of approximately 20 acres and as 
more fully described in Exhibit A hereto (the "TIF District"), (ii) approve a project plan, 
specifically being the development of certain public infrastructure improvements, including, 
without limitation, water lines, sanitary sewer lines, gas lines, stormwater drainage, new road 
construction and road improvements and other related infrastructure and utilities improvements, 
all within or benefitting the TIF District, to be known and designated as "Upper Falling Run 
Project Plan No.1", as more fully described in Exhibit B hereto (the "Project Plan"), and (iii) 
establish a tax increment financing fund (the "TIF Fund") to permit the utilization of tax 
increment financing; 

WHEREAS, the City did, on June 21, 2016, following proper notice thereof, hold a 
public hearing with respect to the Tax Increment Financing Application relating to the creation 
of the TIF District and proposing the Project Plan (the "Application") wherein interested parties 
were afforded a reasonable opportunity to express their views on the proposed creation of the 
TIF District and its proposed boundaries and the proposed approval of the Project Plan; 

WHEREAS, the City submitted the Application to the Director of the West Virginia 
Development Office (the "Director") for his review and approval, all in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Act; 

WHEREAS, the Director has, by letter dated October 6, 2016, notified the City that the 
West Virginia Development Office has reviewed the Application and has found the Application 
regarding both the TIF District and the Project Plan to be complete, and has further provided that 

Page 412 of 461



the City may now enter an ordinance creating the TIF District, approving the Project Plan and 
establishing the TIF Fund; 

WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that the Application meets the criteria set 
forth in the Act for creation of a development district, formulation of a project plan and 
establishment of a tax increment financing fund; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "City Council") has determined to enact 
this Ordinance that approves, certifies and creates the TIF District, approves and certifies the 
Project Plan and establishes the TIF Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. Justification for Approval of TIF District. It is hereby found and determined that 
the real property within the TIF District will be benefitted by eliminating or preventing the 
development or spread of slums or blighted, deteriorated or deteriorating areas, discouraging the 
loss of commerce, industry or employment, increasing employment therein or any combination 
thereof; that development or redevelopment thereof will not be solely used for development of 
commercial businesses that will unfairly compete in the local economy; and that development or 
redevelopment is in the public interest because it will discourage commerce, industry or 
manufacturing from moving their operations to another state, result in increased employment in 
the City or result in preservation or enhancement of the tax base of the City. 

2. Justification for Approval of Project Plan. It is hereby found and determined that 
the real property within the TIF District will be benefitted by implementing the Project Plan by 
eliminating or preventing the development or spread of slums or blighted, deteriorated or 
deteriorating areas, discouraging the loss of commerce, industry or employment, increasing 
employment therein or any combination thereof. 

3. Approval and Creation of TIF District. The TIF District, to be known as "The 
City of Morgantown Development District No.5" is hereby approved, certified and created as of 
the date of adoption and entry of this Ordinance. The TIF District shall have the boundaries sct 
forth in Exhibit A. 

4. Approval of Project Plan. _ Th~]J9jectPl<}!l, as_~Jforthin Exhibit B,js_hereby_ 
expressly found to be economically feasible and is hereby approved and certified. The projects 
set forth in the Project Plan, or any portion of it subsequently deemed by the City to be included 
(the "Projects"), are hereby approved and declared to be eligible for funding in whole or in part, 
from tax increment financing obligations and from moneys remaining in the TIF Fund after there 
has first been paid all debt service, reserve fund deficiency and other payments payable in 
connection with any bonds, notes or other obligations payable from the TIF Fund, which the 
City, in its discretion, may determine to issue from time to time in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

Page 413 of 461



5. Establishment of TIF Fund. The TIP Fund is hereby established as a separate 
fund into which all tax increment revenues and other revenues designated by the City, for the 
benefit of the TIF District shall be deposited, and from which all costs of the Projects shall be 
paid, which may be assigned to and held by a trustee for the benefit of bondholders if tax 
increment financing obligations are issued by the City. 

6. Allocation of Property Taxes. All ad valorem property taxes on real and tangible 
personal property having a tax situs in the TIF District shall be assessed, collected and allocated 
in the following manner for so long as any tax increment financing obligations payable from the 
TIF Fund are outstanding and unpaid: 

(a) For each tax year, the Monongalia County Assessor shall record in the 
land and personal property books both the Base Assessed Value and the Current Assessed 
Value of the real and tangible personal property having a tax situs in the TIF District, as 
such terms are defined in the Act. The Base Assessed Value shall be the value of all real 
and tangible personal property located within the TIF District as of July 1, 2015. 

(b) Ad valorem taxes collected from regular levies upon real and tangible 
personal property having a tax situs in the TIF District that are attributable to the lower of 
the Base Assessed Value or the Current Assessed Value of real and tangible personal 
property located in the TIF District shall be allocated to the levying bodies situate in the 
County (the County Commission of Monongalia County, the City and the Monongalia 
County Board of Education) in the same manner as applicable to the tax year 
commencing July 1,2015. 

(c) The positive tax increment, if any, with respect to real and tangible 
personal property in the TIF District shall be allocated and paid into the TIF Fund and 
shall be used (i) to pay the principal of and interest on tax increment financing bonds, 
notes or other obligations outstanding and payable from the TIF Fund, including the 
principal of and interest on the tax increment financing obligations anticipated to be 
issued to finance a portion of the costs of the Projects, funding any reserve fund 
deficiency and any other payments payable in connection with such bonds, notes or 
obligations and (ii) to payor reimburse costs of projects in the TIF District. Any levying 
body having the TIP District within its jurisdiction shall not receive any portion of the 
annual tax increment except as otherwise provided in the Act. 

(d) In no event shall the tax increment include any taxes collected from excess 
levies, levies for general obligation bonded indebtedness or any levies other than the 
regular levies provided for in the Act. 

7. Use of Proceeds of Tax Increment Financing Obligations. Proceeds from tax 
increment financing obligations anticipated to be issued under the Act and revenues available in 
the TIF Fund may only be used to pay for costs of development or redevelopment projects to 
foster economic development in the TIF District, when such development or redevelopment 
project or projects would not reasonably be expected to occur without tax increment financing. 

Page 414 of 461



8. Need for TIF Financing. The City Council hereby expressly finds and states that 
the Projects included in the Project Plan are not reasonably expected to occur without the use of 
tax increment financing. 

9. Dissolution of TIF District. In the event that all tax increment financing 
obligations issued in connection with the Project Plan or any subsequently approved project plan 
have been paid or defeased and are no longer outstanding and any portion of the Projects or any 
subsequently approved project to be paid on a pay-as-you-go basis from the proceeds of the TIF 
Fund have been paid, the TIF District shall be dissolved. 

10. Severability of Invalid Provisions. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision 
of this Ordinance should be held invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of 
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

11. Headings, Etc. The headings and catchlines of the articles, sections and 
subsections hereof are for convenience of reference only, and shall not affect in any way the 
meaning or interpretation of any provision hereof. 

12. Conflicting Provision Repealed. All ordinances, resolutions, indentures or orders, 
or parts thereof, that conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such 
conflict, hereby repealed with respect to the subject matter of this Ordinance. 

13. Covenant of Due Procedure, Etc. The City covenants that all acts, conditions, 
things and procedures required to exist, to happen, to be performed or to be taken precedent to 
and in the adoption and entry of this Ordinance do exist, have happened, have been performed 
and have been taken in regular and due time, form and manner as required by and in full 
compliance with the laws and Constitution of the State of West Virginia applicable thereto; and 
that the Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and members of the City Council were at all times 
when any actions in connection with this Order occurred and are duly in office and duly qualified 
for such office. 

14. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon enactment. 

15. Statutory Notice and Public Hearing. Following the tirst reading by title hereof, 
an abstract of this Ordinance, determined by the City to contain sufficient information a~" to give 
notice of the contents hereof, shall be published once a week for two successive weeks within a 
period of fourteen consecutive days, with at least six full days intervening between each 
publication, in The Dominion Post, a newspaper published and of general circulation in the City, 
together with a notice stating that this Ordinance has been introduced and that the City Council 
of the City contemplates the final enactment thereof and that any person interested may appear 
before City Council upon a date certain, not less than ten days subsequent to the date of the first 
publication of said abstract and notice, and present protests, and that a certified copy of the 
Ordinance is on file in the office of the City Clerk for review by interested parties during the 
otIice hours of the City Clerk. 

Page 415 of 461



At such hearing, all objections and suggestions shall be heard and the City Council shall 
take such action as it shall deem proper in the premises. 

First Reading 

Second Reading 
following public hearing 

November 1,2016 

November 15,2016 

[Signature Page Follows] 

Page 416 of 461



Adopted this 15th day of November, 2016. 

APPROVED: 

By: __________ _ 

Its City Attorney 

8666965 (20945.2) 

THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 

By: __________ _ 

Its Interim City Manager 

By: __________ _ 
Its Mayor 

Page 417 of 461



CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified, elected and acting Clerk of The City of 
Morgantown, does hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly adopted and enacted by 
the City Council of The City of Morgantown at a regular meeting duly held, pursuant to proper 
notice thereof, on November 15, 2016, a quorum being present and acting throughout, and which 
Ordinance has not been modified, amended or revoked and is a true, correct and complete copy 
thereof as of this 15th day of November, 2016. 

By: __________ _ 

City Clerk 

Page 418 of 461



Exhibit A 

TIP District Boundaries 

The TIP District includes approximately 20 acres of contiguous real property located in the City's Third Ward, off Liberty 
Street and runnin!! alon!! Braddock Street to the west. The TIP District are as set forth below. 

Page 419 of 461



Exhibit B 

Project Plan 

(attached hereto) 

Page 420 of 461



SECTION II. PROJECT INFORMATION 
A. DETAI LED DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Include a description of how the project fits with the overall development plans for the development or 
redevelopment project area or district or the overall development plans of the municipality, county, or 
region. 

The TIF District 

FMHA proposes that the City create the TIF District to be designated as "The City of Morgantown 
Development District No.5." A map of the proposed TIF District is provided in Attachment 2. The 
proposed TIF District includes approximately 20 acres of contiguous real property located in the City's 
Third Ward, off Liberty Street and running along Braddock Street to the west. The TIF District is being 
proposed by FMHA for creation by the City for the purpose of facilitating the planning, acquisition, 
construction and equipping of public infrastructure improvements within the TIF District in connection 
with the development of the land within tht: TIF District. The anticipated development of the land within 
the TIF District is (i) approximately 178 independent living units, 48 assisted living units and 16 memory 
care units for persons 55 and older living at or below 150% of the area median income and (ii) an 
apartment complex of approximately 48 two and three bedroom units providing residential living for 
families where a parent is, or wishes to, pursue higher education. 

The TIF Project 

FMHA proposes to develop certain public infrastructure improvements within the TIF District, including, 
without limitation, water lines, sanitary sewer lines, gas lines, stormwater drainage, new road construction 
and road improvements and other related infrastructure and utilities improvements, all within or 
benefitting the proposed TIF District (the "TIF Project"), as set forth and more particularly indicated on 
the map provided in Attachment 2. 

Tax Increment Financing Obligations 

To finance the costs of the TIF Project, the City proposes to issue tax increment revenue bonds or other 
obligations (the "TIF Obligations") in an amount not to exceed $10,000,000, with maturities not to 
exceed 30 years from the date of the creation of the TIF District. Such TIF Obligations may be issued 
from time to time in one or more series. Proceeds of the TIF Obligations are generally planned and 
expected to be used to (i) finance all or a portion of the costs of the TIF Project, including architectural, 
engineering, legal and other professional fees and expenses; (ii) fund reserves for the TIF Obligations; 
(iii) fund capitalized interest on the TIF Obligations; and (iv) pay costs of issuance of the TlF 
Obligations, including costs relating to the creation of the TIF District and preparation and approval of 
this Tax Increment Financing Application, and related costs. A portion of the costs of the TIF Project 

also be id on a basis di from tax increment revenues. 

Page 421 of 461



C. PllHLlC Ii\lPI~OVEi\lENTS 

The TIF Project is expected to include the following public infrastructure improvements: water lines, 
sanitary sewer lines, gas lines, stormwater drainage, new road construction and road improvements and 
other related infrastructure and utilities improvements, all within or benefitting the proposed TIF District, 
all as set forth and more particularly indicated on the map provided in Attachment 2. 

Ty le Estimated Cost Location 
Roads 
Utility Extensions 
Total: 

I Preliminary and subject to change. 

$4,000,000 
$1,000,000 
$5,000,0001 

See Attachment 2 for location 
See Attachment 2 for location 

Page 422 of 461



THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

REGARDING CREATION OF DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.5 AND 
APPROVAL OF UPPER FALLING RUN PROJECT PLAN NO.1 

TO BE PUBLISHED IN THE DOMINION POST 
ONCE A WEEK FOR TWO SUCCESSIVE WEEKS 

ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2016 AND FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 11,2016 

A public hearing will be held at a regular meeting of the City Council of The City of 
Morgantown (the "City Council") on Tuesday, November 15, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., prevailing 
time, in the Council chambers of Morgantown City Hall, located at 389 Spruce Street, 
Morgantown, West Virginia, and at such hearing any person interested may appear before the 
City Council and present comments, protests and suggestions. All protests, comments and 
suggestions shall be heard by the City Council, and it shall then take such actions as it shall deem 
proper in the premises regarding an ordinance entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND CREATING A NEW 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT IN THE CITY 
OF MORGANTOWN, MONONGALIA COUNTY, WEST 
VIRGINIA TO BE KNOWN AS "THE CITY OF 
MORGANTOWN DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.5"; 
APPROVING THE UPPER FALLING RUN PROJECT 
PLAN NO. 1 AS APPROVED BY THE WEST VIRGINIA 
DEVELOPMENT OFFICE; ESTABLISHING A TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING FUND AND PROVIDING FOR 
OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. 

The above-entitled Ordinance has been adopted on fIrst reading by the City Council at a 
meeting held on Tuesday, November 1,2016. 

The above-quoted title of the Ordinance describes generally the contents thereof and the 
actions contemplated thereby. The City Council contemplates enactment of said Ordinance. The 
Ordinance provides for the approval and creation of a new tax increment fInancing district ("TIF 
District"), approval and certifIcation of a project plan, and establishment of a tax increment 
fInancing fund for such TIF District, all relating to the Upper Falling Run Project Plan No.1. 

A certifIed copy of the Ordinance is on fIle for review during regular business hours at 
the office of Linda Little, City Clerk of The City of Morgantown, located at the Morgantown 
City Hall, 389 Spruce Street, Morgantown, West Virginia. 

Dated: November 1, 2016. 

By: /s/ Linda L. Little 
City Clerk 

Page 423 of 461



THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN 
NOVEMBER 1, 2016 REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. To consider for approval on first reading of an Ordinance of the City 
Council of The City of Morgantown (the "City") which would approve and create a new 
tax increment fmancing district in the City to be known as "The City of Morgantown 
Development District No.5"; approve Upper Falling Run Project Plan No.1 as approved 
by the West Virginia Development Office; establish a tax increment fmancing fund for 
such District; and provide for other matters in connection therewith. 

8928593 (20945.2) 

Page 424 of 461



City of Morgantown 
Ward and Boundary Commission 
2016 Report to Morgantown City Council 

Introduction: 

In accordance with Morgantown Municipal Codified Ordinances 7.0S. (c), which states: 

"Report. The Commission shall file with the City Clerk a report containing a 
recommended plan and a map for adjustment of ward boundaries to comply with the 
specifications set forth in subsection (d), which report shall be made between November 
15 and November 30 of each even-numbered year." 

the Ward and Boundary Commission of the the City of Morgantown hereby submits it's report on 
City Ward boundaries. 

Recommendation: 

By unanimous vote of the Commissioners during its November 17, 2016 meeting, the Ward and 
Boundary Commission of the City of Morgantown RECOMMENDS NO CHANGES BE MADE 
TO CITY WARD BOUNDARIES (Attachment 1). 

Background: 

Ward Boundaries and all decisions related to them are based on the number of registered City 
voters residing in the Wards (Attachment 2). The Monongalia County Clerk maintains voter 
registration lists for the City. The Ward and Boundary Commission is dependent upon the 
numbers of registered City voters reported by the Monongalia County Clerk. The accuracy of 
this data is paramount to the work of the Commission and, most importantly, the equality of 
voters in Morgantown. 

After receiving a report by the City of Morgantown Engineer (Attachment 3), it was evident the 
registered City voter numbers were not accurate. With the use of technology and mapping, 
various categories of upwards of 3,000 non-existent City voters have been identified. The Ward 
and Boundary Commission requested the Monongalia County Clerk to begin working with City 
officials to begin the corrections necessary of the voter registration role (Attachment 4). It is 
estimated that corrected City voter registration numbers may be available by April of 2017. 

Given the question of the currently available City voter registration numbers and the availability 
of corrected data in the near future, the City of Morgantown Ward and Boundary Commission, 
by unanimous vote at its Nov. 17,2016 meeting, RECOMMENDS NO CHANGES BE MADE TO 
CITY WARD BOUNDARIES (Attachment 5). 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Page 425 of 461



Attachment 1 - Current Ward and Boundary map and description 
Attachment 2 - Commission charge to use Voter Registration numbers in its work 
Attachment 3 - City Engineer's Report 
Attachment 4 - Ward and Boundary letter to Monongalia County Clerk 
Attachment 5 - Ward and Boundary minutes, including vote for "no changes." 

Page 426 of 461



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 103.02 AND 103.03 OF MORGANTOWN CITY CODE AS THE SAME 
APPLIES TO WARD BOUNDARIES WITHIN THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN. 

WHEREAS, The City Council of Morgantown and its Subcommittee have made a comprehensive study 
and review of numerous records, documents and maps; and 

WHEREAS, It is the opinion of the Morgantown City Council that the Ward Boundaries as hereafter set 
equalize, as accurately as possible, the registered voters in various wards. 

103.01 WARD BOUNDARY COMMISSION; WARD BOUNDARY MAP. 

The official ward map describing the ward boundaries as shown herein is declared to be a part of this 
article and to which the map reference is hereby made as if same were fully and completely 
incorporated herein. ' 

103.02 MAP AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION. 

The Clerk of the City shall place in an appropriate public place, in the Clerk's office, the ward 
boundary map, to be available for public inspection at any or all times. 

103.03 WARDS DESIGNATED AND DESCRIBED. 

(a) First Ward. Beginning at the intersection of S. High Street and Pairie Avenue on tl=le west bank 
of tl=le Monongal=lela River ana along tl=le aivision line of Precincts 10 ana 3 tl=lence easterly to a l30int 
oPl3osite Prairie A'/enue and acing a l30int COfflfflon to Precinct S; tAence soutl=l to Prairie Avenue thence 
along Prairie Avenue in a southeasterly direction to Wilson Avenue, thence southwesterly with Wilson 
Avenue and southeasterly with Jefferson Street to Jackson Avenue, thence continuing on Jefferson 
Street to the intersection of Logan and King Streets, thence with King Street and Sheldon Avenue 
southeasterly to the intersection of Ross Street, thence with Ross Street southeasterly to the 
corporation line located at the intersection of Ross Street, Dorsey Avenue and Dobbs Street, thence in a 
basically soutl=l' .... esterly southeasterly direction witR following the corporation line including Dorsey 
Avenue to a l30int in tl=le west bank of tl=lc Monongal=lcla Ri'/er, which corporation line includes or 
encompasses those areas recently annexed commonly referred to as the Dorsey Avenue/Hartley 
Addition, Mountain View School property, the Eureka Pipeline property, aHd-the Mountaineer Mall, 
Dorsey's Knob Property and the Walmart Annexation, to a point on the west bank of the Monongahela 
River, thence northerly along the said bank to a point opposite the mouth of Decker's Creek, thence in a 
south easterly direction with the center line of Decker's Creek to a point of intersection with S. High 
Street, thence in a southerly direction to the place of beginning. 

(b) Second Ward. Beginning at the intersection of S. High Street and Prairie Avenue a l30int in 
Deckers Creek, aeing a l30int COfflFAOn to tl=le Precincts 3, 10 ana 5, tAence soutl=leasterly to Prairie 
Avenue, thence along Prairie Avenue in an south easterly direction to Wilson Avenue, thence southwest 
with Wilson Avenue and southeast with Jefferson Street to Jackson Avenue, thence continuing with 
Jefferson Street to the intersection of Logan and King Streets, thence with King Street and Sheldon 
Avenue to the intersection of Ross Street, thence with Ross Street to the Corporation Line located at the 
intersection of Ross Street, Dorsey Avenue and Dobbs Street, thence northeasterly along the 
Corporation Line to a point near Courtney Avenue, thence northwesterly to the intersection of Courtney 
Avenue and South Hills Drive and Harner Street, thence northwesterly with Harner Street to a point 

Page 427 of 461



opposite Precincts 1, Sand g along the northerly property corner of Tax Map 36, Parcel 389, thence 
southwesterly with Precinct 4 along t he property line common to Tax Map 36, Parcels 389 and 390 to 
the Maple Avenue curve apex, thence continuing southwesterly with Maple Avenue to Washington 
Street, thence northwesterly on Washington Street to Demain Avenue, thence southwesterly on Demain 
Avenue to Morris Street, thence northwesterly on Morris Street to Watts Street, thence easterly along 
Watts Street to Kingwood Street, thence northerly on Kingwood Street to Arch Street, thence easterly 
on Arch Street to Dewey Street, thence southerly on Dewey Street to Elmina Street, thence easterly 
along Elmina Street to Overdale Street, thence northerly along Overdale Street to the intersection with 
Brockway Avenue, thence across Brockway Avenue to Pennsylvania Avenue, thence northwesterly on 
Deckers Creek Avenue, thence westerly on Deckers Creek Avenue to a point opposite Hackney Street, 
thence with a line in a northerly direction to Decke(s Creek, a.R4 thence with the center line of Decker~s 
Creek to the intersection of Pleasant Street. thence along Pleasant Street to the intersection with 
University Avenue, thence along the Westover Bridge to a point on the west bank of the Monongahela 
River on the Corporation Line, thence south along the Corporation line to a point opposite the mouth 
of Decker's Creek, thence in a south easterly direction with the center line of Decker's Creek to a point 
of intersection with S. High Street, thence in a southerly direction to the place of back to the beginning. 

(c) Third Ward. Beginning at a point on the west bank of the Monongahela River where the 
Westover Bridge intersects the Corporation line, thence corner to Precincts 19 and 20, and follo· .... ing in 
a northerly northeasterly direction along the -tRe-eutline of Precincts 19 and 20 across the Monongahela 
River to a point opposite Fourth Street, thence across the river with Fourth Street to the intersection of 
McLane Avenue, thence northwesterly on McLane Avenue to Fifth Street, thence northeasterly with 
Fifth Street to University Avenue, thence following University Avenue northerly to the center line of 
North Street, thence easterly with the center line of North Street to a point 150 feet distant from 
University Avenue, thence northerly parallel to and 150 feet distant from University Avenue to a point 
~ approximately 250 feet from the intersection of Precinct 21 Riverview Drive with University Avenue, 
thence southerly to University Avenue, thence wit h the center line of University Avenue to the 
intersection of University Avenue and Law School Drive, thence in a northerly direction along Law School 
Drive to a point on the boundary of the University Terrance Addition, thence in a northeasterly direction 
to a point, such point being a corner common to the University Terrace Addition and the University Park 
Addition to a point on the southwestern corner of Uni' .. ersity Parl( Addition, said point being common to 
Precincts 16 and 22, thence with the boundary between said Precincts in a northeasterly direction to the 
point of intersection with the corporation line, thence easterly with the corporation line to Willowdale 
Road, thence continuing with various calls following the corporation line south on Willowdale to the 
northern line of McCullough Avenue, thence easterly with the northern line of McCullough Avenue to 
the intersection of Dartmouth Road, Citadel Road and Hoffman Avenue, thence southerly on the eastern 
line of Hoffman Avenue to the intersection of Amhurst Road, thence easterly with the northern line of 
Amhurst Road to the intersection with the eastern line of Bradley Street projected across Amhurst Road, 
thence southerly on Bradley Street to where the corporation line extends in an easterly direction, said 
line being five feet north of and parallel to the eight-inch sanitary sewer outfall from Stewart Street to a 
point on the western line of Stewartstown Road, thence southwesterly along the western property line 
of Stewartstown Road passing Meadowbrook Road and Morgan Street to a pOint 70 feet north of the 
eastern line of Van Gilder Avenue, thence with a line 70 feet distant from and parallel to Van Gilder 
Avenue to the northern line of Liberty Street, thence southerly with the northern line of liberty Street to 
Van Gilder Avenue where the corporation line turns in a southeasterly direction, thence following said 
corporation line to the intersection with Falling Run Road, thence in a westerly direction on Falling Run 
Road to the intersection with Peck Street, thence southeasterly with Peck Street to Outlook Street, 
thence southwesterly on Outlook Street to College Avenue, thence southerly on College Avenue to 

Page 428 of 461



Cornell Avenue, thence southeasterly on Cornell Avenue to North High Street, thence southerly on 
North High Street to the intersection of Willey Street, thence easterly on Willey Street to the 
intersection of Weaver and Snider Streets, thence ",itA the bOllndary line between Precincts 13 and 10 
in a southwesterly direction to the intersection of Decker's Creek, thence southwesterly along the 
center line of Decker's Creek to the intersection of Pleasant Street, thence along Pleasant Street to the 
intersection with University Avenue, thence along the Westover Bridge Deckers Greek to the 
MonongaAela Ri'/er, and extending across said river to the ' .... estern side; thence northeasterly along said 
f-W.ef to the point of beginning. 

(d) Fourth Ward. Beginning at a point on the west bank of the Monongahela River opposite 
Fourth Street corner of Precincts 19 and 20, and following in a northeasterly direction tAe olltline of 
Precincts 19 and 20 across the Monongahela River to Fourth Street, thence with Fourth Street to the 
intersection of McLane Avenue, thence northwesterly with the center line of McLane Avenue to Fifth 
Street, thence northeasterly with the center line of Fifth Street to University Avenue, thence following 
the center line of University Avenue northerly to the center line of North Street, thence easterly with 
the center line of North Street to a point 150 feet distant from University Avenue, thence northerly 
parallel to and 150 feet distant from University Avenue to a point approximately 250 ±W feet from the 
intersection of Riverview Drive Precinct 21 with University Avenue, thence southeasterly to University 
Avenue, thence with the center line of University Avenue to the intersection of University Avenue and 
Law School Drive, thence in a northerly direction along Law School Drive to a point on the boundary of 
the University Terrance Addition, thence in a northeasterly direction to a point, such point being a 
corner common to the University Terrace Addition and the University Park Addition to a point on the 
southwestern corner of Uni'.'ersity Park Addition, sl::Icl:\ point being a corner common to Precincts 16 and 
~thence northeasterly with the-boundary line of the University Park Addition and the West Virginia 
University Medical Center Tract line of Precincts 16 and 22 to the Corporation Line, thence following the 
Corporation Line in first a nortAerl'y' and tAen an easterly direction as the same passes near the West 
Virginia University Medical Genter to a point where the Corporation line intersects with the Chestnut 
Ridge Road, thence following the corporation line, which corporation line includes or encompasses 
t hose areas annexed commonly referred to as the North Elementary School Annexation, to the south 
east corner of the property known as the Euro Suites Hotel. Tax Map 56, Parcel 2, thence south to the 
centerline of Chestnut Ridge Road, thence westerly following tRe Chestnut Ridge Road to the 
intersection with Van Voorhis Road, thence nortl=lerly southerly and then westerly with the center line 
of Van Voorhis Road to the intersection of Bl::lrroughs Street University Avenue and Patteson Drive 
thence with the center line of Bl::lrrol::lghs Street University Avenue in a northwesterly direction to the 
intersection with Collins Ferry Road, thence southerly northwesterly with the center line of Collins Ferry 
Road to Pocahontas Avenue, thence southerly with the center line of Pocahontas Avenue to the 
intersection of University Avenue, thence westerly on University Avenue to the intersection with the 
Corporation Line, thence with the Corporation Line in baSically a southwesterly direction following the 
northwestern boundary of Precinct 28 to a point on the west bank of the Monongahela River, thence 
with the west bank in a southeasterly direction to the place of beginning. 

(e) Fifth Ward. Beginning at the intersection of the eastern Corporation Line and Falling Run Road 
and following Falling Run Road in a westerly direction to the intersection with Peck Street, thence 
southwesterly with the center line of Peck Street to Outlook Street, thence southwesterly with the 
center line of Outlook Street to College Avenue, thence southerly on College Avenue to Cornell Avenue, 
thence southeasterly with the center line of Cornell Avenue to North High Street, thence southerly with 
the center line of North High Street to the intersection of Willey Street, thence easterly on Willey Street 
to the intersection of Weaver and Snider Streets, thence with the bOl::lndary line bet' .... een Precincts 13 

Page 429 of 461



and 11 in a southwesterly direction to the intersection of Deckers Creek, thence in a southeasterly 
direction with Deckers Creek as the same runs and borders Precincts 6 and 9 to the intersection with a 
point on the eastern side of the Creek directly across from Rodgers Street and thence from the point at 
a bridge which crosses the Creek, easterly following Route No.7, commonly known as Powell Avenue, to 
a point where Route NO.7 intersects with Hartman Run Road, thence with a line running northwesterly 
to a point in the eastern Corporation Line which is situated at the intersection of Charles Avenue, Ices 
Ferry Road and Hampton Avenue, thence with the Corporation Line followi ng the Corporation Line in a 
northeasterly direction, which corporation line includes or encompasses those areas annexed commonly 
referred to as the West Virginia University Farms Annexat ion and t he National Guard Armory 
Annexation in a northwesterly direction to the place of beginning. 

(f) Sixth Ward. Beginning at a point in Deckers Creek which, if Hackney Street were extended, 
would be the beginning point for Hackney Street at the Creek, thence southeasterly following the line of 
Deckers Creek to the intersection with a point on the eastern siae of the Creek directly across from 
Rodgers Street and thence from the point at a bridge which crosses the Creek, easterly following Route 
No.7, commonly known as Powell Avenue, to a point where Route NO.7 intersects with Hartman Run 
Road, thence with a line running northwesterly to a point in the eastern Corporation Line which is 
situated at the intersection of Charles Avenue, Ices Ferry Road and Hampton Avenue, thence following 
the Corporation Line, which corpo ration line includes or encom passes t hose areas annexed commonly 
referred to as the West Virginia University Motor Pool, to running with an alley being parallel to Tyson 
Street to a point just north of Knob Street which point is a concrete monument, thence southeasterly 
and parallel to Knob Street to a stone monument in the ravine, thence southeasterly to a point at or 
about the intersection of the Corporation Line and Hartman Run Road, thence continue following the 
Corporation Line in a southeasterly direction along the northeastern property line of the Norwood 
Addition to the northeastern corner of same subdivision, thence following the AeW Corporation Line in 
its entirety as the same outlines that area recently annexed by the City and commonly referred to as the 
Airport Annexation and the West Virginia University Farm Annexation, which line returns to the 
previously existing Corporation Line at a point near the northeast corner of the Norwood Addition, 
thence easterly with the eastern boundar)' line of Precinct ~O along the existing Corporation Line 
crossing the Norwood Addition and the Sabraton Addition to a point at the corner of Route No. 7 and 
the Brookhaven Road, thence continuing with tl=le Boundar)' line for Precinct 30 and the existing 
Corporation Line through West Sabraton and crossing the Green Bag Road to Deckers Creek, where the 
same is joined by Aarons Creek, thence in a southerly and westerly direction along Precincts 8 ana 9 
following Aarons Creek to a point where the Corporation Line turns and follows a northeasterly course, 
thence continuing with the Corporation Line to South Hills to a point near Courtney Avenue, thence 
northerly to the intersection of Courtney Avenue and South Hills Drive and Harner Street, thence 
northwesterly with Harner Street to a point along the northerly property corner of Tax Map 36, Parcel 
389 opposite Precincts 4, 5 and 8, thence southwesterly along the property line common to Tax Map 36, 
Parcels 389 and 390 witl=l Precinct 4 to Maple Avenue, thence continuing southwesterly with Maple 
Avenue to Washington Street, thence northerly on Washington Street to Demain Avenue, thence 
westerly on Demain Avenue to Morris Street, thence northerly on Morris Street to Watts Street, thence 
along Watts Street to Kingwood Street, thence northerly on Kingwood Street to Arch Street, thence 
easterly on Arch Street to Dewey Street, thence southerly on Dewey Street to Elmina Street, thence 
easterly along Elmina Street to Overdale Street, thence northerly along Overdale Street to the 
intersection with Brockway Avenue, thence across Brockway Avenue to Pennsylvania Avenue, thence 
northwesterly on Deckers Creek Avenue, thence westerly on Deckers Creek Avenue to a point opposite 
Hackney Street, thence with a line in a northerly direction to Deckers Creek, and thence with the center 
line of Deckers Creek back to the beginning. 

Page 430 of 461



(g) Seventh Ward. Beginning at a point in the western Corporation Line west of the intersection 
point of Jacobs Drive and University Avenue and from the point in an easterly direction following 
University Avenue to its intersection with Pocahontas Avenue, thence northerly on Pocahontas to its 
intersection with Collins Ferry Road, thence north'Nesterly southeasterly on Collins Ferry Road to the 
intersection with Burroughs Street University Avenue, thence following Burroughs Street University 
Avenue to the intersection with Patteson Drive and Van Voorhis Road, thence soutRerly easterly and 
then northerly on Van Voorhis Road to the intersection with Chestnut Ridge Road, thence easterly on 
Chestnut Ridge Road to a point at or near the south east corner of Tax Map 56, Parcel 2, being tRe 
southeastern corner of Precinct 23, and thence following the Corporation Line as the same passes 
around or near the Euro Suites Hotel, Tax Map 56, Parcel 2 in first a northerly and then a westerly 
direction to a point where the Corporation Line intersects with Van Voorhis Road, thence following Van 
Voorhis Road (or Route No. 59) northerly to a point in the Corporation Line which is situated at the 
intersection of Van Voorhis Road and Clearview Street, thence northwesterly following the Corporation 
Line in its entirety as the same outlines that area annexed by the City and commonly refe rred to as the 
Kenwood Annexation and the Oakview Annexation to a point where it intersects with Anderson 
Avenue, thence continuing northwesterly on Anderson Avenue to where the same intersects with 
Morgan Drive, thence following the Corporation Line in a northerly direction to a point in the 
Corporation Line which is the northeastern point of the Bureau of Mines (NETL) property, thence 
continuing with another line of the NETL property in a northwesterly direction to Collins Ferry Road (or 
Route No. 57), thence southerly following the Corporation Line and Collins Ferry Road to a point just 
north of Lawnview Drive, thence following the Corporation Line in basically a westerly direction to a 
pOint on the west bank of the Monongahela River being the R'lost northwestern point of Precinct 27 and 
thence southwesterly following the west bank of the Monongahela River to a point which is the most 
southwestern point of Precinct 27 and thence following the western Boundary line of Precinct 27 and 
tfI.e Corporation Line in an easterly direction to a point situated west of the intersection of Somerset and 
Princeton Avenues, thence continuing with the boundary line of Precinct 27 and the Corporation Line 
southwesterly to a point on Mansfield Avenue located south of the intersection of Mansfield Avenue 
and Fairfield Street to a point located south of the intersection of Fairfield Street and Plymouth Avenue, 
thence following the Corporation Line and the western boundary line of Precinct 90 in a southerly 
direction to the point west of the intersection of Jacobs Drive and University Avenue, the point of 
beginning. 
(Ord.l-l0-89.) 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon date of adoption. 

FIRST READING: December 9, 201 4 

ADOPTED: December 1 6, 201 4 

FILED: December 17, 2014 

RECORDED: December 17, 2014 

Page 431 of 461



,).-

? 
" ,. . 

(l.. .-.. = ..... 1-: n ''"Jl>' 
~ ·01 , :c:; 

G 

" " 

MORGANTOWN 1 ST WARD. 
December 2014 / ; , 

." 

Page 432 of 461



• 0;i. 
~'iS't. 

~~GANTOWN 2ND WARD 
~/~ ecember 2014 

• , \J o 
Page 433 of 461



: 

r.
- en 

-~ 

~=== = 
- ... -'" 

\)0 
o . (; 

----

Page 434 of 461



o 
t>'1?' , 

" 

Page 435 of 461



Page 436 of 461



"" 
" 

(> " 
o G 

O . 

0 
C) D 

() 

'c 

0 

"" ;g u 
~ 

IJ Q 

cP 

0 

., 

s 

MORGANTOWN 6TH WA~D . 
. 'J 't 

December 2014 ;;'1.-; 
~..:' 
~ Page 437 of 461



.,0 

I 
~i 

"-... 

==~ -' 
(- r' 
'..--"\;' 

<.. 
/-

- ·-· ......... ·V 
~ 

r r::;"-',.J ~ L Fj~ 
<; 

\I~ ~- (') 
-\ 

U 

'. 

" 
C 
c 

Page 438 of 461



24A CHARTER Sec. 7.05 

SECTION 7.05. WARDS, ADJUSTMENT OF WARD BOUNDARIES. 
(a) Number of Wards. The territory included in the City shall be, and is 

hereby divided into seven wards and the number of wards shall not be increased 
or decreased. 

(b) Ward Boundary Commission. The Council shall appoint seven qualified 
voters, one from each of the seven wards of the City as they exist at the time of 
such appointment, who shall comprise a Ward Boundary Commission. The voters 
chosen shall not be employed by the City in any other capacity. The appointment 
shall be made not later than 30 days after the commencement of each Council's 
term of office. 

(c) Report. The Commission shall file with the City Clerk a report containing 
a recommended plan and a map for adjustment of ward boundaries to comply with 
the specifications set forth in subsection (d), which report shall be made between 
November 15 and November 30 of each even-numbered year. 

(d) Specifications. Except as otherwise provided in Section 10.05, the ward 
boundaries shall be adjusted from time to time in accordance with the following 
specifications: 

(1) 

(2) 

Each ward shall be formed of contiguous territory, and its boundary 
lines shall follow the precinct lines and the center lines of streets 
wherever practicable. 
Each ward shall contain as nearly as practicable the same number of 
qualified voters, determined from the registration for the last 
statewide general election. This specification shall not be construed 
to require the adjustment of precinct boundaries or to require the 
sacrifice of compactness of wards for the sake of achieving equality 
of numbers of registered voters among the seven wards of the City. 
The report shall include a map and description of the boundaries 
of each of the wards. 

1994 Replacement 

Page 439 of 461



Sec. 7.05 CHARTER 24B 

(e) Action on Report. Within 15 days after the date of the filing of the report 
mentioned in subsection (c), the Council shall approve or disapprove the same. If 
the report is disapproved, the Council shall state the reasons therefor on the minutes 
of the Council meetings. If the report is approved, the Council shall within 15 days 
after such approval, introduce a proposed ordinance providing for the ward 
boundaries in accordance with the specifications contained in the report. The 
procedure for the enactment of the ordinance shall be the same" as for any ordinances 
provided for under Section 2.13 with the additional requirements of Section 2. 13(b)( 3). 

(f) Enactment of Ordinances. If (1) the report of the Commission is disapproved, 
or (2) if the Commission fails to file the report as and when required by subsection 
(e), the Council shall, within 15 days after such disapproval or of such failure to 
file the report, nevertheless introduce an ordinance adjusting the ward boundaries 
consistent with specifications of subsection (d) unless the Council shall, within 15 
days after the filing of the report, or of the failure to file the report, make a finding 
of fact, entered upon the minutes of the Council meetings, that no ward boundary 
adjustments are necessary. The procedure for the enactment of such ordinance shall 
be the same as for any ordinances provided for under Section 2. ~3 with the additional 
requirements of Section 2.13(b)(3). 

(g) Effect of Enactment. The new ward boundaries as of the date of the enact
ment of an ordinance providing therefor shall supersede previous ward boundaries 
for all the purposes of the next regular City election including nominations. The 
new ward boundaries shall supersede previous ward boundaries for all other purposes 
as of the date of which all Councilmembers elected at that regular City election 
take office. 

(h) Terms of Members of the Commission. The terms of office of the members 
of the Commission shall expire at the same time as the expiration of the terms of 
the Council which appointed them. A new Commission shall thereafter be appointed 
as provided by SUbsection (b). 

1994 Replacement 
Page 440 of 461



Ward and Boundary Report 
By Damien Davis, City Engineer 

OVERVIEW 

Working with the Voter Registration list (dated June 23, 2016) obtained from the Monongalia County 

Clerk's Office, the City Engineer's Office, with assistance from the City Clerk's Office, has paired the data 

with the recently completed GIS addressing layer from MECCA 911. This pairing allows the mapping of 

voter registration addresses to better determine the number of registered voters in each Ward. Also, 

the pairing of the Voter Registration and MECCA 911 addressing data allows probable errors to be 

identified and voter registration trend data to be developed that would be difficult or impossible 

otherwise. 

VOTER REGISTRATION INFORMATION 

The Voter Registration list provided by the Monongalia County Clerk's Office had a total of 18,094 voters 

within the City of Morgantown (See Table 1 for a breakdown of the voters by wards). In the process of 

pairing the data sets, likely errors and inconsistencies were found. A total of 965 records were found to 

have issues that could not be resolved (See Table 2). After removing all Voters outside the City Limits, 

Voters registered to demolished structures, addresses that did not match between the two data sets 

and the completely unknowns, we were left with 17,129 records (See Table 3). 

Ward No. 
Total 

% 
No. Voters 

1 2,229 12.3 

2 2,457 13.6 

3 2,785 15.4 

4 2,702 14.9 

5 2,943 16.3 

6 2,211 12.2 

7 2,398 13.3 

Total 17,725 

Outside City Limits 359 2.0 
Unknown 10 0.1 

Total 18,094 

Table 1. No. of Voters 

Page 441 of 461



Issues 

Buildings have been Demolished* 

No Matching Address* 

Outside City Limits 

Unknown 

No. of 
Voters 

202 
394 
359 

10 

965 
Table 2. Issues with Voter Registration Data 
'" Voters within City Limit 

Total 
Ward No. No. Voters Demolished 

1 2,229 1 
2 2,457 7 

3 2,785 116 

4 2,702 66 

5 2,943 7 

6 2,211 5 

7 2,398 0 
Total 17,725* 202 

% 

1.1 

2.2 

1.9 

0.1 

5.3 

No 
Matching 
Address 

23 

95 
82 

43 

48 

81 

22 

394 
Table 3. Issues with Voter Registration Data by Ward 

'" Voters within City Limit 
"''''Remaining verified Voters 

2 

Remaining 
No. of 

% Voters 

1.1 2,205 
4.2 2,355 
7.1 2,587 

4.0 2,593 

1.9 2,888 

3.9 2,125 

0.9 2,376 

3.4 17,129** 

Page 442 of 461



OTHER ISSUES 

While working with the Voter Registration data, it was observed that a large number of voters are 

registered at WVU housing facilities. At least 2,526 voters are registered at WVU Dorms, Apartments, 

Fraternities and Sororities (See Appendix A). This accounts for nearly 15% of the registered voters in the 

City of Morgantown (See Table 4). Over 80% of these voters have been registered at a WVU housing 

facility for 4 or more years, 40% over 10 years, and 14% more than 15 years. The vast majority of these 

voters would have only lived for 1 year at these locations. This presents a significant concern in wards 3, 

4 and 5. Voters registered in WVU facilities make up 25% of the voters in Wards 3 and 5 and over 45% of 

the voters in Ward 4. The majority of these voters should be removed from the County's voter 

registration records as they certainly no longer reside at these locations. 

No. of % of Ward's 
Ward No. Voters Voters 

1 0 0.0% 

2 0 0.0% 

3 624 24.1% 

4 1,176 45.4% 

5 725 25.1% 

6 0 0.0% 

7 1 0.0% 

Total 2,526 14.7% 
Table 4. No. of Registered Voters in WVU Facilities by Ward 

Another issue identified during the mapping of the Voter Registration data was that many voters are 

incorrectly labeled in the wrong precincts (See Figure 1). Many times voters at the same address are 

considered to be in different precincts. We currently do not have a copy of Monongalia County's GIS 

precinct layer, so we could not at this time determine the exact number of voters affected but estimate 

that there could be several hundred. 

3 
Page 443 of 461



Figure 1. Example 0/ Incorrect Precincts 

4 

Legend 

Precinct 

• 1 2A 

• 28 

• 10 . 13 

Page 444 of 461



EQUALIZATION OF VOTERS 

Section 7.05 (d) (2) of the City's Charter - "Adjustment of Ward Boundaries" states; 

"Each ward shall contain as nearly as practicable the same number of qualified voters, 

determined from the registration for the last statewide general election. This specification shall 

not be construed to require the adjustment of precinct boundaries or to require the sacrifice of 

compactness of wards for the sake of achieving equality of numbers of registered voters among 

the seven wards of the City." 

Table 5 illustrates that the amount of voters registered in WVU Housing facilities has a significant impact 

on the equalization of voters per ward and the potential to considerably affect the boundaries of the 

Wards. 

With WVU Numbers Included 

No. of 
Ward No. Voters 

1 2205 
2 2355 

3 2587 

4 2593 

5 2888 

6 2125 

7 2376 

Total 17129 
Ave. Voters 

2447 
per Ward 

%of 
Total 

12.9% 

13.7% 
15.1% 

15.1% 
16.9% 

12.4% 

13.9% 

No. % 
Above/ Above/ 
Below Below 
Ave. Ave. 

-242 -9.9% 

-92 -3.8% 

140 5.7% 

146 6.0% 
441 18.0% 
-322 -13.2% 

-71 -2.9% 

Table 5. Voter Distribution with and w/o WVU Numbers 

CONCLUSION 

With WVU Numbers Removed 
No. % 

Above/ Above/ 
No. of %of Below Below 
Voters Total Ave. Ave. 

2205 15.1% 119 5.7% 

2355 16.1% 269 12.9% 

1963 13.4% -123 -5.9% 

1417 9.7% -669 -32.1% 
2163 14.8% 77 3.7% 

2125 14.6% 39 1.9% 

2375 16.3% 289 13.8% 

14603 

2086 

The City and the Ward and Boundary Commission work quickly and diligently with the Monongalia 

County Clerk's office towards purging the County's voter registration records to remove the numerous 

records of voters who no longer reside in Morgantown. These records have a negative impact on the 

City's wards and distort voter turnout data within the City. 

5 Page 445 of 461



ApPENDIX A 

Location Ward Count Ave Age 
Ave 

>4 >5 >10 
Years 

>15 >20 

ARNOLD APARTMENTS 5 54 28.8 8.7 39 37 24 11 3 

ARNOLD HALL 5 173 28.3 9.2 140 138 78 30 16 

BENNETI TOWER 4 205 28.4 9.5 183 182 98 26 7 

BLANEY HOUSE 4 5 42.6 5.6 3 3 1 0 0 

BOREMAN HALL NORTH 5 91 27.2 8.1 75 72 32 5 2 

BORE MAN HALL SOUTH 5 138 26.9 7.3 98 94 42 16 5 

BOREMAN RFL FACILITY 5 3 31.0 11.7 2 2 2 1 1 

BRAXTON TOWER 4 243 28.7 9.2 215 213 111 27 4 

BROOKE TOWER 4 232 28.2 9.1 203 198 101 30 6 

DADISMAN HALL 3 147 27.4 8.3 114 113 55 17 6 

DADISMAN/STALNAKER RFL HOUSE 3 4 43.8 15.3 3 3 3 2 1 

FlELDCREST HALL 4 59 35.3 9.8 56 54 25 3 1 

GASKINS HOUSE 3 30 28.7 8.2 26 25 7 5 2 

HONORS HALL 3 34 21.7 2.4 8 5 1 0 0 

INTERNATIONAL HOUSE 5 10 33.4 12.2 9 9 8 4 0 

LINCOLN HALL 4 48 25.2 5.9 36 36 1 1 1 

LYON TOWER 4 208 28.4 9.3 190 186 92 28 5 

MEDICAL CENTER APARTMENTS J 4 12 38.2 11.2 12 11 5 4 3 

MEDICAL CENTER APARTMENTS K 4 16 48.6 11.3 15 14 8 6 1 

PEIRPONT APARTMENTS 4 148 28.6 8.5 121 115 50 23 6 

STALNAKER HALL 3 96 29.5 9.5 81 79 49 18 3 

SUMMIT HALL 3 222 28.2 8.8 188 179 99 35 5 

UNIVERSITY PLACE 3 2 32.5 11.0 2 2 2 0 0 

6 Page 446 of 461



Location Ward Count Ave Age 
Ave 

Years 
>4 >5 >10 >15 >20 

UNIVERSITY PLACE NORTH 3 4 21.8 1.3 0 0 0 0 0 

UNIVERSITY PLACE SOUTH 3 9 20.9 0.1 0 0 0 0 0 

UNIVERSITY SERVICES CENTER 7 1 70.0 40.0 1 1 1 1 1 

VANDALIA HALL BLUE 3 25 27.2 5.6 16 16 2 0 0 

VANDALIA HALL GOlD 3 30 27.1 5.4 20 20 0 0 0 

AOP 5 9 30.9 8.1 7 7 3 1 0 

AP 5 19 30.3 8.2 18 18 6 1 0 

AZD 5 27 31.7 9.9 25 24 9 7 2 

CHI OMEGA 5 8 32.4 11.6 8 8 4 3 0 

DG 5 27 31.0 9.2 22 22 10 7 0 

KKG 5 12 28.2 7.9 6 6 4 2 2 

PI BETA PHI 3 9 31.8 11.2 9 7 5 4 0 

SIGMA KAPPA 5 16 29.3 8.3 14 13 6 1 1 

AGR 5 2 26.0 6.5 1 1 1 0 0 

BETA 5 14 30.2 9.3 9 9 5 4 1 

KA 5 10 31.7 7.0 7 6 2 2 0 

KAPPA SIGMA 5 9 27.6 6.0 4 3 1 1 0 

PHI KAPPA SIGMA 5 9 32.2 8.8 5 5 5 2 1 

PI KAPPA PHI 5 22 30.4 8.5 19 19 6 3 1 

PKA 3 7 31.6 10.0 7 7 3 1 0 

SIGMA ALPA EPSILON 5 14 31.4 10.3 11 11 6 4 1 

SIGMA ALPHA MU 5 18 30.8 9.7 16 16 6 4 0 

SIGMA CHI 5 12 31.3 10.9 12 12 5 3 1 

SIGMA NU 5 7 32.9 12.4 5 5 5 3 1 

THETA CHI 3 5 37.0 15.6 5 5 5 3 1 

7 
Page 447 of 461



Location Ward Count Ave Age 
Ave 

>4 >5 >10 >15 >20 
Years 

TKE 5 21 32.2 11.7 18 18 16 4 2 

31.4 9.5 2,084 2,029 1,010 353 93 

WVU Dorms and Apartments 2,249 

Fraternity Houses 150 82.5% 80.3% 40.0% 14.0% 3.7% 

Sorority Houses 127 

2,526 

8 Page 448 of 461



',--, 

Office of the City Manager 

Ms. Carye Blaney 
Monongalia County Clerk 
243 High St., #123 
Morgantown WV 26505 

Ms. Blaney: 

m;be {[itl' of Jtilorga:ntob.1n 
Interim City Manager 
COL (Ret) Glen Kelly 
389 SPRUCE STREET 

MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 26505 
(304) 284-7404 FAX: (304) 284-7430 

www.morgantownwv.gov 

October 11, 2016 

Representatives of the City of Morgantown and the Morgantown Ward and Boundary 
Commission request a meeting with you. The purpose of this meeting is to begin updating and 
correcting the County's Voter registration records by removing the numerous records of voters 
who no longer reside in Morgantown. We believe current records are having a very negative 
impact on the City of Morgantown's Wards and is distorting voter turnout data and 
representation within the City. 

In a report by City of Morgantown Engineer Damien Davis and assistance from the City Clerk's 
Office, nearly 3500 likely errors and inconsistencies in County Voter registration records were 
discovered with a very high level of certainty. These errors and inconsistencies were identified by 
pairing the voter Registration list (dated June 23, 2016) obtained from the Monongalia County 
Clerk's Office with the GIS addressing layer from MECCA 911. These errors and inconsistencies 
can be categorized into the following groups: Voters outside the City Limits, Voters registered to 
demolished structures, addresses that did not match, and Voters registered at WVU housing 
facilities for more than 4 years. 

3500 suspect inaccurate voting records of City voters represents a staggering 19% of total 
registered City Voters. In one Ward, suspected inaccuracies represent upwards of 45 percent of 
the Ward's voters. Boundaries and representation, dependent on accurate voter registration 
numbers, cannot be determined given the uncertainty, 

Page 449 of 461



For these reasons, we request a meeting with you. We wish to begin updating and correcting the 
County's Voter registration records by removing nwnerous records of voters who no longer 
reside in Morgantown which have been identified. For ease in scheduling, please contact the City 
Clerk's Office at 304 284-7439 to arrange a time and date for: the meeting. 

Glen Kelly 
Interim City Manager 

Page 450 of 461



WARD & BOUNDARY COMMISSION MEETING 
7'hursday-November 11, 2016 

City Ha~~ - Counci~ Chambers 
10:02 am 

PRESENT: Chairman Alan Donaldson, Commission members: William 
Ryan, Co-Chair Guy Panrell, Roy Nutter, Cindy O'Brien, Roger Banks, 
Clerk Linda Tucker, Heather Carl, Secretary and City Engineer 
Damien Davis. Jo Vaughn, Demographer& Don West (Absent) 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Donaldson at 10:02 a.m. 

Chair Donaldson requested a change in the agenda to add a 
Public Portion. After discussion, motion by Commissioner Panrell 
second by Commissioner Banks not to add a Public Portion. Motion 
carried by acclamation. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Motion by Commissioner Ryan, second by Commissioner Banks to 
approve the minutes of September 27 th , 2016 meeting. Motion carried 
by acclamation. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Meet Roy Nutter 4~ Ward Member & Jo Vaugh Demographer 

Roy Nutter 4th Ward member introduced himself as the new member 
to the Commission. Jo Vaughn, Demographer was not present. 

B. Selection of Chair 

Motion by Commissioner Banks, second by Commissioner Panrell 
to appoint Roy Nutter as Chair. Motion carried by acclamation. 

C. Review voter registration data. 

Damien Davis, City Engineer explained to the Ward and Boundary 
Commission that there were 965 records found to have issues such 
as demolished buildings, no matching address, outside the city and 
unknown. He informed the Commission that the meeting with County 
Clerk Carye Blaney stated that her office had already taken care 
of some of the data addressed. Ms. Blaney will work with WVU to 
look at the 2,526 voters registered in WVU dorms to get the numbers 

Page 451 of 461



down. Mr. Davis stated Ms. Blaney informed us that there are laws 
that she has to comply with when purging a registered voter, a 
voter can stay on the rolls up to six years. After discussion, 
motion by Commissioner Banks that given the City Engineers report 
and his discussion with Mon County Clerk, that the Ward & Boundary 
commission will take no action on city boundaries and will submit 
report based on the Voter Registration Numbers that are available 
per the County Clerk. Further, when the adjusted Voting 
Registration numbers are available, Ward & Boundary Commission 
will reconvene. Commissioner Banks noted that Jo Vaughn, 
Demographer and Damien Davis can work together and present their 
report as requested by Council. Second by Commissioner Panrell, 
motion carried by acclamation. 

D. Schedu1e next meeting to meeting: 

After discussion, motion by acclamation to have the next 
meeting on January 11, 2017 in Council Chambers at 7:00 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, meeting adjourned by 
unanimous consent. Time: 10:55 p.m. 

Prepared by: 

Linda Tucker 
Date Approved: 

Chair 

Page 452 of 461



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLES 905 AND 906 PROVIDING FOR BUSINESS 
USE OF PUBLIC PLACES 

WHEREAS, Article 906 of the City Code provides for Outdoor Dining Permits designed to allow 
business use of rights-of-way for food service and promote activity in the public rights-of-way; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to provide additional opportunities for use of the public right-of-way 
in order to increase public activity in public places and promote safety and aesthetic appeal in 
public places; and 

WHEREAS, these purposes will be served by expanding the Outdoor Dining Program to permit 
business uses in addition to dining; 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City of Morgantown hereby ordains that Article 906 of the City Code 
is renamed "Permits for Private Use of Street and Sidewalk Areas" and Articles 905 and 906 of 
the City code are amended as follows: 

905.02 DISPLAYING MERCHANDISE OR MOVEABLE SIGNS. 

(a) No person shall place any merchandise, sign or obstruction of any kind upon any street or 
sidewalk within the City for the purpose of advertising, display or sale except as provided and 
authorized by this article, and the Zoning Ordinance of the City. 

(b) Wherever a business is conducted and maintained, on property adjacent to any public 
sidewalk, street or alley, no owner of any such property or business or agent thereof shall set or 
place any goods, wares or merchandise by way of exposing them for sale, in any street or alley, or 
on the sidewalks of any such street or alley, to project more than two feet from the wall or front of 
the place of business in question unless a permit for such placement or display has been issued 
pursuant to Article 906. This shall also apply to approved moveable signs. A five-foot wide clear 
passage for pedestrians on any sidewalk shall be maintained at all times. 

(c) No person shall place any newspaper or similar vending machine on a public sidewalk 
without first obtaining the approval of the City Manager. The specific location of all such 
machines shall be subject to recommendations by the City's Engineering Department and shall 
always take into consideration the safety of the general public. 

(d) No person shall be allowed to display or sell any produce, food, goods, wares or other 
merchandise between the hours of 11 :00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on any public sidewalk within the 
Downtown Business District of the City, as shown on the map contained herein, without allowing 
a minimum of four feet of width of accessible sidewalk for pedestrian movement. No such vendor 
shall be allowed to locate on any sidewalk within the 300 Block of High Street, as shown on the 
map contained herein, within the hours of 11 :00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. The sidewalk vendor shall be 
required to remove all litter or garbage within the public right-of-way and resulting from the 
vendor's sales, for a distance of fifty (50) feet of its vending location. The vendor shall remove 
all such litter or garbage from the public right-of-way before moving from the vending location on 
such night. 

Page 453 of 461



All such vendors shall be required to comply with all applicable State, Federal and City Codes, 
including the West Virginia State Fire Code. Violators ofthis subsection shall be subject to a fine 
of five hundred dollars ($500.00). 

o 
906.01 INTENT AND PURPOSE. 

The purpose of this Article is to create a permit process by which private persons may use 
the public right-or-way for business purposes in a manner designed to serve the public, to increase 
public enjoyment of the right-of-way, and to promote increased business and pedestrian traffic by 
offering safe and visually appealing opportunities for activities in public places. 

The parpose of the outdoOf ditHng perm:it is to allow for mereased business and pedestrian traffie 
by pro'/iding safe and 'lisuaUy appealing opportunities for oHtdoor dtaiBg. 

906.02 BOUNDARY OF OUTDOOR PERMIT AREA. 

Outdoor dining permits and private use permits may be issued by the City Manager for any area 
within a public right-of-way within the municipal boundaries in accordance with the terms of this 
Article. 

906.03 GENERAL PROVISIONS OUTDOOR DINING PERMITS. 

The City Manager is authorized to issue permits for the use of public rights-of-way for restaurant 
tables, chairs, and similar or related equipment for the purpose of serving food and/or drink: to the 
public ("Outdoor Dining Permits"), including conditions upon the time or manner in which the 
permitted area may be used, subject to the following conditions: 

(a) An Outdoor Dining Permit may be issued only upon completion of an application form 
prescribed by the City Manager or City Manager's designee and shall be required prior to placing 
tables, chairs, or any other equipment on any public right-of-way. Each initial or modified 
application form shall be submitted with aft nonrefundable administrative review fee of twenty
five dollars ($25.00). Renewal applications shall not require an administrative review fee. Permits 
issued hereunder shall be valid from January 1 through December 31. The permit fee for a 
nonpartitioned Outdoor Dining Permit shall be fifty dollars ($50.00) for each year the permit is 
obtained. The permit fee for a partitioned Outdoor Dining Permit shall be two hundred dollars 
($200.00) for each year the permit is obtained. Permit fees are fees charged for the city services 
necessarily provided to enforce the provisions of this article as to each permitted area and do not 
constitute payment for a license or rental of the area. 

(b) As a condition of the Outdoor Dining Permit, tables and chairs on any public right-of-way 
shall be acquired through the City or its designated representative, unless the City Manager or City 
Manager's designee approves the use of other tables and chairs in writing. The design and 

Page 454 of 461



placement of tables and chairs, as well as other equipment, shall comply with applicable 
requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act and any applicable federal, state, or local law. 

(c) The proposed use shall not unreasonably interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic or 
with access to parked vehicles, and in no event shall the uses permitted by an Outdoor Dining 
Permit reduce the open portion of any sidewalk to less than four feet in width. The placement of 
items in the public right-of-way shall comply with visibility requirements of the Planning and 
Zoning Code. 

(d) Prior to issuance of a permit, the applicatieJmt shall furnish to the City Manager a 
dimensioned plan showing the right-of-way and all existing public improvements and 
encroachments saea as including but not limited to light posts, benches, planters, trash receptacles, 
fences, trees and tree grates, bicycle racks, and newspaper boxes. The diagram shall also include 
the location of the curb relative to the building to be served by the permit and the proposed location 
of all furniture and other equipment to be placed in the right-of-way. The applicant shall furnish 
all floor plans and approvals required by the City, including Health Department or West Virginia 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Administration approvals if applicable. Outdoor dining permits shall 
not be issued for an area that would obstruct access to a ftre hydrant, Fire Department standpipe 
connection, ftre escape, bus stop, loading zone, mail boxes, or trafftc signal stanchions. Tables 
must be adjacent to the restaurant requesting a permit. 
~No permits will be issued for off-site seating (i.e. seating in front of another business). 
ill...-All equipment used to partition an area shall be sufficient to control access to the permitted 

area, must be removable by the permittee during non-operating hours, and must be of a design and 
construction acceptable to the City. 

W (g) The permittee shall ensure that any consumption and possession of alcoholic beverages 
in the area for which an Outdoor Dining Permit has been issued complies with all applicable laws 
and regulations, including those of the West Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Administration 
(WV ABCA). An area for which an Outdoor Dining Permit that allows sales and consumption of 
alcoholic beverages has been issued, and which is in compliance with all WV ABCA laws and 
regulations, shall be exempt from the prohibition on possession, consumption, or sale of alcohol 
in public places stated in City Code Section 521.06 during the lawful hours of operation of the 
permitted area. Consumption and possession of alcoholic beverages shall only be permitted with 
a partitioned Outdoor Dining Permit. 

00 Qll In order to serve any beverage regulated by the WV ABCA in an outdoor dining permit 
area, the designated area must be included in the floor plan for the licensed premises as approved 
by the WV ABCA. Any beverage regulated by the WV ABCA shall be served and consumed only 
on the enclosed or bounded portion of the public right-of-way designated as an outdoor dining 
permit area. Patrons may not carry any beverage regulated by the WV ABCA out of the outdoor 
dining permit area. 
~ ill All applicable Health Department sanitation requirements shall be followed for outdoor 

food handling. The permittee shall be responsible for posting the outdoor seating area as to any 
special Health Department requirements. 

W ill All rights-of-way encompassed by the Outdoor Dining Permit shall be maintained by the 
permittee in a sanitary manner at all times. Food, trash, and recyclables shall be disposed of in 
appropriate containers on a regular basis during the day by the permittee. 

fit ® Permittees shall be responsible for emptying any public trash containers placed in the 
permit area by the City. 

Page 455 of 461



tff ill Permittees shall see that the public areas encompassed by their Outdoor Dining Permit are 
kept clean throughout the day and at the end of each business day, so as not to have any food, 
scraps, or drink leftover remaining which would pose an attraction to animals or insects. Each 
permit holder shall wash, as needed, the public area to remove any food or drink residue that may 
attract animals and/or create a pedestrian slip hazard. 

(kf (m) No tables, chairs, or other equipment shall be permanently attached or affixed to the 
sidewalk, poles or any other public facilities. No equipment shall be placed in the permit area 
except as specifically approved in the permit application. 

tl1 (ill Outdoor dining permitted under this article, may only occur during the hours specified in 
the permit issued for each premises. If a permitte~ serves any beverage regulated by the 
WV ABCA in an outdoor dining permit area, all laws and regulations of the WV ABCA regarding 
permitted days and hours of service shall be followed. 
---(mj .(Q} The applicant for an Outdoor Dining Permit shall provide at its sole cost and expense 
and shall maintain in effect during the entire period of the permit, insurance in the following 
manner: 

(1) Worker's Compensation insurance in at least the required statutory limits; 
(2) Comprehensive general liability insurance, including owner's protective liability 

insurance and contractual liability insurance covering claims for personal injury and property 
damage with limits of at least one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, and one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) for any single injury; and 

(3) Prior to issuance of an Outdoor Dining Permit, the permittee shall provide the City with 
copies of the certificates of insurance for the required policies for each type of insurance naming 
the City as an additional insured party. 

(4) The required insurance policies shall each provide that they shall not be changesg or 
canceled during the life of the Outdoor Dining Permit until thirty days after written notice of such 
change has been delivered to the City. 

W cru The permittee shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defined the City and the West Virginia 
Department of Transportation, Division of Highways from and against any and all injuries, deaths, 
losses, damages, claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses, consequential or 
otherwise, including reasonable attorneys' fees, which may in any way arise out of or be connected 
with the granting or use of an Outdoor Dining Permit or from any act or failure to act by the 
permittee, its agents or employees. 

(ej (g} Outdoor dining is a privilege. The city shall have the right and power, acting through 
the City Manager, to prohibit the operation of an outdoor dining area at any time because of 
anticipated or actual problems and conflicts in the use of the right-of-way area. Such problems 
and conflicts may arise from, but are not limited to, scheduled festivals and similar events or 
parades or marches, or repairs to the right-of-way, or from demonstrations or emergencies 
occurring in the area. The City Manager may suspend or revoke an Outdoor Dining Permit for 
any reason after providing at least three days' prior written notice to a permittee, and the City 
Manager may revoke an Outdoor Dining Permit without notice in a situation determined by the 
City Manager to be an emergency. Any violation of the provisions of this Section; any federal, 
state, or local law; or of the specific conditions of any Outdoor Dining Permit shall be cause for 
immediate revocation of the Outdoor Dining Permit. 

Page 456 of 461



906.04. PRIVATE USE PERMITS. 

The City Manager is authorized to issue permits for the use of public rights-of-way for 
business purposes other than outdoor dining to permit businesses with locations adjoining the 
public right-of-way to extend business operations into the right-of-way, ("Private Use Permits"), 
including conditions upon the time or manner in which the permitted area may be used, subject to 
the following conditions: 

(a) A Private Use Permit may be issued only upon completion of an application form prescribed 
by the City Manager or City Manager's designee and shall be required prior to placing goods or 
equipment on any public right-of-way. Each initial or modified application form shall be 
submitted with a nonrefundable administrative review fee of twenty-five dollars 
($25.00). Renewal applications shall not require an administrative review fee. Permits issued 
hereunder shall be valid from January 1 through December 31. The permit fee for a nonpartitioned 
Private Use Permit shall be fifty dollars ($50.00) for each year the permit is obtained. The permit 
fee for a partitioned Private Use Permit shall be two hundred dollars ($200.00) for each year the 
permit is obtained. Permit fees are fees charged for the city services necessarily provided to 
enforce the provisions of this article as to each permitted area and do not constitute payment for a 
license or rental of the area. 

(b) The design and placement of all equipment shall comply with applicable requirements of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and any applicable federal, state, or local law. 

(c) The proposed use shall not unreasonably interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic or 
with access to parked vehicles, and in no event shall the uses permitted by a Private Use Pennit 
reduce the open portion of any sidewalk to less than four feet in width. The placement of items in 
the public right-of-way shall comply with visibility requirements of the Planning and Zoning Code. 

(d) Prior to issuance of a permit. the applicant shall furnish to the City Manager a dimensioned 
plan showing the right-of-way and all existing public improvements and encroachments, including 
but not limited to light posts, benches, planters, trash receptacles, fences, trees and tree grates, 
bicycle racks, and newspaper boxes. The diagram shall also include the location of the curb 
relative to the building to be served by the permit and the proposed location of all furniture and 
other equipment to be placed in the right-of-way. The applicant shall furnish all floor plans and 
approvals required by the City, including He'dlth Department or West Virginia Alcoholic Beverage 
Control Administration approvals if applicable. Private Use Permits shall not be issued for an area 
that would obstruct access to a fire hydrant, Fire Department standpipe connection, fire escape, 
bus stop, loading zone, mail boxes, or traffic signal stanchions. 

(e) The permit area must be adjacent to the business requesting a permit. No permits will be 
issued for off-site use (Le. placement in front of a business other than the applicant's own). 

(D All equipment used to partition an area shall be sufficient to control access to the permitted 
area, must be removable by the permittee during non-operating hours, and must be of a design and 
construction acceptable to the City. 

(g) All rights-of-way encompassed by the Private Use Permit shall be maintained by the 
permittee in a sanitary manner at all times. Food, trash, and recyc1ables shall be disposed of in 
appropriate containers on a regular basis throughout the day by the permittee. 

(h) Permittees shall be responsible for emptying any public trash containers placed in the permit 
area by the City. 

0) Permittees shall see that the public areas encompassed by their Private Usc Pcrmit are kept 
clean throughout the day and at the end of each business day. Each permit holder shall wash, as 

Page 457 of 461



needed, the public area to remove any food, drink, or other residue that may attract animals and/or 
create a pedestrian slip hazard. 

eD No equipment shall be permanently attached or affixed to the sidewalk, poles or any other 
public facilities. No equipment shall be placed in the permit area except as specifically approved 
in the permit application. 

(k) Uses permitted Wlder this article may only occur during the hours specified in the permit 
issued for each premises. 

(1) The applicant for a Private Use Permit shall provide at its sole cost and expense and shall 
maintain in effect during the entire period of the permit, insurance in the following manner: 

(1) Worker's Compensation insurance in at least the required statutory limits; 
(2) Comprehensive general liability insurance, including owner's protective liability 

insurance and contractual liability insurance covering claims for personal injury and property 
damage with limits of at least one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, and one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) for any single injury; and 

(3) Prior to issuance of a Private Use Permit, the permittee shall provide the City with copies 
of the certificates of insurance for the required policies for each type of insurance naming the City 
as an additional insured party. 

(4) The required insurance policies shall each provide that they shall not be changed or 
canceled during the life of the Private Use Permit Wltil thirty days after written notice of such 
change has been delivered to the City. 

(m) The permittee shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City and the West Virginia 
Department of Transportation, Division of Higbways from and against any and all injuries, deaths, 
losses, damages, claims, suits, liabilities, jUdgments, costs and expenses, consequential or 
otherwise, including reasonable attorneys' fees, which may in any way arise out of or be connected 
with the granting or use of a Private Use Permit or from any act or failure to act by the permittee, 
its agents or employees. 

(n) Private use of public space is a privilege. The city shall have the right and power, acting 
through the City Manager, to prohibit the operation of an Private Use Permit area at any time 
because of anticipated or actual problems and conflicts in the use of the right-of-way area. Such 
problems and conflicts may arise from, but are not limited to, scheduled festivals and similar events 
or parades or marches, or repairs to the right-oi-way, or from demonstrations or emergencies 
occurring in the area. The City Manager may suspend or revoke a Private Use Permit for any 
reason after providing at least three days' prior written notice to a permittee, and the City Manager 
may revoke a Private Use Permit without notice in a situation determined by the City Manager to 
be an emergency. Any violation of the provisions of this Section; any federal, state, or local law; 
or of the specific conditions of any Private Use Permit shall be cause for immediate revocation of 
the Private Use Permit. 

906.99 PENALTY. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this article, shall be fined not less 
than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than five hWldred dollars ($500.00) for each offense. A 
separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day during or on which a violation occurs or 
continues. 

Page 458 of 461



This Ordinance shall be effective upon date of adoption. 

FIRST READING: 
MAYOR 

ADOPTED: 

FILED: 
CITY CLERK 

RECORDED: 

Page 459 of 461



Carol Allen 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Carol-

Shawnda Cook <exec@moncountyhfh.org> 
Friday, November 18, 2016 12:51 PM 
Carol Allen 
RE: Request for Data 

H,ere is what I did. I pulled all costs to the City of Morgantown from QuickBooks from Jan 12014 thru today, to cover all 
cost associated to date with our Deckers Court project and the most recent rehab projects. I took out the fire fees (I 
don't expect those to be waived). 

My total is $1,925.00 - I can provide a break out if necessary. 

I am looking at pulling the building permits for lots I, 2, 3 and 8 in the near future . 

Thank you! 

Shawnda 

Page 460 of 461



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 

Permit fees paid from June 2014 - November 2016 

12 Addison Circle $152.00 

14 Addison Circle $217.79 

16 Addison Circle $254.00 

18 Addison Circle $254.00 

20 Addison Circle $254.00 

22 Addison Circle $288.00 

26 Addison Circle $288.00 

1293 Jersey Avenue $265.88 

Total $1,973.67 

Average cost per permit $246.71 

(This information provided by City of Morgantown Code Enforcement Office) 

Page 461 of 461




